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Chairman Nunn: Thank you &ll for your tescimony. - We

will have all the statements incorporated in the record as -
submitted, without objection.

Let me startc wiﬁh our usual procedure here.

General Stiner, in his press conference yesterday,
president Clinton mentioned that the military had been
consulted during the stand-off with thegroup in Waco, Texas.
Were personnel from thé Special Operation Forces, from your
command, involved in any way in tryimg to resolve that stand-
off?

General Stiner: Not in resolving it, Mr, Chairman. We
did provide three technicians ﬁo the FBI. This wés after the

ond (phane ATE

initial assault took placeAwhas?9the four,law enforcement

members lpst,their lives.

Approximately two to three weeks as—;eaaf’after tha:.'ef9

i:_aaT? when the F3I employed eus—aad the hostage rescue team ¢

Agnggiven primary responsibilitxaﬁes—cbasf they asked for
technical assistance in installing video surveillance devices
between observation posts. Thét was approved appropriately%i

and we did provide that, Ar<et ) <§:>

CBut we were not involved in developing the plan. »
'Chairman Nunn: Were your peoéle ever called on? Were

you ever called on to give any assessmenc to the Defense
'Deparcment or to the Justice Department, or to the Treasury

Department, £or thac matter, since they were all anclved, as
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to what contributi on the Special Operaticns Forces could make

ro that sizuation?.

General Stiner: No, sir.
Chairman Nuan: So you really weren't cailed oz for
either a plan or resources, Or even an assessment?

Ganeral Stiner: No, not iz that context. It was

requésced just last Tuesday. that Brigadiex General

‘Pete

Schumzker, who used to command one of ocur Special Cperations

Forces and who is now the Assistant Division Commander of the

irst Cav Division at Ft. Zood, Texas, and the current

commander of one of our surgical units accompany the commander
of the FBI's hostage rescus team to Washington to boief the

Attorney General on that plani_ffj

QThey were not asked to cdst judgment on

the adequacy of
the plan or anything of that nature.

During the briefing, they were asked if thesy had. ever
been exposed to the effacts of CS gas and they indicired that

they had and described thes symptems. There was alsc an expert

present, a doctor who had been involved in development and

experimentation on this, who answered questiors.

That was the total =xt:ent[o{‘uw MM

Chairman Nunn: But your command was never asked for

input --
General Stiner: It was not.

Chairman Nunn: -- into either planning or what Iesource
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vou had that could be usad in this unique set of

circumstanceas?

General Stiner: No, sir. It was not.

Chairman Nunn: Do you know, General Stiner, whether the
FBI and the Justice Department, who were, I understand, in
charge of the operation, had any understanding of what Special
Operations Forces can do? Do you kiow-on-your own whether
they know that? '

Generzl Stiner: Yes, they do. In fact, we have provided

traininc assistance tc the FBI’s hostage rescue team on other

occasions.

Chairman Nunn: Let me ask each of you this question. We

alerted you to this when Senator Thurmond and I apprised you

and advised you of our interest.

How do you rate the personnel morale under your commands
today and what recommendations do you make to this commiutee
for anything that you think is

essential in our consideration

in making sure that the morale of our military fcrces does nc

deteriorate?

I noticed, Admiral Larson, that you mentioned that we arx

standing, in your wotds, "On the brink of a degradation in

- readiness." I consider that, and I'm sure you do, having

listed these poiﬁts, to be rather significant.

So I would asked each of you about the morale of your

milicary £crces. General RisCassi, let’s start wich you.
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substance was his oft-repeated position that God said to walt

and that he was not coming out until God told him.'

)

At 10:10 a.m., ttempted to contact Koresh through
the FBI; however, Kgrésh would-not speak to him since it was the
Sabbath. &told &s call back at 8:30 p.m. :

N . '
_ 4 _ L

At 8:30 p.m., called back as instructed: however,

Koresh still refused to speak to him.

April 14 . ‘ - .
From 10:21 a.m. to 11:32 a.m., and &spoke
over the telephone to Koresh and The attorneys

advised the FBI at the end of this conversation that Koresh had
estabiished a new precondition for his coming out. Koresh would
only come out after he finished wrltlng a manuscript which
_explained the Seven Seals.
: .

\-

In the afternoon, there was a meeting in FBI Director
Sessions’ office to brief the Attorney General on the military

and medical perspectives of the proposed plan to insert cs gas

into the compound. Two military experts provided their -

assessments of the Plan, while a medical doctor summarized the
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results of studies of the effects of CS gas, particularly on

children, pregnant women, and the elderly.¥

Pursuant to an inquiry from the Attorney General, the FBI
began to gather information about the compound’s water supply.
The Attorney General wanted to know how long the Davidians could

hold out if the status quo continued.

There were ongoing conversations with individuals in the

compound throughout the day and evening, but no progress was

O
made.

April 15

At 7:30 a.m., FBI Air Operations reported that the water
stbragé‘tank in the rear of the compound appeared to be full.
This information was immediately made part of the feport to the
Attérney General. The report concluded that the compound.had a
‘,pﬁfficient water supply to last a significant period of time.

[Material redacted as required by statute.] At 5:15 p.m.,
thé FBI activated a "flash bang" device when a male exited the
compound unannounced. He returned inside for a few moments{ then

came back outside. The FBI activated another "flash bang."

¥  see pages 266-70 for a discussion of these assessments.

- 106 -

Z 0003906



Koresh and his followers. Director Sessions believed it was
essential for the FBI to be "in control of its own fate" and to
ensure the safety of its own agents’ lives. A major concern in
everyone’s opinion was the need to avoid being drawn into a
situation, or taking an%zﬁction, which would escalate
unnecessarily. To-it was importarit at the same time
to convey to the Davidians the FBI’s commitment to a peaceful
resolution and intent to remain in Waco until that objective was
achieved. |
TN | c
Another major role for FBI Headquarters’ personnel

included contacting various U.S. military cohponents regarding

the transportation of agent and support personnel, andvobtaining

data about the effective range of assorted weapons.' The FBI also
_ng sought technical %ﬁffrmation about certain military vehicles.
' ps
According to~ there was concern and uncertainty as to

the types of weapons inside the compound, particularly in view of

._‘“4” R

the reported presence of .50 éaliber rifles capable of
penetrating any tactical vehicle in the FBI's invenﬁory. As a

" result of these concerns, the FBI requested Bradley fighting

k vehicles from‘the U.S. Army. Nine of these -- withodt barrels,
E%? pursuant to an agreement between the FBI and the Army to avoid
1 égggg comitatus prohibitions -- were ultimately provided.
L—"" '
 §3 | When the Bradleys arrived and were positionéd around the

compound, Koresh advised that he had weapons that could "blow
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them 40 to 50 feet in the air." The FBI then sought and obtained
from the Army two Abrams (M1Al) tanks and five M728 Combat

Engineer Vehicles (CEVs), to give FBI personnel adequate

‘'protection from the .50 caliber rifles and other, more powerful

weapons the Davidians might have. 14

Finally, FBI Headquarters’ officials served as advisors to
the Justice Depa:tment, particularly in the latter stages of the
standoff as fhe plan for the insertion of gas was developed. The
FBI ensured the flow of informa?ion froﬁ the Bureau and the SIOC
to Acting Attorney General @§ nd later Attorney General

= and to other departmental officials, including members of

the Criminal Division’s Violent Crimes and Terrorism Section.

D. The Negotiations

1. Organization of the Negotiation Teams

In all, 25 negotiators were assigned to the negotiation team
during the Waco standoff. The overall negotiatiom effort was
3

coordinated by FBI Quantico SSAs Gy (from February 28

to March 25) and CyNENEESNNSNNEENMS (from March 23 to April

hisg

The FBI also used a 17th tracked vehicle -- a M88 Tank
Retrieval Vehicle. (For a complete list of military personnel and
equipment present at the compound as of April 13, 1993, see
appendix B)
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‘The intent was to give the Branch Davidians the clear impression
that although there was an alternative and this was not a panic
situation, the FBI was maintaining maximum control. —)\
understood that the use of tear gas to end the stahdoff. would
take several days; the plan was to inject the gas through the .
windows methodically. He added that both he and the Attorney'
General were confident that there would be enhanced medical
capabilities to meet all needs. He also said that the FBI

informed them that the tear gas would not cause a fire.
2. April 14 Meetings

On Wednesday, April 14, a large meeting was held in the FBI
Director’s. office:~The Justice-Department was represented by
7 GJ G) J
1, Gy =nd GEENER 2long wi&\ Director ]
6.

, s
the FBI representatives included chinmmish, S,

0 /
, and chief of the Domestic

Térrorism unit in CID. There were also several military
; >representatives, and Dr.ﬁ, Qho was present to
summarize results of studieé of effects of CS gas 6n children,
pregn&nj women and the elderly. The Attbfney General described
Dr.é as "careful and scientific." She recalled that
although there had been no laboratory tests performed on éhildren'

relative to the effects of the gas, anecdotal evidence was

convincing that there would be no permanent injury.
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Z 0003910



The military personnel present told her that .the gas was
used at least annually on soldiers in the U.S. Army during
fraining exercises. They also discussed properties of the gas,
inﬁ%uding any pyrotechnic qualities. AThe military persiﬁnel mi?e

feel more confident with the concept of tear gas, as opposed
to the original concept in her mind of "gassing." The military
officials also séid that in.a military operation, the entire
compound would be gassed at onée, not .gradually. However, the
law enforcement intérest was to go step-by-step, increase the
pressure, and make it increasingly uncomfortable inside the
structure in an effort to drive them out. After discussing the
nature of the gas and varied tolerance levels to be expected from
the occupants, the meeting participants were prepéred to wait two
'ﬁo three days for everyone eventually to come out. The action
was viewed as a'gradual, step-by-step process. It was not law.
ehfdrcéhent's intent that this was to bé "D-Day." Both the |
Attorney General and Directdr Z) voiced concern for
achieving the end result with maximum safety." made it
_piear that the goal of the plan was to introduce the tear gas one

step at a time to avoid confusing the Branch Davidians and

thereby maintain the impression that they were not trapped.

Once the Attorney General was convinced that the gas was
non-lethal and would not cause permanent harm to children,
- pregnant women and others, she turned her attention to the HRT.

One of the military officers argued that maintaining the HRT in a
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constant state of readineés was not possible. He advised that
the HRT be withdrawn. ~/ advised that his team had received
sufficient breaks during the standoff that they were not too
fatigued to perform at top capacity in any tactical operatibn ﬁtf
the time. He added, however, that if the standoff conﬁinued for
an extended lengfh of time, he would pro ose that the HRT stand
down for rest and retraining.g’ When —7’ asked about using
SWAT teams to take the place of the HRT, she was told that the
HRT'’s expértise in déaiing with the powerful weapoﬁs inside the
éompound, driving the armored vehicles, and maintainingAthe

security of the perimeter was essential.

The FBI asserted that law enforcement on the scene in Wac§
could not safely maintain the security perimeter indefinitely.
There was a vast open area surrounding the compound, and it was
Aimpossiﬁle safely to keep people from wandering‘in and out,
Moreover, the Branch Davidian compound itself was a heavily armed
camb, with danéerous people inside who had already killed foﬁr'
_fiaw enforcement agents. The situation was.difficult to control,
ahd‘the area was difficult to defend. 1In the FBI’s view, there
were extraordinary public safetylissues. Containment of'fhe

Branch Davidians in the Building with walls or wire appeared

=

5 . .
32/ & described the factors in ‘the deterioration of HRT
effectiveness due to the lengthy deployment. The HRT operators,
including the sniper observers, were required to watch for 1long
hgurs _through binoculars and rifle scopes in a very tense
situation. Also, while the FBI snipers were observing the Branch
Davidians, the Davidians 1likewise  observed and followed the
movements of the HRT. :
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infeasible, and posse comitatus proscriptions prevented the use
of a ﬁilitary force to secure the area. Some ekpefts had raised
the distinct possibility that Koresh might actually mount an
offensive attack against the perimeter security, with Branch
Davidians using children as shields. This would have required
the best trained forces available to the FBI. Finally, the FBI
expressed its concern about the possible incursions of fringe
groups intent on coming to Koresh’s aid. . For all these reasons,
the FBI regarded perimeter security as so significant that it
urged the Attorney General to relieve the HRT with SWAT teams

only as a last resort.

There were additional discussions about the prosecutors’
concerns ovér maintaining tﬁe integrity of the crime scene, the
rules of engagement, the'deteriorating sanitary conditions, and
the lack of medical personnel inside the compound. When the
Attqrney General asked why the standoff had to be resolved soon,
Rogers and others offeteé the following additional reasons:

. Xoresh had broken every promise he had made; negotiations had

broken down; no one had been released since March 23; and it

appeared that no one else would surrender.

7\ v N
2z
~Following this meeting, @mi® met in her office\with &,

€Y,

. (Y - I
<immmmy, and Lo to discuss the plan. AUSA n was

consulted during this meeting about indications from electronic

surveillance of conversations inside the compound that the Branch
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from the building at least two minutes before the first reports-
of smoke. The split-screen video mentioned above shows CEV-lV
backing away from the building at that moment. The infrared tape
shows a heat source -- the exhaust -- atvthe rear of CEV-1, but

no heat source at the front of CEV-1.

//T#" The army has examined all the CEVs used on April 19,

( including CEV-1, to determine Qhether there was any possibility

| that any of the vehicles could have been outfitted with a flame-.
emitting device. All bills of lading; maintenance records, and
other relevant documentation were checked. The evidence shows

| that none of the CEVs was outfitted with any device capable of

emitting fire or flames. We also had each CEV examined for

evidence of charring or fire. No such evidence was found.

U.S. Army maintenance personnel who were present in Waco,
and who were responsible for CEV-1, were also interviewed and

shown a copy of videotape. They could offer no

:exﬁlanation for the appearance of any fire at thé end of the
, " boom. Neither CEV-1, nor any other vehicle, was outfitted with
any flamethrowing apparatus.; Moreover, there were no flammable
parts at the front of the CEV, and there were no electrical

components which could cause a flame.

In summary, no evidence has been found to support the claim

that CEV-1, or any other government vehicle, started the fire at
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

Ho_uss OF REPRESENTATIVES, :
Washington, DC, August 2, 1996.

HoN. NEWT GINGRICH, ‘

Speaker of the House of Representatives,

Washington, DC. .

DEAR MR. SPEAKER: By direction of the Committee on Government Reform and

~ Oversight and on behalf of Mr. Hyde and Mr. McCollum of the Committee on the

Judiciary, 1 herewith gubmit the committee’s thirteenth report to the 104th Congress.

The report is based on a joint investigation conducted by the Judiciary’s Subcommittee
on Crime, and the Government Reform and Oversight Committee’s Subcommittee on
National Security, International Affairs, and Criminal Justice. ’

Sincerely,

WiLLiaM F. CLINGER, Jr.,
- : Chairman,
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: 1. Why the FBI changed negotiators ...cimmiersssmsmmensssssnsssscssssssssssssrssssasssmnsssass .

2. Why the FBI didn't allow others to participate in the negotiations .......ceeseeeeseseesee

" 7"C, Lack of appréciation of outside information .......... freserererenaresss
.1 Why the FBI did not rely more on religious advisors to understand Koresh ............
© £27 9 *Others who contributed Information ...y e mpssimessenses

LR i)'f'he FBT's failuré to follow its owni-expert’s recommendations’

1. What the FBI's own experts reCOMMENded ...l siiimmmmmmmsesmsmssssesrrsessessssssessss

E. The decision to disiniss the surrender plan ... i
1. *Kids lined up with their JACKeLs ON” w.ccriiisesecccrssnismniessisssnsammniersssssesssssasasiussas
2. Breakthrough with Koresh’s letter
3. The breakthrough communicated to Jamar
4. The failure to communicate this breakthrough up the chain of command
5. Evidence that Koresh was writing his interpretation of the Seven Seals .
6. Why the FBI disregarded the evidence that the Seven Seals were being written ...

-

F. Findings concerning the negotiations to end the standoff with the Davidians .....0.ceeenee .
G. Recommendations ...... CevevesesasensosensriassSIOROSeseSeIRAIS LR IR LSRR SO ESESEROESES ISR LRI SE ISR 0 000
VIL The Attorney General’s decision to end the stand-off ssssarsssunsernsanesarssssresnssssaseses
A. Overview of the plan to end the standoff restesnssesasess seasssRosSRSSTORSSRSHSHRRRE S SORSESESS N R SRS 000 0S
B. The operation plan for April 19, 1993 ..ccicceicmimsismuisssssssmmnssssinessassscsssssssssessanssinsarsssssse "
1L Overview of the written operation plan to end the standoff .........ccccrsesirsiserscssrsasesnens
2. Acceleration provisions of the operations Plan ..c..osmeimessssmmsssssmmssnsssniossssssases
C. The way the plan actually unfolded ........coevessmmmessesssessssssrmmmmssnsssssmmmrsssssssssssessrossorssesssssnsnsane
D. Overview of the use of CS chemical agent
1. Introduction
2. Concerns over use of CS ...
E. Clinical effects and toxicity of CS .......
1. Common effects of exposure to CS
2. Toxicity of CS
F. Effect of the CS and methylene chloride in the quantities used on April 18th ....ccccoeeueven. .
: 1. Lethality of CS as used at Waco
2. Lethality of methylene chloride used with CS at Waco ;
3. Other possible effects of methylene chloride used with CS at Waco w..ccewersssissessstenes

v
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G. Analysis of the Attorney General's decision to end the standoff on April 19, 1993 .......
1. The decision not to storm the residence ‘ .
2. The reasons asserted for ending the standoff on day 51
. 8. The decision as to how to implement the plan ressesssnsonsneassensnsissssssassnsasanrosanss
H. Presidential involvement in the events at Waco, TX . “
1. Findings concerning the plan to end the standoff ...
- J. Recommendations essssneatessssasareessasssasesasesneasanesesnratines
V. The fire cverens
A. Summary of the development of the fire ..... ‘
B. Other theories concerning the development of the fire
1. Whether the methylene chloride in the CS riot control agent used by the FBI
caused the fire .......mmeressssensessnersrans
2. Whether the irritant chemical in the CS riot control agent used by the FBI
caused or contributed to the spread of the fire .
3. Whether the combat engineering vehicles used by the FBI on April 19 started

the fire

secessntensse esssee

C. Whether the Davidians could have left their residence after the fire began ...ooeeeeee. -
D. The FBI's planning for the fire “ esessenasenssasetsssasessassrssenée
E. Findings concerning the fire
VIEWS
Additional views of Hon. Ileana Ros-Lehtinen
Additional views of Hon: William H. Zeliff, JT c..cconivecesnirinicsersesenersmasisssnssisisssonscnssnssnmmsssissnssssssnsssisassns

The submission by Hon. Steven Schiff, of the Subcommittee on National Security, International
Affairs, and Criminal Justice of the Committee on Government Reform and Oversight, of extra-
neous material provided to him by Hon. Bob Barr, of the Subcommittee on Crime of the
Committee on the JUAICIATY ....ccivuiermesmsncusunsnnnerssassnssmscsnsacsnsase sessesessansesansnenssessnsnsssatserOn O .

Additional views of Hon., Tom LANLO8 ...ceriereriirsssssisssmmainessasasnsssssnnismsssssssesasssssasasssmrssmmsnisransassses ssasusess .
Dissenting views of Hon. Cardiss Collins, Hon. Karen L. Thurman, Hon, Henry A. Waxman,

Hon. Tom Lantos, Hon. Robert E. Wise, Jr., Hon. Major R. Owens, Hon. Edolphus Towns,
Hon. Louise M. Slaughter, Hon. Paul E. Kanjorski, Hon. Carolyn B. Maloney, Hon, Thomas
M. Barrett, Hon. Barbara-Rose Collins, Hon, Eleanor Holmes Norton, Hon. James P. Moran,
Hon. Carrie P. Meek, Hon. Chaka Fattah, and Hon, Elijah E. Cummings ...c.coucens craesaernssnenasses
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INVESTIGATION INTO THE
RO LJAG_E

] __ HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Union Calendar No. 395

REPORT
104-749

, ACTIVITIE S OF FEDERAL LAW 'ENFORCEMENT
CIES 'OWARD THE BRANCH DAVIDIANS -

Corimittee

7 Auéust 2, 1896.—Committed to the.

of the WholeHouseontheState of the Union and

ordered to be printed - )

submitted

B

Y | RASED ON A JOINT INVESTIGATION BY

On July 25, 1996, the
entitled “Investigation
Davidians.” The report was prep

ared jointly with

- From April 1995 to May 1996, the
..on Crime of

Subcommittes

national Affairs, and Criminal Justice of the

i House Committee on Government Reform and

1 -~ Oversight jointly conducted an investigation into

_ the actions of the ‘

~ enforcement activities near Waco,

" and éarly 1993 toward a group

Branch Davidians. As part of that investigation,

the subcommittees held 10 days of public hearings.
During the course of those hearings, more

100 witnesses appeared and gave testimony con-

. -‘cerning all of the government’s actions.

. ““Thg=subcommittees also: reviewed thousands of

documents - requested -from_and_provi ovided™ by “the
-agencies involved v 18

"znfqrn_mﬁbhA‘or‘opihi&ﬁ,s*diﬂcerning-themv
=~ |-, 7 Thig report is the final product of

1 ““§on.” It summarizes the most -important facts
about the key issues of these activities considered

1 by the subcommittees. The report also sets forth

RIMINAL JUSTICE OF THE, COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT

Committee on Government
Into the Activities of Federal Law Enforcement Agencies Tow
the Committee on the Judiciary. The chairman w

rected to transmit a copy to the Speaker of the House.

L e ted

the House Committee on the Judiciary .
" “and the Subcommittee on National Security, Inter--

Federal agencies involved in law .
TX in late 1992
known as the

ager \ in “these actions; Additionally,"
_the subcommittees met with others-who were: in--
volved in theése actions or-who ‘offered. additional

that investiga-

Mr. CLINGER, from the Committee or.x-G‘overnm‘e'nt Refbrxh and Oversight,

the following | : :

THIRTEENTH REPORT
togetherwith
DISSENTING VIEWS

ONAL SECURITY, INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS,

ON NATI
REFORM AND OVERSIGHT, AND THE

""" SUBCOMMITTEE ON CRIME OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE JUDICIARY

and adopted a report
ard the Branch
as di-

Reform and Oversight approved

. the subcommittees’ findings with respect to many
_ issues and to new facts uncovered during
_.the investigation. Finally, the report makes rec-
‘ommendations in order to prevent the mistakes
that occurred at Waco from reoccurring in future
‘law enforcement operations.
. A.A BRIEF SUMMARY OF THE GOVERNMENT’S
... ACTIONS TOWARD THE BRANCH DAVIDIANS -

In June 1992, the Austin, TX Office of the Bu
reau of Alcohol, Tobacco TF)

and Firearms (A
opened a formal investigation into allegations that
members of a Waco, TX religious group, known as
the Branch Davidians, and in particular their
leader, Vernon Howell, also known as David
Koresh, were in possession of illegel firearms and

-+ explosive devices. In January 1993, ATF agents

. commenced: an- undercover operation in a

the property on which
ATF agents posed

“-housé-directly: across from t
the Branch Davidians lived, The

“the agénts -‘meeting ~ with
Davidians several times by expressin,

g an interest
in their religious beliefs. As a result of the evi-
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" - Davidian residence. ' -

dence gathered by the ATF, and in particular dur-
ing the undercover operation, the ATF sought and
received from a Federal judge an arrest warrant

for Koresh and a warrant to sea::;ll t.heBranch

" ‘Shortly before the ATF planned to seive the
-~ search-and arrest warrants, it contacted Operation
. military counter drug operations along’ the south-

‘west border. Through that office, the ATF re-

to serve the warrants. The ATF's request for mili- -

" tary assistance also would have involved the mili-
tary personnel as participants in_the raid itself.
Afer military legal advisors cautioned that such
activity might violate Federal law, the ATF's re-
quest was modified so that military personnel only
provided training to the ATF agents and did not
participate in the raid. Because the ATF alleged
that the Davidians were also involved in illegal
drug manufacturing, the assistance provided by
_ these counter drug military forces was provided to
" the ATF without reimbursement. '

On February 28, 1993, a force of 76 ATF agents
_stormed the Davidian residence to serve the arrest

Alliance, a government office” which coordinated

" i questéd that military pérsonnel provide training to
© - the ATF-agents who would be involved in the raid

and search warrants. Prior to- the commencement -

. ATF agents in a gun battle which continued for al-
. -_most 90 minutes. Four ATF agents were killed in

“the battle and more than 20 agents wounded. At
Jeast two Davidians were killed by ATF agents
- and several others, including Koresh, were wound-

After a cease-fire was arranged, the Federal Bu-
reau of Investigation (FBI) dispatched members of

~_its Hostage Rescue Team (HRT) to Waco to take

" control of the situation at the request of the ATF.

.. " At 6 a.m. the next morning, the FBI formally took

control -of the situation and commenced a 51 day
_~ standoff with the Davidians, During this time, FBI
" officials engaged in daily negotiations with - the
Davidians in an effort to end the standoff peace-

."“"of the raid, however, the Davidians had learned of ..
" the ATF's plans,” As the agents arrived at the.
' . Davidians’ residence, the :Davidians-engaged the

~ ably. Between February 18 and March 23, 35 per-

<" gons, including 21 childrén, left the residence and

surrendered to the FBI. From March 23 to April
18, ‘however, - none of the remaining Branch
Davidians left the residence. '

* In addition to the continual negotiations with
the Davidians, FBI officials took other steps to in-
duce the Davidians to surrender. These tactics in-
cluded tightening the perimeter around the

- Davidian . residence, cutting off electricity to th

residence, 'and at"one point, shining bright lights

&t the'residence and playing loud ‘music and jrri

tating _sounds - over ._loudspeakers, : During- the

 with several experts‘routinely retained by the. FBI

“'In‘gome cases, the advice of thess ‘expert
Jowed while in other cases it was not. Many other

s was fol-

to the |

" concerning

7 with

" During the fire, sounds of

course -of the standoff, FBI negotiators consulted . . the structure weré heard. Some of these .sounds

“*‘compoun

persons offered advice to the FBL While a few of
these individuals offered credible assistance, the
FBI chose to ignore the offers of assistance from
all of these persons, '

" During the week of April 12, senior Justice De-

partment officials bégan considering a plan devel-

“oped by the FBI to end the standoff. Attorney Gen-
eral Janet Reno, other senior Justice Department

officials, and FBI officials- held several meetings
g the plan. The FBI also requested the
input of Department of Defense employees and

* military personnel concerning the plan to end the
- gtandoff. During these deliberations Associate At-
+~torney General Webster- Hubbell personall
~ “cussed the status of the negotiations wi

. FBPI's chief day-to-day negotiator in Waco. The pro-

dis-
the

posed plan centered around the use of a chemical
riot control agent which would be injected through
the walls of the Davidian residence in order to in-
duce the residents to leave the structure. It pro-
vided for the methodical insertion of the riot con-
trol agent into different parts of the building over
a 48 hour period. The plan also contained a contin-
gency provision to be used if the Davidians fired

_on the FBI agents who were implementing the

plan. In that event, the FBI proposed to insert the

~riot control agent into all portions of the residence
simultaneously.'As a result of these deliberations,
the Attorney General approved the implementa-
tion of the plan for April 19, 1993, : C
- At approximately 6 a.m: on April 19, the FBI's

chief negotiator, Byron Sage, telephoned the
Davidians and informed them that the FBI was in-
serting the riot control agent into the residence.
Sage also began broadcasting a prepared state-
ment over loudspeakers that the FBI was “placing
tear gas in the building” and that all residents
ghould leave. As the announcement was being
made, FBI agents using unarmed military vehicles
“booms mounted on them began to insert the
riot control agent into the compound by ramming

" holes into the sides of the structure and then using
devices mounted on the booms to spray the riot

control agent into the holes in the walls. Almost
immediately the Davidians began to fire on the ve-

hicles being used by. the FBL. At 607 a.m., the

commander of the Hostage Rescue Team ordered
that the contingency provision of the operations
plan be implemented and that the riot control
agent be inserted in all portions of the residence at
once. During 6 hours of insertion of the riot control
agent no residents exited the compound.

At approximately 12:07 p.m., a fire was observed
in one portion of the residence. Within 2 minutes,

two_other fires developed. Within a period of 8

inutes, the three fires. had engulfed the. entire
structure, ultimately destroying it completely, = -
gunfire from within

were live rounds explodingin the flames inside the

However, other sounds were methodical
and evenly-spaced, indicating the deliberate firing
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- of weapons. Nine persons escaped from the struc-  The Buread of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms -
ture during the course of the fire but more than 70 L The ATFs investigation of the Branch
. other residents remained inside. All of these per-  Davidians was grossly incompetent. It lacked the
..%¢| . sons died. Of this number, autopsies indicated that  minimum professionalism expected of a major Fed-

= {7 19 died from gunshots at close range. Most of the  eral law enforcement agency.
‘. _other residents who remained inside the structure - ° 2, While the ATF had probable cause to obtain
- died as a result of smoke inhalation from the fire:" : the" arrest” warrant for David Koresh and the
. Y ..or from burns from the fire. B :ﬁar:);ﬁ gm“étl :gr- e Bxanéh;{l_)a‘yidian residence,
x> 3 P I P LT st T the avit -in 'uppo‘-t e warrants con-
Lm TR quor_msgnco et - tained an incredible number of false _statements.
.- As.a result of its investigation, the subcommit--- The ATF agents responsible for preparing the affi-
- tees make the following findings: - - - . _f;vitsiknw 95;81!9@1}41 hdve known that many of
. he Braneh Davidians . 5. ‘thestatements were WUL

e ] . e <o o T ooen g Pavid Koresh could have been arrested out-
R E be}l;A.B.“t forfths “?? "I'al cogduct dandmaberrguon:hl - gide the Davidian compound. The ATF chose not to
Da V?E:\soth . at‘: !'e:esmatm 0 elrin %co -~ arrest Koresh outside the Davidian residence and
_ would not have occurred. The ultimate responsibil- :;;t:::d‘w?: gﬁ?&eﬁ f!oe;ilssi‘;ma Ad%;&:;;;ng
ity for the deaths of the Davidians and the four  orcised e'xtremely poor judgment, made erroneous
Feger;;}‘ nlzwn::fgir:;on;:g:eaz&';t:‘};s:n :neu;‘ar:?er::;i :ﬁsympﬁons:ﬁ_ andﬁignored the foreseeable perils of
to the subcommittees - indicates that some of the :fr.x?l‘t;‘meagent (;:i.srepresented to Defense De-
Davidians intentionally set the fires inside the  partment officials that the Branch Davidians were
~ Davidian residence. -, involved in illegal drug manufacturing. As a result
3. The Da_w'dxafls_ could have escgped the resi- - of this deception, the ATF was able to obtain some
...dence for 8 significant period of time after the . training from forces which would not have other-
‘start of the fire. Mogt of the Davidians ejther did |- wise provided it, and likely obtained other training

" not attempt to-escape from the residence or.-were - ‘within a shorter period of time than might other-
~_prevented from escaping by othér Davidians.* ' * -~ wise have been available. Because of its deception,

<"°4. Thie gunshot wounds which were the cause of * the ATF was able to obtain the training without
death of 19 of the Davidians on April 19 were'ei- " " having to reimburse the Defense Department, as

ther self-inflicted, inflicted by other Davidians, or ~ otherwise would have been required had no drug

the result of the remote possibility of accidental  nexus been alleged, : :

" discharge from rounds exploding in the fire, 5. ’l‘h:el decisio& to pursueﬂ‘a t;-;i‘litary styllei- raid
T artment of th was made more than 2 months before surveillance,

. he Department of the Treasury : undercover, and infiltration efforts were begun. -
L 1. Treasury Secretary Lloyd Bentsen and Deputy  pe ATF undercover and surveillance operation

- Secretary Roger Altman acted highly irresponsibly - . sorali ;
."“and were derelict in their duties in failing to even - },';cg‘:g{*’ﬁ;;m‘;‘;;:cggg,?:;‘;g‘ e‘s":pe“",si::;
meet with the Director of the ATF in the month of  goiled to properly monitor this operation.
80 they were in office prior to the February 28 raid 6. The ATF's raid plan for February 28 was sig-
on the Davidians residence, in failing to request  pifcantly flawed. The plan was poorly conceived,
- any briefing on ATF operations during this time,  ytilized a high risk tactical approach when other
..""and in wholly failing to involve themselves with  tactics could have been successfully used, was
the activities of the ATF. - .. . drafted and commanded by ATF agents who were
2. Senior Treasury Department officials ‘rou-  Jess qualified than. other avaﬂaﬁ:n agents, and
_ tinely failed in their duty to monitor the actions of *  uged agents who were not sufficiently trained for
ATF officials, and as a result were uninvolved in . - the operation. Additionally, ATF commanders did
the planning of the February 28 raid. This failure ot take precautions to ensure that the plan would
eliminated a layer of scrutiny of the plan during  not be discovered..
which flaws in it might have been uncovered and 7. The senior ATF raid commanders, Phillip
corrected. e . o Chojnacki and Chuck Sarsbyn, either knew or
.~ -3, After the raid failed, Assistant Treasury Sec-  should have known that the Davidians had become
tary Ronald Noble attempted to. lay_the blame _ aware of the impending raid and were likely to re-
entirely on the ATF despite the fact that Treasury . " sist_ with -deadly force._ Nevertheless, they reck-
Department officials, including” Noble,  failed to. lessly. proceeded with the raid, thereby endanger-
properly. . supervise: ATF - activities leading to_the " ing the. lives. of the ATF agents under their com-
raid, - Moreover,; Treasury *. Department . officials, * mand. an  “lives _of -those residing in the
-having approved the raid, failed to clearly and co! ; compound.. This, more than any other factor, led to
ST cisely communicate_the conditions under. which ‘it “the deaths of the. four'ATF agents killed on Feb-
Sy P was to be aborted. .. . ..o L Tt ruary 28. S
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" 7 “The Department of Justice - - -

" 8. Pormer ATF Director Stephen Higgins and

former ATF Deputy Director Daniel Hartnett bear
a portion of the responsibility for the failure of the

- _raid. They failed to become significantly involved

in the planning for the raid and also failed to in-

- stillin the nen?r raid comntlhandé'fs an understand-" "
ing of the need to ensure that secrecy Was WA ... jp551d not have taken place. The possibility of a
‘negotiated end to the standoff presented by Koresh

" tained in an operation of this type. . _ -

. . . 9, There was no justification t‘ldr_tl'i‘el;'r’é‘hi:ﬁrig‘"dfl‘

) - the .two -senior ATF.: raid commanders after they

- were fired. The. fact: that senior Clinton adminis- -
- tration officials approved their rehiring’ indicates 8™

. Tack of sound judgment-on their part.

1. The decision by Attorney General Janet Reno
to approve the FBI's plan to ‘end the standoff on
April 19 was premature, wrong, and highly irre-
sponsible. In authorizing the assault to proceed At-
torney General Reno was geriously negligent. The
Attorney General knew or should have known that
the plan to end the stand-off would endanger the
lives of the Davidians inside the residence, includ-
_ ing the children. The Attorney General knew or

should have known that there was little risk to the

' FBI agents, society as a whole, or to the Davidians
-_from continuing this standoff and that the possibil-

‘7 jty of a peaceful resolution continued to exist. i- .
" "2, The Attorney General knew’ or should have

" kmown-that the reasons ited for ending the stand-

" . off on April 19 lacked merit. The negotiations had -
_“not reached an impasse. There was no threat of a-.

Davidian breakout. The FBI Hostage Rescue Team
did not need to stand down for rest and retraining

for at least 2 more weeks after April 19, and if and -

when it did stand down FBI and local law enforce-
ment SWAT teams could have been brought in to

maintain the perimeter. Sanitary and other living -
. conditions inside. the Davidian residence had not
~ deteriorated during the standoff and there was no ..

. evidence that they were likely to deteriorate in the
-pear future. And while physical and sexual abuse

. . of minors had occurred, there was no basis to con-

‘clude that minors were being subjected to any
greater risk of physical or sexus) abuse during the

stand-off than prior to February 28. The final as-

* gault put the children at the greatest risk. -
8. The CS riot control agent insertion and as-

‘sault plan was fatally flawed. The Attorney Gen- .

eral believed that it was highly likely that the

Davidians would open fire, and she knew or should .

‘have known that the rapid insertion contingency
would be activated, that the Davidians would not
‘react in the manner suggested by the FBI, and
that there was.a possibility that a violent and per-.
 suicidal reaction would occuir within the res
‘ther flawed in that no provision had beeh made fo
alternative “actionto_be taken_in the event: the
. plan was not successful.. o :
. 4 Following ‘the FBI's April 19 assaull th

Branch Davidian~ compound, Attorney

~eral more weeks, .:vx

ence. The planning 1o end he stand-off wis fur- .

General

Reno offered her resignation. In light of her ult
mate responsibility for the disastrous assault ant
its resulting deaths the President should have ac-

_ cepted it S
.~ The Federal Bureas of Investigation

1. The CS riot control agent assault of April 19 ‘ _

should have been pursued even if it had taken sev-

. 2. After Koresh and the Davidians broke a prom-

ise to.come out on March 2 FBI tactical com-
- mander Jeffrey Jamar. viewed all statements of
_Koresh with extreme skepticism and thought the

chances of a negotiated surrender remote. While

" chief negotiator Byron Sage may have held out

hope longer, FBI officials on the ground had effec- -
tively ruled out a negotiated end long before April
19 and had closed minds when presented with evi-
dence of a possible negotiated end following com-
pletion of Koresh’s work on interpreting the Seven
Seals of the Bible.

3. The FBI should- have sought and accepted
more expert advice on the Branch Davidians and
their religious views and been more open-mind
to the advice of the FBI's own experts.

.-~ 4,. FBI tactical ‘commander Jeffrey Jamar and
Tsenior FBI and Justice Department officials advis-

ing the Attorney General knew or should have
known that none of the reasons given to end nego-
tiations and go forward with the plan to end the
stand-off on April 19 had merit. To urge ‘these as
a%‘excuse to act was wrong and highly irrespon-
gible. ... . .

5. CS riot. control agent is capable of causing im-
mediate, acute and severe physical distress to ex-
posed individuals, especially young children, preg-

_nant women, the elderly, and those with res-

piratory: conditions. In some cases, seyere Or €X-
tended exposure can lead to incapacitation. Evi-
dence presented to the subcommittees show that

use of CS riot control agent in enclosed spaces,

“guch as the bunker, significantly increases the pos-

sibility that lethal levels will be reached, and the
possibility of harm significantly increases. In view

~ of the risks posed by insertion of CS into enclosed

spaces, particularly the bunker, the FBI failed to
demonstrate sufficient concern for the presence of
young children, pregnant women, the elderly, and
those with respiratory conditions. While it cannot
be concluded with certainty, it is unlikely that the

.CS riot control agent, in the quantities used by the

FBI, reached lethal toxic Jevels. However, the pre-

‘sented evidence does indicate that CS insertion
~“into. the enclosed bunker, at a time when women

and childrén were assembled inside that enclosed

space, could have been a proximate cause of or di-

rectly resulted in some or all of the deaths attrib-
ted to asphyxiation in the autopsy reports.

6. There is no evidence that the FBI discharged

firearms on April 19, ~ ‘ :
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*' 9. There is no evidence that the FBI inten-
tionally or inadvertently set the fires on April 19,

o 8. The FBI's refusal to ask for.or accept the as-

e~ ] - -sistance of other law enforcement agencies ‘during
== {1~ thé stand-off demonstrated an institutional bias at

<. The Department of Defense .~ - vl -o woves v
-1, The activities of ‘active’ duty military person-
- “pel in training the ATF and in supporting: the™ "
FBI's activities during the standoff did-not violate -
<+ "the Posse Comitatus Act because their actions did "
* | = not constitute direct participation in the govern-’
1 .. ment's law enforcement activities, - ... - .
- 9. The activities of National Guard personnel in
“training the ATF, in participating in the ATF raid
on the Davidian residence, and in supporting the -
FBT's activities during the standoff did not violate
the Posse Comitatus Act because the personnel
were not subject to the prohibitions in the act.
_ 8. No foreign military personnel or other foreign
. -] . persons took part in any of the government’s ac-
: tions toward the Branch Davidians. Some foreign
_military personnel were present near the Davidian
" residence as observers at the invitation of the FBL
o+ i-C. RECOMMENDATIONS. ...: .....tv.= ¢in
r to prevent the errors in judgment and
nt tragic_results that occurred at Waco -

+ x| the FBI against accepting and utilizing such as- ..

conseque ulf urred at Waco
‘' from occurring in the future, ‘the subcommittees”
- - make the following recommendations: -~ =" - - -
1, Congress should conduct further over-
sight of the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and
" Firearms, the oversight of the sgency pro-
vided by the Treasury Department, and
whether jurisdiction over the agency should
. be transferred to the Department of Justice,
2 ‘Congress -should ~ consider whether the lack of
“* Treasury Department oversight of ATF activities -
 * in —connection with the investigation of the
- Davidians, and the failures by ATF leadership -
-~ during that investigation, indicate that jurisdiction
.- gver the ATF should be transferred to the Depart-
ment of Justice, o ’-
2. If the false statement in the affidavits
filed in support of the eearch and arrest war-
rants were made with knowledge of their fal-
sity, crimingl charges should be brought
aguinst the persons making the statements.
3. Federal law enforcement agencies should
verify the credibility and the timeliness of
the information on which it relies in obtain-
ing warrants to arrest or search the property
- of an American citizen, The affidavits on which ...
f Koregh were or-. - .

the arrest and search warrants of Koresh wer:
dered contained information provided to the ATF ...
and the Davidians and information that was stal
in‘that it was based on experiences_years before
the investigation. The ATF should. obtain.fresh ...

:+= = "* “ga5d unbiased information when relying on thatin- .

.1 Co

formation to arrest or search the premises of the
subjects of investigations. .

4. The ATF should revise its National Re-
sponse Plan to ensure that its best qualified
agents are placed in command and control
positions in all operations. Doing so will help to
avoid situations like that which occurred at Waco

" where lesser qualified agents were placed in posi-
__tions for which_they were, at best, only partially

qualified while other, more experienced agents
were available whose involvement might have pre-

. vented the failure of the raid. -

5. Senior officials at ATF headquarters

ghould assert greater command and control

over significant operations. The ATF's most
genior officials should be directly involved in the
planning and oversight of every significant oper-
ation. ) ; :

6. The ATF should be constrainéd from
{ndependently investigating drug-related
crimes. Given that.the ATF based part of its in-
vestigation of the Branch Davidians on unfounded
allegations that the Davidians were manufacturing
illegal drugs, and as a result improperly obtained
military support at no cost, the subcommittees rec-
ommend that Congress restrict the jurisdiction of

_the". ATF - to' investigate -cases involving illegal

drugs unless such investigations are conducted
jointly with the Drug Enforcement Administration
as the lead agency.: : - .77 .

ngress should consider applying the
Posse Comitatus Act to the National Guard
with respect to situations where a Federal
law enforcement entity eserves as the lead
agency. The fact that National Guard troops were
legally allowed to be involved directly in Federal
law enforcement actions against the Davidians,
while active duty forces were not, is inconsistent
with the spirit of the Posse Comitatus Act.

8. The Department of Defensz should
streamline the approval process for military
support eo that Posse Comitatus Act conflicta
and drug nexus controversies are avoided in
the future. The process should make clear to law
enforcement agencies requesting Defense Depart-

-ment support the grounds upon which support will

be given. Such requests should be assigned to a
single office to ensure that support will be pro-
vided only in legitimate circumstances and in a
manner consistent with the Posse Comitatus Act.

9. The General Accounting Office should
audit the military assistance provided to the
ATF and to the FBI in connection with their
law . enforcement . activities toward the
Branch Davidians, Given:that the subcommit-

i contained inf ‘ he A’ ‘tees have been unsable to obtain detailed informs-
“by informsnts ‘with obvious bias toward Koresh ~_.tion concerning the value of the military support

provided to the ATF and the FBI, the subcommit-

““tees recommend that the General Accounting Of-

fice conduct an audit of these agencies to ascertain
the value of the military support provided to them
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10. The General Accounting Office should

s~ {nvestigate” the “activities of Opera tion Alli- -
Cr anc light of the Waco incident. The subs -
- committees conclude that Operation Alliance per-"
“'gorinél knew or should have known that ATF did -

ance in

- pot have a-sufficient drug nexus to warrant the
. " military’ support provided on a: nion-reimbursable

B 1,-.'_1 “basis, Furthermore, given that the provision of as-~

sistance  under such- dubious ‘¢ircumstances ap-

Waco, ‘the “subcommittées recommend -that the
General Accountin
tion of Operation
11. Federal law )
should redesign their negotiation policies

umw. i )

and training to avoid the influence of phys-

jcal and emotional fatigue on the course of
future negotiations. In anticipation of future ne-
gotiations involving unusually emotional sul:i'ects
or those which may involve prolonged periods of
. time during which negotiators may become phys-

- jeally or emotionally fatigued, Federal law enforce--.

ment agencies should implement procedures to en-
-~ gure that these factors do not influence the rec-

L oes, T EoU Svin en
- ¢ 12, - Fedéral ‘law..

The subcommittees believe that had the govern-
- ment officials involved at Waco taken steps to un-
derstand better the philosophy of the Davidians,
they might have been able to negotiate more effec-
tively with them, perhaps accomplishing a peace-
ful end to the standoff. The subcommittees believe
-that had the ATF and FBI been better informed

=" about the religious philosophy of the Davidians.
- _and the Davidians' likely response to the govern- .

~  .ment's actions against them, these agencies could
.. have made better choices in planning to deal with
the Branch Davidians, . -
-..18. Federal law - enforcement - agencies

- ghould implement changes in.operational -

ures and training to provide better
leadership in future negotiations. The sub-.

- committees believe that placing greater emphasis -

on leadership in critical situations will not only
protect the targets of government action, but also
will help to protect the safety of the law enforce-
ment officers. : - .

. 14. -Federal law enforcement agencies

ne@ﬁaﬁone‘xpgm;—parﬁmhﬂy_m ose experienced
- with . religious -motivated groups; - might-have
-~ -proved-. inval

-7 pears to ot have been an ‘anomaly and the expan- -
- ‘sion of Operation" Alliance’s - jurisdiction “since " -

Office conduct an investiga- --

enforcement ' agenciés :

“. "ommendations of negotiators to senior command-

g _enforcement agencies
.. - should take. steps’“fo»-foeter‘greatgr"iunder- .
standing ‘of the- target under. investigation. : .

.should : revise . policies.. and_training to. in-. .
‘crease the willingness of their agents to con--..
sidér the advios.of outside ‘experts. The sub- -

. committees note. that.the expertise -of recognized ..

: le in-assisting” FBI -negotiations .
with the Branch Davidians. Accordingly, the sub- -

committees recommend that Federal law enforce-
ment agencies revise their policies and training so
that their agents are open to the advice such ex-
perts might provide. .
“45."- Federal - law - enforcement agencies
~ should revise policies and training to encour-
" age the acceptance of outside 'law enforce-
-~ ment assistance, where possible. The unwill-
" ‘ingness of the FBI-to accept support from State,
local, or other Federal law enforcement agencies in
- connection” with the standoff increased the pres-
- ‘guré on-the Attorney General to end the standoff
‘precipitously. To avoid this type of pressure in the
“future, Federal law enforcement agencies should
be open to the assistance that State and local law
~ enforcement agencies may be able to provide.

16. The FBI should expand the size of the
Hostage Rescue Team. The FBI should increase
the size of the Hostage Rescue Team so that there
are sufficient numbers of team members to partici-
pate in an operation and to relieve those involved
when necessary. The FBI should also. develop
plans to utilize FBI and local law enforcement
SWAT teams when extenuating circumstances

17. The government should further study

.and analyze the effects of CS riot control
agent on children, persons with respiratory
..problems, pregnant women, and the clderly.
" The subcommittees note that only limited scientific
literature exists concerning the effects of CS riot
“control agent, especially with regard to the effects
of long-term exposure in a closed area. Until such
time as more is known about the actual effects of
exposure to this agent, ‘the ‘subcommittees rec-
ommend that CS not be used when children, per-
gons with respiratory problems, pregnant women,
and the elderly are present. Federal law enforce-
" ment agencies should develop guidelines for the
use of riot control agents in light of this further
study and analysis.
, 1. INTRODUCTION
_ ' A. THE NEED FOR THE WACO INQUIRY

- . On February 28, 1993, four special agents of the

‘Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (ATF)
- were tragically killed near Waco, TX, in & shootout
with a religious sect -known as the Branch
Davidians. The group’s leader, Vernon Howell, also
known as David Koresh, was wounded in the vio-
lent confrontation, and several of its members
were killed. Then on April 19, 1993, after a 51 day
gtandoff with the Federal Bureau of Investigation
. (FBI), the episode came to a fiery conclusion when

-'died ingide the group’s residence. .
- From: any . perspective, Waco ranks among the
most significant events in U.S. law enforcement

“-history. For ATP, it was the largest and most

‘deadly raid ever conducted. For the FBI, it was an
unprecedented failure to achieve a critical objec-
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more than 70 Davidians, including 22 children, -
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tive—the rescue of dozens of innocent women and
children.

The television coverage and news accounts gen-
erated by the media at the scene near Waco pre-

“tics against U.S. citizens, contrary-to our civilian

*~ April 19th fire, government “officials, Members of
Congress, and assorted observers called for a thor-

power, a mixture of fact, rumor, and suspicion pro-
duced a wide variety of lasting impressions and
N conspiracy theories. ‘

- Both the Justice and Treasury Departments is-
sued detailed written reports many months later.
The Treasury Department Report criticized ATF
personnel, but it exonerated all Department offi-

 cials. The Justice Department Report found no __
' " 'fault with any actions of the FBI or any Justice

. Department official.

" Committéee, promised additional hearings to re-
solve remaining questions, but none were held.

Several developments in 1994 contributed to the

" pervasive view that serious questions about Waco

remained unanswered. The criminal trial of the

surviving Branch Davidians resulted in acquittals

" encouraged the public's outery and desire for ac-
. countability, Journalists, investigators, and attor-

" ¢andor and independence in the administration’s
" yeports and demanded a more comprehensive and

read an article published in First Things, written
by Dean Kelly of the National Council of Church-
‘es,! which stirred up considerable speculation
about the ATF's conduct and the FBI's use of CS
chemical agent. In short, by the start of the 104th

~ ™ congressional - examination
B table. ;.. 2 -

2 the Ju

2 -May 19968822,

gented a troubling picture to Americans. On the -
-] -~ “one hand, it"seemed clear enough that a Jones- -
..~ town-like religious cult led by an ifrational leader -
... had brought disaster on itself. On the other hand, -
""" jmages of the tanks andother military vehicles’
- *. -gave the impression that the FBI was using exces- -
. sive force together with military weapons and tac-"

1aw enforcement tradition, In the aftermath ‘of the"

® ) ough review of the matter. Outside the corridors of -

<.~ Several _ congressional _ committees. - conducted -

":Z. hearings in the weeks following thé digaster. Un." ™
- fortunately, little information was ‘available from

- " administration officials at the time. Representative .
¢ " Jack “Brooks, ‘chairman of the House Judiciary -

on .murder charges. The self-defense arguments

raised at trial and their obvious effect on the jury - :
- age from the hearings. The White House staff as-

neys involved -in the case decried the absence of

_ detailed .inquiry. In addition, widely -distributed -

“ " video tapes entitled “Waco: The Big Lie” and - J
“Waco: The Big Lie Continues” had a significant _

impact on public opinion. Also, many policymakers -

_ Congress, the need for a sufficient and thorough -
of the Waco: tragedy. ..

on the Judiciary and the Committee:on-
Reform .and. Oversight .indicated .in”

T Dean M. Kelley, Waca: A Massocre ond Jts Aftermath, First Things, -

their formal oversight plans, filed in February

1995, the intention to conduct hearings on the
Waco matter. Representative Bill McCollum, chair.
man of the Subcommittee on Crime of the Commit-
tee on the Judiciary and Representative Bill Zeliff,
chairman of the Subcommittee on National Secu-

“"Fity, International Affairs, and Criminal Justice of
-the :Committee on Government Reform and Over-
~“gight stated on several occasions that such hear-
““ings were a‘_‘{necess,a_x&' response to the widespread
s> digsatisfaction ‘with d

“Jow-up' to-what happenéd at the Branch Davidisn
~yesidence." The deplorable bombing in Oklahoma
~City 2 months later revealed the extent to which
- Waco- continued to served as a source of con-
* troversy for some Americans. With the concurrence

¢ Federal Government's fol-

of the Speaker of the House and the chairmen of

_the Committees. on the Judiciary and Government

Reform and Oversight, the subcommittee chairmen
began to organize comprehensive joint hearings on
the Waco matter. As the July timetable was set for
the hearings, both chairmen hoped a comprehea-
sive investigation, primarily involving testimony
from a wide variety of witnesses presented in pub-

“lic hearings, would lay to rest questions which per-

sisted, assess responsibility for any misconduct,

“and ultimately restore full confidence in Federal

~"law enforcement. - "

. . B, OPPOSITION TO THE INQUIRY
- Opposition to the Waco hearings was to be ex-

‘pected. The Departments of Justice and Treasury

believed that their respective reports were forth.
right and complete and that additional scrutiny
would only result in more negative publicity. Clin-
ton administration officials were concerned that
the hearings would cause further political damage.

What was not expected was the extent to which

" ‘the administration tried to control potential dam-

sembled a damage control team and retained the

"gervices of John Podesta, a public relations special-
“ist and former White House official who had

worked for Handgun Control, Inc.2 Treasury Sec-

_retary Rubin contacted at least one member of the

joint subcommittees, Representative Bill Brewster

‘of Oklahoma, and requested that he not ask any
_questions that might embarrass the administra-

tion.? Also, the Treasury Department flew to
Washington two Texas Rangers who were sched-
uled to testify before the subcommittees in order to
help them prepare their testimony. The Justice
Department, in concert with the subcommittees’
Democrats, brought firearms recovered from the

- charred Davidian-compound to Washington to be

sed a8 props.: i1, miovherd S
‘Perhaps -the most. disturbing counter-measure

..ﬁhsi_i‘t,l_gg;charge.umade by the President himsel,

3Ann Devroy, Clinton Tears Focuses Damage Control os Waco, Wash.
Pugm. 1005, at A12.7 "3 ¢ .
s Pressley, Witnesseé Soy Waco Warnings Went Unheeded,

~'Wash. Post, July 22, 1995, at All.
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that the hearings were an attack on law enforce- 1. Document requests and review
ment. Quite the opposite was the case. All involved On June 8, 1995, subcommittee Chairmen
AT I __in the planning and carrying out of the hearings  McCollum and Zeliff delivered document produc-

T oFf 7 "and the investigation ‘were strong supporters of  tion requests to the Federal agencies involved at
S ngeral law enforcement. All believed that through- Waco. The agencies. contacted were the Depart-
- airing and analysis °f:!-he--’wac"-_e"-entﬂ,‘.b)':,-!?ongl‘es'. ments of Defense, Justice, and the Treasury. The
~long term credibility .and viability of the Federal .. The subcommittees took the position that vi
—-law enforcement agencies. The mssertion that the : every Federal agency document associated wi
- hearings. were anti-law enforcement was contrery - the Waco incident required some level of review.
" to the unsmbiguous views of Federal law. enforce- - ~To review.the matter any less thoroughly would
" mient-leaders. -Finally, and perhaps the strongest . leave lingering doubt.as to whether & complete
" -yesponse to the subcommittees’ critics, is that the —gnd comprehensive job had been done.

- .. Waco heanngs did in fact serve to strengthen pub- Despite public commitments and private assur-

. lic_confidence in Federal law enforcement. The - ances of cooperation by the relevant departments,

public was clearly reminded that we live in & Na-  the subcommittees experienced a lack of coopera-

- tion of laws and no power sits above those 1aws.  tion which clearly frustrated hearing preparations.
Americans are far more likely to support law en-  Throughout the month of June and early July, rep-
forcement suthorities when they know that such  resentatives of the White House, and Departments
authorities will be held accountable for their ac-  of Treasury and Justice attempted to narrow the
tions. scope of the subcommittees’ requests and restrict

. A final issue that arose at the start of the hear-  access to a wide array of information. The first sig-
. | . [ings was the extent to which the subcommittees - pificant documents were delivered only 3 weeks .
oo . .would consider the character of David Koresh. In"" prior to the hearings, some just days before, and
| ... the minds of some, evidence of Koresh's despicable _tens of thousands of others were received after the
' behavior would provide sufficient justification for “hearings had already begun. This “wait-and-dump”
T not :scrutinizing-the conduct -of -F' ederal law.en- . strategy rendered meaningful staff review of many

- forcement officials. The subcommittees were pre-: key. documents_virtually.impossible prior to com-
_ “pared to stipulate then and now that Koresh was,  mencement of the hearings. S
- on one level, résponsible for the death and-destruc-- .. Moreover, the task of reviewing these documents
- ‘tion that occurred at Waco. His actions inside the . . was made more difficult by the manner in whi

Daﬁdiﬂn's l‘ellglons Commumty were of the _-VﬂESt theyﬂiwere presente“d.:me 'I\reasuly Deparhnent’s

sort. Nevertheless, Koresh was not accountable to  documents were in no apparent order, making the
, the people’s elected Representatives in Congress as  retrieval of a particular document nearly impos-

are Federal law e:lfgrcer.nent authorities. Hence  gible. In what became symbolic of the administra-
* . the subcommittees’ inquiry concerned executive tjon's uncooperative attitude experienced by the
branch conduct, and not that of David Koresh. subcommittees, it was discovered that the minor-
o " C. THE NATURE OF THE INQUIRY _ ° =~ ity, but not the majority, had been provided an
T T T g Blie” eone - index for locating Treasury documents.
SRR IR . Given the extensive and expandmg gubhc con- - . It ghould be noted that cooperation, particularly
w2 ~ cem about the Federal Government's actions . from the Departnient of Justice, improved consid-
© .. against the Brancl}Davxdlans, and the effect such  erably shortly before the hearings began and con-
., concerns were having on the credibility of Federal ... tinued throughout the course of the public inquiry.
" law enforcement, the subcommittees determined, A
__in early 1995, that it would be advisable to hold . 2. Investigation and interviews

hearings as soon as practicable. As a result, rather . .- The subcommittees engaged in investigative
" than using the hearings as a forum for presenting - interviews, an ‘examination of physical evidence,
. the results of a lengthy and completed investiga-  and an on-site inspection of the former Branch
tion, it was decided that the hearings would con-  Davidian residence as a part of the preliminary in-
sist of an exhaustive public airing of the issues as- quiries. Both majority and minority staff traveled
sociated with Waco, These “discovery hearings,” to Austin and Waco, TX for a fact-finding trip.
rather than “presentation hearings,” would afford Interviews were conducted with several Branch
members of the joint subcommittees, interested  Davidians both at the former residence and at the
- -attendees, the ‘media, and C-SPAN audiences an  home of Sheila Martin, widow of Wayne Martin,
pportunity to hear from the:people who were di- _ who died in the April 19 fire. Former Davidian
rectly involved in the Waco matter: = ' “"Clive' Doyle provided a tour of the ruins of the
“The structure* of the” inquiry - co sisted' of re-  Davidian residence. Staff also met with members
guests. for ‘and- review of documeénts before “and "+ of ‘the  local ‘county sheriffs office and with FBI
e “during the hearin ;-a“pre-hearinginvestigation - .-personnel who, among.other things, also took them

T - phase, including numerous interviews. with_many - - on a visit o the Davidian residence site.
of the persons involved; the hearings themselves; The staff also had an opportunity to inspect the
and a post-hearing investigation, physical evidence taken from the ruins of the resi-
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"+ dence after the fire, much of which had been u:ad:

in the criminal trial of surviving Davidians, By
prior agreement with the Justice Department, a
potential witness at the hearings, Failure Analysis
Associates Inc., was to inspect some of the physical
. evidence in order to respond to tampering allega-

=mind - tions. It ‘was believed that the views of scientists

from Failure ‘Analysis, who had often performed
scientific evaluations for the Federal Government,

/%58 . including the Justice Department and NASA after
8 the Challenger explosion, would be beneficial given -

# . public suspicions about the firearms recovered

- “~“from the 8ite of the Davidian residence. Thein-
|. . spection would not have damaged the weapons. and
" was to_have been conducted in the presence of all

- “parties. It was hoped that the inspection would de-

termine whether the Davidians had attempted to

" alter legal, semi-automatic weapons by converting
_ them into illegal, automatic weapons as the ATF
had alleged, and whether any of this evidence had
been altered after it was gathered from the de-
stroyed Davidian residence. When the scientists
arrived in Austin, the Department declined to
make the firearms available to thera. The Depart-

ment agreed instead to conduct the tests itself and -

.. t its findings to the subcommittees. A short
time later, the Department urged, for cost consid-

. "gult, no tests were performed on the firearms.-. -

' ficers of the Texas Rangers, anthors of books about

g - .~ County Sheriffs office, and officials from the De-
partments of the Treasury, Justice, and Defense,
ATF, Drug Enforcement Administration, and the
FBL Also, thousands of pages of materials submit-
ted by outside groups and individuals interested in
Waco were reviewed. Regrettably, the Treasury

Department balked at making ATF agents. avail- -

able for interviews, The Department- steadfastly
~ refused to allow the subcommittee staff to meet

with ATF agents who participated in the raid.
Only the threat of subpoenas. secured the appear-

..ance of ATF agents at the hearings. The inability
“to interview these individuals before public hear-

- ings was a significant investigative roadblock. -

- - Finally, the subcommittees’ staff traveled to Fort

Bragg, NC to interview the Army personnel in--

- - volved with the training of ATF agents in prepara-
tion for the raid. Several of the military personnel
.involved with the training were not available prior
to the hearings due to duty assignments, however,
other military personnel whom the staff sought to
interview, and who were stationed at Fort Bragg,
- .were not made available to the subcommittees’
= gtaff for interviews, Disturbingly, all of thé mili-

| tary personnel interviewed by the subcommittees’

_ staff were counseled about the interviews prior to. .
) ests to_ .

“them by senior commanders, despite

_erations, that the tests not be performed. As a re-..
. Pre-hearing interviews were held with senior of-

" the Waco -disaster; personnel in the McLennan-

3. Hearings
The plan for the Waco hearings was to receive
testimony under oath from as many persons mate-
rial to the matter as possible. Thus, nearly 100
witnesses appeared before the joint subcommittees
over a period of 10 days. The hearings included in-
. dividuals from ATF and the Treasury Department
..-who played ecritical roles in the investigation of
- David Koresh, and the planning, approval and exe-
. cution of the February 28 raid. They also included
...the key participants from the:FBI and the Justice
Department -with regard to.the 51 day standoff
--...and the planning, approval, and execution on April
_.-19 of the plan:to-end the standoff. More than a
...dozen experts _on issues associated with Waco,
_"_such as fire, riot control agents, and tactical oper-
ations testified. The attorneys who represented
Koresh, Davidian Steve Schneider, and several
Davidian survivors of Waco also were among the

witnesses. o
The minority was afforded an opportunity to add
witnesses to the panels. Every effort was made to
accommodate the requests received; more than 90
percent of the names submitted by the minority
were added to the witness lists. The administra-
tion also requested witnesses to be included. On a
= -few occasions, these requests conflicted with the
minority’s requests. Again, these desires were ac-
.commodated to the Freatwt extent practicable.
¢ The transcripts of these hearings will serve as a
valuable tool for years to come. Many of the most
:- gignificant’ documents were incorporated into the
-record.'Many-others are gathered in the appendix
to this report. Additionally, the appendix contains
a complete listing of hearing witnesses,
4, Post-hearing investigation
Additional document requests were made after
the hearings to the Departments of the Treasury,
Justice, and Defense. Unfortunately, the lack of co-
. operation from the Treasury and Defense Depart-
. ments which existed prior to the hearings contin-
" ued, delaying release of the subcommittees’ report.
Other investigative activities which occurred
after the hearings included inspection of photo-
. graphs at the FBI laboratories and interviews with
munitions experts, experts on riot control agents,
_.and National Guard officials. Numerous written
questions were posed to the Justice, Treasury, and
Defense Departments. For ‘the most part, they
were answered. Legal experts on the Posse Com-
itatus Act were consulted. Subcommittee staff also
met with the FBI agent who drove one_of the ar-

mored vehicles involved in the destruction of the

. backside of the Davidian residence and other FBI
~ officials involved at Waco. Finally, several inves-

thered regarding the Waco matter,

9
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tigative reporters shared. information they have

D. THE STRUCTURE AND SCOPE OF THE REPORT

_ _The report.does not attempt to restate a chrono-
“logical ‘summary of what happened at Waco. The
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A
administration’s reports, supplemented by several
commercial publications, tell the story fairly well.
Instead, to avoid duplication the report consists of

.. " _review, analysis, and, where appropriate, rec-
" - ommendations concerning the major issues raised.
It is structured in the same chronological pattern
as the hearings, " .~ "L U U L
“*... . .¥% B ADDITIONAL COMMENTS =
_If Federal law: enforcement actionssince the
Waco hearings are a-fair indication, then the in-
" .-quiry. has already had a.considerably positive. ef-
.. fect. The apparently increasing presence of sepa-
" ratist religious or anti-government groups had cre-
ated a significant new challenge for Federal law
enforcement agencies. Finding the proper balance
between the need to enforce Federal law with the
responsibility to avoid violent confrontations will
continue to be difficult. It is complicated by the
fact that innocent people, especially children, are
80 often in harm's way. Yet, over the past several
months, Federal law enforcement, and the FBI in
particular, has demonstrated an increased level of

- tactical patience. This change in policy, combined
“with other important reforms instituted by Direc-

Magaw atATF, 8:to be commended.
T L Tem ATF INVESTIGATION .
e In ‘May ‘1992, the Austin, TX: Office of the ‘Bu-

" reau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms was called
by ' Chief Deputy Daniel Weyenberg of the
" McLlennan  County  Sheriffs. . Department.
Weyenberg notified the ATF that his office had
been contacted by the local United Parcel Service

regarding a package it was to deliver to the
.. Branch Davidian residence. The package had bro-

:~ ken open-and contained firearms, inert grenade

casings, and black powder4 [T . _

L _ On June 9, 1992, Special Agent Davey Aguilera
- . of the Austin ATF office opened a formal investiga-
_.- tion. Within a week, Philip Chojnacki, the Special

- _Agent in Charge of the Houston ATF Office classi-

" - fied the case “sensitive,” thereby calling for a high -

degree of oversight from both Houston and Head-
_ quarters in Washington, DC.5 Notwithstanding the

* priority given to the case, numerous-and serious

missteps occurred throughout the investigation
that followed. The most troubling aspects of the
case were the ATF's overall lack of thoroughness
in its investigation, the ineffectiveness of the un-
_ dercover operation, and an affidavit in support of
“'the séarch ‘and ‘arrest ‘werrants that was replete

< the search and arre

. _$US, Dept. of the Treasury,

~~tor Louis~Freeh-at the FBI and Director John

'.,.". tice of the Hosse Commities on Government
o cﬂf 18t Seds. 163 (1095) [hereinafier Hearings
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. A THE MCMAHON COMPLIANCE VISIT
On July 30, Aguilera joined ATF compliance offi-
cer Jimmy Ray Skinner to conduct a compliance
- inspection of the premises of Henry McMahon,
-~ proprietor of Hewitt Hand Guns. The inspection
. yevealed that certain AR-15 lower receivers sup-
- posedly .in- McMahon's inventory were neither on
- the premises nor:listed in his records as sold.®

-+ 'McMahon indicated that they were in the posses-

- gion. of- David Koresh, :McMahon then called
i“:=Koresh, who offered to-allow the agents to inspect
= for “possible” firearms - violations. The agents de-
~clined - the ~invitation.? Shortly thereafter,
McMahon told Koresh that he was suspicious that
an investigation of Koresh and his followers was
underway.®
It is unclear why the ATF did not accept the
offer to do a compliance inspection of Koresh’s fire-
arms. Importantly, the Treasury Report fails to
mention that Aguilera had an opportunity at the .
time of the compliance inspection to inspect
Koresh'’s firearms. Wade Ishimoto, a reviewer of
‘the Treasury Department Report, indicated to the
" “"subcommittees that he had not been made aware
of the McMahon compliance visit by the Depart-
ment of Treasury during his review.® Mr. Ishimoto
maintained that Koresh's offer should have been
“accepted, presenting an invaluable opportunity to
. gather critical intelligence.}® The agents’ decline of
the Koresh offer was a serious mistake. ;
B. THE INVESTIGATION CONTINUED

Tracing UPS invoices, Aguilera learned that
more than $43,000 worth of firearms (including
AR-15 semiautomatics), firearms parts (including
.AR-15 lower receivers), grenade hulls, and black
powder had been shipped to the Davidians’ storage
facility.)! One of Koresh's neighbors, who had
' gerved in an Army artillery unit, told Aguilera

that he had frequently heard the sound of auto-
.. matic weapons fire—including .50-caliber fire—

- coming from the Davidian residence.!? Aguilera
_also learned that in November, a deputy sheriff
had heard a loud explosion at the Davidian resi-
dence which produced a cloud of grey smoke.!3
- Through interviews with former cult members,

"Aguilera learned of numerous allegations that

Koresh had had sexual relations with girls young-

er than 16 years of age.! These allegations would

o]d. at 26.
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“ lster feature prominently in Aguilera’s affidavit in
support of the search and arrest warrants, ‘

In December 1992, after reviewing all of the

: available evidence associated with the Koresh in-

.. |- __wvestigation in ATF headquarters in Washington,

"{ ... ATF decided they did not yet have probable cause

- .to support a warrant. Director Higgins stated:

. came back in February . .:". We didn't have it-
. {probable cause] until mid-February.”18 As part of"
} . its effort to develop probable’cause and to gather
.= “additional intelligence, on“January 10, 1993 the
.- ATF set up surveillance cameras in an undercover

i eriminal activity. ' Former Davidians were inter--
.2 .{.. viewed in December 1992 and January 1993.
Among those interviewed were three members of
the Bunds family, all of whom had left the
compound before 1992. The events that were de-
scribed by the Bunds occurred prior to 1992,16 and
the information they provided was so stale as to be
of little or no value.

.- #W]e - went out--and got more information and -

Importantly, the only activity mentioned in the

1

become the basis for modifying the nature and
timing of any subsequent action against Koresh.
There is substantial evidence to suggest that

Koresh and the Davidians knew that the under-.

_cover house_established by the ATF across the
" street from the compound was occupied by law en-
forcement officials.. Koresh. told his next door

"_neighbor that he believed. that the self-identified
“®collége students” were too old to be actual college

*_students, with cars too new and expensive to be
““owned by college students..He commented that
"“they were probably. Federal agents.’” The agents
_were also informed by one of Koresh's neighbors

. "-house" across from the Davidian ‘residence.The  ghortly after they began surveillance that Koresh

. -surveillance -produced noadditional evidence of -

"suspected they were not what they claimed to be.1®
On one occasion, the Davidians visited their new

neighbors in the undercover house to deliver a six

pack of beer, but the occupants of the house would
not let them in.1® Finally, Koresh complained to
the local sheriff that the UPS delivery man was an
undercover police officer.2® Koresh commented
that he did not appreciate being investigated. At
the hearing, Agent Rodriguez testified that “all of
[the undercover ATF agents), or myself knew we

affidavit involving the Branch Davidians that oc- ~ were going to have problems. It was just too—too
" curred between December 1992 and February 1993 --obvious.”2 = . . - . :
was Agent Rodriguez’s undercover visits to the The undercover operation was also undermined
.- Davidian residence. The visits consisted of Koresh = by its limited nature: The 24-hour-a-day surveil-
 spéakirig to Rodriguez about Second Amendment ™ “Jance was only sustained from January 11 through

‘~abuses, ‘and: the two men shooting legal -firearms:
#:- at the ‘compound’s .range. It..appears -that”
-*£338 " - -~ Rodriguez discovered no evidence during his visits
e aels ¢ that would have contributed to a finding of prob-
- i1  able cause, or that would have provided valuable
information to guide subsequent ATF action. Nev-
ertheless, in a case of such potential danger that
. it was designated “sensitive” and “significant,” the
> ~ ATF proceeded with its February raid,

2..]. - ‘Throughout the ATF's investigation decisions
-zl were made and actions were taken which dem- -
onstrated a reckless disregard for the value of
" well-developed intelligence. Furthermore, the hap-
. hazard manner in which the investigation was -
“pursued repeatedly exposed the lack of adequate
command, control and communications processes

C. UNDERCOVER OPERATION

"~ " On January 11, 1993, eight ATF agents moved
into a small house directly across from the front
drive of the Davidian residence, posing as college
students attending the nearby Texas State Tech-
nical College. Through a series of mistakes, the
_ATF appeared to lose the security of its under-

v ecurity ‘were 80:serious, and obvious,” that they "
“should have beén recognized ay, v and
<Texos: Hearings Mmﬁcﬂom .Commlitee on the Judidary, 034

e TCag oo !
e L » Departmest Report at 27-28,

rights, Koresh ghowing a_tape of alleged ATF -

. to support such an operation.” 7777 been Koresh, according to Rodriguez’

© January 19, at which time Agent Chuck Sarabyn,
‘surveillance and redirected the mission toward in-
filtration of the compound.2? It was later deter-
mined at trial that during the period of constant
surveillance the agents within the house did not
know what Koresh looked like. Rodriguez testified
at trial that the only picture identification that the
agents possessed was “a driver’s license picture of
him, which was not that good. That was one rea-
son we' [later] needed to make contact with the
people inside the compound, so we could identify
_him. I myself did not know what he looked like (at
the time of surveillance).” 33 Significantly, the sur-
veillance log cites two occasions when a white
“male jogged up and down the road on which the
undercover house was located.?¢ If this jogger had
s trial testi-
mony, the agents would not have known it. The
lack of an effective surveillance operation was fur-
ther demonstrated through the ATF's failure to de-
velop nearly 900 photographs taken from the un-
dercover house or to review videotapes of the
movements of the Davidians.28 This evidence rep-
resented an opportunity to develop critical intel-

cover operation. At least some of the breaches of - - widatisr. ..o

e
' 8 Uited btates v.-Bronch, e al;, CaseNo. W-53-CR-046 2) O) (9
(@)(7) (8) (9) (10) (1) & (12) ( '
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the ATF tactical commander, ended the constant
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compound residents, including Koresh.

The lack of such basic and critical intelligence
- clearly ,unde'rmihed -the' ability of the un

-continuous surveillance should not have led to th
. termination of the surveillance,
- modification and prolongation.
.- for “danger. to ~agents: and _t i :
" comipound and the dearth of intelligence, the deci-
~ gion to end qround~t.he7clock surveillance was seri- ..

. ously flawed. Significantly, all of the ATF super-

Giv

those _within : the -

dercover

ligence regarding the hebits and movements of

but_rather to its
en the potential .

visory agents involved in the planning of the oper-.
ation believed the continuous surveillance contin- .

ued beyond the ‘date it was actually ended. This .
mistaken belief both confirms that the termination

of the surveillance was ill-advised, and highlights
d, control and com-

the wholly inadequate comman
munications processes utilized

the operation. The eyes and ears were p

by

ATF throughout
oorly uti-

lized, and what intelligence they did supply was

poorly used. -

- p. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH “SENSITIVE-
: SIGNIFICANT” PROCEDURES, S

" As'noted in the Treasury Réport, the Koresh i
“vestigation- was classified as “gensitive” and “sig-

n- >~ “which_ prodiced .a cloud of grey smoke. Taken to-

nificant” within ‘a week of its formal initiation on

-.:“June 9;:1992. Such-a classification is intended to

ensure a higher degree of involverent and over-
sight from both the ATF Special Agent in charge
and ATF headquarters. Yet, in spite of this des-

ignation, the agents in charge of the investigation
received minimal oversight in developing the in-
vestigation and raid, with important elements of
the plan, such as whether or not to abort the raid

_ingly a glaring omission,

'~ 2*" g, THE AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF THE WARRANTS
The subcommittees examined the constitutional-

if the element of surprise was lost, apparently not
. - being understood by the agents in charge. In view -
- - of this designation, the lack of ‘knowledge on' the
. part of the Special Agent in Charge, and Head-
. ‘quarters, throughout the investigation—including
. the undercover operation—is striking. The “sen-
- sitive/significant” designation makes ATFs failure
_ to have implemented a process for- continually re- -
- yiewing intelligence and modifying plans accord-

ity of the search and arrest warrants, carefully re- -
viewing the information contained in the support-

ing affidavit.

the persons or things to be seiz

——es
28,8, Const. amend IV,

. .The fourth amendment to the Constitution pro-

isﬁ‘i_je‘;qh!y.,upon.ﬂ\,e:

vides: “No warrants shall issue, but_upon probable . ..

12

‘a particular place.”2® Such a determination is, in

determination of a neutral and detached 'mng
jstrate that probable cause exists to believe that
the search will yield evidence of eriminality.?” The

standard articulated in Illinois v. Gates, which

guides a magistrate's probable cause determina-

. tions, is whether “there is a fair probability that
" contraband or-evidence of a crime will be found in

the Supreme. Court’s words, a “practical, common-
gense -decision -whether, given all the cir-
cumstances: set :forth in the affidavit before the
magistrate . .. . there is a fair probability that the
contraband or evidence of a crime will be found in
a particular place.”%® - .

When applying this common sense standard to
the circumstances of the ATF investigation, the af-

. fidavit appears to have contained sufficient evi-

dence of violations of Federal firearms law to sup-
port the magistrate’s decision to issue the war-
rants.® There were substantial purchases of AR~
15 semiautomatics and AR~15 lower receivers, gre-
nade hulls, and black powder. A neighbor, who
had served in an Army artillery unit, testified that
he had frequently heard the sound of automatic
weapons fire. A deputy sheriff testified that he had
heard a loud explosion at the Davidian residence

gether, this information provided a suffident basis
for finding probable cause to issue the warrants.

" While the warrants may have met the minimal
standard of constitutional sufficiency, the affidavit
supporting the warrants contained numerous

_misstatements of the facts, misstatements of the

law, and misapplication of the law to the facts,
and serves as a de facto record of a poorly devel-
oped and mismanaged investigation. The affidavit
included misleading and factually inaccurate state-
ments, contained substantial jrrelevant ‘and con-
fusing information, and failed to properly qualify
witnesses’ testimony when obviously called for
baeed on their backgrounds. Consequently, the af-

_fidavit gave the appearance that the ATF was not -
* going to let questionable facts or evidence stand in

the way of moving forward on their timetable.
The affidavit provided and sworn to by Aguilera
contained numerous errors and misrepresenta-

* tions, which, taken together, create a seriously

flawed affidavit. The affidavit misstated that

" Koresh possessed a British Boys anti-tank .52 cali-

ber rifle, when in fact Koresh owned a Barret light
.50 firearm.3! Possession of the British Boys would

——
%7 United Stales v. lanb‘& U.S. 897 (1664).
. :lllmoil v. Gales, 462 U.S.213,238(1963).

e e
® ALl of the conétitutional

cause, supported by oath or affirmation,.and par- .-sgreed.

ticularly describing the place to be searched, and .. \he e

, ot ed.”26 The Supreme - (

" Court has ruled that, in order for this protection
to be enforced, a warrant méy.

L Affidavit Dtvq A‘uﬂu"a in ’:uppaﬂ of arrest warrant, at 14

(hereinafler k-mu-musumumdwwmm.
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" ¢ have been a felony3? while possession of the Bar-

ret was completely legal. The affidavit misstated
kits from Nesard company
were two CAR and two EZ kits which contained all

that the M16 parts

" the parts of an M16_
Jower receiver unit,

- which ‘are absolutely

. automatic weapons to m
~'vit failed to mention tha
“¢ited in the affidavit to- help-
cause had been gold by thé
: at gun, shows’as paper-we
z 7 plaques. Finally, the affida
. reporting that Deputy

- the vicinity of the compo
"~ explosion, but then failed

machin

e gun except for the
- when, in fact, the “Nesard
~ parts kits 'do not contain the auto sear and pin -
pecessary to convert semi -
achine guns.?3 The affida-
t grenade hulls like those
I es&t;ablish: fﬁ'obab_le .
avidians in the past - 8 by “from & i
ights and mounted on" " chases _made by Koresh” from a South Carolina
i vit was misleading by
Sheriff Terry Fuller was in —
und when he heard a loud
to report that Fuller in-

vestigated and learned that the Davidians were
using dynamite for construction.

Former Davidian Mare Breault provided much of -

the information contained in the ATF's affidavit.
Yet, nowhere in the affidavit is it mentioned that
 Breault left the compound as an opponent of
“ 'Koresh, a fact certain to call into question
- Breault’s motives. Nor does the affidavit mention
- that he is blind. On the contrary, the affidayit im+ -

©© _ plies that he was a compound
S that“Bréau]t-’participqted-iri."physieal training and. .
- firearm shooting exercises: conducted by Howell.

bodyguard. It states

- “..:.He stood guard armed with a loaded weapon.” 34" -

<+ The affdavit also contained misapplications of
. firearms law. The affidavit alleged the violation of -

one statute: 26 U.S.C.

not establish any cri

: §5845(). This statute, how-
ever, merely defines “destructive device.” It does

me. It is

26 US.C. §5861

which establishes crimes related to destructive de-
vices. The affidavit also confused the term “explo-
“explosive device,” a term
- -~ which does not appear in Federal law. _
7 In the affidavit, Aguilera misstated that a “ma-

sive” with the term

parts “either designed or intended” to convert &

semiautomatic . into an automa

tic firearm. In fact,

+" - chinegun' conversion kit® was 8 combination of . -

: Federal law defines a conversion kit to be a com- -
bination of parts “designed and intended” to con-
vert a semiautomatic into an automatic.3® . ... '

" In the affidavit, Aguilera also misstated that .~
~ - Koresh had ordered M~16 “EZ kits.” The kits to_
which Aguilera was referrin '

Furthermore, the E2

kit is

g are called “E2” kits.
a spare parts kit, not

a conversion Kkit. It contains spare parts which fit
either a semiautomatic Colt AR-15 Sporter or an
automatic. Because it is not
E2 kit is not regulated by

automatic Colt M~16

. 5See 28 U.SC. §56845.

davit implies that the kit's
- semiautomatics —into .-

13

named the E2 kit, it wrongly asserted that “the-
partsinthekitcanbeusedwiﬂ:anARrwﬁﬂe
or lower receiver to assemble a machinegun . . .
Thepartsinthelﬂkitalsoeanbeusedtoeonvert
an AR-15 into a machinegun.”38 These assertions

*- are false. The Treasury ‘Department regulates gen-
' uine conversion kits as if they were themselves
*machineguns It does not regulate E2 kits. _
.. Intimating that' Koresh” was’ converting AR-15
" Sporters and gemiautomatic copies of AK-47’s into

automatics, Aguilera iincluded_ evidence o pur-

“Company which was known to sell parts needed to

convert semiautomiatics of the type that Koresh
possessed into automatics, Aguilera failed even to
allege that Koresh purchased parts from this com-
-pany which would have allowed the conversion of
semiautomatics into automatics. Nowhere in the
affidavit is there evidence that Davidians were
manufacturing their own automatic sears, or modi-

ing the lower receivers of gemiautomaties, both
;3: which would have been violations of firearms

w8, . ' .

The affidavit was misleading in that it falsely
referred to “clandestine” publications. The affidavit
reported ‘that in June 1992, a- witness had “ob-
gerved at the compound published magazines such

. as, the Shotgun News and other related clandes-
' tine magazines.”3? Far from clandestine, Shotgun
.+ News has a circulation of about.165,000. Subserip-
- tions are available by mail or telephone. The Aus-
tin, TX ATF office—Aguilera’s home office—was a

gsubscriber. :
RFDmDmSCONGﬂNDWTHEATFDWEHWXHON

1. The ATF’s investigation of the Branch
Davidians was grossly incompetent. It lacked
the minimum professionalism expected of a Fed-
eral law enforcement agency. Among the failures
of the investigation were:

“'o The failure to accept Koresh’s offer to in-
spect: the _firearms held at the Branch
Davidian residence. It is unclear why the
did not accept the offer to conduct a compli-

- ance inspection of Koresh's firearms. What is

“clear is that the agents’ refusal of Koresh's in-
vitation was the first of a series of instances

" in which the ATF rejected opportunities to
" proceed in a non-confrontational manner. The

. agents’ decision to decline Koresh's offer was a

serious mistake. ' '
e The failure to recognize obvious breaches of
surveillance security. Some of these breaches
. were S0 serious and obvious that they should
- have been_ recognized by the ATF agents and
commanders involved, and should have be-
come the basis. for modifying the nature of the
gurveillance. =~ -
»
- o Aguers Alhdavit Spmanat.
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o The failure to analyze intelligence gathered
during the undercover operation, including
more than 900 photographs of activities
around the Branch Davidian residence. These
photographs _could have led to the develop-.

- ment of critical intelligence regarding the hab-

. its and movements of_ the: Davidiaris, and
" 'Roresh jn particular. o . -

" e.The_premature te

-* cover .operation. The operation’s failure to de-
velop useful intelligence after 8 days of contin-

termination. of the _surveillance, but rather. to

“"ger to agents and those within the residence,’
and the dearth of intelligence, the decision to
end around-the-clock surveillance was’ seri-
ously flawed. '

2. While the ATF had probable cause to ob-
tain the arrest warrant for David Koresh and
the search warrant for the Branch Davidian
residence, the affidavit filed in support of the~
warrants contained numerous false state-

_ ments. The ATF agents responsible for preparing

the affidavits knew or should have known that
‘ """ into the residence. The ATF chose the dynamic

many of the statements were false.

... .8.David Eoresh could have been arrested
7.5 outside the Davidian compound. The ATF.de-'/
o liberately chose not to arrest Koresh outside the -
viniieed  “Davidian ‘tesiderice -and instead determined to.use -
- . .adynamic entry approach. In making this decision’

. ' ATF. agents_exercised extremely poor judgment,:
made erroneous assumptions, and ignored the per-
ils of this course of action which they should have

foreseen.. .

G. RECOMMENDATIONS

- 1. Whenever it is feasible to achieve its ob-

. jectives, the ATF should. use less
. confrontational tactics. The ATF had an oppor--
*_tunity to search the Davidian residence at the in-
" vitation of Koresh. Koresh was off the property
" and subject to the capture of law enforcement on ..
numerous occasions before the raid. The ATF
should have taken advantage of these less

~ confrontational opportunities. .The ATF should
pursue such alternatives in the future.’ -

2, Federal law enforcement.agencies should -

' ““verify the credibility and the timeliness of
the information on which they rely in obtain-
ing warrants to arrest or search the property
of an American citizen. The affidavits on which

the arrest and search warrants of Koresh were or-

Y dered contained information provided to the ATF

"< and the Davidians. In addition, much of the.info
mation was stale, based on éxperiences years..
-..fore the investigation. T ;
_ fresh and unbiased informatio 1en re
that information to arrest or search’ the premises

rmination of the under.

* “uous surveillance_should not have led"ts the ™~

‘its prolongation. Given the potential for dan-

" 22" of the subjects of investigations.. T mm e

8. The ATF should make every effo.t ‘o ob- |
tain continuous and substantial intelligence
and should ensure that the efforts to obtain
such intelligence are mnot hindered by
breaches of security. The ATF had a broken and
"insecure intelligence operation. Gaps in the sur.

veillance and breaches of the security of under-
“cover operations jeopardized the investigation and
 the raid. The ATF should take precautions to en-
“sure that these breaches do not occur in the fu-
ture.

_. 4, If the false statement in the affidavits
“filed in support of the search and arrest war-
‘rants were made with knowledge of their fal-
"sity, ‘criminal charges should be brought
"against the persons making the statements.

"' [II. PLANNING AND APPROVAL OF THE RAID

The ATF had a variety of options in the manner
in which it could have served the arrest and
search warrants on Koresh. These options included
luring Koresh off the Davidian residence, arresting
Koresh while he was off the Davidian property,
surrounding the Davidian residence and waiting
for Koresh to surrender himself and consent to the
search, and executing a “dynamic entry” style raid

entry raid, the most hazardous of the options, de-
spite “its recognition that a violent confrontation
was predictable. The decisions regarding the raid
“‘were made without the participation of either Sec-

“retary of the Treasury Lloyd Bentsen or the Dep-

“uty Secretary of the Treasury Roger Altman.
A. WAS “SHOW TIME” EVEN NECESSARY?

The subcommittees received evidence of nu-er-
ous opportunities to arrest Koresh away frox ‘he
residence, thereby reducing the likelihood of <o-
lence. The failure to make use of these oppor: nis
ties raises the question of the dynamic entry 1e-

cessity. ATF officials offered at least three lif-
ferent reasons for this critical decision.

~ ATF Special Agent Phillip Chojnacki, the ove all
commander of the raid, testified that Koresh «-ald
not be arrested outside the residence because the
intelligence from the undercover house was 1at
hé. rarely left the residence.3® ATF did not v ant
the tactical problem of having agents on standby
indefinitely while they waited for the rare o -ur-
rence of Koresh going into town.

Yet the testimony before the subcommittee: re-
vealed that Koresh left the Davidian residence at
Jeast once a week during January and Pebruary.®®
David Thibodeau, who lived at the Branch
Davidian residence but did not consider himself to
-be a_member_ of the Branch Davidian religious
fcﬁ;i:ﬁiﬁiti,‘;t,éiﬁﬁéaf that Koresh was a !

H ps Part
. 2d at
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o -." ... who she had come to kn

et

** ATF,.Spal
~: 7 B. WAS THE VIOLENT

" e record_of the:
shows that person

e Sparks,

" .77 . thought and how
.~ " Davidian group &

" - through February.4? -
- - ATF agents
- “would jmmediately be released and would be back
~ yow.43 This- answer
= Federal law provides
- for 3 days upon motion
.- Finally, ATF

i o000 at 124 i
Cald <

* to conduct business at a machine shop.4! Finally,
the manager at the Chelsea Bar and Grill in Waco
stated that they served Koresh about once & week

next explained that it did not-make -

actical sense to arrest Koresh outside because he

pr
dow was simply too nar-
ilso lacked credibility sinée
that the arrestee can be held -
of the government.#4 - ..
A “officials testified at the hearings
that they abandoned the idea of trying to arrest
Koresh outside the residence because their pri-
mary goal was to get inside to conduct a search.
Thése officials maintained that it was preferable to
attack the residence by surprise and get Koresh
and the guns at the same time.*s However, the
ATF had developed its own scheme to lure Koresh
off the complex. The ruse was proposed to Joyce
'Sparks, the social worker who had conducted an
earlier child protection investigation at the Branch
Davidian residence. Sparks was to contact Koresh,
» ow relatively well, and
make an appointment with him to be held in her
office. While Sparks agreed to cooperate with the
ke’ supervisor, refused to_approve. the

“at the residence. The win
also’ -

OUTEURST PREDICTABLE? -
m

subcommittees’ i vestigation’
8 who through contéct and expe-
rience became familiar with the belief system and
the authoritarian structure of the Branch
Davidians could have predicted a violent resist-
ance by the Davidians to a mass law enforcement
action. The Branch Davidians predicted a violent
apocalypse, a vision that followers believed be nec-
ssary to go to heaven.d’. N
The ATF investigative -agents interviewed
who had kept lines of communication open
Koresh and herself even after the end of
Services investigation. During
Koresh would often provide
of his religious beliefs.
derstanding of how Koresh_
he was viewed within the Branch

t the residencee. When ATF

sought her opinion about the raid, she stated that
the Branch Davidians believed that Koresh was

the Lamb of God and that they would protect him

to the death. ®They will get their guns and kill

" between

. her Child Protective

- their "conversations,
lengthy presentations
Sparks developed an un

e S e,
& Heari e ateaez T
“/d at .

old At B or & Eogene V. Gallsgher, Why Waio? 7-10 (1998).
# Hearings Part 1 )

v15.

- formation about the Davi

‘fees’that their organiza

“article, ATF hasten

avidians’ home.4® Contact be-

Mounf Carmel, the D
made during Decem-

tween ATF and Breault was
ber 1992. During that time and up to the time of
the raid, the former Branch Davidian provided in-
dians and Koresh in par-
_ticular, including his -past correspondence. In a
paper- prepared by Breault and provided to the
ATF, a recent history of the Branch. Davidians re-
counts the group’s views that the world will end in
"a final violent battle, .. " -

- - +"C; THE PREDISPOSITION TO DYNAMIC ENTRY

- An examination of ATF's timeline in the Waco
investigation and raid planning activities reveals
that planning for a military style raid began more
than 2 months before undercover and infiltration
efforts even began.
1. The source of the predisposition
a. The culture within the ATF

Management initiatives, promotional criteria,
training, and a broad range of other cultural fac-
tors point to ATF's propensity to engage in aggres-
give law enforcement. Senior officials from other
law enforcement agencies have commented on the
ATF raid. Several have informed the subcommit-
jons would not have han-

dled the ‘execution of ‘the Branch Davidian search
.warrants in" the ‘aggressive way chosen by ATF.%
‘For example, Jeffrey Jamar, the FBI Special
Agent-in-Charge of the Waco standoff, was asked
about the FBI's approach to such a circumstance.
He stated that he “would not have gone near the

place with 100 assault weapons,” 51
b. The hWaco Tribune-Herald’s “Sinful Mes-
siah” .
One factor affecting ATF's decision to employ a
dynamic entry ‘was- the impending release of a
newspaper story about Koresh and the Davidians
which revealed the Federal law enforcement inves-
tigation then underway. The Waco Tribune-Herald
had planned to release a series of articles on David
Koresh in early 1993.52 Fearing publication of the
ed its plans to serve the arrest
t was unclear, however, how
Koresh would react to the story. In fact, ATF Spe-
cial Agent. Robert Rodriguez ‘suggested that the
newspaper article did not upset Koresh.53

and search warrant. I

‘ .
‘U.&Dep&dthahwy.mdtbobepnmtdmh&

. 39“" Spa: ks recalls say i.llg.“ the Buresu of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms Investigation of

. B Th’e-l ATI:. alsd'__ngc-eiveg information from Mare :’mm ‘Wayne Howdlnv also known as David Koresh 29 (1963) (herein-

[ T P = + Davidi ey o T ot L t _
G- mquut'-g 9 r— T Ch Davi o d re-mflent Bt . "_Imdl::yddn Into the utntl of Federal Law Enforcement Agen-

T T . Toward the Branch Davidians (Part 8): Bearings Before the Sub-

Subcommittée on National Security, International

Juitice of -the House Commitiee on :

10.4‘:?‘%.. 1st Sess. 300 (1985) (hereinaller
= Tressury Department Report at 67-68.
# Hearings Part 1 at 757, 805
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place for the director of the ATF to appﬁie the

2. Raid approval and lack of Treasury Department
Secretary or Deputy Secretary of the ATFs plans, °

oversight of ATF

Testimony received during the hearings estab- Mr. BRYANT; Was there any process or
lished that there was no process through which procedure available to you as the Director
-.. - Treasury Department officials were able to review ... . of the ATF to brief either the Deputy or
- - - pending ATF matters prior to their reaching & cri-" i the Secretary? :
!" sis stage: In-the investigation of Koresh, there was. . Mr. HiceNs: 1 could have called them
_ no oversight by Treasury over the ATF's planning™ ~ ~ and said, yes, I would like -to brief you on
... and execution of the raid until approximately 48 -~ something. I think they were accessible,
. .-+ hours before the raid occurred.5¢. Testimony re: - L YeS. omms .
" wealed that, even though Bentsen had been Treas- - _ Mr. BRYANT: But there was no routine
= ury Secretary for® approximately 1 month at the process? This was no regularly done at
- *---time of the ATF raid, an Altmanhadbeenserv- - thatpoint?- - -
ing as Deputy Secretary for the same time period, = - Mr.” HIGGINS:" No routine process, al-
ATF Director Steven Higgins had never met either = - though iost secretaries at someé point set
of them, let alone briefed them regarding the in- up a system where there i¢ a regular, ei-
‘ ther every week or every 92 weeks, meet-

vestigation and planned raid. This point was es- h :
tablished at the hearings during the questioning of ing with bureau headst“
The testimony before the subcommittees consist-

Higgins by Representative Ed Bryant. e e T 4 e tonated
. : ently depi a Treasury Department tha real

wi?f’ u?:?&.eghryenw&gi sﬁ’;sﬁ;;:gf:t ATF as its lowest priority. Department officials re-

about your agen the ATF? 4 peatedly demonstrated a lack of interest in even

_ M ymGGathsfyi o't remembe major ATF actions, such as that of February 28,

B b ef"; th ‘th 0 ta el hr any 1993. The Department maintained a culture that

- _bnie “,,S’k"? Took. e Secr de Y. a;::bf' perceived law enforcement as, at best, a peripheral

) ggtlze bac to look at my thocument.s. =7 part of its mission; ‘according the ATF correspond-

U TR LD e e g y th'at first montn, mont.h and. a ingly little attention, This point was brought out

: S half,idont f€!§¢}1‘bef any vm‘e~etm.gsr->mth © 7 .during the hearings through questioning by Rep-

him. The-only interaction we~really had ' -'resertative Bill McCollum, co-chairman of the sub-

i during . the }F','a!@ﬁmf;‘_‘;_“}?]d; have- been - - committees, of former Treasury Secretary Bentsen
Sanel Do bo5 ghout his Knowledge. of the raid prior to February

- SRR - _with Mr, Simpson, ™" "7 " - )
sl TheT e S BryanT: ATe you®saying that you” I " 28,1993, o
o bl ey B e Wher, 64 g0 5
prior to this point? ' 2 ;
~ Mr. Hicemns: 1 can’t remember having o lez;;r: °§g:rsrg’$ olr :’na); ;;Lanbf;rdg:‘a::mlg?
gone to a staff meeting while he was there - first meeting with G-7 with the Ministers
ivin I g::n" a’;e;‘:‘im‘:’iet;; }?;cxﬁcally today of Finance and was very much involved in
M gBRYAN'r' Had e met with hi that one. I came back, to the best I can re-
e L. MrAl a 3;;;. evethgne .?:;., s _ call, some time early Sunday morning on
. 9{’{“':3’1'{[ ccmsmll?' " -l‘;:ﬁ "slrl?h L Mr .. -a night flight from London, and in turn I
Alt.n:. S th °"I n eve h hew f. "~ did not find out about the raid, to the best
. obvioauzl;n en. I knew who he was, of my memory, until early Sunday e\:len}n.g
: Mr.‘?nvm'r; wall, Ithnm a little o n}f"usg’ld S _,:{\iﬁhat is the first knowledge I had of it
_ here. You are saying at you were thedi- .. . Mr. McCorLLun: In other words, there
..vector of the ATF, which we all know is = *  was.no discussion with you, no informa-
very significant, powerful element of the tion passed to you prior to the time of the
Cehl Department of Treasury, and you had not taid that it was anticipated or that it
- CE  met_with your ultimate boss, the ‘Sec- = '-“-  might exist or any nature—
e . retary, for 30 days or so? : Mr. BENTSEN: That is correct.

- Mr. Hicons: 1 don't believe so, other Mr. McCoLLun: Isn't it a little surpris-
than maybe to shake hands, and I don’t ing one of the largest or one of the largest
even remember doing .t.hat. It is interest- ; raids in the BATF's history was taking

;. ing that those who think there is some place, and the Secretary of the Treasury,
e gioat conspiracy in the government don't - the chiel of all of the law enforcement of
~ realize hiow little ‘we knew each oth =7 the ATF was notnotified?

bR trtoRmme) $1 H

“'Mr,...BENTSEN:: I can weli understand
hen I was abroad ‘attending an inter-

national meeting _involving questions of

= Under Congréssman Bryant's. further. questioning,
. Higgins testified that there. was no procedure in

o p—

) . '_.._—a_, .
a3 el “"l‘slm R p———
wId ot 566541,

.. ®d st 588
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designation was ignored in praéticé. In view of this

« ' mmonetary exchange rates and some very

serious subjects at that point, that others designation, the lack of knowledge on the part of
within the Department were handling the the Special Agent in Charge and ATF Head-
 situation, oo ® .. . . quarters throughout the investigation, including

E Mr. McCoLLuM: But didn't you keep in® -+~ the undercover operation, ~is striking. The
2o contact with your office during the time - - “sensitive/, significant” designation makes ATFs
- - ‘you weré over theére? Weren't-there tele-: . .. failure to have jmplemented a process for contin-
.. phone calls? =~~~ f ¢ L . ually reviewing intelligence and modifying plans

Mr.-BENTSEN: Of course: - - 17 gecordingly a glaring omission.

--. Mr..McCoLLUM:Nobody in the law ens. L T G CONC ‘
’""forcem'ent'division-t.h‘aught you ought to =~ "l E mmcs;g&mcﬂ%m&:m G AND
. ~be. disturbed - about " this _incident . and .- *- TR ‘

- asked about it. T'understand.s - - 71, The ‘#ubcommittees conclude that the
e troghet e ATE T2 P St S B o
.., .. planning of the raid, including the critical days  pegt and search warrant. The ATF deliberately

i just prior to its initiation, the Treasury Secretaly  chogse not to arrest Koresh outside the Davidian
knew nothing about it. Neither he nor his deputy  vesidence and instead determined to use & dy-
knew anything about an jmminent law enforce-  pamic entry approach. The bias toward the use of
e ment raid—one of the largest ever conducted in  force may in large art be explained by a culture -
U.S. history—being managed by his Department,  githin ATF P P
. which would endanger the lives of dozens of law 9. The ATF. did not attempt to fully under-
enfo:hcement.agents,ﬁ:omg:, :“d dnldz:th stand the subjects of the raid. The experience
0 i:dte?mﬁ%‘y. from the hearings er dem- " of Joyce Sparks, Marc Breault, and ATF under-
Loy o omstra “f‘g .-‘“e‘}t ",’r";mlght by Treasury De-  cover agent Robert Rodriguez demonstrate that
EETERRE --Pa-"m;‘:. ofhicia’s 0 ub‘:‘o planning. At the hear-  persons who spent a reasonable amount of time
e, 5 0es X fore - the subcommuttees, .Representative __with Koresh, even without professional training

McCol!um,_que_stlon_ed‘Chnstopl_\e.r,cuy,ler,,_whg in.. gpecific $o:.persons such- as . Koresh, understood
CF ebruary 1993 was.the ATF's lisison, to the Treas- . with some "predictability the range of behaviors
= ury Department. Cuyler testified that no Treasury ... that might result from a military style assault on
_“officials had knowledge ‘about the potential for the . the Branch Davidians. :

raid utre}glul“ebmw 26--2 days before the raid was_ . 3. Treasury Secretary - Lloyd Bentsen and
initiate B . ' - Deputy Secretary Roger Altman acted highly
 The inadequate oversight of the ATF by Treas- in'gsponsibly and were derelict in their du-
‘ury Department officials was further evidenced in ties in failing to even meet with the Director
the final communications between Treasury and  of the ATF in the month or so they were in
" ATF in the day before the raid. The Department  office prior to the February 28 raid on the
SR maintains that it conditioned the raid on ensuring  Davidians residence, in failing to request any
.- - the element of surprise was preserved. As stated  briefing on ATF operations during this time,
.in_the Treasury Department Report, Department . "and .in wholly failing to involve themselves

.. officials assured that those directing the raid were  'with the activities of the ATF.
* under express orders “to cancel the operation if = 4. Senior Treasury Department officials

s .7 they learned that _its secrecy had been com-  youtinely failed in their duty to monitor the
7. promised., .. 50 Yet, ATF officials, including actions of ATF officials, and as a result were

4 Higgins, Cuyler, and the agents 1 charge of the  uninvolved in the planning of the February

. raid testified that it was not at all clear to them . 28 raid. This failure eliminated a layer of scrutiny

_ that Treasury wanted the raid canceled if the ele- “of the plan during which flaws might have been

-t - ment of surprise was lost® . © uncovered and corrected. -
S D.rmwnzmcom'vwrm'smsm. B -
o " BIGNIFICANT" PROCEDURES IV. RAID EXECUTION
) : There is no question that the ATF raid executed

As noted in the Treasury Department Repo
the Koresh, investigation was classified os gorts  on Pebruary 28, 1883, wert (5, Vo0S tan fhds
. mbve .and “f“‘ﬁ““igg‘z%‘:n ‘:S‘”k ';f its formal  gpart as the principal reason why four ATF agents
- initiation on . une 9,1992.%! Such.a classification-. - gere killed and many others wounded. Simply put,
“is:designed to-ensure a higher degree of involve- " the Davidians-knew that the ATF agents wers
~ment. and oversight ~fromboth the. ATF.Special:=' coming; And-while the ATF-expected to serve 2
Agent. in ¢harge and ATF headquarters, yet. this - - gearch warrant for Koresh and searsh the resi-
i * dence, the Davidians apparently feared the worst

TeId at 516518,
=g : that law enforcement agents or military troops

e [d-at B16.7= i p
= Treasury Department ¥ at1m. HEea were coming to arrest all of them or, perhaps kill
. them. In any event, some of the Davidians arm

‘@ Treasury Department Repart st 24,
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"7 . 1. -How.the Davidians knew the ATF was coming

themselves and lay in ambush, waiting for the ar-
rival of the ATF agents.

A. RODRIGUEZ AND THE “ELEMENT OF SURPRISE”

__ The Davidians learned of the ATF plan- to-raid
- their residence when a local television cameraman

" happened to get lost on’ his way to the Branch -
.7 Davidian” residence.82 The cameraman had been-
- = ~digpatched to the residence by the local television. . . -
B station be¢ause the news director of the station ex- -« .-

* Koresh left the room to speak with Jones.®5 At this .

pected the ATF raid would occur on that day. He- -

suspected this because
- ambulance service had informed him that a Fort

an employee: of the local - & - -

Worth-based trauma flight company had been put "~

the local ambulance com-

on st:sndby, along with

pany. o
While the cameraman was sitting by the side of

‘the road attempting to locate the Davidian resi-
dence, David Jones, a Branch Davidian and a let-
. ter carrier with the US. Postal Service, pulled up
behind the cameraman and asked whether he was
Jost. The cameraman introduced himself and asked
for directions to “Rodenville,” the name by which
many “local” residents referred to
Davidian residence, After Jones pointed to the res-

it o jdence; which was'_fin___sight__y{_whgt;ghthe_ two men
_were stopped, Jones stated that he had read about™ "~ ROURCTS v .

SOv". . Cavanaugh, deputy tactical coordinator of the ATF
‘operation, that Koresh was agitated and had s.aid

Zthe-group' in the paper and

of law enforcement action was
going to take place at the residence, that it was
likely to be a raid of some type, and that there
may be shooting.8¢ After the cameraman departed,
Jones drove directly to the residence and informed
the Davidians.

. 2The undercover agent

" 7" "On the morning of February 28, 1993, at ap-.

Robert Rodriguez, the ATF

- proximately 8 am.,
Branch

- agent who had gone undercover into the

*. . - Davidian residence on several prior occasions,

went to meet with David Koresh one final time.
While Koresh and Rodriguez were .engaged in a
Bible study session, David Jones arrived at the

residence and told his father, Perry Jones, what
Jones then informed

oup ir “thought_that they .
“were weéird." The canieraman, believiing that Jones
was not affiliated with the Davidians, warned him
~that some type

the Branch .

18

. " - Upon Koresh's return,

Rodriguez called Sarabyn
- telling

point, David Jones relayed to Koresh his discus-
sion with the television station cameraman,

a. The Treasury Department Report version

o _of events
The Treasury Department Report summarizes
the subsequent events as follows: '
' Rodriguez could
agitated, and

see that he was éxtremely
‘though he tried to resume the Bible ses-
sion, he could not talk and had trouble
holding his Bible. Rodriguez grabbed the
~"Bible_ from Koresh and asked him what .
. was wrong. Rodriguez recalls that Koresh
‘said something about, “the Kingdom of
~ God,” and proclaimed, *neither the ATF
nor the National Guard will ever get me.
They got me once and they’ll never get me
again.” Koresh then walked to the window
and looked out, saying, “They're coming,
Robert, the time has come.” He turned,
Jooked at- Rodriguez and repeated, -
“They're coming Robert, they're com-
ing."68
According to the Treasury Department Report,
Rodriguez went first to the undercover house an-

- nouncing “to--the agents there and to James

‘the “ATF and the National Guard were coming.” 7

The report states that Cavanaugh asked Rodriguez

-whether-he had: seen:any guns, had heard anyone

talking about guns, or had seen anyone hurrying
around. Rodriguez responded in the negative to all
three questions. Cavanaugh then told Rodriguez to
report his observations to Chuck Sarabyn, the tac-
tical coordinator for the raid.6® _

" The Treasury Department Report states that
at the command post
him that Koresh was upset, that ‘Koresh
had said the ATF and the National Guard were
coming, and that as Rodriguez left Koresh was
shaking and reading the Bible. The report contin-
ues that Sarabyn then asked Rodriguez a series of
questions from a prepared list provided by the tac-
tical planners concerning the presence of weapons,
whether there had been a call to arms, and other
preparations the Davidians were making, to which
Rodriguez responded in the negative to each ques-
tion.

The Treasury. Department Report then notes
that Sarabyn left the command post at the Texas

State Technical College (TSTC) and went to the
to confer with Phillip
1 ATF incident eommapder,

G hat Sarabyn told Chojnacki what Rodriguez

had-said a5 well ‘as the answers to the questions

S e z oo39081



cuted successfully "if they hurried.”
According to the Treas

.. Guard are coming.  We are
e e T &
' b. Testimony before the subcommittees

' Sarabyn asked of Rodriguez. The Treasury Depart-
ment Report states that Chojnacki asked Sarabyn
what he thought should be done and that Sarabyn

expressed his belief that the raid could still be exe-. =
e s - aaingreal bad. He was breathing real

Departme‘qt_.“ﬂepért,_?; ‘hard. At one time he put his hands in his

* “'Sarabyn then went to the staging area, at ‘the ... ..~
"~ “Bellmead Civic Center near the TSTC. When_ he’
- : arrived he 'was ex¢ited, “obviously in a hurry,”’and _ ..
" telling agents “get ready to go, they know we are |

coming” and “they know ATF and the National .

L At the hearings before the subcommittees, these
R individuals testified in a manner that was similar
i to, but not entirely consistent with the summary of

: . these events in the Treasury Department Report.

’ When he testified before the subcommittees, agent
Rodriguez expanded upon the Treasury Depart-

w ‘ment’s description of the events on the morning of

February 28th.
e Mr. Scorr: Mr. Rodriguez, is there—
- was there any question in your mind, hav-
) ing been inside the residence, that Koresh
e 20 KREW
.. = Mr.. RODRIGUEZ: Sir; there's no question

o - gliat We were coming, yes, sir. o

Mr. ScoTT: And can you describe briefly
his emotion when he got the word? .-

“Mr. RODRIGUEZ: Yes, sir. We were—l
was inside the compound, on that day,
that morning. I had asked him some ques-
tions regarding a newspaper clipping. He

Co..oTor osat down and started to explain to me the -

~difference between his preachings and an-

.. other subject’s preachings. ,
= As we were discussing the Bible, one of
- hig subjects, Mr, Jones, came in and ad-

<" vised him that he had a telephone call. He -

ignored the call and continued to talk to
-me. - C
At that point, everything was normal.

" . There was only three people in that living - |

room at that point. Everything was calm.
He was normal. He was talking to me as
he always spoke to me during all our ses-
gions. Nothing—nothing was wrong.
Mr.—Mr. Jones again came to the living

_ room and advised him that he had an -°- -
‘emeérgeney” call “from” England. At-that'

“time, he quickly'got up and left the-room
At that time it was still just Mr, Schnei

that”the’ agents’ were coming:that, i

v jimy mind that Koresh knew—there’s.no : :
- question”in my ‘mind that Koresh knew -~ = .=

.= ‘der and Sherri:Jewell were in that’ roomi’.
i - with-me;-at that time:: He came-back ap:

®id at9l. MR
wid )

proximately 3 or 4 minutes later, and
when he came back, I mean it was like

day and night.
As he approached me, he was—he was

pocket, in his jacket pocket, to probably

_keep his hands from shaking. He sat
“down next to me, probably about this far, -

and he continued to try to finish what he

“ was talking to me about.
__When he  grabbed the Bible, he was

"shaking so bad that he could not actually

read it. I grabbed the Bible and asked him

» what is wrong. At that time he stopped,
. and as I sit here I can remember, clearly,

he took a deep breath, he turned and .
looked at me and said, “Robert, neither
the ATF or the National Guard will ever
get me. They got me once, and theyll
never get me again.”?! . '

Later, Rodriguez continued his testimony:

 Mr. EHRLICH: And what did you do

next? .

" 'Mr. RODRIGUEZ: I quickly—I felt—I felt

..very_threatened and I stood up, I felt I

tiad to—I'had to.leave the compound. By

“that time, there was more—more people

. 'that had come:inta_the living room. At

" first there was only three when we first

started. :

Mr. EHRLICH: All right, sir. Now, why
did you feel you needed to leave the
compound?

Mr. RODRIGUEZ: I was threatened be-
cause I didn’t ‘know—I was afraid that I
would be exposed as to who I was. And as
I stood there, I looked and I noticed that
the door—there's people in front of the
door, people behind me, there was no
place for me to go. As I was—as I s
there, Koresh went from one window, did

'~ the same thing, looked outside, and came

back to the other window and again
looked outside and said, they’re coming,

" Robert, they’re coming.™.

19

70547 back to the undercover house.™

] * ] . ¢

Mr. EHrLICH: All right, sir. And there
came a point in time around 9:15, 920
where you left the house, correct? '

Mr. RODRIGUEZ: Yes, sir. He finally—he
motioned, he gave a head signal, they

" opened.the_door. for_ me. I walked out. I

RS

“"got into my, vehicle. It took me a while to
_get it started because I was—by then I
was—I was pretty shaken. I quickly went

Part § at 757,
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[ 2 * ] [ 4 ..

Mr. RopricUEz: Well, what I did, I
went into the—to the room where Mr.
Cavanaugh was because that is where the
STU- phone was, I was supposed to use’
that telephone to call Mr, Sarabyn. When -

"~ pened in the residence, advised him, = _ .~

.....

T Ydon? T

~better call Chuck right now... ... .. - ...
- Mr. EHruICH: All right, sir. You got on
the phone and did just that, correct? .
Mr. RODRIGUEZ: Yes, sir, I did.
Mr. EHRLICH: And please detail the na-’
ture of that conversation,
. Mr. RopricUEz: I got the phone, I -
called. He came to the phone. The only
thing I can't remember was if somebody
else answered. I think somebody else an-
swered and he came to the phone. -
Mr. EHRLICH; Who is he? Mr. Sarabyn?
Mr. RODRIGUEZ: Mr, Sarabyn.
Mr. ExrLICH: OK

.2 .7 coming. ‘He'-says, well, what happened?

I explained to him all the events that -
took place inside the compound, and his
-~ -~ questions were, well, did you see any
guns? I said no.
What was he wearing? And I—I advised
him of what he was wearing. At that time,
he said OK, and that was about the ex-

tent of thé phone call.

Mr. ExrLIcH: All right, sir. Did you re- - B

* quest that the raid be called off because
- the element of surprise had been lost?

Mr. RoDRIGUEZ: No, sir. At that time 1
really didn't have the chance. It was a
. real quick question and answer thing. He
. asked me what he was wearing, said OK'
. and he hung up. That’s why—that's why
1 quickly left the undercover house to go-
talk to him at the command post because
I wanted to have a more—more of a
" lengthy conversation with him about the

events.’ \

.. Rodriguez then testified that he drove to the com-

SRR :_mand-post; looking for Sarabyn, in order to further

%% diseuss- with:him . in person” the - events of
" ‘morning. As Rodrigues testified: -~
Mr. RoDRIGUEZ: I—1I arrived ‘at the com-

mand post and the first-thin

———
“id at 7T,

P came out.of my mouth Wwas; Chuck; they ==~
.+ ... know, Chuck;.they know, they know we're

. And I explained to him what happened. . .. .

v~ got there, we all huddled-up and I.told - . . .
'Mr. Cavanaugh exactly what had hap-:°. =:

Mr. EHRLICH: ‘And what was his reac- SRR

20

was, where's Chuck? Where's Chuck? And
they advised me that he had left.
At that time, ] started yelling and I
said, “Why, why, why? They know we're
coming, they know we're coming.”
. Mr. EHruUCH: And what reaction did
. _you get, what response?
. =" Mr. - RODRIGUEZ; .Sir, everything was
- - . very quiet, very quiet, and if I remember
_right, everxbo% was really concerned. I
went outside and I sat down and I remem-

Mr. RopriGUEz: His reaction ‘was we - -. " ber starting to cry—starting to cry until
‘ _ .- Sharon Wheeler came to me and told me

_ what was going on,” -

While the Treasury Department Report main-
tains that “all key participants now agree
Rodriguez communicated, and they understood,
that Koresh had said the ATF and National Guard
were coming,”7¢ Sarabyn maintained at the hear-
ings before the subcommittees that while he un-
derstood the words Rodriguez had spoken, he did
not feel that Koresh actually believed that law en-
forcement personnel were on their way to the resi-
dence. As Sarabyn testified:

I did not feel he knew that we were
coming at that time. When I talked with

.4+ -Mr:RODRIGUEZ: And the first thing that .. Robert, like I testified before, I took notes

' "*while.we were talking over the thing and
. =1 have .read: all of .Robert’s statements.
) [Robertdxd-did_agreat jOb, but 1 think
_ - everything that you heard as far as testi-
©_. “mony was.not_passed on to me.
In fact, Robert told the shooting review
team, or commanders, he didn’t go into
detail or should have said more. When I
went through the questions I asked him,
you know, he had said specifically Koresh
said, you know, ATF and the Guard are
.coming, but when I asked, trying to deter-
. mine what he was doing from those ques-
tions, he wasn't doing anything, he was
shaking, reading the Bible, He was
preaching. I determined that, you know,.
in my opinion, his actions spoke louder
that his words, so I didn't feel that any-
thing was happening then.” ,
gtdanother point in the hearings, Chojnacki testi-
ed: T
When I received the information from
" Mr. Sarabyn . . . (he] pointed out that he
had finished talking with Agent Rodriguez '
and that Robert says he knows we are
coming. He said, “The ATF and the Na-
) Guard were coming to get me,”
ose kinds of comments that I took to be
a repetition-of the same comments that
‘We_had heard"from his other preaching
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episodes where he preached that the ATF

will be coming to get us. “The ATF is com-

ing to get us.” 78
Chojnacki was then questioned directly as to
whether he believed at the time that Koresh did,
in fact, know that the ATF was going to the
Branch Davidian residence. He stated, “Not at
that time, I didn't, no sir.” ™

Later, during the hearings, however, Rodriguez

questioned the truthfulness of the testimony given
by Chojnacki and Sarabyn before the subcommit-
tees. Mr. Rodriguez testified,

[TThose two men know—know what I
told them and they knew exactly what I
meant. And instead of coming up and ad-
mitting to the American people night after
the raid that they had made a mistake
. . . they lied to the public and in doing
so they just about destroyed a very great
agency.%0

Several other agents also testified that Sarabyn
had informed them that the Davidians knew the
ATF was coming. Agent Roger Ballesteros, who
was present at the staging area when Sarabyn ar-
rived testified:

I was in an auditorium along with a .
large party . . . and Mr. Sarabyn rushed
into the room and made it clear to us that
we needed to hurry up because, in fact,
Mr. Rodriguez had come out and identi-
fied the fact that Koresh had been tipped
off and that they knew we were coming.8!

¢. What the ATF commanders knew

It is difficult to reconcile Sarabyn’s testimony
that while he heard agent Rodriguez's words, he
believed that Koresh's actions spoke louder than
his words and that, as a result, he believed that
the Davidians did not really think the ATF agents
were on their way. In light of the testimony of
Rodriguez and the other agents before the sub-
committees, the subcommittees conclude that
Sarabyn understood that the Davidians were
tipped off and would have been lying in wait for
the ATF agents to arrive.

The fact that Sarabyn felt it necessary to tell
other agents of what Rodriguez had told him, re-
gardless of how he understood it, indicates that he
found the information to be important. Unfortu-
" nately, when Sarabyn told Chojnacki this informa-
tion, Chojnacki did not believe it to be important

their superiors’ judgment in going forward with

. the raid, even given their concerns about the infor-

mation relayed by Rodriguez.

B. WHO BEARS THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
: FAILURE OF THE RAID?

The Treasury Department Report attempts to
lay the blame for the failure of the raid squarely
on the shoulders of Chojnacki and Sarabyn. Much
has been made of what has come to be known as
the loss of the “element of surprise,” with adminis-
tration officials asserting that Chojnacki and
Sarabyn went forward in the face of a direction to
the contrary if the element of surprise were lost.

In their report, Treasury Department officials
assert that Stephen Higgins, then Deputy Director
of the ATF, had instructed “those directing the

raid . . . to cancel the operation if they learned

that its secrecy had been compromised . . . ez

This statement was purportedly made by Higgins

“to Ronald Noble, then Assistant Secretary-Des-

enough to call off the raid And, inexplicably,

Sarabyn apparently did not believe it important
enough to urge Chojnacki to delay the raid.
Compounding these failures was the fact that the

ATF line agents who heard Sarabyn’s comments -

apparently were not confident enough to question

———
n/id at 466.
»

Id
®id at T88.
0y
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ignate of the Treasury for Law Enforcement, and
John P. Simpson, the acting Assistant Secretary of
the Treasury for Enforcement. Noble and Simpson
had expressed concerns about the raid when they
first learned of it on the afternoon of the Friday
before the raid was to take place and Simpson had
initially ordered that the raid not go forward. Ac-
cording to the Treasury Department Report, Hig-
gins made this statement to Noble and Simpsen in
response to their concerns about the raid and in
order to convince Simpson to reverse his earlier
decision.83 At the hearings before the subcommit-
ge;i Undersecretary of the Treasury Noble testi-

It's been our—it'’s been our contention
in the Department of the Treasury’s re-
port that only Mr, Hartnett and Mr,
Chojnacki and Mr. Sarabyn deny, because
Mr. Simpson—I mean Mr. Higgins made
it absolutely clear that this raid was not
supposed to proceed if the advantage of
surprise was lost and Mr. Aguilera testi-
fied about that being clear on February
12th as well.84
Representative Bill McCollum, co-chairman of the
joint subcommittees, read into the record at the
hearing a similar statement that Mr. Noble had
made during an appearance on the television news
program “60 Minutes” in May 1995.88

But ATF on-site commanders and senior ATF of-
ficials disputed the position asserted by the admin-

T——— N
:"Ilunrybepmnmtmulﬂ.
" 84 Hearings Part 1 at 834835
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istration in the Treasury Department Report, by
Noble in his television interview, and by Noble
during his testimony to the subcommittees. As
Dan Hartnett, Deputy Director of the ATF for En-
forcement in February 1993, testified: -

“on a national program several months ago

ury and ATF ordered the ‘commanders at”
" if they. lost the element of surprise, And
:..~, what I'm saying to this committee is that
““**"I'have never heard the term, “élement of

" .started. using. it ourself and the: media
started using it - - - -
. But I have to also add that in the brief-
ings, the briefings that I had and Mr. Hig-
gins had, the secrecy of the raid was dis-
cussed and was an element of the raid
plan that was given to me and to Mr. Hig-
gins. It was just that nobody ever called
and said abort the raid if you lose the ele-
ment of surprise. That just never hap-
"pened. But secrecy was a part of the ‘
~; ==-+-7 plan—secrecy. and ‘safety. I mean it was
_discussed over and over again.8¢ -

""_"Representative Bill Zeliff, co-chairmari’ of thé joint .
* “ subgommittecs, he stated that the administration -
“had” tried to."cover up the failure” of’ its 'senior "’
.. _Treasury Department officials ‘to- properly direct

- --theactions of ATF officials: S
Mr. ZELIFF: In fact, the element of sur-

Treas

_gurprise,” until after.the raid,-when we .. .~ .

.7 -7 Mr. HARTNETT: I saw Ron Noble testify -
__or a month ago where he said both Treas- """

Mr. SARABYN: What ! was making ref-
- erence to, sir, is the element of surprise.
Throughout—at this point, it became a
very big issue. The point I was trying to
make is I was never given the order not
. to go if we lost the element of surprise,
- There has:been much conversation after
_that about.the element of surprise and I
.--was trying to say I do not know who up
--above me, how far, whatever, gave that
- order to somebody, but I never received
. . that order.87-: . =..-f - :
The “Clinton ~administration’s attempts to sug-

- gest -that maintaining the “element of surprise’

'had been an overriding feature of the directives of

- Treasury Department: officials to ATF officials is

" inaccurate. While the issue was. discussed, there

%+ =% - Later; under further questioning on this point by

e

" prise was never in that plan. Is that cor-: * .

rect?
Mr. HARTNETT: The terminology.
crecy was part of the plan, sir. .
. . Mr. ZELIFF: One final question.so the = .
% record may stand clearly on its own.’ Do..: .
~ -~ you believe that these facts demonstrate

Se-

- Treasury Department Report?
...~ Mr. HARTNETT: Yes, yes, I do. -

" . Mr. ZELIFF: By Ron Nobl
2 e -Mre, HARTNETT: Yes.” .

. Sarabyn also testified before the s
" that he was never ordered not to go forward if the
‘tactical advantege of surprise had been lost.

Mr. CHABOT: Mr. Sarabyn, I'd just like
to follow up again with your statement,
where you said, *Obviously, some people
way up said some things after that which
weren’t true. It goes right down ta the de- "
- cisionto go: And they werg part of it.” B
#wiy. up,” you're talking about. upper échi
- lon officials, I assurne. Is that correct? 7=

e, _spe‘c‘iﬁcall'y?A o

ommittees -

"'~ quire_that_sufficient checks be in place

- was no absolute direction given to ATF officials or

ATF commanders on-site that if secrecy were com-
promised that they were to not go forward with
the raid. The Clinton administration’s attempt to
suggest otherwise, appears to be a veiled attempt
to distance the administration and its most senior
officials from the results of the failed raid.

" But as Hartnett testified, “Secrecy was part of

~ the plan—secrecy and safety. I mean it was dis-

cussed over and over again.” 88 And Secret Service
Agent Louis Merletti, the Assistant Project Direc-
tor. of the. Waco Administrative Review Team cre-
‘ated by the Department of the Treasury to review

- the Waco incident, testified that there is no dif-
“ference between “the element of surprise and se-

‘crecy.” He testified that it was “basic to a dynamic

_ ‘entry” method of conducting a raid.8? Later, how-

ever, Hartnett testified:

- .“Mr. Mica; Mr. Hartnett, you had said
you disagreed with Mr. Merletti . ..
about some comments he made about as-
sessing the ‘element of surprise. Do you
_.want to respond now?

" Mr. HARTNETT; Well, Pve always dis-
~ agreed with that terminology, ever since
-* the Waco review came out. I think that

_ it’s a created phrase, and I don't mean to
mislead the committee.

.. You know, I've testified many, many

- times that a_part of the raid was secrecy.

‘But part-of the raid was not specifically

. directed toward those commanders when

= they say they weré given a direct order.
That is just not true. They just were not
given a direct order.®® B

. Regardless of whether it is called the “element
of surprise” or simply “secrecy,” it is difficult to
understand why_senior ATF officials. did not re-

to ensure

nta.med up to the begin-

‘that secrecy had been.
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. - ning of the raid. And it is almost impossible to un-
derstand why ATF commanders did not find
Rodriguez’s information to be important enough to
call off the raid. Given the type of tactical oper-

. ation selected, maintaining the secrecy of the tim-

.. .for_the.
.. site but by senior ATF officials.. .

It is unclear from the
.Treasury

_nificantly involve themselves in the planning and

sessed by the Davidians. Given the high risk in-
of the Davidian residence created a

T greater risk to the ATF agents in using this tactic,
it is simply incomprehensible that the most senior
ATF officials were not directly involved with the
planning of this operation and in overseeing its
implementation. In retrospect, maintaining the se-
_crecy of this operation was one of the most impor-

"I T open location

tant aspects of this plan. To experienced law en- .

. forcement officials.this fact should have been obvi-
. ous from the beginning. In fact, it should have

. had to order agents to be aware.

""" “the blame for the failure of the raid bécause they
failed to become significantly involved in the plan-
ning for it. Had they done so, they presumably

" would have ‘ensured that a procedure was in place

through which Rodriguez's information was re-
layed to them and they would have acted upon it.
At the very least, they share some blame for not
instilling in the senior raid commanders an under-

<. 'gtanding of the need to ensure that secrecy was’

" . <. maintained in an operation of this type. .
R But most of the blame for the failure of the raid,
.. and for_the loss of life that occurred, however,

-+ - 77 must be born by the raid commanders themselves,
.~ -and in-particularly by Sarabyn. Both Sarabyn and

_ing of the raid is so fundamental that the blame "
" for_the. failure_to ensure that it was maintained .
must be shared not only by the commanders on- -
e . riding concern on’

om -+ -that the secrecy of -the ‘mission be maintained.
k Department Report why ATF Director "~ When ‘any credible evidence was brought to his at-
Higgins and Deputy Director Hartnett did not sig-"- “tention that secrecy might have been compromised

testimony" and from the '

~“‘oversight of the execution of a raid of this mag-
" " pitude. This is_especially puzzling in light of the -
“ amount of weaponry the ATF suspected was pos-"

.

aware of the impending raid and were likely to re-
sist with deadly force. The only realistic conclusion
that can be drawn is that Chojnacki and Sarabyn
acted recklessly failing to call off the raid.

Given the manner in which Sarabyn relayed the

" information to Chojnacki, it -is perhaps under-

standable that Chojnacki presumed that the infor-
matiori was not important. But Chojnacki’s over-
February 28 should have been

he should have delayed the start of the operation

~ unitil he could confirm or deny those reports.

- As Chojnacki testified before the subcommittees,
“T accept the responsibility for making the field de-

- eision. I was the incident commander, I was the

" yolved in any dynamic entry, and the fact that the

© 7" been thé overfiding concern of all involved, Tt 'was' ~
“=*"not something of which senior officials should have -

_ - Higgins™ and Hartnett must share a portion of .

¥ =i - Chojnacki understood what- Rodriguéz- had told

hE -7 Sarabyn but; inexplicably, ‘somehow did not find it
* " to be significant enough to warrant calling off the

‘Davidians were not arming themselves when
iguez left the residence that they would not

~ do so. Perhaps they believed that the agents could
- have arrived at the residence before the Davidians
had fully armed and taken up offensive positions

‘their’ abilities were ‘so- saperior to_ those of the
Davidians ‘that they- cou

iild have successfully over-

should have known that the Davidians:haafﬁei:iixhé ]

. While
piz

‘had been-
~_most significant mistake made on February 28, a
~“number of other failures came to light during the
- subcommittees’ investigation. - -

person’ to make that decision.”91 Regardless of
whether he fully understood the significance of
what Sarabyn told him, it was his job to take
whatever steps were necessary to insure that se-
crecy was maintained. Because he did not, his por-
tion of the blame for the failure of the raid and its
consequences is equal to that of Sarabyn.

' C. OTHER WAYS IN WHICH THE PLAN SELECTED WAS
.eeee 7 "I .. BUNGLED

_ the failure of ATF'’s commanders to recog-
ize, and respond to the¢ fact .that their raid plan

gen- severely compromised was, by far, the

1. Command and control issues
A number of command and control issues signifi-
cantly undermined the possibility of success for
the raid. Most of these issues were addressed in
the Treasury Department Report,% however, three
of them bear repeating here. :
" g, Assigning command and control functions
7T under the ATF’s National Response Plan
The. decision to designate Chojnacki as incident

- commander and Sarabyn as tactical commander

was mandated under the ATF's National Response
Plan. While the tactical experts who testified at

the hearings ‘and briefed the subcommittees noted
_that the use of an overall coordinating document,
such as the National Response Plan, is an appro-

- raid. Perhaps “they thought that because the - - priate ~ organizational "and “standardization tool,

gome of the plan’s requirements resulted in less
qualified people being placed in positions of com-
mand and control when agents who were more

. - qualified for these positions, and who were already

- Chojnacki’ was' selectéd ‘as-incident commander
because he was the special agent in charge of the
field office jn whose region the raid was to occur.

o the Davidiani even if the Davidians had _ feld office in whose region tne .
been expected to be lying in wait. W[xmverr-m'ef:—»»~~Wh!l%:-ﬁh9:=_=‘R?ﬁs"‘f‘]‘?‘g€-‘!ﬁ-%°'l‘-"g°. of a geogr aphl_c_ o

reason, however, the facts are that they knew or. - -=ouemrp 1y | o 750

760, -
 Treasury Department Report at 152-166.". ° -
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" ... the"Davidians' forewarning..;He might also:have -

Ji. o ®pd at183, oeisewin T

area may have a great interest in an operation
that takes place in his area, his position has little
bearing on his qualification to run the operation.
_And even though Chojnacki had 27 years of law
enforcement experience, there were other agents

. involved in the raid who possessed substantially
- more experience in tactical operations. - - -

:: Chojnacki; in turn, appointed Sarabyn, to be tac-

tical coordinator because the. National Response .
Plan required that ‘position.to be filled. by an as- ..
sistant special agent in charge who had completed ..
_special response “téam (SRT) training, .as. had :

Sarabyn. But Sarabyn bhad attended SRT training
only as an observer, ‘and theré were. other. agents .
of lesser rank who had moré experience in ‘this .

haps diver’ting or redirecting the actions of some

and reducing the number of casualties susiained.

¢. Command and control from Washingtbn
On February 28, ATF activated its “National

. Command Center” at its Washington headquarters

staffed - with . “high-level managers ...

" “experience(d] in field operations.”®® Yet it appears

3

_area.®? As in the case with Chojnacki, the National . .

Response Plan's emphasis on rank and geographi-

cal assignment created the unintended result of
placing a less qualified person into a position for

which he was either simply not qualified or for -

which there were others more qualified.

b. Command and control on the scene on

raid day .
" Chojnacki decided to ride in one of the heli-
copters on raid day.®¢ This decision placed him out
of effective communications with the other “raid
- commanders and SRT teams leaders prior to the

& beginning of the raid. Had he chosen to-remain in_

“‘that~the” command center played no role in the

‘planning or implemeritation of the operation until
after ATF agents had been killed or wounded. The

:‘personneél ‘in” the command center never learned
“that Rodriguez ‘knew the Davidians thought the

raid “was imminent because Chojnacki never told
them: Apparently, the person in the command cen-
ter -with: whom Chojnacki spoke did not know
enough about the raid to know that an undercover
agent was to have been inside with the Davidians

“until shortly before the raid was scheduled to

begin and valuable information might have been

available. In fact, according to the Treasury De-.

partment Report, no one in the command center
asked any questions of Chojnacki at all when he
reported in shortly before the raid.®?

2. The lack of a written raid p}an :
The Treasury Department review of the ATF's

“investigation of David Koresh noted that the ATF

. central position from which he could control the -

. ~evolving raid,’he might have had other opportuni- .

" ties to learn of Rodriguez’s information about what

been able to learn from agents in the undercover
house that the Davidians were not where the ATF

" anticipatéd they would be on the morning of Feb- --

ruary 28, a key element of the tactical plan, but
instead were lying in wait for the agents.

~ Sarabyn, the tactical commander, chose to ride

- - in one of the cattle trailers 95 rather than observ-

* “ing the residence from a vantage point such as the

‘undercover house, where he could monitor ‘activity

-_in and around the building, as well as view the ap- - .

agents who were in command of the raid did not

“prepare a written raid plan in advance of the raid.

While two ATF agents took it upon themselves to
credte one; it was never reviewed by the senior
aid planners and commanders, and never distrib-

«uted to: any ‘of-the agents who were to participate
‘inthe raid® -~ =7

During the hearing before the subcommittees,
geveral . tactical experts testified that the drafting
of a written raid is an important part of develop-
ing an overall operational plan. Indeed, the ATF's
own National Response Plan, which was drafted to
establish “consistent policies and procedures”

.- when several Special Response Teams are involved

""p'rOach of the ATF agents in the cattle trailers. By

E “riding in the trailers with the agents who were to - -
3. Lack of depth in the raid plan

"~ “conduct the raid, Sarabyn severely limited his -

" -+< view of the Branch Davidian residence, which also:
‘prevented him from observing that the Davidians

-7 were not_where the ATF expected them to be just
before the raid began. : 4

- .. .Additionally, once Sarabyn arrived at the resi-

dence he became pinned down with the other

agents and was unable to communicate with many

of the other agents at different points around the

__building. Had he chosen to place himself in a posi- -
“tion’ where he.would .not have come under fire,
e unde house, he might have been

“such as'the.

o /d at 164.
el

1§ the. undercover 19
“able’ to communicate with all ‘of ‘the ‘agents, per-:

in an operation,® requires that a written plan “for
managing the critical incident or major ATF oper-
ation” be produced before the operation begins.1%0
Yet this was not done in this case.

"~ One problem with overall planning was the fact

that no written plan existed. A factor that may
have exacerbated the losses the ATF sustained on
February 28 was the lack of depth in the oral raid
plan. The plan involved agents in two cattle cars
driving up an exposed driveway to the front of the

" Davidian residence and running out of the cars,

-_while the other went to

with one group storming through the front doors

S ———————————— R
“eeid at 176 T
”] )

. esid at 207-208. Additionally, Azeqc Wtﬂﬁﬁd before the
. subcomumitiecs that i Part
tatBal. . . -

he never saw-any written reid plan. Hearings
ftment Report at 162,

2
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. climbed ladders carried by agents onto the roof involved. At worst, it is evidence of grievous neg-
and 1;: t:lhm\‘xgh thi;eco‘nd-stogr windows.“]n TI}lxge ligence on their part.
was little else to epanan,importanty,' e . . _
_ or no discussion of what might go wrong.. o 4. Ta;};igltﬁazsidtrmned together for only 3 days
" There was almost no training given om-how to iy STl b i gia : : .
withdraw-from the residence.19? Even the written - Anothier fact which indicates a lack of skill on
~Slah éreated after the raid and'given to the Texas .. the part of both senior ATF officials and the ATF
Rangers ‘during their investigation - (which was ~..on-gite commanders, particularly overall mcxde.nt.
“never distributed to the commanders or any-agents - ‘ commander Chojnacki, is the fact that the Special
" in advance of the Taid) devoted much of its 82 .- Response ‘Teams (SRT’s) involved in conducting
pages to administrative issues. It contained-no - the operation trained together for only 3 days prior
mention”of what ‘agents were to do if anything - to the ‘operation.108 The ATF does not maintain a
" went wrong with the “dynamic éntry” into the resi. .- large- standing -force of. specially trained agents
““dence. The three short paragraphs under the head-- - which_can be dispatched to the site of a disturb-
ing “contingencies” simply mentioned the presence  ance, such as the FBI's Hostage Rescue Team. In-

- .=l%, . of an ambulance and nurse near the scene.}93 .. stead, the ATF put together its team for the oper-
oL As discussed above, the most grievous failure on  ation against the Davidians by combining special
! the part of ATF officials on February 28 was the response teams from several of the ATF's regional

failure to understand and appreciate the signifi-  offices. )
cance of undercover agent Rodriguez’s report that While the subcommittees do not conclude that

the Davidians knew the ATF raid was imminent.  the ATF should have created a special team such
Yet, the omission of any contingency planning was  as the FBI's Hostage Rescue Team in advance of
a failure that may have led to the deaths of agents  the raid (and does not conclude that it need do so
who might otherwise have survived. Contingency  now), it appears that the reason why the FBI
planning might have been effective at a number of . maintains its HRT as a single unit is because co-
125%@5_2}:‘!".‘52 the agafln?;l tu;qeg_i into the .dnyewgy i ordination of the agents involved in a tactical oper-
gre';,r ~e¥i'h rslt) res di';" ;A qy"{_,:ere tg’m";g under.. . aion, especially one involving great risk, is of the
re- from"the Davidians,or % en thi¢ otdér wBS-  ytmost ‘importance: ‘Senior -ATF officials and the
gﬁe'phr:%fg' %g:r{ﬁ:ﬁ?-g;gfv;tg: -?élee" - “ATF's on-sité’commanders either were unaware
* fuilure of the planiners to consider that their oper. - this fuc or, mare likely, simply (r00h e,
:E:; il;utgrhatgigco ﬁﬂoﬁgw%r:tp aufdg;g:ﬁﬂ: EE&' ‘Regardless of the reason; however, the fact that
’ ; ATF officials believed that the could -create a
_It notes that most ATF agents were used to oper- 4 !
ations going without incident, or at least being re- force of over 70 agents, ac.lequat,ely trained to con-
solved in favor of the ATF, and that the only other duct an operation of this complexity against 2
ATF operation similar in magnitude to the one hean.ly armed opposing force, m.dlcates.a lack.of
.. .. against the Davidians had been resolved peace. foresight on the part of these senior officials which
C 700 fully, The report places stronger blame on ATF's is.unacceptable, . - = '
% =" " national leadership for this failure, calling its fail 5, True National Guard role only made clear 24
i B‘ﬁﬁsﬁ&}eﬁ:&iﬁ’&&?ﬁiﬂﬂnq planning was hours prior to the raid -
;o TE- | The subcommittees agree that ATF leadership T:haz ;u:;z;n;{nétees dhave lealx:lgdmthartov«[genht:ilﬁ
7. - shares the blame for the failure of this operation rors to th ATuFi“ thwas asked to provice that
"2 " “and that, clearly, it would have been beneficial 3? ers A b: 1 e ptgpose gweﬂl";s
" 'had they been involved in a meaningful way in the ey would be used as an observation platiorm or
. ..... planning of the operation. But it should not take c?mmand and ?°““’°1 l?]“f°fm-‘°' When the Na-
=" " directives: from Washington to ensure that agents h?nal Guard pilots arrived at Fort Hood to train
in charge of the ATFs various field offices and with the ATF the day before the raid they learned
‘Special Response Teams, the people who actually  for the first time that the ATF intended to use the
conduct an operation, will know enough to ask the helicopters as a diversion just before the raid was
simple question “what happens if this doesn’t go as  to begin. The helicopters were to fly close to the
planned.” No amount of past success is reason residence, attracting the attention of those inside
-enough-to explain why this possibility. wasn’t con- . 0 the back side of the building, while the ATF
idered and planned for. The fact. that it. was.not.. . agents.arrived at the front of the structure.}%®
-done is, at best; g’dﬂiﬁona) ‘evidence of the lack of --.." .. . e o
kill and sophistication of genior ATF gomman ' ' o

Z 0039088



While the National Guard was: conducting its
role in its Title 32 status,1%® and so was not lim-
ited by the terms of the Posse Comitatus Act,11?
this change in plan is still troubling. The failure to
. inform National Guard commanders of the true

-: role for the National Guard troops and equipment -

well in advance of the raid is an omission that is,

*“while not prohibited by law, might- have been de-
~-—¢lined by-thé Governor of Texas as commander of

the Texas National Guard had the ATF given suf-

ficient notice for word to have reached her. In any

event, it does not appear that senior ATF or Treas-

ury officials gave any consideration to the negative

image of military helicopters being used as part of

a raid on American civilians.
D. SERVICE OF THE WARRANT
‘One of the issues considered by the subcommit-
tees was whether the ATF agents serving the ar-

rest and search warrants on February 28 were re-
quired to “knock and announce” their intention to

serve the warrant before entering the Davidian

residence. When the ATF agents conducted the

“-raid on. the Davidian residence the agents:did not -

. knock ‘on_the -Davidians’ front door and arninounce
" their intentions to serve the warrant. Rather, the.
. ATF agents dismounted from the: cattle trailers in
" which they were riding onthe run. One group at-.

““tempted to enter the residence forcibly through-the

front door. A second group attempted to enter the
second floor windows via the roof. : :

The subcommittees’ review of videotapes made
of the training sessions during which ATF prac-
ticed the raid plan revealed that the plan was de-
signed around this _type of dynamic entry and did

" not involve a knock and announce. approach.-In .

"~ other words, the use of these tactics was not the

" result-of any circumstances which had occurred on
"‘February 28. '

-+ In 191711 Congress 3
-_and announce statute.!!? Generally speaking, the

. “statute permits forcible entry for the purpose of _
executing a search warrant only. after the ‘officer

gives notice of his authority and his purpose but is

~ refused admittance. Courts interpreting the stat- .
- ute, however, have adopted a number of exceptions -

to the rule allowing unannounced police entries in
limited exigent circumstances. For example, courts

) weFor an explanation of the three “statuses” ja which National Guard
- “forces operate, see Sectica V of this report. EERE

.. 119Ser Section V of this report, el e
Robert_J., Driscoll, Unannosnced Police-

window of a hoase,

the execution of the warrant.®: - < -

- - . --at best;-additional evidence of the'podr planning °
. for the raid doné by the ATF commanders.-At
"worst, this may have been an -attempt by:-ATF *
... cominandérs to obtain operational assistance that,”

enacted the Federal knock

" have held that such aa announcement is unneces-

sary when the facts known to officers would Justify
them in being virtually certain that the person on
whom the warrant is to be served already knows
- the officers’ purpose and that an announcement
would be a useléss gesture.1?3 Courts also have
_held that police’ need not knock and announce

““"their intent to serve a warrant if they fear that to
“ do so would allow the person on whom the war-

- rarit is to be served to destroy the evidence to be

seized under the warrant.1¢ A third general ex-

- ception to the rule requiring the police to knock

and announce their intent to serve a warrant is
“when_to do so would increase the risk of danger to
the officers serving the warrant.118
Given the fact that the arrest and search war-
rants were based, in part, on the evidence that the
Davidians were in possession of illegal automatic
weapons, the subcommittees believe it was reason-
able for the ATF to have presumed that the
Davidians might fire on them had they announced
their intent to serve the warrants in advance. The
Davidians own behavior in firing on the ATF
agents proves the reasonableness of that belief.

... E, UNRESOLYED ALLEGATIONS |
1. Who shot first?
“Much has been ‘made-of the issue as to which
“side in the gun battle shot first. Conflicting evi-

"Idence on_this point.was presented to the sub-
““committees by the ATF agents who were involved
*in the raid, the Texas Rangers who conducted an

investigationi into the events of the raid following
the end of the standoff on April 19, and by the at-
torneys for the Davidians. '

ATF Special Agent John Henry Williams, a
member of the SRT team assigned to enter the
front door of the Davidian Residence, and who
spoke to David Koresh at the front door of the
Davidian residence as the raid began, testified
that he was convinced that the Davidians shot
first. As Williams testified before the subcommit-

tees, '

As we approlai:h‘ec-rl' the front door, David
Koresh came to the front door dressed in

" black cammo fatigues: ,
As he closed the door, before we reached
the door, one agent reached the door, and

’ - at that point that is when the doors erupt-

ed with gunfire coming from inside. It was
10 seconds or more before we even fired
back 116
Later on that same day, Williams testified at
ter length about the start of the gun battle.
~Mr, S¢C an_you go through just-

LT inser
mwm.m-mgmmmdhnmqm'- e fd
when necessary to-liberate bicmelf

26

0039089

z



.wn. ... ..Senior officers
" fied-asito the: findings of their investigation into
" these events. after. April
-, viewed.virtually everyone who.was present at the

door, and how close to the door were you
when the shooting 8 ? . :
Mr. WILLIAMS: About 10 feet from the

door. . ..
. Mr. Scotr:_Was it your

__ were_you, when he closed the door’in your’

- Mr. WILLAMS: Approximately 15 feet
" from the door._ T Co T T
‘. - Mr:-ScorT: And did you continue walk+

: ard? SLoLoT
Mr. WILLIAMS: Yes.

Mr. Scotr: And how
‘when the shooting s d? :

Mr. WiLLAMS: [ jcally about 10
feet. After that, the shooting s im-
mediately after he closed the door.

Mr. ScotT: Is there any question in
our mind as to where the shooting

gan?
Mr. WiLLIAMS: None.
.. Mr. ScorT: Thank you—excuse me, that -
. was from the inside coming out..” -7
. Mr. WILLIAMS: “Yes,
“'coming.out.M7

of Hhe Texas Rangers also

testi-

19. The Rangers ‘inter-

" ‘Branch Davidian residence on February 28, includ-

" But the attorneys for

Davidians and all of
Texas Rang-
the sub-

ing several of the surviving
the ATF agents who were present. As
er Captain David Bymes testified to
committees: :
- I believe the evidence was to me over-
whélming in the trial that the Davidians ..
- fired first. The cameraman and the re-
porter, although very reluctantly, finally I
believe conceded that. He had broadcast
;" that several times. He was more or less a
" hostile witness. But in my mind there is"
‘no doubt who fired first.218 . o
the Davidians testified that
battle erupted as the result

they believed the gun

“ of an accidental discharge by one of the ATF

agents. " Jack Zimmerman, attorney for David
Koresh during the standoff, testified

My personal opinion is that it was an

accidental discharge by one of the ATF
agents as_he was dismounting and that

firs if you did open fire? Who made tha
decision? What ¢ommand was it? -

T urld et T56, . L
118 Hearings Part 2 at 150,

- .- Mr, Scot intention prior " _
.- to that 1ad Koresh come out by hen? =

i Mr, Wnnams: Yes. o oo S
" <" 'Mr. SCoTT:.And how far from the door = .. .

close weré you

from the inside.

x was'a msflﬂl}poxnen fire, which you™~ -
haven't heard a téstimony sbout. Nobody .

7 . - were not going to fly over that residencs. - -

But I believe that what the evidence
from the trial, the criminal trial, was that
somebody off to the side heard, somebody
fired, and they testified that it came from
behind them . . . . T will point out to you
from talking to the foreman of the crimi-
nal trial jury, who heard, 6 weeks of testi-
mony by the Government in 2 days of tes-
... timony from_the defense, they'could not
""" decide, he told ‘me. The foreman of the

g ;.:;._-j\;ty;t_p!gl_t_ne;theylédulc_l"ridt decide because
the evidence_ was, in_such conflict as to
7 who fired frst® LT
" '2.-Were shots fired from the helicopters?

" Allegations were leveled by the Davidians' attor-

neys that agents in the National Guard helicopters

. used in the raid fired into the Branch Davidian
i the air. The Davidians’ attorneys

the structure which appeared to them to be bullet
holes fired from the outside into the structure.
Phillip Chojnacki, who was riding in one of the
helicopters, testified, however, that no shots were
_ fired from the helicopters. He testified that ATF
personnel on the helicopters were armed only with
9 millimeter sidearms and that he observed no
...-ghots fired: from the helicopters.12° His testimony
is supported by the sworn statements of each of -
... the pilots of the helicopters, taken on April 20,
. :-1993, that the helicopters were unarmed and that
no ATF agents fired from the helicopters.13! Texas
Ranger Captain David Byrnes also testified as to
what the Rangers’ investigation concluded with re-
spect to ‘this issue. He stated that the Rangers
found no evidence that shots were fired from the
helicopters.122 ‘
The subcommittees reviewed videotape of the
_ - raid shot by agents in the helicopters as well as
videotape of the exterior of the helicopters involved
in the raid after the helicopters withdrew from the
scene. At no point in the videotape does any ATF
agent fire a weapon from the helicopters and the
helicopters do not appear to ‘have been equip
with machine guns or other weaponry. The video
- tape reviewed, however, ig not continuous from the
point from which the helicopters lifted off to the
point at i
‘tape was taken at some points in the raid and not
at others has not been explained to the sub-
committees. _

e B vis: Quita to.the_contrary, we coold

o
guafire,

about 300, 350 ‘meters, becanse there” was

7" Hearings Part 2 at 197,
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.. .F. THE FIRING AND F

" 'In October 1994, following the Treasury Depart-
"ment's review of the failed raid - against _the

It has been suggested that the bullet holes in
the roof of the Branch Davidian residence may
have come from ATF agents on the roof who were
firing into the structure as the firefight continued.
Jack ~Zimmerman, . the. attorney for

the ~'subcommittees.323 Given that .there

T T SARABYN w:._’ B

Davidians, the Department terminated -the em-
ployment of the two senior raid commanders,
Chojnacki and Sarabyn.124 Both of them filed com-
plaints with the Merit System Review Board.
While that complaints were pending, the Treasury
Department reached agreements with both
Chojnacki and Sarabyn.!?S As a result of those

. agreements, both were rehired by the ATF. How-

- ber 26, 1994%Memorandum to Phillip J. Chojnacki from ATF Deputy
Remore ‘ o ;';pla'._!ifwiwr_'_iting,_as ‘was required by ATF inter-

3434, . . - e
1. 50 Treasury Department Report at 183. ™" """

ever, neither is assigned to positions of authority
over other agents and neither is presently empow-

ered to carry a weapon.. ..

tion were provided. In light of the Treasury De-

.partment Report's conclusion that “raid command-

ers Chojnacki and Sarabyn appeared to have en-
gaged in a concerted effort to conceal their errors

in judgment,” 126 it is difficult to imagine any basis.
_upon which the rehiring of these two individuals -
_ean be justified by Treasury Department officials,

"1, Chojnacki and Sarabyn jointly share

o ~most of the responsibility for the. failure of
" the ATF raid against the Davidians. The blame
=7 © 7" for the failure of .the raid, and for the loss of life ...
that occurred, must be born by the—senior ATF. -

Chojnacki and Chuck

raid commanders, Phillip

“ 193¢ couldn®t tefl you whether those rounds were Bred from a heli.

mamtulwddunymitheymﬁwntbadydomwud.
lfoomebodym-undhuouwponhenohboodngdowninwmeuﬂ-
ing, it would look exsctly the same way.” Hearings Part 2 at 27 (state-
ment of Jack Zimmerman).

13¢ Memorandum to Charles D. Sarabyn from ATF Deputy Director,
“Decision to Remove from Position and from the Federal Service” (Octo-

Depariment of the Treaiisy, Case'No. DA-0762-96-0127-1-1, Merit Sys-
Documents T00013428-T0001

o’

e r Branch.
_Davidian Steve Schneider during the standoff, con-.
" 7 “ceded that this was a possible ‘explanation for the
‘presence of the bullet holes during his testimony
"before- N
. were,_gev
“the residence d

véral ATF agents who were on-the roof of -
i ing the firefight - .with _the

Davidians; this explanation seems plausible....-......-
HIRING OF-CHOJNACKI AND

G. FINDINGS CONCERNING THE RAID EXECUTION -

:Penver Hddomea(beumberXM).hmw

Sarabyn. They either knew. or should have known
that the Davidians had become aware of the im-

pending raid and were likely to resist with deadly
force. Nevertheless, they recklessly proceeded with

. .the raid, thereby endangering the lives of the ATF

"agents under their command and the lives of those

residing in the compound. This, more than any
- other factor, led to the deaths of the four ATF
. agents killed on February 28

"2, The former Director and Deputy Director

. of the A )
ity for the failure of the raid. Former ATF Di-

the ATF bear a portion of the responsibil-
“rector Stephen -Higgins .and former ATF Deputy

- Director Daniel Hartnett bear a portion of the re-
7" sponsibility for-the failure of the raid because they
- failed to become. involved
. raid, Had they done so,

in the planning for the
: they might have ensured
_that a procedure was in place through which the
undercover agent's information was relayed to
them and they could have acted upon it. At the
very least, they share some blame for not instilling
in the senior raid commanders an understanding
of the need to ensure that secrecy was maintained
in an operation of this type.
3. The planning for the raid was seriously
flawed. There. were numerous problems with the

** ATF's planning for the raid. These failures evi-
! v reid mnd mith omem dence_the lack of experience and sophistication of

<. w2 At: the  hearings = before. the “subcommittees, - thé senior ATF agents'charged with developing the
""Treasury Department officials were asked why a
"...deal was struck with the two people on ‘whom the -
Treasury Department blamed. the. failure . of .the:
Davidian raid. No sufficient answers to this ques---

 ATF's raid plan. They. also suggest that the ATF's
senior. officials failed to fully train or monitor the
:-actions of its senior operational commanders. In-
“cluded among the failures were:
"o The ATF’s own internal guidelines resulted
in less qualified people being placed in com-
mand and control of the operation when other,
more qualified agents, were available for these
positions, The commanders also made strate-
_ gic command and control errors on raid day,
" placing themselves in positions that hampered
- "_their ability to receive and act upon important
information that might have led them to post-
~ pone the raid or redirect it to minimize casual-
ties.. . - -
o The raid plan itself lacked significant depth,
~ principally in that it contained almost no con-
" tingency planning .which might have mini-
‘mized the losses suffered by the ATF on Feb-
ruary 28. . L
"o ATF commanders also failed to adequately
train the agents involved in the raid or to fully
inform the Texas National Guard of the in-
tended role that its personnel would play in

the raid. . .
e ATF commanders failed to reduce the raid

nal_guidelines. Had this been done, and the

‘wiitten plan. circulated to those involved in-
the raid, the errors in the raid planning might
have been brought to light and corrected.

s ‘The activation .of . the ATF National Com-
-~ 'mand Center occurred only because it was re-
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fact that senior Clinton administration officials ap

because it was to have any meaningful role in  proved their rehiring indicates a lack of sound
the implementation of the raid plan. Had the ' judgment on their part. It also further begs the
" senior ATF officials written the National Re- question as to whether there are facts not dis-
*'.."-"'sponse Plan in such as way as to ensure that  closed to the subcommittees that led administra-
i "_,_comé‘nand cief'inter %erso;m"}' t;é’u’ld' beé” brief'e:ll :. tion officials to agree to rehire these men.
. ;on the Significant detai s -of the operation and - -~ 7 o o -y AR
. ‘would have the clear guthority to question on-- _— A ;}Eggmxmf\ﬂom
o 8 ene commanders, the raid might have been" . - Because the largest single cause of the ATF raid
- called off by command center officials-asking - - disaster .was the failure of ATF's senior field com-
-about the report ' made by Rodriguez;z: == 727« manders. to recognize or.act.upon the undercover
- “ 4. The ATF agents executing the raid were.— agent’s information that the Davidians knew the
‘not required to knock and announce their in- : ATF raid was -underway, - there is no overriding
- “tention to serve the arrest and search war--_- recommendation. which, if implemented, would
‘pants. Given that the arrest and search warrants. prevent similar tragedies from occurring in the fu-
were based, in part, on the evidence that the ture. The subcommittees believe, however, that’
‘Davidians were in possession of illegal automatic = had more experienced ATF agents been involved in
weapons, the subcommittees believe it was reason- the planning of this raid the many deficiencies in
the raid plan itself would have been avoided. Most

- qu.iréd by the National Response Plan, and not

able for the ATF to have presumed that the

e Davidians might fire on them had they announced  importantly, the subcommittees believe that had
s e their intent to serve the warrants in advance. Ac-  more experienced commanders been assigned to
’ _ this operation, the information that the Davidians

cordingly, the subcommittees conclude that the
ATF was not required to knock’ and announce knew that the raid was impending would not have
their intention to serve either the arrest warrant been ignored but, rather, understood for what it
_or the search warrant because to do so would have  was and acted upon accordingly. There are, how-
measurably increased the risk to the ATF agents -ever; ‘a ‘number "of steps that shoyld be taken to
... involved. . . o : “correct other problems associated with the failed
.25, The evidence suggests that.the Davidians:" raid_and which, taken:together, might help pre-
, fired the first shots on February 28, 1993. The -~ vent similar failuresiin the future. .- .
ciix gubcommittees believe . that -the question:.of who: = 1. Congress should conduct further over-
- fired the’ first hot ‘on”February 28 cannot deci-" - sight-of -the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and
-'sively. be resolved given the limited testimony pre<-'* Firearms, the oversight of the agency pro-
sented to the subcommittees. It appears more like- .vided by the Treasury Department, and
ly, however, that the Davidians fired first as the = whether jurisdiction over the agency should
ATF agents began to enter the residence. ~ be transferred to the Department of Justice.
6. The evidence presented to the gub-~ Congress should consider whether the lack of
committees generally supports the conclu- Treasury Department oversight of ATF activities
sion that no shots were fired from the heli- in connection with the investigation of the
. copters at the Branch Davidian residence. __Davidians, and the failures by ATF leadership
- The subcommittees believe, however, that there is _ during that investigation, indicate that jurisdiction
insufficient evidence to determine with tertainty ~ over the ATF should be transferred to the Depart-
‘as to who fired the shots that made the bullet ment of Justice.
‘holes in the roof of the Davidian residence. 2. The ATF should revise its National Re-
97, After the raid failed, Clinton administra-- sponse Plan to ensure that its best qualified
. tion officials inaccurately. stated that the agents are placed in command and control
"¢ ATF raid commanders had been . given ex- positions in all operations. As discussed above,
= 7 7. plicit orders to not proceed with-the:raid-if- the ATF's National Response Plan in effect in 1993
. . . _the secrecy of the raid was _compromised, led to the placement of Chojnacki as incident com-
e = After the raid failed, Assistant Treasury Secretary . mander and Sarabyn as technical commander for
o Ronald Noble attempted to lay the blame entirely ~ the raid, when  more experienced ATF personnel
w-#L  onthe ATF despite the fact that Treasury officials, were available. The subcommittees recommend
; including Noble, failed to properly supervise ATF that the National Response Plan be revised to pro-
activities leading to the raid. Moreover, Treasury vide that incident commanders for significant oper-
officials, having approved the raid, failed to clearly  ations be selected by ATF headquarters personnel
and concisely communicate the conditions under _ from among the most experienced agents in the
T . ATF, rather than based upon any consideration of
the-agent-who- may-have- administrative respon-
- ibi“&-‘f?&f’.i’iﬁ?éﬁﬁ,ééi‘ig'i‘ﬁ;ipﬁc area. Likewise, the
'subcommittees recommen -that other senior posi-
‘tions in “significant < operations, such as tacti

A

e which the ATF.was to abort the raid- R el
= .8. The :subcommittees find no justification:
: for t.he-::rehiring:;egf-z;(;hojpaclﬁ;nnd,. Sarabyn.
- Given that the largest portion of blame for the fail-

* are of the raid against the Davidians must be born ™ '
_ by Chojnacki and Sarabyn, the subc mmittees find - commander, also be selected by ATF headquarters
no justification for their rehiring by the ATF. The - * personnel from ATF agents most experienced in
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these areas, regardless of geographical assign-

ment.
8. Senior officials at ATF headquarters

should assert greater command and control

oversight of every significant operation. While the

: the implementation of the operation until after it
. -went awry, -0 o '

. genior officials be directly involved in the planning
of all significant operations and personally approve
each operation in advance of its implementation.
Additionally, the subcommittees recommend that
the National Command Center be activated well
before the commencement of an operation, that it
. be staffed with persons experienced in tactical op-
.erations  and knowledgeable of the operation in

..-thority to suspend.the operation or revise the op
. ation plan. as'the situation develops, /- .=

" vestigation of the Branch Davidians on iinfounded
allegations that the Davidians were manufacturing

- jllegal drugs, and as a result improperly obtained
military support at no cost, the subcommittees rec-
ommend that Congress restrict the jurisdiction of

the ATF to investigate cases involving illegal

- drugs unless ‘such" investigations are conducted

"7 as the lead agency. . . :
V. MILITARY INVOLVEMENT IN THE GOVERNMENT
o OPERATIONS AT WACO o '

0 Us. military involvement is one of the least ex- .

plored and most misunderstood elements of _the
--events that took place near Waco, TX in 1993. The
. -_.Treasury Department Report dedicated only 3¥2 of
. . 220 pages to explaining the military’s involvement,
and the Department of Defense and National
Guard Bureau have only recently taken an inter-
est in addressing some of the military issues that

Waco raised. ’

+*-Historically ‘in"Amer . _
eral principle that the military should not be in:
‘volved in civilian law e_j;f_‘orcemgnti., ’_ng%rés's‘-codi

. i the Posgé Comit:

fied this principle by

... - over significant operations. Just as .the Na- ..
- tional. Response: Plan should be revised .to allow .
greater. control by ATF headquarters, - the sub--

committees recommend that ATF's most senior of- -

" ficials be personally involved in the planning and ..
_in the laws.have occurred and what effects those

.-changes have had on the use of the military in ci-

“ATF did-activate its National Command Center in ....
vilian law. enforcement.}?® Additionally, the sub-

- Washington just,prior to the commencement of the .
- -ATF raid against the Davidians, ‘command center. .. committees have addressed the common practice of
personnel played no actual role in the planning or.-

question, and that these persons be given the au-

e The ATF should be “constrained from™ "
- independently ... investigating . drug-related’
" crimes. Given: that the ATF based part of its in- "~

jointly with the Drug Enforcement Administration

A. THE EXPANSION OF MILITARY ASSISTANCE TO LAW

Am;nca. ‘theé"has iiee'r.ijﬁ_'..zen-w

. :&mmm.u-:g-umuqumm.au-
C Carta, 1215
;:»%’&mmmdﬁm&awa 8.

Act127 in 1875, The subcommittees have found

that subsequent congressional actions and legal
cases ‘have eroded the Posse Comitatus Act to-an

alarming degree and blurred its legal restrictions.

- In-determining whether the military assistance

provided at Waco was illegal, the subcommittees

~: reviewed-the current status of the Posse Comita-
_tus Act and other laws governing the use of the

military. in_civilian law enforcement, why changes

Governors using National Guard (NG) personnel
across State lines. : ‘

The subcommittess recommend that ATF's most 1. The Posse Comitatus Act

a. Overview of the law

The Posse Comitatus Act was enacted in the
United Stated in 1878 in response to the improper
use of military troops in the South during the
post-Civil War Reconstruction period.12® The Posse
Comitatus Act provides: o

" Whoever, except in cases and under cir-

“curhstances expressly authorized by the -
- Constitution or Act of Congress, willfully
itiyges -any ‘part-of the Army or the Air
~_Force as a posse comitatus or otherwise to

"execute the laws shall be fined not more
- than $10,000 or imprisoned not more than -
© 2 years, or both.130

However, as early as the Magna Carta, prohibi-
tions against the use of the military in civilian af-
fairs were being established.?3t These prohibitions
are based on the principle that the military should
never be employed against the citizenry of the Na-

‘tion it supports and is buttressed by the clear sep-

aration, in this_country, between civilian authority

" and military support for that authority. The clear

separation between civilian and military authority

_is embodied in the Declaration of Independence 132

and the U.S. Constitution.!33

: W38, Const. Amend. II, lIL
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Nevertheless, no one has ever been prosecuted

rt to a creeping acceptance of military . involve-

pa
ement actions, the Posse Com-

.. ment in law enforc
. - itatus Act has been
>+ - the criminal cases ari
© - uprising at Wounde
ment -apparently  rel
.. " without fear of recourse.33?... ... = % T
.- Specifically, at :Wounded . Knee, the ‘Nebraska
- - National Guard.and U.S.- Air Force personnel con-
. - _ducted  aerial reconnaissance ‘Pht)tograp:a{j_
.-.-gite,-while. the_ South -Dakota National’
" “maintained - military_vehicles. in_the area of the
giege.13® Two regular '
sonnel)

fense Departme

sing from the 1973 Indian

nt “observers”; however, these mili-
tary personnel also provided “advice, urging and
counsel . . . to Department of Justice personnel on
the subjects 01f “t’legotiations, logistics and rules of
t.. .
Four criminal cases resulted from the Wounded
_ Knee incident. Each raised similar challenges to
the military’s involvement.}4! The diverse rulings
. . on these challenges raised questions about_the le:
 pgality of much of the military assistance being
.+_broadly, and regularly provided to law enforcement
Y gpencies. The courts in United States v. Banks and
. ... United- States v. Jaramillo ‘found certain military
2" activities to be in violation of the Posse Comitatus
.. " Act, while the court in United States v. Red Feath-
- er found the -military involve : n
Knee permissible.142 The Red Feather court deter-
" mined, that as long as military assistance was pas-

134 Meeks, supro note 129, at 128,

wed
. 1]a the 1973 Wounded Knee uprising, & dissident Indian group fore-
~ fbly took control of
tion, SD. This group: entered a US. Post Office by force, held hostages
tefused (o allow Pederal investigntors into the area. In support of
ederal law enforcement agents, military perscand provided an array of
st closely bling the military sssistance provided to Fed-
law enforcement agents during the Waco incident.
. N.Smd»a.ﬂc'Dmng’TMU.S.Himaqancha'ond
. ity, 34 AF.L. Rev, 1,109 (1081} - :
Tl As at Wounded Knee, aeriz] reconnaissance
L gn‘nintmﬂihry vehicles were also conducted by military perscanel at
oo 130These two scldiers at Wounded Knee were oa active duty, i.e. full.
duty in the active military sarvice of the Unitéd States. See 10
US.LC. §101 (dX1), codified as amended by Pub. L. 102—484. T
- MM, supro pots 129, at 121 {ronically, approxima!

;78

8

3

§
i

b

mvﬁtdﬁndhjdtbe ¢

HRT commander. |
- "~ ek United States-v.-Jaramillo, 380 F. Supp. 1375 (D.Neb. 1974), ap-

" "Peal dimaiiaded, 510 F.24 808 (8th Cir. 1975% United Stales v. Banks, 383

16 (8.
1976), affd sub nowi, United Staies v. Catper, 541 F.2d 1275 (8th Cis
076), cirt; denled; 430 UB G0 (19T, & =i o s
076}, it & 0 B O T e

héo-the civilians are :
s - compaleory” sspect of- the military involvement, v.
- ' T MeArthar, 419 P Sapp. at 194, P

for violating the Posse Comitatus Act.134 Due in’

invoked- very rarely.13% Until

d Knee,138 civilian law énforce- -
ied upon. mliary support

of ‘the
Guard

‘Army colonels (Title 10 per-’
139 were present at Wounded Knee as De-

volvement : at. ' Wounded.

the Wounded Knee Village on Pine Ridge Reserva. .

pry and maln.
tely 10 sctive

t at Weco a0 “observers® during

" '¥ Sapp. 368 (D.S.D-1974),. United States v. Red Feather, 392°F Supp. .
1975Y; United States-v. MeArthur, 419 FSapp. 188 (DND. ...

sive or indirect, such assistance did not violate the
Posse Comitatus Act.143
In order to resolve questions raised by the
Wounded Knee cases, and at the urging of the De-
fense Department and Justice Department, Con-
‘gress adopted the above distinctions set forth by
_ the Red Feather court 144 and; in 1981, enacted a
-~ number of general exceptions to the Posse Comita-
" “tus Act.145 In general, the 1981 exceptions author-
" jzed the military to make available to civilian law
“enforcement “agencies information collected during
“military operations, training and advice, the use of
_ - military equipment. and facilities, and the use of
...some Defense Department ‘personnel.14¢ However,
"direct participation in law enforcement activities
like search, seizure and arrest was prohibited.14?
b. The warondrugs
By the mid-1980’s, there was little question that
the Nation was struggling with a major increase in
illegal drug importation and use, and Congress
summoned a massive increase of resources to
confront this modern scourge. The fiscal year 1989
Department of Defense Authorization Act signifi-
:-- cantly -expanded the role of the National Guard in
support of law enforcement agencies.148 The fol-
. lowing year, the role of the military was expanded
-~ further in the fiscal year-1990 Department of De-
fense. Authorization Act which “directed the U.S.

: - Armed Forces, to'the maximurn extent possible, to

conduct - military training in- drug interdiction
o areas.. 149.:- .- - -

After Congress and the courts expanded permis-
_sible military assistance to civilian law enforce-
ment and the Defense Department assumed the
lead in the war on drugs, military assistance to
~ law enforcement greatly increased. This increased
" use of military personnel is most noticeable with
the National Guard because of fewer legal restric-

““tionsonitsuse.r 7. 7
¢. The National Guard and the Posse Com-
- itatus Act under current law

~ The National Guard, for reasons that are at.
" least partially historical, is not subject to the same
" Jegal restrictions placed on dctive duty and reserve
military personnel with regard to involvement in

143Sanches, suprs note 137, )

Me]d. at 7 (citing to 10 US.C. §371-375, as subsequently amended

by Pub. L. No. 1004586, 102 Stat. 117 (1968)).
us i RmrehSﬂviea.wpmmﬂ.ﬁ.Saane
fense Department Autharization Act of 1982 §908, Pub. L. No. 97-86,
96 Stat. 1114, as amended by National Defense Authorization Act Fiseal
Year 1969 §1004, Pub. L. No. 100456, 102 Stat. 2043 (codified as
. _smended at 10 US.C. §377)
::m us.cC., 18,7

Id
; WAITF-8 Operational Support

- port Planning_ Gulde (citing Pub. L. 100-
- 458, 102 Stat. 1218, 2042, codified at. 10. U.S.C. §124 (See Documents
orodoced 1o the subcommittees by the Department of the Treasary
86;. 706788, at Appendix [hereinalter ury Documentsl. The

108786;.7T06788, at Appendix (hereingher Treas
:_:zludn:b published scparately.) See. aleo 32 US.C. §112 for the Na- .

" ‘Glﬂd.:_ T = S —ee
... MSJTF-8 Operational Support Planning Guide, Treasury Documents
708786, TOB788. See also 10 US.C. §371(0d) . ‘
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o The third National ‘Guard status is called “Title”
7 77710" or “federal active duty” status. Title 10 status (3) is for counterdrug operations.158

civilian law enforcement.!5® Having evolved from
the State militia concept, the National Guard
holds the unique position as both a State and a

. national military force. Thus, & National Guard - -
-~ 'member can wear a U.S. Army or Air Force uni-
" form, fly in_a military aircraft,.receive Federal
_ .. military pay.and allowances, -be- covered by the.:
" . Federal Torts Claims Act and .Federal military- -
““medical care. Yet, he or she can perform this mili: -
. tary service -not only as a_ member.of the -U.S.
- Armed Forces; but-as a member of the State mili-
.- _tia, having a Governor for a8 Commander-in-Chief -
...+ _.rather than the President of the United States. . "=~
. .-.2" The ability-of the National Guard to perform ..
" military service in this capacity exists because the

National Guard has three different “statuses”
under the law. The first two are a Title 32 status
(also called “state active duty” status) and a “pure
state” status. Under either a Title 32 or “pure
state” status, National Guard troops are under the
command and control of the Governor of their
State and the Posse Comitatus Act does not
apply.16! However under current law, while the
National Guard is in.a Title 32 status and under
the command and control of the Governor, it is

still funded with Federal funds.152 An example of
‘>the ‘National Guard being in a Title. 32 statug ig™ ~assl (1) 2 1O
* when' National Guard .personnel- are. conducting~ -Military training; 154 (2) results in a benefit to the
o .s .. 2 _unit providing the support “that is substantially

océcurs when Congress or the President takes af-

_ . firmative action to “federalize” a National Guard
‘unit as in the case of a natural disaster or civilian

disturbance. Only in a federalized status are Na-

tional Guard troops under command and control of

the President of the United States. Under this sta-
tus, the Posse Comitatus Act applies. e

-Aside from the Title 10 status and Wounded N

Knee cases; the ‘Posse Comitatus Act has been

. widely interpreted as not applying to the National
' Guard. Thus under current law, the leading inter-
" pretation of the Posse Comitatus Act is that unless
~ - - otherwise prohibited by policy directive, regulation -
~.. -~ -—=-"--or State law, the National Guard can-participate -

_actively in civilian law enforcement. The National

-+ Guard, however, does implement similar proscrip-

BoRjch, The National Guard, Drug Interdiction and Counterdrug Ac.

tivities, and Posse Comitatus: The Meaning and Implications of “in Fed-
eral Service,” 35 Army Law. 1 (1994). Active and Rescrve military per.
sonnel are both subject to the proscriptions found in the Prsse Comita-
tus Act, while the Posse Comitatus Act oaly applies to National Guard
pervonnel when they have been called "into federal service.”

77 .. Wi During the Waco incident, the National Guard was operating dnder ' - Rl Card Couterireg Cososinators Handbool

, the, National- Ouard: perscnnel ‘based upon their-statua. 1o daramillo
the court did not indicate whéther o nt the National Guard had been
‘ofederalized.* Similarly; the Red Peather court decided the-issue of im

“or ive,” not on the legal statas of the National Guard aits.

- S.-3]g:p pike’State status, no Federsl fundingoccurs. . = . . ... ¢

“either within -a statutory exception or expressly
- “authorized by the U.S. Constitution.

“: Many of the statutory exceptions to the Posse
‘Comitatus Act have been enacted in the last 15

- proper-military sasistance based oo whether the assistance was “active”

tions as the Posse Comitatus Act by regulation °

even while in a Title 32 status, 183

d. Active duty personnel & the Posse Comita-
""" tus Act under current low .
Unlike the National Guard, active duty military
-personnel clearly fall-within the proscriptions of

vide to civilian-law enforcement personnel must be

years and evolved from a desire to support
counterdrug efforts. Title 10 U.S. Code, Section
371 et. seq. outlines- the types of routine law en-
forcement assistance that active duty military per-
sonnel may provide. Such assistance, includes
equipment, training and advice.-

One of the most important issues for a civilian
law enforcement agency in deciding whether to
seek and accept military assistance, is whether the
agency must reimburse the military for the assist-
ance provided. Generally, a civilian law enforce-
ment agency must reimburse the military for the
cost of assistance, except under three cir-

cumstances. Reimbursement may be waived if the .

.assistaneei (1)'is provided in the normal course of

equivalent ‘to that which would otherwise be ob-
tained from military operations or training;” 5% or

The counterdrug statutory waiver has come to
mean in practice that before a waiver of reim-
bursement can occur under the counterdrug oper-
ation exception, the civilian law enforcement agen-
cy. must demonstrate the existence of a sufficient

“drug’ nexus” in the investigation.!s” Although .
““there is no defined standard for what constitutes

a.*drug nexus,” it is essentially a quantum of cred-
ible evidence that links an otherwise non-drug in-
vestigation with the existence, or well-founded be-

" lief of the existence, of significant illegal drug

crimes. A ‘
" This waiver for -counterdrug operations devel-
oped when-Congress created a specialized subset

. of military assistance for counterdrug operations
- in 1990.158 Military assistance for counterdrug op-

erations provided under this statutory authority is
on a non-reimbursable basis, which means civilian

183 Rich, supra note 150. The Nationa! Guard Baresu policy on anthor-
fzed support Lo law enforcement currently lists 16 approved counterdrug
missions. Any missi tside the parameters of the approved list most
veceive Department of Defense approval. See also NGB Reg. 500-2 and

. ;lxdo' US.C. §377. .

~ wapub. L No. 102-190 §1085, 105 Stat 1484 (1891). See olso Pub.
L "No. 101-510 § 1004, 104-Stat.:1629 (1990) and Pub. 1. No. 101-189
§ 1212, 103 Stat. 1667 (1989) s

;- 1870ffice of the Department of Defense coordinator for Druog Enforce-
mént Policy and Support Memorandum, Subject: Priorities, Policies, and

= Procedires for DoD CD Support to Domestic Law Enfarcement Agencies,

26 Jan. 95, Defense Documents 109-116, at (11,
Ly} :
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~swirof: military. sup

_....-gradually -

.. . clearly

.. used solely.

. .- more effective support

.7 .. using..

ent agencies do not have to reimburse

. the military for the assistance, Instead, Congress
... provides a separate fund to_the military for this
type of_gssistance.,,que,yer,f_diese funds must be
for military assistance to civilian law

enforcement agencies. for ‘counterdrug’ operations.

law enforcem

to ATE »

"ATF. and .even the FB
these counterdrug funds. © = " o ol
¢ A further .formalization of the- ‘military’s " in-
.creased, support to the ‘war on drugs “inivolved the
‘creation of Joint Task Forces15° between civilian
law enforcem'ent-‘agendes and the ‘regular-
army. The Defense’ Department “ereated ~ these
- Joint Task Forces to increase the coordination be-
* tween the military and dvilian law enforcement
ncies and to increase the civilian agencies’ ac-
cessibility to regular army assets for counterdrug
operations. For the Southwest border region where
the ATF investigation of the Davidians took place,
Joint Task Force-Six (JTF-6)16° was responsible
~ for the operational support to ATF by active duty
military personnel. - : '
JTF-6's Operational Support Planning
explaining its support capabilities, states,
1. port capabilities is ever all-inclu-
= give.” Innovative approaches:
to
.. are constantly sought,. and legal -and policy bar-
- riers to the applicati n of military capabilities are
being,,_eliminat_ed.f‘ 161 This “quote from

ration Support

were funded through

the JTF-6 Ope

" “the Posse Comitatus Act proscriptions since the

1973 Wounded Knee

shadowed the potential for military involvement

that was realized eventually at the 1993 Waco
events. ’ ve hadite

There is a common practice among
National Guard personnel across State
.+ lines.162 States enter

" ment with one another

in
created Joint Tesk Force,

JTF—4 at the Key
mand CINC ﬂ}SCINCPAC) uz;l:‘liabed JTF-5 at the Alameda Naval Air

" Significant portions of military assistance provided

to providing new: and.
law enforcement agencies:

‘Planning - Guide:
and succinctly describes the weakening of -

cases. This observation fore- "

:° tional

. 2. Interstate use ofNatwnal Guard by Goverriors ™"~
the States of .
into memoranda of .agree- .
which provide for the mu- .
e, 3 e i o

Wu)&dm&nhmmhdkcm_,v

tual use of National Guard forces across State
lines. However, these agreements raise several
legal concerns, particularly when the National
Guard personnel are used to assist civilian law en-

~* forcement.

v ‘a th of memoranda
* of ‘agreement is far beyond the scope of the sub-
: committees’ ' the most signifi-
_cant legal issues arising from the use of memo-
. rarida of ‘agreement-will be highlighted. While the
' National ‘Guard has. attempted to address these
" legal _issues, the U efense = and the
.. States have failed to adequately address the poten-
" tial legal problems “Which “memoranda of agree-
ment raise. Two major. legal concerns are (1)
whether these memoranda of agreement, or other
gimilar agreements between gtates are either a
‘treaty, an alliance, or confederation in violation of
the U.S. Constitution, or at the very least a com-
pact réquiring congressional ratification; and (2)
whether these memoranda of agreement or similar
agreements attempt to supersede State constitu- -
tions and statutes without legal authority.
a.- States’ power -to enter memoranda of
. agreement ' ’
“Only the, Congress 1°. anc
. extent presently delégated by
" to -use. military:_force across State lines. Many
__argue that any. agreement between States to con-
- cert their military forces. for the use of force for
any purpose constitutes a treaty or an alliance.164
However, the U.S. Constitution specifically pro-
hibits States from entering into treaties in any in-
stance,165 and into alliances or confederations
without congressional consent.188 Applying such-
_an argument would mean that the use of the Na-
Guard for law enforcement purposes across
lines is strictly’ prohibited by the U.S. Con-
nal Guard Bureau takes the
terstate use of force is prohib-
n is advanced by the

163 and the President (to the
law) have the power

~State
stitution. The Natio
position that such in
‘jted, but the contrary opinio

the

B !“'rmemeAhanPwu,“,.upwﬂercumncm
Militia to execute the lawe of the Udou;lupptutmwletﬁm.and
mmm'uam_m.t.u.d.ls.
mu&&mmlnussmtmpv.ymmru
Commlssion; 434 US. 452 n.12 (1978) the distinctions between
uuﬁqmp&-ndmupwmb.'uﬁqummm’mdld-

California. And, CINC for Continental Defense

mmm-wmm-anrmmtu'&du.m mﬂ-dmumwwsmum@amumm
K L T croated in 1969 to serve as the planning snd coordinal gmm”&ﬁmmm by the Suumwﬂu:, ek
: »-;""m““‘”l e ifitary sssistance 0 counterdrag 0 guch as questions or boundary; interests in land sitoate in the territary
i-amdmtpf‘&w. o m?ﬁﬁﬂ:&w;:nm of each other; and other internal regulations for the putual comfort and
“asat sguodies withia ‘mtha B m“" deral, Sta 1t p‘.‘m“b Mll . convenience of States bordering each other.® 434 US. at 464 See olso
i s that o Operstls Al e e 3 UG 0 O e Nt ¢ oo B e bonad:
A ) . aries, “Nothing fn this title Nimits" the ight of a State o Terrilory . - «
. ;umo.eu_.w_c-zqmu dchwtaﬁnnwww
27 (e} withisi its border in-time of péiice; o prevents it from organizing and

- raintalning potice or constabalary.” - .
© 1SThe trea uﬁnmummymuumcmm

Guard pcmndmd ‘at Waco
Guard in Texae.

Ly
»i.mmgﬁmmummwlgmmus.cux

an2§2dl
s US.CA Const art. 1,§10, el L.
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Defense Department General Counsel and the
Army Staff Judge Advocate.1%7 '

The National Guard Bureau further argues, also
contrary to the Defense Department General
.Counsel and the Army Staff Judge Advocate, that
even if such agreements among States are not.

require the consent of Congress. If an agree: -

rent among States resultsin a.

.+ -..z-hance State power, then-it would constitute a com-:.
..~tional ‘Guard Bureau argues -that_these National -
.. Guard memoranda .of agreement enhance State

employed for force across State lines, and there--
fore, encroach on the President’s power to either
deny or command and control such interstate use.
Thus, the National Guard Bureau believes they re-
quire congressional ratification.17?
Currently, none of the memoranda of agreement
(or compacts) involving the use of National Guard
personnel across State lines for law enforcement.
purposes have been ratified by Congress. Although .
~ the Southern Governors’ Association recently
... amended its Southern Regional Emergency Man-

National Guard Bureau,:to preclude the useof
- ' «foree acroas State lines and seek: congressional ap--
© . - .-proval of the compact, most of-the interstate Na-
-~ = tional:Guard assistance to law. enforcement agen-.
cies is occurring under the guise of memoranda of
agreement, not congressionally approved compacts.
© ="~ Moreover, this issue expands beyond direct in-
volvement in law enforcement actions, such as
Waco, to the use of the National Guard for inter-
_ state- assistance in disaster 171 and emergency re- -
© =" lief, In fact, the issue has arisen with respect-to-
" <7 the proposed use of non-Georgia National Guard
units to assist the Georgia National Guard during

. the 1996 Summer Olympics, in Atlanta, GA.

“Cross Border wse of
1 lssues and Need

o v
- for Congressional Ratification of Interstate Agreements® (Received by

) ?U&letml.ilo,d.a.'ﬂdanwhbdmnma
ars subject to strictures of this clavse; application of this clause is lim-
fted to agreements that are directed to the formation of any combination
the political power in the étites and which may en-
on or interfere with the just supremacy of the United States.®
. Multistate Tax Commission, 434 US. 452 n.43 (1978)
1, §10, cl. 3) See also, Virginia v. Tennessee, 148

a
m92Apoellants further urge that the pertinent inquiry is one of poten-
rather than actual, impact on . We agree.® US.

: ":'Nlﬁoanl Guard Dnn l.cpl Hem'nnd.um,

National Cuard Bureau. However, the posi-..
t and the Army SJA is that these agree-

the current position of the
Conatitation only if they acto-

treaties, they are at the very least compacts which

tential encroach-. " -
ment on Federal authority or a tendency to en- -
- pact-requiring congressional consent.2®® The Na-..

o power by allowing Governors to command militia- -

i:.7 ;- "ggement ‘Assistance Compact ‘at the.advice of the--

federal supremacy.
v. Multistaze Tax Commission, 434 US. 452, 472 (1976). This
>~ Guard personnel ri

b. Memoranda of agreement may attempt to
supersede State law without legal au-
thority .
. During the ATF investigation of the Branch
Davidians, National Guard assistance to ATF
. came not only from the Texas National Guard, but
from the Alabama National Guard.17? At the be-
hest of - the- ATF, the' Adjutant General of the
. Texas National Guard requested and received sup-
.port-from the Alabama: National Guard to take
. aerial photographs. Those aerial photographs were
- ‘taken .on January 14, 1993. This assistance was
. authorized by a “memorandum of agreement” be-
_tween the Adjutant Generals of the Texas and Ala-
bama National Guards which simply provided for
the use of the Alabama National Guard at the re-
quest of the Texas Adjutant General. However, a
review of the State laws of both Texas and Ala-
bama raises legal concerns with the legal author-
ity for conducting this interstate National Guard
operation.

Texas law requires that, “{a] military force from
another state, territory, or district, except a force
that is part of the United States armed forces,

“may not enter the state without the permission of
‘the governor.”17 Yet, National Guard personnel
~ who were_involved in"post-raid National in-
: yestigations of the Waco incident have stated that
" Governors Richards did not approve the use of the
“‘Alabama National Guard. Military documents in-
* dicate that Governor Richards was unaware of the
- extent of even the Texas National Guard’s involve-
ment until after the failed raid occurred. '

An examination of Alabama law indicates that
the Alabama National Guard had no authority to
conduct military operations outside Alabama be-
cause the Governor's authority over the Alabama

_ National Guard .appears only to extend to the
. State’s boundaries.}™ Thus, it appears that the
" Alabama National Guard entered and conducted
military operations in Texas without the proper
authority to do so, '
~"If the Alabama Governor's command and control
authority ended at the Alabama State line and
_ Gov. Richards did not approve the Alabama Na-
" tional Guard’s entrance into the State of Texas,
then several questions are raised: Which governor
had command and control of the Alabama National
Guard unit? Who (Texas, Alabama or the Federal
Government) would have been liable for claims of
injury and property damage had any occurred? If
the Alabama unit is considered to be operating
outside its scope of employment, would its person-
nel lose Federal Torts Claims Act’s protection
"..against personal liability?And, would the National
1-Fisk losing their military health

of Texss National Guard Counterdrog Suppart

=~ 11 After Action Report
tn Waco, TX sd (April 29, 1993). [Se¢ Documenta produced to the sob-
:wna_ﬂt:-”.“.liwwwmmh).m»
P Ter Code Ann. Fits 4, 1431.001, " ' :
1™ Alg. Code §31-2-7, -
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., going to_engage in
' ‘Guard personnel. - . .

""" provided through
counterdrug units based on an alleged drug nexus.

- ¥BI and ATF also

= W'det Policy udm

. care and other military benefits in the event of an

accident?
Memoranda of agreement currently used fail to
address the intricacies, ‘which State laws present

~_and they do not appear to have legal authority to-
.. .supersede State. constitutions st
_cause State laws differ, these questions must be
- "addressed ‘on & case by case basis’ if States are’
the interstate use of National- -lations of U.S: drug laws, i.e.; have a “drug nexus.”
' T - Having initiated 232 Operation

and statutes. Be-

THE MILITARY ASSISTANCE ACTUALLY PROVIDED
The pre-raid military ‘assistance in Waco was
active duty and National ‘Guard

Much of the post-raid military assistance to the
came from counterdrug units
and funds. Central to understanding how the mili-
tary became involved in the Waco matter is an un-
derstanding of how ATF's initial request for mili-
tary assistance, based on alleged drug involve-
ment, progressed. . _ ' S e
1. Overview o :
: =gz The process for requesting military assist-
-+ ance along the ‘southwest™borders:. =z

7 Military support to couriterdrug operations ‘along
" the Southwest border of the United States is de- -

. __signed “to assist law enforcement agencies in’ their -

mission to detect, deter, disrupt, and dismantle il-

legal drug trafficking organizations.” 175 Thus,

military support acts as a “force multiplier,” allow-

ing law enforcement agencies to focus on “interdic-

tion seizure actions.” 176
When a drug law enforcement agency 177 re:

_quests_counterdrug military assistance along the

Southwest border, that request is received and re-

viewed by Operation Alliance,
clearinghouse.17® The request
with support organizations such as JTF-6179 , the

which acts as the

" 'North American Aerospace Defense Command
' (NORAD),1®® the Regional
= - fice18! and the pertinent
.. ational support is provided as a joint_ effort by

Logistics Support of-
National Guard. Oper-
T7 JTF-8 Operational Support Planaing Guide, Treasary Docoments

T08790. : .
l“Amhvnfmtwhnhvdmtngmqmt
hnjuri-didonanrdruchn ATF was authorized o investigate nar-
damvhvaMMmumdm&hb.

T lns“mu’lyso.d ying text. SR, LTl
- gtibictare {0 1989, ~ <o emmees il _:aanumnd.;? and
151The Regional Logistics Suppart Orgaoizations are ondef the direct

oo of- the Office. of the :Defunse ot Coordinator for _

e atmEAy oF AUGOROL, ToRaCcD AND b 10l Oy
" ARMS’ REQUEST :FOR: MILITARY ASSISTANCE AND

is then coordinated -

Special Forces Command, Close

-~ Combat (CQC) Truining (24 November 1MLNWOQCMQB
- haveé betn vaed interchangeably for 8 pumber of years. OQC is the

mwmnymm»me,tnmmmwmA

primery poiat of contact for Drog

2 +*~ drug law enforcement sgencied, ‘the Commander of
for equipment 6., non-operational ",

_6, NORAD and the National Guard.1¢2 Noa-
operational support which would include, but is
not limited to, equipment, jnstitutional training,
and use of facilities would be provided by the Re-

- gional Logistics_Suppo;t'Oﬁ'lce.‘

a3
- To receive assistance through Operation Alliance

--and from these organizations, the civilian law en-
forcement investigation ‘must- involve criminal vio-

Alliance investiga-
ugh™ fiscal -year 1989,1%¢ ATF was no
‘stranger to Operation Alliance's counterdrug mis-
sion and its drug nexus prerequisite. In fact, docu--
“ ments dated as far back March 15, 1990, des-
ignated ATF Special Agent Sarabyn, and ATF Spe-
cial Agent Pali, the ATF coordinator for Operation
Alliance during the Branch Davidian investigation,
‘as ATF coordinators for military assistance.185
b. Chronology of ATF’s request
The chronology of ATF's request for military as-
- sistance provides insight into how early ATF want-
ed military assistance, how the military and ATF
became concerned with the drug nexus issue, and
how the military’s concerns changed the scope of
.- military assistance provided.
As early as November 1992, ATF agents were
.. discussing the need for military support with
7 Col. Lon Walker, .the Defense Department rep-
. pesentative to ATF.1%8 In his “summary of
...events” 187 November entry, Lt Col. Walker spe-
“cifically states that,-at that time, he was not told
- of any drug connection.183. -

By December 1992 (almost 3 months before the
raid), ATF agents were requesting Close Quarters
Combat/Close Quarters Battle!® (CQB) training
by U.S. Army Special Forces soldiers for ATF
agents.19° A basic CQB course takes a minimum of

P .
w3 JTF-6 and NORAD employ active duty military personnel. The
7 State National Guard personnel are in & Title 32 status.
“ 183 JTF-8 Operationsa! Support Planning Guide, Documeats
T0S786,08789. - . . -
WHMWWSWMmWMw.M&m
and General Government Appropriations of the House Commiltee on Ap-
propriations, 101st Cong, 24 Sess. 638, 635 (1991) (statement of Ste-
phea E. Higgins, Director, Department of Treasury, Bureen of Alcobol,
Tobecco and Firearms). .
Bt dom from Sp "Agentsd&ehﬁ.TuﬁulOpclﬁm
. Coordinator to the ATF SAC’ in Dnm-.m-ndlamu

‘(March 15, 1890). Treasury Documents T006661.
ud&mwm.nmammmwn

s fd

wumwmmumww-mw
clude sdvanced mark hip, use pecial weapons, i
s«-,wm.u.asﬁum;uwzmwm

i

.US. Army
mili-

) mmhnh'mmsﬁmmkm.&mwwm

sost-Wico investi| a«-mdmmww
”:An.:'m--bewm the in] Operations Command and
':"'BMFMCMC’MJMMWU&MSM
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*“jtself, never refer to this request, - ...-

2 months and advanced CQB training takes a min-
imum of 6 months. Moreover, CQB is the type of
specialized training a terrorist or hostage rescue
team such as the FBI Hostage Rescue Team would

~ - use. CQB is also a perishable skill requiring fre---
~’quent/continuous training that ATF, as an agency,

" is not designed to maintain or utilize. Somewhat -

~ surprisingly, neither the documents from ‘the ~
Treasury.investigation,-nor the Treasury Report, .-

:" _ However, one military document. ﬁfﬁiéﬂga to’
" “the subcommittees. as part of their-document re- "
_quest . specifically - states. that no written docu-

" mentation.is available on this extraordinary re- - by &'

“quest by ATF for CQB training.1®! This is the case
despite ongoing discussions in 1992 and early 1993
within the senior ranks of the U.S. Army Special

~ Operations Command regarding the prudence of

" making SOT 192 /CQB training available to civilian

law enforcement and foreign military personnel.193

These discussions are significant because they

again foreshadow the potential use in divilian law

enforcement of highly specialized military training,
designed and intended for military operations,
'On December 4, 1992, several ATF Special

- " Agents, including the SAC’s of the Dallas and

Houston ATF offices, met at Houston’s ATF field

~ioffice, for the.first time to.discuss.the Waco inves-

" " tigation.1¢ In attendance were SAC" Phillip:J. -
..Chojnacki;; SAC-Ted -Royster; - Assistant . Special .

Agent: in, Charge James Cavanaugh;-” Resident

- Agent in Charge Earl K-Dunagan; Special Agents

*=*: -Aguilera, Lewis, Petrilli, Buford; K. Lattimer, Wil-

liams, Carter, and John Henry.195 Also present at
that meeting. was Lt. Col. Lon Walker, the Defense
Department representative to ATF. Lt. Col. Walk-
er's notes of the meeting reveal that he explained

6 by military mensage, dated 4 January 83 (within a very close proxim-

- ity to ATF's fequest for CQB), that the USASOC would provide CQB ..

. Special Operations Training CQB/SOT training to law enforcement
agencies. “It is anticipated that CQB/SOT training support requests may
be filled by the U.S. Army John F. Kennedy Special Warfare Center and

. School (USAJFKSWCS) or other units that include CQB/SOT as part of

. their METL." The memorandum goes oa to state that USASOC and

| UBASFC(A) have only sgreed to provide CQB/SOT instruction to the
© "U.S. Border Patrol Tactical Uait (BORTAC).
191=SOF Assistance to Federa] Law Enforcement {a Waco, Texas.” De-

. , fense Documeats D-1118A. =

to those present “that the military probably could
provide a great deal of support and {that he] sug-
gested things like aerial overflight thermal photog-
raphy.”196 Lt Col. Walker's notes also state that
he explained “that without a drug connection the
military ‘support ‘would be on a reimbursable
.-basis.”197 This reference to reimbursement is sig-

“-nificant because: it reveals that .military aid was,
-as of that date; understood to require reimburse-
. - ment by ATF unless a drug nexus could be identi-

. fied and articulated with sufficient specification to

-.warrant military aid on'a non-reimbursable basis.

" Lt. Col. Walker's December 4th entry is followed
handwritten note that states “Aguilera said

*: there was'no known drug nexus.” 198

" On December 11, 1992, Special Agent Jose G.
Viegra, the Resident in Charge (RAC) of the Aus-
tin, TX ATF Office, met with representatives for
the Texas Governor’s Office about the role of the

* military in any potential ATF action involving the
Davidians.}9® Representatives of the Texas Gov-
ernor’s Office present at the meeting were William
R. Enney, Texas State Interagency Coordinator
and his assistant Lieutenant Susan M. Justice, As.
sistant Interagency Coordinator of the National ..

--Guard Counterdrug Support Program.2%

This meeting was requested by ATF to discuss

- specifically what types of military assistance were

-available ‘ts the' ATF for its raid on the Branch
- Davidian residence®?! in Waco, TX. During the
~‘méeting, -Special Agent Viegra was told that mili-
' tary ‘assistance through Operation Alliance would
- not be available unless there was a "drug nexus.”
That meeting constituted the second time in 8
days that ATF agents inquiring about military as-
sistance were told of a drug nexus prerequisite. At
the December 11, 1992, meeting, Enney asked the
ATF agents to determine whether a drug nexus
- did in fact exist. - .
Three days- after their meeting with ATF, the
‘Texas counterdrug representatives received a fac-
simile of a letter dated December 14, 1992, on
“Houston SAC letterhead” from the RAC of the
Austin ATF office, Earl K Dunagan, requesting
military assistance from the Texas Counterdrug
Program.202 The military assistance requested

e T s ie £ Spesiil Operations Training: Although SOT is oot~ from the Texas National Guard was for aerial re-

an official military term for Special Operations Traiiiisig, i.€, it is an ac-
ronym for s course taught at the US. Army John F, Kennedy Special
Warfare Center and School (USAJFKSWCS), it will be used here to
identify Special Operations Training because that is how it is used by
the military documents referred to by the subcommitice investigatars.
See Headquarters, USASFC (A) Policy Letter on Close Quarters Combat
Training (24 Nov. 1993) (unnumbered) for discussion on proper usage of

SOT.

153 See memorandum of 3rd Special Forces Croup, Hesdquarter's
Memorandum on Special Operations Traising and Close Quarters Batd
(21 Sept. 1992) (unnumbered); See also memarandom of U.S. Army Spe-

: Tdnl,FmA Command _(Airborne). on .USASFC poticy (or- conducting. .

~- counterdrug operations in the contineatal United States (23 Feb. 1963) -

(Airbarne) Policy_Letter oo’ Close Quarters Combat Truining (24 Nov.
~'1993) (annumbered) - T o G oo m
i Lt Col: Lon- Wi 8

" ‘(annumbered) and -Headquarters -U.8. Anny Specia) Forces Command -

connaissance photography, interpretation and
evaluation of the photos, and transportation of

1oLt Col Lon Walker’s summary of eventa. Treasury Documents
T007884.

wrld,

l“" B '

190 Memorandum from Colleen Callahan and Robert Tevens to Geoll
Moulton and Lew Merletti, "Chronology and Witnesses Re: Mikitary Suap-
port of ATF® (July 14, 1983). Documents T004589.

. %0]d Mr, Enncy was designsted by Texas Governor Richards as the
:r:fl'mr’Squu representative for Defense Department coordination of the
Texas Nitionil Guard Cousiterdrug Support ) '
-301The Branch-Davidian residence’ was um:n“"mmnd' by ATF,
uring the inveatigation, and the media and other commentators sobse-
uently adopted this militaristic term for & fortified or highly secure

=198 Memorandum from Calleen Callahan and Robert Tevens to Geoff -.-: : - 33 Memorandum from-Colléen Callahan and Robert Tevens to GeofT
. Moulton and Lew Merletti, "Chronology and Wil Rez Military Sup- -- -Moulton and Lew Merletti, *Chiunology and Witnesses Re: Military 8
port of ATF® (Jaly 14, 1963). Treasury Docaments T004589. . = . port of ATF™ (July-14, 1993}, Tressury Docoments T004589, TO04550.
36
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ATF agents aboard the gircraft during the recon- their auto body shop, called the “Miag Bag.” This
naissance.20 Although the request did not men- overflight was conducted by the Texas National
- tion -su. drug violations (drug nexus), as Guard Counterdrug unit in 8 UC-26 counterdrug
.~ would be required to secure non-reimbursable as- - .. aircraft. Forward Looking Infrared (FLIR)2!2 vid-
o fsis"tanc‘e'-ér'military'assistance from a counterdrug eotape taken during the overflight indicated a “hot
-+~ unit; Lt 'Col. Pettit, the Texas Counterdrug Task .spot’ _inside the residence and three persons out-
- Force Commander, initialed his approval on the  side behind the residence” whom ATF designated
e pequest O LT T T e e ag“,"sentries."?‘?'l‘he Texas National Guard con-
o7 Lt Cel. Pettit told National Guard investigators __ dq‘c't;ed';_ﬁve,'mdi'é"_:reconnai_s_sancdsurvemance over-
-2 . - that he provided his- approval because the request "~ flights over the’ Branch ‘Davidian property from
" required .- another. person’s _approval as. well.205 ° February 3, 1993, to February 25, 1993. These
.. -However this decision, in itself, raises several un- " _overflights were conducted -to “search for armed
i .+ ~answered ‘questions. Did-Lt. Col. Pettit assume 8 guards and drug manufacturing facilities.” 314
S drug nexus existed or that one was not needed? ~ On the same day as the first National Guard
27 Did he believe that the request should be approved  overflight, January 6, 1993, Richard Garner, Chief
" despite the absence of legally required drug nexus?  of Special Operations Division of ATF, drafted an-
T Or did he believe that ATF would. reimburse the  other request on ATF Headquarters letterhead di-
National Guard? These questions repeat them- rectly to Colonel Judith Browning, Director of
vt selves throughout the approval process, and are Plans and Support, of the Office of the Department

raised here to illustrate the difficulties encoun- of Defense Coordinator for Drug Enforcement Pol-
tered in disentangling a past approval of military icy and Support.218 ATF requested the loan of var-

T aid involving a drug nexus. ,  jous office equipment, a refrigerator, cots and
: Two days after Lt. Col. Pettit’s approval, Special  sleeping bags to be made available on January 11,
- Agent Aguilera informed Lt. Col. Walker on De- 1993. The letter states that the ATF was inves-
~¢ember 16, 1992, that he received a facsimile from " tigating violations of “firearms and drug laws” and
e _Mark Breault in Australia suggesting the exist- requested the equipment as *part of Defense De-
; ~ L ence :pf_'_‘h'-‘_ihéﬂ\a‘;xhphet;amihe 1ab pt"",tl;g';Branch--~--~pgrtmem.- support. “for - counterdrug ‘effort.” Col.
~* Davidian residence.3°8 ‘Mr. Breault was a former +-: Browning -resporided. by. letter on January 15 ap-
.. Branch Davidian who left _ﬂxej’—"?"“ﬁ;gn bad terrns; - proving the suppo be provi i
- and . animosity toward - Logistics Support Office 2i6 jn El Paso, TX.21 The
... Koresh and several of the Davidians. "~ " . ~same questions asked of Lt Col. Pettit above must
The following day, Decembér 17, 1992, SAC - - be asked here of Col. Browning. Here, as with Lt.
Phillip Chojnacki held a meeting in his office with Col. Pettit, key documentation justifying the de--
Special Agent Ivan Kallister, Special Agent Davey ployment of non-reimbursable military aid on the
Aguilera, and Lt. Col. Walker regarding the Waco  basis of a proven or suspected drug nexus is miss-
investigation.297 According to ATF, Lt. Col. Walker  ing. Yet, Col. Browning approved the request and
told SAC Chojnacki during the meeting that the directed further ATF requests to be made directly
Defense Department could provide non-reimburs- to the Regional Logistics Support Office in Texas.
e able military support if there is a “suspicion of . Within a week after Col. Browning’s response,
C " drug activity.”32% Aguilera was subsequently in-. ~Garner sent a further request 0 Major Victor
el structed to “actively pursue information from his Bucowsky, the Officer-in-Charge of the Regional
i informants about a drug nexus.” 2% Additionally, Logistics Support Office requesting an MOUT 8
27277 ATF Intelligence = Reséarch Specialist Sandy  site for Special Response Team training, driver
- " Betterton -searched criminal records to determine . training and maintenance support for Bradley

if Branch Davidians had ugome” prior drug of-  ———— . .o :
- fenses.210 It later was determined that only one H2A ﬂ':&.m?nd -M-'b;n:-ﬁns System (T1S), is 8 type &
N Branch Davidian had a prior ‘narcotics convic- R crandum e e Ageat Rabert Teveos, “Chronclogy £0d
. - tion 311 - . - ) 'i!.:mlne:)liﬁhry,slappﬂto(AT (July 14, 1993). Tremsury Doco-
; ~ January 6, 1933 was the first National Guard - %mlwquxmm'z pyeRTS
overflight of' the Branch Davidian residence and 516 Tyeasary, Docaments 1 7004602. The proper procedure kx
. : qﬁmnahqﬁo&dhut@dcutnp

:ﬁ: Despi ;;udﬁbéz
”HumwﬁmAmum&uﬂhmﬂmpﬁcﬁmcﬂSwnumh te ATZ
Weahingtos, DC (October 19, 1995). - PR indicate their agents were
muﬁmuunuuuﬂm=ammmnq&un7umtuc«a - sware

i Withoased
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fighting vehicles, seven Bradley fighting vehicles,
and on-call support in the event a siege oc-
curred.31? This was the largest request for assist-
ance in Regional Logistics Support Office’s history

= *. port Office 'was unable to handle & law enforce-.
" ment request of such magnitude??%. = - o
- On February 2, 1993, Operation Alliance made a

.+ . .that Rapid Support Unit (RSU)223
assistance in actual planning and re-
hearsal of proposed “takedown” could vio- -
late posse comitatus law, expose RSU to
liability. [A qluestion also arises as to ap-

- propriateness of RSU giving non-
o : METL,22¢ je., SOT/CQB training to
REPER, -~ ATF28

However, there again is no written documentation’

-of ATF's request for this highly controversial train-

Ce

" nation on Army ranges and teachin
develop an operations order.2?® .

2. le..Pre-raid.]

The military assistance provided to ATF can be
separated into four areas: (1) surveillance over-
flights by counterdrug National Guard units in
January and February 1993; (2) training by Spe-
cial Forces soldiers assigned to JTF-6 for

215 Treasury Documents T004608 (dated January 22, 1963), T0046812.
. .Tmmymcumtmlnilldnpﬁawo(lbelwaaaptith
dated Janvary 21, 1993 and has handwritten notes along the ‘border,
. ppesr to indicate that JTF-6 was respoa-
aﬂe«hﬁommw,'ﬂqT-&mimmﬁﬁn’
Bndlg ing (T-32 spparently refers to Title 32). '
s um of inlerview from ial
e . the Waco Administrative Review 14, 1993} Treasury Doco-
ST ents 7006397, TOOS398, - oo
Lo "Kmnn&um&qn,CdlngnAhnlod Robert Tevens to Ceoll
port of ATF” (July 1 1983). Treasary Docaments TOOA539, TOO4550
P Sane”of the Weko incideat Phatip Lindley served as a Major

hmus.w.ﬂm.dmamcﬁm.bohnhmmu'm
testified before the subcommittees with the rank of the Lieutenant Colo-

uumn-mmmwmmmmw»

CTTUTRINT T border areas” Id. (emphasis _
- rameters that “the mistion must be related to the Special Operations

) od®Md -

tasks, £.5. what skills a'soldier has begn trained is aid capable of train

ance were restricted to their METL trai
. :P:mu.bqnnmt Documents D11

y'nﬁ:rmt agente.:

~ - -and eventually had to be supplied by Texas Na-
* tional Guard becaiise the Regional Logistics Sup- .

ing. | R -
i Within..days, the training mission by Special .
* Forces soldiers was revised .to include:only coordi- :..
ATF; how to..

military assistance -requested by

Agent Robert Tevens for

zy and Witnesses Re: Military Sup- - -

is added). The paper sistes onder Mission Pa-
::Mission Essential Task List (wartime tasks) and should b intel-prompl: -

S isicn Basential Task -List (METL) includes ‘sdldiers’ wartime
ing otbers in. Special Forces units who were assigned ‘io Operution Alli- ~

counterdrug missions in late February 1993; (3) di-
rect support by Texas National Guard counterdrug
personnel who conducted an aerial diversion the
day of the raid on February 28, 1993; and (4) post-
raid support to FBI and ATF, -

- Six surveillance overflights were conducted by

_counterdrug National Guard units, Aerial photog-
- raphy missions - by “the- Texas -National Guard
Y ruary 2, 1993, on A 8 _ began on January. 6, 1993.237 The January 6 mis-
* “tequest to the Commanding General of JTF-6 for . -sions and. subsequent missions on February 3, 18,
" the'use of Special Forces personnel assigned to his . ¢

-’ organization, 23! Lt. Col. Philip W. Lindley,2?? the . .
=:-"U.S. ‘Army Special Forces Command. Staff Judge . -

i " Advocate, was notified of this request and advised - Alabama National Guard:32® And, on February 6,

and 25, 1993, were taken by a Texas National
Guard Counterdrug UC-26 aircraft.32® On Janu-
ary:14, 1993, aerial photographs were taken by the

1993, the Texas National Guard provided infrared
video (FLIR) and aerial photography in a
Counterdrug UC-26 aircraft.230

ATF's request for training of ATF agents by Spe-
cial Forces soldiers went through several alter-
ations before the actual training took place. Al-
though ATF initially requested Bradley fighting
vehicles, SOT/CQB training, on-site medical evacu-
ation assistance and planning assistance, legal re-
strictions caused the ATF request to be scaled
down.23! A Special Forces Rapid Support Unit, as-
signed to Operation Alliance, trained ATF on 25-
27 February 1993, in company-level tactical C2,

“Medical Evacuation training, IV ABC's,2?2 and as-
sistance with Range and MOUT sites.233 According

to military documents and military witnesses who

‘appeared beforé the subcommittees, no non-Mis-

sion Essential Task List (wartime tasks) training,

ATF and assistance actually received *~ **~SOT/CQB, or direct involvement in actual plan-

ning occurred.234

For the February 28 raid, the Texas National
Guard supplied three helicopters and 10
counterdrug personnel. When ATF requested Na-
tional Guard assistance, their stated mission to
the National Guard was to use the helicopters as

-a command and control platform during the raid,

and to transport personnel and evidence after the
area’ was secured.235 Only when the National
Guard team arrived at Fort Hood for the pre-raid

" ‘training, less than 24 hours before the raid, did

ATF agents inform the National Guard personnel

. that the helicopters would be used as an aerial di-

version during the raid itself. ATF had even as-
signed one of the Nationa! Guard counterdrug sol-

““diers to hang from a monkey sling outside the heli-

231°30F Assistance to Federa! Law Wt {n Waco, Texas.® De-

fense Documents D-1116A.
"33 Medical techniques_for treating battlefield injuries including intre:

“venous injections of fluids, clearing-airways, controfling bleeding ‘3‘;

treating sbock. Sworn statement. of Maj. Petree. Defense Documents

VAL e e S
" 339307 Agsistance to Federa) Law Enforcement in Waco, Texas.” De-
mlﬂm“;!)‘"!w" e

= Presssry rveaiigition. iniarvicws of National Goard perscnodl
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423 The soldier was in that
pters took incoming
three helicopters sus-
none of the Na-
‘aboard were
ent is pro- -

m the rai
en . the helico
ugh all of the
tained damage from weapons fire,
.. tional Guard crews or ATF pgrsonﬁel
- . injiired, 338" Since guch direct” involvement |
" "hibited by National Guard Bireau regulations 339
- ‘and placed National Gua! personnel in imminent
= -danger, it is unclear why the’ National Guard con- - -
- ’gented to ATF's “last-minute” changes, = - <7
“The National Guard’s focal group. eview of the
__incident did not shed much light on the issue, The
~“summary of its ‘report, dated April 28,1993, and"
- the report itself “reveal only one major issue. The
jssue deals with the pre-raid threat assessment of
the Davidians provided by ATF to the Texas Na-
tional Guard as a ‘docile’ environment. A second
_jssue, which is not included in the written report
of the focal group but has been vocalized by Colo-
nel Spence, deals with the sus methamphet-
amine laboratory at the Branch Davidian resi-
dence. Colonel Spence contends that the drug issue
is not included in the focal group report due to the
potential media interest and any resulting Free-
dom of Information Act inquiries."30 "~ "
o .. d Without the alléged, drug nexus, the ATF
#elire -1 -most likely: would not have received the
ilitary . assistance as.was pro-

copter to fil
sition wh
fire.337 Altho

uld had to have paid for it.

However, this statement is misleading because it

fails to answer whether ATF would have received

the same training it requested from units other
than counterdrug units and for purposes other
" than counterdrug operations. Ce e
" . = What is clear is that the ATF would not have re-.

. ceived military assistance from the highly trained

Special Forces units in such a short time frame

= and through the streamlined approval process

.. “which it enjoyed. As stated above, the ATF origi-
-~ nally requested Close Quarters Combat training, a .

" “type of training -available only :from: specialized "
- -military units like Special Forces. ATF's request

- was also the largest law enforcement request for
‘military assistance in many of the counterdrug or- -
’ histories, such as the Regional Logis-
e. ATF further requested that its
g be conducted less than 30 days
after its request, while even the streamlined Oper-
ation Alliance process normally required 90 days.

. T —————— _— st
“ i oad 23 Treasury . Investigation™interviews, of National -Guard “persannel,
. : Treasury anqnﬂhfh»&'l& T CoEeT T R
274 |nterviews indicate that the helicopters were 350 feet from the -
~.:Branch when they were A :

‘h-nz Documents TO0537L
34 Memorandur of Interview from Special
Administrative Raview (March 16, 1996). Treasury

Ageit Tevens for e 9
Documents T008300.

39

- the Texas State Constitution

- ance ATF requésted and the

" gistance would not

" Assistant Secr

ing military assistance and National G

ugh Operation Alliance also al-

Requesting thro
lowed ATF to avoid an approval process wi
rsight.

greater potential of independent ove
2 The same conclusion can be reached for the Na-
'tional—Gﬁard"support.;*l{ad:there been no drug
nexus, there again would have been a different ap-
proval process. Without 'a drug nexus (ie., non-
counterdrug purpose),” ATFs- request for National
Guard assistance would only be permitted if both
authorized the Na-
tional Guard's involvement in the type of assist-
Governor was willing
funds for that purpose?¢! Na-
nnel have indicated that the as- .
have been provided under those
circumstances.24? This is supported by the fact
that the National Guard Bureau regulations pro-
hibit the type of direct involvement ATF received
from the National Guard counterdrug personnel,

to’ éipéhd"f State’
tional Guard perso

i.e., acting as a diversion during the raid.?43
Further, since the Texas National Guard depleted

ar 1993 counterdrug funds during its
ATF at Waco and had to request ad-
ditional funding during it assistance, it is do
that Governor Richards would have approved -
State funding of so expensive an operation.

2. Concerns of military legal advisors

etary of Defense Allen Holmes
and Maj..Gen. John M. Pickler both appeared be-
fore the subcommittees. They testified that the ap-
proval process” worked. as it was intended.?4 Yet,
documents show that this’ was so only because
Special Forces Command legal advisors at the U.S.
Special Forces Command Headquarters, who were
outside the normal approval process, but who had
learned of ATF's request for assistance from Spe- -
cial Forces soldiers at Operation Alliance, strongly
voiced objections. to the Special Forces training
mission of ATF as proposed by JTF-6. As a result
of these concerns reaching extremely senior levels
of command within the Department of Defense,
the training missions- were scaled back signifi-
cantly and potential violations of the law were
avoided. - - ,
- g. Involvement of Special Forces Command
... .. legal advisors :

As referred to earlier, a Rapid Support Unit
(RSU) from Third Company, Third Division, Spe-
cial Forces Group was deployed on a rota-
tion to JTF~6 for counterdrug missions. When the
original ATF request was assigned to this RSU
team, Maj. Ballard, the Special Operations Rep-

its fiscal ye
assistance to

wwww

PRS-

241 Memorandum fom Debra Diener,
M m‘mdeWmMuﬁﬁm&nm-np&
ing the statutory and regulatary criteria and for request-

uard assistance (Avgust 12,

' .
i m:l Guard
843 Mermorandum of lat ‘of Special Agent Tevens for the Waco
Administrstive Review (darch 16, 1995). Treasury Docaments TO08300;
t N Y

*~ Treasury Departmen &t 96;
944 Hearings l’lﬁlm“-
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resentative at JTF-6, telephoned Special Oper-
ation Command at Fort Bragg and expressed his
concern with the ATF training mission to Mr.
. _Crain, a civilian employee at Special Operations
~ Command.245 s i
. Upon hearin
Mr. Crain also became concern
.- notified Lt. Col.-Lindley.348 Lt. Col. Lindley subse-
quently spoke with Maj: :Petree, the Special Forces
- .Rapid ~Support _Unit- Commander,- who - also “ex:
. pressed similar concerns :about the scope of the
-mission 347, . oo : =

g the details of the original request,

Lt. Col-

areas of the support requested—the review and
scrub of the ATF operation plan, medical support
in close proximately to the scene, and assistance in

developing and constructing the rehearsal sites.248

Lt. Col. Lindley’s first concern was the review and
scrub which is an analysis of a mission that has
already been planned. The review and scrub of the
operation plan and the review of the discriminat-

ing fire plan would have been done by the Special
Forces unit assigned

- provided the military training to ATF.24 Lt. Col.
_ . Lindley was of the opinion that the actual plan-
~ the nixlgand

unit 'was niot authorized. to. offer_ex-

Special Forces _ X f
deconstructing a drug lab:25!

pert adviceon

use of military medical personnel. According -to

© " ATF's request, these military medical personnel .
“would be on-site and directly involved in potential

searches of individuals apprehended and in the
collection of evidence, resulting in Posse Comitatus

Act implications. This degree of direct involvement

. would also create liability issues associated with

. the treatment of the civilians.252 The medical per-
sonnel potentially would be treating ‘gunshot

- wounds of children, and military medical person-
__nel do not have the training or equipment to treat

. " such trauma wounds (gunshots) in small children.

" For example, some medical equipment, for children

- such as breathing tubes.require special sizes with
which these medical teams are not be equipped.?53
According to Lt. Col. Lindley, the JTF-6 in-

~ formed him that the law enforcement action was a
raid on a methamphetamine lab.25¢ Having been

involved in law enforcement actions involving
methamphetamine labs as a civilian, Lt. Col.

. meefd gt 35y, - - T T T T e
o e Memorandum for record of Lt. Col. Philip
s~ -4 -1993). Defense Documenta D-1168 at D-1169.

- myd atD-1n72, - - oo

Lindiey ‘(3 February

=

“the Scbemmittes -on: National *Seeurity, Intemational "Aflais,  a
. Crictinal Justice, in Washington, DC (Jaly 19, 1996). - =~ * 7"
354 Hearings Part | at 367,

ed-and immediately:

Lindléyhteistiﬁéd.‘before the subcommlt-
tees that he was principally concerned with three

to JTF—6, which ultimately

rehearsal of ‘the-take down was “active”.. .
" and therefore illegal.250 He also believed that the

" Lt:=Col."Lindley’s second concern dealt with_the -

* ““of Defense (Comptroller), and tbe

Lindley was aware of concerns with the physical

characteristics of methamphetamine production

and the dangers in the chemicals, as well as am- °

munition considerations given the explosive nature

of methamphetamine labs.35 Contamination of
soldiers’ clothing by chemicals used in the produc-
- -tion -of ‘methamphetamines would involve those
- soldiers: in the collection’ of physical evidence.2%8
" Aguin; such  direct involvement would violate the
~Posse Comitatus Act.~ = - .
i :Upon completing his discussions with the Spe-
_ . cial Operations personnel, Lt. Col. Lindley directly
"~ contacted JTF-6 personnel to express his concerns
~about the mission. When Lt. Col. Lindley informed

JTF-6 personnel that, from his initial analysis of

the information presented, the request was imper-
"~ missible as proposed, he received a hostile re-
sponse from Lt. Col. Rayburn, the JTF-6 Legal
Advisor.357 After his conversation with JTF-6 per-
sonnel, Lt. Col. Lindley began a memorandum for
record detailing the chronology of events and con-
versations as they took place.258 JTF-6, not Lt.
Col. Lindley, subsequently provided the legal re-
view of the request.

After - the requests for additional evidence of
methamphetamine production, the military assist-
ance allowed was drastically restricted.
3.. Evidence -indicating -problems in the approval
* pmesﬁ__, _. . P .
Cdntrary :to. assertions’ by Assistant Secretary
‘Holmés, Brig. Gen. Huffman, and Maj. Gen. Pick-
- .. Ter, the approval.process did not work as it was
supposed to.25® First, although concerns had been
raised that JTF-6 had been providing military as-
sistance to non-counterdrug activities, little docu-
mentation of ATF's requests for military assist-
ance exists. Second, while some senior military of-
ficers and DEA officials had opportunities to voice
. concerns about ATF’s alleged drug nexus, they
“_chose not to exercise those opportunities. Third,

because a few military officers identified major

legal problems with the training mission and alert-

ed senior military commanders, despite threats by
_other senior military officers, the mission was al-

tered to avoid violations of the law. Finally, after
--Waco hearings were scheduled, the Secretary of

Defense acknowledged problems with the military
_assistance process and created a working group to
~review the process.?8® - ... .

a. Concerns of cheating by JTF-6

Military documents indicate that a problem ex-
isted with JTF-6 providing military assistance to
law enforcement agencies in the absence of & drug

————
.. m8ld at 367-368.
mefd . ..

mo)d gt 385-388. ... - . .. —. S .
<= 0 Memorsndum of Military Suppart.to Civil Authorities by William
- Perry, Secretary. of Defense, to the Socretary of the Army, Chairman of
the Joint Chicfs, Under Secretary of Defense (Policy), Under Secretary
. Ceneral Counsel of the Department of

Defense (May 17, 1995).
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. nexus.26! These concerns apparently had reached 'tion, the verification of a drug nexus would not re-
quire military personnel to conduct surveillance of

the highest levels of the Department of Defense.??
When JTF-6 provides military assistance in  or otherwise investigate American citizens. Rather,
non-counterdrug related law enforcement actions, verification could be accomplished simply by estab-
it is referred to as scheating” because it allows the lishing a standard which requires sufficent docu-
law enforcement agency to obtain military assist- mentation by the law enforcement agency of the
ance without reimbursing the military. Moreover, existence of drug offenses, as oppos to mere
military assistance .provided under these cir-  speculation or suspicion. In addition, JTF-6's own -
cumstances is funded with money specifically ap- planning guide states that it “reviews and vali-
propriated for counterdrug activities.?®3 Further-  dates all requests for support” in conjunction with'
more, cheating allows JTF-6 to provide military Operation Alliance, the National Guard, and the
:;sistance :.o non-:;unteer(;irug activ;tiiels!; outside  Regional Logistics Office.?5®

e scope of its au orized purpose. terviews . . ‘
with Defense Department counterdrug personnel b. SP“,"“I Forces p ape r and AT,?’ response
revealed that self preservation in part fuels JTF- . Furthef'e\ndence suggesting a serious problem
6 efforts to secure healthy budget allocations.368 in the military’s approval of assistance to ATF in
Documents provided by the Treasury Department this case mvolyes ATF agents’ reactions to the Bu-
show that in the months following the tragic end ~ reausown claim that 3,“,‘39‘3’“?1‘“3““"9 lab ex-
of the Branch Davidian siege, JTF-6 and Oper- isted in the Branch Davidian residence.
ation Alliance were actively promoting their serv- The alleged presence of a methamphetamine lab
jces to ATF. This was occurring even as senior was the basis for which the Specm.l Forces assist-
military officials expressed concern that ATF mis-  ance provided t°.AT_F‘ After Special Forces legal
represented the required drug nexus in order to advisors concerns’ with the proposed training and
obtain military assistance.268 ATF's alleged drug nexus, Maj. Petree, the Com-

Assistant Secretary Holmes stated that JTF-6 mander of Special Forces Rapid_Support Unit
does not verify whether a “drug nexus” exists be, which was assigned to provide ATF support, or-
fore providing military assistance because it would dered two of his Special Forces medics to resear
potentially place the military in a capacity of con- and write a paper on methamphetamine labs for
ducting surveillance and investigations of Amer- ATF. These Special Forces medics, who are highly -
jcan ctizens, which is a violation of U.S. law.267 skilled military personnel with far more advanced
Secretary Holmes’ purported concern is not respon-  training than a typical divilian paramedic, spent 3
sive to the issue. Contrary to Mr. Holmes' asser- to 4 days researching and writing a memorandum

on methamphetamine labs for ATF.2%®

S
::D-ﬂ" n': ::' :ﬁm Smllm?o: :own-ndl po- There is no doubt that a central purpose of the
[ a a on s
S afrming rogureio honclon arranguneats, and ta reinlore L o il p?mora&dugrgn fmﬂithza.mphe.t;z;.ln:lxma labs ‘v:las to
;g;_n‘; Forces] R:::-:on: :oupge;m_wwﬂmu seems Lo ;:w i‘: in ?rm e/l o .:egot;ntl p angers :hn spe-
.* Comme Ml! oﬂ‘ Commnnd 1Ml ahn -
(February 17, 1983). The facsimile cover was attached o the February . :;a prectguhor}lls {:qm 1;1: :}n € h E W1 . ;I‘l ac
3, 1953 message regarding the Special Forces training mission of ATF ve methamphetamine lab. Yet, when ,M&l- etree
sod had multiple rooting destinations. (Unnumbered). presented the paper to ATF agents during the Feb-
ruary 4-5, 1993, Houston meeting, these agents

1d
1% ional Defense Authorization Act Fiacal Year 1991, §1004, Pub, ) n 1 ,toe
L. 101-510 (as amended by National Defense Authorization Act Fisal  openly chose to ignore this information in front of
Year 1991 §1088, Pub, L. 102-190, and by National Defense Authoriza- the soldiers who prepared the document. In fact,

ton Act Fiscal Year 1993 § 1041, Pub. L. 102484, FY 53 NDAA. bt oy s
4 Hear Part 1 at 387, - ot W )'mﬁ the ATF agents’ dismissal of such vital informa- .
" o fcorered & number of postWaco promotions  tion was So obvious that these agents’ reactions

" of military sseis and ATF reques assistance.

- phi my’ l;ﬂ:ﬂ ,mun: h:i:m t me A':% ,alortxl:aa ma;lle to clear lagls.\tdme ATF b;’lieved that a

e , 1993, ATF reques received approval for 2 woe methamphetamine id not exist.37°
Specal P T s g s han § monibe allr B Maj. Petree indicated that the purpose of the
or tions ;ﬂ‘g:‘ Advocate e n‘tah pd-l‘;wu;-;- “‘",.}, Stpescml Efr;es paper was for the informaﬁona:d use

3 Aass! 2 [ . . .

""‘““ e A e Dok tempting to cbain of Speci orcesumtswhomxghtbemvolv in
burs " r he ! : s th m‘: e 1 o ook fxmul',e eountelrabsdmg activii:ies thinvolving meth-
e0 sulxly SOGES - .* Defenes Documents D- * amp etamine Yet, when the subcommittees
Tia A Juna 16, 1989 ATF s operain Ageat Pl the  requested a copy of the Special Forces pIpC/ dur-
i i x Spec inCharge inga visit by subcommittees’ staff to the U.S. Spe-
e ihas, Fouston and Los Angeles Fiekd Divisions enchosing an Re  cig] Operations Command in Fort Bragg, NC, they

tion regarding ofuwpoﬁlndpcmﬁ:'wuvtn-
mcmdummwmm.wl-upn 'm—GOpa‘ﬂmﬂ&m‘an‘Gubul&MDw
or trainiog Department of Defense.” Treasary Documents ments T8

"'Helrin%hﬂlntul

mid at3 lmlhhnbo'n.ccuﬁnlynbwldhn

TO06565.

""l‘ﬂhconlyqnaﬁoalhnbrdnudhhnnpthvdved.Wn Maj. v
tbemhamhemdn&hbanua{npupcwwy)(we)m kmmuaoedwuiﬁnqdﬂwumdwm-a,mumm
hvdvemmt?Smbunud'hhvahtmm --M«Mrmtomﬁ“ud-mm&mi
mmmﬂommb‘pﬁa'umw-ﬁmmm m-&B'UWMSG‘-“MW“m'ﬂWd“F#-”
a licatenant general’s nole paper. De{ense Documents D-1363. ticed the ATF agents’ disintereat in i

597 Pro-bearing ctings with Assist ‘s-nuryAn-Hdma.Su mmmm-muumuaﬁgmvm
lhﬂdmhnlnmahmtdud.cn&lm). indiauduntbedid the
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were informed that it could not be located.27t Sgt.  sition from their chain of command at JTF-6, was
Fitts had not seen the Special Forces paper since & “major incident avoided, lives were saved, and
the meeting in Houston and had no idea what be-  the law was not violated.”¥73 .

_ came of the Special Forces paper after the meet- JTF—6 and Operation Alliance have the approval
-/ ing. If the Special Forces paper was written as an  authority for law enforcement requests for military
. information resource, the Special Operations Com- - - assistance along  the Southwest border, which
"~ mand would be expected to have.a copy. of this - mesinis their legs] advisors conduct the legal re-

“paperonfile.. - . - o T e o view of the proposed assistance, not Special Oper-
" ¢.-Two.DEA ogents were members of the Op- ' ations Command legal advisors at Fort Bragg.?™
= eration Alliance board i - T Soldiers are’taught that they should always go

: Military officers wefe ot slone in their inaction,  through thefr shaip o comraand to address a prob-.
Documents show that two senior DEA agents were . _lem. Only under significant dreumstances afe sol-
' i ‘ i W e .. — dierd "encouraged to go outside their chain of com-

-assighed to ‘Operation ~Alliance . at the time_of =" % =0 - ¢
-isﬁrg?%es?’ffr”&n%ﬁassisﬁ& e Waaeina™ mand for assistance. The Special Forces soldiers
. Yet, none of the documents indicate that either of assigned to assist ATF, apparently had been prop-
- these DEA agents expresvgedv concerns. ‘about the _Verb.' trained to 50 out.sxd_e 'thelf chain of oommapd,
. evidence ATF offered in support of its claim of an - which at"the time” was at JTF-6, by contacting
“ite oo pctive methamphetamine lab or how ATF was their legal advisor at' Special Operations Com-

planning to take down the alleged methamphet- n}and, (USAFC) if they had concerns about a mis-

sion. :

amine lab. :
These two senior DEA agents were members of The Special Forces soldiers assigned the ATF

o the Operation Alliance Board which provides the  mission did just that. Maj. Ballard, the Special Op-
CLE . final approval of military assistance missions to  erations Representative at Operation Alliance, con-
et o drug law enforcement agencies. It is reasonable t6 “tacted Mr. Crain at Special Operations Command.
- - * assume that these DEA agents were aware of the "~ Crain then informed Lt. Col. Lindley of their con-

_-safety ‘and health risks a methamphetamine lab’. - eerns, ™5~ - T '

woxﬂ({pnseut_ “ o S WL -1_;~ :':.J‘i._ZT,r;a,u 2 'It”wu;'LEf

“Treasury _and"Defense Department docuinents’ * Special Operation Command, who raised the legal -
rovided to the subcommittees indicate that:Oper-" concerns’ with JTF-6. Lt. Col. Lindley received a
tion Alliarice ‘at’least twice requested-additional -+ ksl response f 031 Ra

ol Lindley; the legal advisor of the

E liance ab ‘east Ltwice 1-additional -** hogt onse from Lt. Col. Rayburn, the JTF-.
“information ‘on ATF's drug nexus, that'a very con:- ' g Jegal advisor who accused him of attempting to.
“tentious discuision between legal advisors and wyndermine” and “undercut” JTF-g's mission ™"
senior military officials of Special Operations Com- 14 Col. Lindley was also told that he could con-

mand and Operation Alliance had taken place, and ... giqer L4~ Col.”Rayburn's. words a personal at-

that this was the largest raid in law enforcement " .. 276 Syhsequent to Lt. Col. Lindley’s telephone

tﬁsmz}; Yet'D%:\ evidence was pr%sented to show conversation with Lt. Col. Rayburn, these concerns

IR 7‘~th:: ATerewas not’ﬁﬁﬁt‘;sf;\méfe‘ ap{ cpnt:tt;‘rqs ‘were raised with the Commanding Generals of
- N AT g these misks:In their .. - ' sl St o d

G e s operationalplannming: TTUT e e i _both Special Operations Command and JTF-6 an

i e ' _ “eventually reached_the_ Office of the Secretary of

“: ...z d. Approval process did not-work -~ ~ Defense. When the legal concerns were reviewed

" ...« Contrary to the testimony of Assistant Secretary  at that level, the Special Forces training mission
ly with.the law.277

A l;-—-vv'a«a*-Holmes and ‘Maj.General Pickler, the training ~ was modified to comp
... - mission did :eoc:, vli:}tate‘laws ber;-‘ause ot.:]e aggroval S T
i o - PTOCESS WOT in spite of it. Only because ~—m—st " T e e the
“<% " cortain soldiers recognized a legal-problem and *gemesurs Cap, DA Aray: Dt e o e 4155 at B 1157, The
‘Taise the issue mlxght.of Oppo-" . " iemd refers Lo the soldiers actions as. “daing the right thing, Bot the

had the courage to

T ——— . . . 2 . ree o ~. -
Il sn gree . “the: Special - Jone 3 oV . g
.'Mﬂ?pﬂuéﬁ:m&(l)’&p}& Mm iho Southwest barder must be routed throogh Operation Alliance. Once
- in their traising of ATF in feiling to ensure ATF took proper pre- Mmthgadvd.itﬁnﬂcndbyOpenhmAﬁmltOpm
'anﬁm&)wrﬁmnﬁ'km&mﬁmmmww -mmmmmg-uhm.mum-uum
F‘"Mplunﬁﬂmtmmd_,“ ine lab ted and inc.m-OOpendauSe:donwmdenbpndnnopenmu&snth
3 i y mhthm.mmwminghmpleu,hhﬁ

3

Documents T008853-006884.
:_Gnw a 2 5= L ) oranddm (of b IM
fhe Braich Derifians. Latter from the US. Depertmen R DT D
the subcommittess (Jantary 6, 1966) (fesponding’to the e i e s
Ostober 35, 1996, reqoest for {nformation). ' “"" eral's Corps, US. Aromy. Defenss Documents D-1155 at D-1158.

Lt Cd. Phlip Lindley. Defense Doc--
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é. The worlitng group established by the Sec-
. retary of Defense
. The final piece of evidence that serious problems

* exist in the process by .
.. support to civilian law enforcement agencies is the
" Gecretary of Defense’s creation of a working group .’
" to review. the process in the wake of the sub-*
“" . comimittees’ -announcement of Waco “hearings

- Which would also explore the military’s role in the_

incident.

EJ;'Pe

» 17 1995, Secretary of Defense William
ry direc

a comprehensive review of the current system by~
which - Defense ‘Department evaluates and -re-
sponds to requests for assistance initiated by out-

“side agencies.”3?® Perry acknowledged in his

memorandum that, “several recent events suggest -

that the process by which Defense Department

evaluates and approves outside requests for assist-

ance may be less than adequate” and that “there

_ are indications that Defense Department’s ability
IR to respond smoothly is encumbered by conflicting
2Tt divectives; -multiple entry points and diverse-fund-.
L iﬂg a_uthorities.'—"”i»;'--.f e PP

1 RPN

G Tiie ATLEGED DRUG NEXUS, - o
ed earlier, iri. order to receive military

-~ As ‘ei:pimn

. units, ATF. was- required to have 8

- 'The existence of a drug nexus also would have al-
. .7 lowed ATF. to receive that military assistance
S without being required

to reimburse the military -
~ for the cost of the training:

‘ATF's allegation that
- a drug nexus existed at the Davidians’ residence
o ‘ - - raised two concerns: (1) whether ATF used this al-
DT Tleged drug nexus as a subterfuge in order-to ob-
s= ... ¢ . tain free military assistance from specially trained -
Special Forces
- ing ATF actually. believed a drug nexus existed,
' whether ATF ‘ensured that its agents were aware
. "of the extreme health and safety hazards that a
L methamphetamine lab presents, and were properly
*-“trained and equipped to address those hazards. ™
“'I Methamphetarnine laboratories .. <.z . :
ATF .alleged to the military that it had evidence .

T e --of an “active méthamphetamine lab” on“the prem-....

-+ ises-of the Davidians' residence. Unlike general
- - - - narcotics seizures, clandestine 1abs, by their very
nature, “present a unique series of hazards and

risks to law enforcement personnel.” 280 Therefore,

an allegation of an active methamphetamine lab

T —————— .. . W Dh e eeTe .
- s78 Memorandum of Military Sopport to Civil Authorities by William

Perry, Secretary.of Defense, (o, the Secretary of the Army, Chairman-of
the - ' ‘Secretary of Defense (Policy), Undet-Secretary

by which the military provides-

° withstanding - the booby-

" - ggsistance at-Wato from the military counterdrug::
drug nexus.. .- ghcence ‘of proper safety precautions and cleanup "’

terd its; 2 . .
counterdrug units; and (2) assum:. -~ Some toxins have been linked to malformation of

- embryos, other genetic. damage, cancers, and re-’

- ..ards set
-~tration (DEA). DEA has primary jurisdiction over

official, because

ghould alarm any law enforcement
involved.

of the extreme safety and héalth dangers
~a. Dangers associated with methamphet-
‘amine labs "

- Hazards which law ehfoﬁé}hent agents may ex-

_.pect to. encounter. in: clandestine lab operations in-
clude -exposure -to toxic chemicals, “explosive and
-reactive chemicals, flammable agents, irritant and
. corrosive. agents, booby traps, and physical injury
“from close -quarter contact with jllegal lab opera-

wrs'gsl.‘ ,__v-"‘ .

_7d. Perry | ied the Under: Secretary of ‘Defense™ ™ R
=" for Policy to ‘establish a"working group “o conduct- - legal .methamphetamine labs use highly vola-

production process. Not-
traps law enforcement

.agents frequently encounter at methamphetamine

tile chemicals during:the

__labs, the firing of a single bullet, sparks from turn-

. ing off and/or on light switches, flashlights, or
even a flash from a typical photography flashbulb
can easily trigger an instantaneous explosion.
Toxic vapors produced during chemical reactions
can permeate a building’s structure and buildings
with poor “ventilation and temperature controls

(like the Davidians’ residence) “add to the poten-
tial for fire, explosion, and human exposure.” 252

-+~ Oné_chemical used in clandestine drug labs is so
. ‘deadly that ‘an’ amount small enough to fit on the

“head of a pin; could kill' a room full of people.?s?
_ Other health concerns are no less serious. In the

- procedures, law enforcement agents may “expen-
ence both acute and chronic adverse health effects
as a result of exposure to solvents, reagents, pre-
cursors, by-products, and drug products improperly
used or generated during the manufacture of ille-
gal drugs.”28 Toxic materials produced at these
1abs can injure the lungs or the skin, damage the
liver, kidneys, even the central nervous system.28s

“productive failure.286 - - - -

In “determining appropriate safety and health
precautions, the subcommittees relied on’ stand-
forth by the Drug Enforcement Adminis-

_jnvestigations of clandestine drug iabs. As the lead
Federal agency, it has established procedures that
DEA agents must follow during the investigation

- and seizure of drug labs.287 Moreover, this ap-’

proach by
Jocal agencies in developing

drug lal

DEA has been a model for State and
their own clandestine

programs.288

sl LX S

Drug Enforcement Administration hkﬁng‘h the subcommittees

t Defense (Comptroliar); and the Geners! Counsel of-the Depe Becretary .- m2Drug Enker » . -
Defonee OMay 17,1006, —: ~ - .- . a3 ISR (yune 8, 19957 and subseqent telephonie intervievs with DEA chemists.
e 3o g Bureau of Justiee Asaistance, supra note 280, at B. o

1 G Joint Task Force of the Drog Enforcement Admin m:,., o
- Bureao of Justcs Assstancs, Dorsot -5, nvisoenial Prtcton Agnd) nd the U, Cot G, =07

ummwuwmmusqm 1995). A BITTELL
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b. Certification/training requirements - for
deconstruction of methamphetamine
labs .. o
_ - Law enforcement.personnel engaged in the in--
“I" “'vestigation and seizures of clandestine’ drug labs -
- should have specialized training in the investiga-
" tion of such labs, in appropriate health and safety
_procedures, and in the use of the protective equip- -
“ment.3%® . L. . e ERIR e T
"The 'DEA réquires_all of its personnel to com-" -
plete a ‘course_on -clandestine methamphetamine
‘labs and be ¢ertified prior to ever participating in- -
 a methamphetamine lab raid.2% Simply stated, no-"
. _ DEA- agent ‘thay participate in “take downs"-of - -
- methamphetamine ' labs without ~proper ‘certifi-- -
- cation. ‘Annual recertification also is required. In
. .-.._addition, DEA provides seminars on clandestine
. methamphetamine labs throughout the Nation to
other local, State, and Federal law enforcement
personnel.
DEA agents are also required to receive a “base-
line medical screening, including an occupational/
o medical history, a complete physical examination, -
7777 2 a blood chemistry screen, pulmonary function and
__ spirometry. testing,-and-a stress-treadmill ‘test
BRI " prior to_assignment.”29! Agents have regular’ fol- ™~
s “low-up” medical evaluations and, because of the :
e ‘risks associated with long-term exposure, regularly -
Aare rotated out of the Clandestine Lab Program.... ...:
"~ The initial, entry. team’.also must. have and be
trained, in the use of “appropriate monitoring in: .
“strumentation, - such  as . air-sampling ~ pumps,
~ explosimeters, oxygen meters, organic-vapor ana-
" lyzers . .. that are used to determine the lower
explosive limit and the concentration of organic va-
A pors in the laboratory atmosphere.”292 All of the
""" monitoring devices must be “designed to suppress
. sparks” that may ignite and cause fires or explo-
- ,:sioﬂs.”s . e R - T

; " omphetaminelab . .0 . ... ...
- .. After an investigation has gathered sufficient
... probable cause to establish that a drug lab is oper-"
- -+ . ...ating.on a premises, DEA agents:obtain-a search-:-
... -..-warrant. Agents may request in the warrant the: -
; ... .authority. to destroy any hazardous bulk. chemicals -

© ' "prior to and during the seizure.?®¢. Once.the  war- -
rant is obtained, the case agents begin a six step -
process for conducting the seizure: planning, entry,

 Justice Assistance, diipra note 280, at 16,
T:lk Farce of the Drug Enforcement Administration, the

Agency, and the US. Coast Guard, supra

- #3The Joint
US, Environm '

eospected crimes in its dearch e :
- 34 The Joint Task Foret of the Drug Enforcement iaty A
Us. Emy}liw Agency, and the US:Coast Guard, supre
" note280, 8L BT T T = e

T e The special precautions required when law .
S 777 7T ;... enforcement actions ~involve a .meth. . . .-

- and equipment.28¢ A forensic chemist-is-consulted - -

assessments, processing, exit, and follow-up.29® Be-
cause ATF entered the Branch Davidian residence,
only the first two steps will be discussed in detail.

In the planning stage, the case agents must first
assess of the hazards likely to be encountered and
determine who_needs to be notified before the raid
(i.e. police, fire department, hospitals, hazardous
waste. contractors.) 27 This includes a determina-
tion of what chemicals the agents might encoun-
ter. Once. the assessiient is complete, certified
teams, including a forensic chemist and site safety

agent - trained “and ‘equipped with the requisite

safety equipment, are assigned.

-"The-second stage is the initial entry to appre-
hend and remove the operators and to secure the
lab. Typically in methamphetamine lab operations,
Jaw enforcement agents will attempt to arrest the

- suspects away from the premises to avoid many of
- the aforementioned dangers. This is usually ac-

complished through surveillance and investigative
techniques which provide law enforcement agents
with sufficient information to determine the lab’s
exact location, what chemicals are being used, the
stage of the production process and when the sus-

‘pects will leave the premises.

-If the lab operators cannot be apprehended away
from the premises, then the initial entry takes

“ place. “DEA protocol calls for-the initial entry

team. to employ ballistic protection equipment and
fire “retardant. clothing."298 Other safety proce-
dures include avoiding the use of shotguns or di-

- versionary devices such as flash bangs, smoke, or
tear gas canisters which can ignite fumes.?%® Addi-

tionally, agents should avoid turning light elec-

- trical switches on’ or off, use only explosion-proof

flashlights, and use electronic strobes, not flash-
bulbs.3%0 Once the premises are secure and every-
one is evacuated, the assessment step begins,

" " d. Did ATF oddress the extreme safety and

. health concerns a methamphetamine lab
_""“presents_in its raid on the Branch
.. .. Davidian residence?

““In 1990, Stephen E. Higgins,30! the Director of
-the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms, tes-
tified before: the :‘Subcommittee on the Treasury,

Postal Service, and General Government Appro-
priations. of the Committee on Appropriations. In
written responses to questions from subcommittee
members, Higgins acknowledged:

»ed
7% seiring a clandesti laboratory, the law enforcement

agency may encounter materials that technically qualify as hazardovs

" _ wastes and therefore are subject to regulation.’ If those wastes excoed

certain_minimal quantities, the law enforcement agency becomes & has-

7 " ardous waste generator and is required to adhere to waste disposal regu-

lations promulgated under RCRA, and to regulations governing the

Id ativ, 77T

‘. transportation of haisrdous materisls promulgated by the Department

of Transportation.”

‘waa Direcior of the ATF both during the investigation
at the time of the February 28, 1993, reid on the Branch Davidian
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[Wle (at the ATF] are aware of the con-
giderable hazards presented by the care- -
- less storage of chemicals and the sensitiv-

LR iy of - the Texplosive
“ [clandestine ‘methamphetamine] *labora-’
. tories; In an effort to ensure a safe and =
"thorough investigation, ATF has proposed
“gpecific, -specialized training- “for ~ gelect -
" ATF personnel ‘tg-readily identify narcot--:
_jes__laboratories and to- recognize’ “certain
hazardous materials associated with the

**laboratories 2.,

ing the period when David. Koresh. was being in-
vestigated, when' the Waco raid took place ‘and

" during the post-raid investigation, it is reasonable
"'to conclude ATF was aware of the safety and
health hazards presented by methamphetamine
labs. Furthermore,
interest of BATF Washington and had been ap-
proved at that level,"303 ATF headquarters was

* aware of the ‘alleged presence of ‘a_methamphet- =~ ronments. . o
: : B e . . When_ agencies fail” to- adhere to these require-

FovEALL iU

T g@mine 1abl?

Giiries. - ATF . hais - acknowledged - that. .no .“ATF
‘agent who was present on February 28,1993, .-
~had received s cific, specialized training in inves

. - tigating: methamph 't;amine.la_boratories.".?%,ln.xe"—

the potential safety and health hazards that the

present. In other words, ATF agents participating

in the raid had little or no notice of the dangers

-they. might have forced in the actiy_ejmethamphet-; :
: <7 7" - Hllicit methamphetamine laboratory at the Branch
,V__l?avidinn._c:ompound.”““ Mr. Breault's facsimile
*“ relays that upon taking over the Mount Carmel

.. amine labs. ...

... From numerogglb_ﬁéﬁﬁgs}nd a revieﬁ of video-
tape shot on-the -day of the raid, it appears that

“ATF agents did possess ballistic protection -equip-"- -
. ment and fire retardant clothing. ATF agents also -

o possessed regular flashlights and regular cameras

" (i.e. flash photography).-:shotguhs and flash™
: -f‘;'--i‘i"_,._»"~-;ffbar_)j'gs,3°§~ each ‘of which-could trigger -instanta-
o “ mored that an individual who used to rent from
“Mr. Roden was into drugs but he had later gone

*'neous explosions if used in the vicinity of a meth-

. [,
01 Hearings before the Subcommiltee on , Postal Service, and
General Government Appropriations of the House Committee on Appro-

plosiv aﬁwmmﬁﬁubdhhumbu?
flash. bang] devices.” and “If (a’ flash bang)
Jiible. material s fre i@ not only poestble"but-Hkely,
, clothing, et).* (Page 66 o Lhe ATF triinIng man:
S Tarel Giversiousry devices) oo mention of thé alleged pros-
of & methamphetamine lab i mentioned in ATF's requasi 1o’ the
: ja Operations Division ior the use of Nash bangs durirg”
unnudmmunbnuﬂuhhumﬂmdhhuﬂSJﬂAThnmy

hgwmuw&ndﬂ

_-tions, requiring the

Given that Higgins wa;-_still.t;hé ATF Difectqr dur-

since the case had the “highest

" viewing vidéotapes of the Fort Hood training, sub--
. “committee investigators also found no. discussion-of -’

" guspected active methamphetamine lab would -

-George Roden,

LT e ‘amphetamine 1ab, Nor is there any evidence that
cnemere s any ATF ‘dgerits possessed appropriate monitoring......
-equipment to determine the lower explosive limit .

“ATF” (July. 14, 1960). Tromsury DacGrnnts T0045ES,
* ~ St i AL :

and the concentration of vapors in the atmosphere,

or explosion proof flashlights.
Clearly, ATF disregarded the safety of its agents

mixtures at ‘these = i~ .-and.innocent civilians. Agencies involved in clan-

destine lab -operations fall under OSHA regula-
following actions by employ-

.+ ». “Communication_to, émployees of clear, un-
arhbi"g‘ixoixzs;"\'v:arhiri'gs."'és"well as provision of

- educational. programs on the hazards of chemi-
cal substanées.” ~ T -

“-o “Training of all “employees who may be ex-
posed to hazardous substances in how to rec-

ognize and handle safety and health hazards

~at laboratory sites, in the use of protective
" equipment, and in safe work practices.” Train-

. ing must meet OSHA standards.

" o Examining and monitoring the health of all
employees exposed to hazardous substances
including documentation of any exposure.

e Provide information to employees regarding
any hazardous conditions in their work envi-
ronments.

_Even_so, in response to-the subcommxt,t,ees’ ino " ~ ments, “supervisors can be held strictly and sever-

ally ligble for, situations involving employee expo-
sure to hazardous substarices and the resulting ad-

vérse health effects.” 307 - -

2. Evidence purporting o show the alleged drug

- & Mark Breault’s statement -

Coincidentally, after repeatedly being informed
by military “officials of the drug nexus require-
ments, Aguilera received a facsimile on December
16, 1992, from Mark Breault in Australia, which

according to ATF “suggestled) the existence of an

(Residence of the Branch Davidians) property from
the former Branch Davidian leader,

Koresh " found methamphetamine lab equipment

*“and “recipes” and called the Sheriffs Department

to turn over the materials.3® It had been long ru-

to prison.310 This individual was no longer on the
property when Koresh took over.31}

Mr. Breault’s facsimilé to Special Agent Aguilera
also indicated that although Koresh did call the
SherifPs Department and Sheriffs Department

5y ”‘Unﬂ‘u W t of Tr y resp ” “ aboom -‘.“:3" '-"g.-"—..‘ R P R SRS —~,~c i —'e,'.':" "‘l--‘...i:." ¢ p pe ! !
: P T B - e e : 7 '

Memo from Coll Callahan and Robert Tevens o Geolf Moulton
Lew Merletti, “Chronology and Witneases Re: Military Support of
004500, Actual (s

Tressury Doguments TO0B9I2. °.. e :
Wo¢ Facsirrile from Mark Breault 1o Specisl Agent Davey Aguilers (Do
warnber 16, 1992). Tréasury Dorumenta TOO00BS1Z. . .~ . .. .
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vidual present at the residence when the Sheriff's
Department visited said she did not personally ob-
serve Koresh turn the lab equipment over to the
Sheriff's Department.3!2 Mr. Breault also stated in

" his facsimile_that one night in 1989, Koresh “was . .

. “talking about trafficking drugs as a way of raising - -
" " money.313. He: [Koresh] 'seemed very interested in - - Breault provided when he wrote in his Waco Raid
- Assessment, *Former ‘cult members were inter. .

“getting money through” this means.”3!4 However,

" same document that the building in which he im-

. fied before the subcommittees that this informa- -
- tion from Mr. Breault regarding a methamphet-
amine lab also was told to the military by ATF.317
. However, military documents indicate that ATF-
was conveying to the military the presence of an
active methamphetamine lab.318
There were at least six significant problems with
jts credibility as evidence that the Branch
ISR Davidians were operating a methamphetamine lab
e prior to ATF's raid. First, the allegations were .
" .2 very stale'by legal standards. ATF received the in- -
‘ . formation~ more than 5 years- after the “meth-
- smphetamine lab equiprient.was_found and the

tigate the claim. Second, it is- undisputed that

.2 Koresh found thé methamphetamine “lab -equip-. -
-  ment and Koresh himself called ‘the” Shériff to'pick -
up the equipment.-Third; the- person rumored to"-.

have been involved in drugs was af “occupant of '
_the premises prior to Koresh taking over, and sub-
séquently was sent to prison. Fourth, the ‘former
leader, Mr. Roden, not Koresh, was suspected of
having been involved in illegal drugs. Fifth, the al-
leged statement by Koresh about drugs could not

" Breault implies housed the methamphetamine ma-

Crad zige
_.. " Perhaps the most' disturbing-fact about ‘this in-.
* formation, however, is that all of this drug nexus

. ... information originatéd with Mr. Breault, a dis-
-~ gruntled . formér ‘member -who left the-group in .
“imerita TOOC21383.

- 1989, The fact that Mr. Breault ' maintained an ex- '

) _:tensive . biographical -datibase - on: ~present and

an “active methamphetamine lab* _
" A few are the February' lflflm,' Openi

" and the February 2, 1983, letter from Operation Alliance to the Adjutan!
Genera! of the Texss Nationa] Guard counterdrig unit informing them
' 2] Goard sesistance i éarviny "-:M
e

“Mr. Breault also admits in his_facsimile that.he.....

.. -was the only ex-member who.was present for this .

" statement.3i6 Mr. Breault goes on to say in.the .. ‘given to the idea that these ex-cult members had
"been away from the residence for some time, or to '

""" plies the drug lab equipment was-located burned =
down in Spring 1990.318 Lt. Col. Gen.. Pickler testi-- -

" Sheriffs Department visited the premises to inves: ..

" be verified-independently: Sixth, the building Mr. ~

. terials burned down in"1990, 3 years-before_the "

__former - members and was working with:a self-pro-.. .
claimed - cult-buster Rick ‘Ross -in and- of itself

should have raised questions about Mr. Breault's
intentions and credibility to the ATF agents.

Lt. Robert A. Sobozienski, a New York City Po-
lice officer who acted as an expert consultant to
the Treasury Department’s Waco Review Team,
summarized the -problem with the information

viewed and, apparently much, if not all of their’
statements are reported to be facts. No thought is

the individual biases, or if they had an ax to grind

“with' present cult memibers,” 312

- ATF agents did check with the McLennan Coun-

. ty- Sheriff's Department personnel who acknowl-

edged Koresh’s request but “found no record” of
the removal of methamphetamine lab equip-
ment.320 However, Joyce Sparks 32! states in writ-
ten testimony, that during her child protective
services investigation in 1992 she checked with.the
Sheriffs Department and was told that Depart-
ment personnel did receive drug evidence from

‘David Koresh.322 During her interviews with him,
:Koresh told her that he had given the Sheriff's De-

partment information, pictures, and drug evidence

~-but.nothing had ever_come of it.32* Koresh com- .
plained in-his interviews with Sparks that the ’
SherifPs Department “was aware of the illegal =~
-methamphetamine lab.32¢ .

. The. disposal of .methamphetamine lab equip-

.ment-and .chemicals presents great risk and sig- -
nificant problems. As a matter of routine, DEA

hires certified State and local chemical disposal
companies to: remove the lab equipment and
chemicals for proper disposal under EPA guide-
lines.325 Because the cleanup costs can easily total
$20,000, or. significantly more, depending on the
size and condition of the lab site, local law enforce-
ment officials sometimes choose not to remove the
lab equipment:and-chemicals or not to follow the
proper environmental guidelines for removal in an
effort to avoid the legal-liabilities and costs associ-
ated with such labs.326

S 919Waco Raid Assessment by Lt. Robert A. Soborienski. Treasary Do
t Report at 212,

Treasury Departmen
.- BiMg s:-"m was an investigations supervisor for the Texss Depart-
ment of Protective and Regulatory Services, Children's Protective Serv-

.-ices, who was intervicwed re tedlg"by ATF.
3 Prepared statement of Joyce Sparks. See Appendix [The Appendix
is E!;:-bed mtdy.) )

Befd '
24 The hiring of State and local chemical companies was the result of
legislation which corrected the problem of DEA disposing of the metd-
amphetamine lab materials. Each time DEA disposed of 8 methamphet-
amine lab, the ageacy came under the Hazardous Waste laws, as has.

ardous waste generator,. S T S - sy
¢ Although . the -Sheriffs- Depertiment acknowledged visiting the

yoars prior, and without further evidence of the
continued_ use or even its” continued existence there is hittle probative
vllnq_ to Mr. Bresult's information. Neither ATF's search warrant oor its

z 0039109



" b. The National Crime Center check
As mentioned earlier, after a December 17,

1992, meeting of SAC Chojnacki, Aguilera and Lt.
~ Col. Walker in which Lt. Col. Walker informed the

(RIS ATF ggents that ATF

was -~ instructed ~to search criminal records “of ”

ever,” when “ATF . Special Agent Pali was inter--

* Davidian had & prior drug conviction.328 - .=~
S R R T
Treasury Department documents provided to the
- -gubcommittees indicate that at the request of ATF,
- Forward Looking Infrared Radar (FLIR) imaging
was taken on January 6, 1993, by the Texas Na-

tional Guard Counterdrug unit in a National
Eugene Trevino, a

aboard the aircraft,
offered an unofficial interpretation of the FLIR
- photos to the Austin ATF agents in which he stat-

~_be indicative of ‘a ‘methamphetamine 1ab.'"322 It'is

own volition... - -

.. that. only: information _about grid ‘coordinates was

officially provided to ATF” and that “no official in- *

terpretation was ever provided to ATF regarding

-7 . the hot spot.’”33 Even though ATF never sought- -

an official interpretation,33! ATF agents later of-
fered the “hot spot” as direct evidence of a meth-
amphetamine lab to the military when JTF-6 re-
- quested additional proof of the drug nexus at a.
- .- February 4,-1993 meeting 333 vl b

= s == .. Major General Pickler testified that at t.he Feb- Age
.- - ... ryuary 4 meeting there was some pictorial evidence .

.. . (ie, FLIR evidence) that an active methamphet-
" ‘amine lab was on the site of the residence and”

ATF expected the lab to be there.333 Interviews
- with DEA agents have revealed that FLIR imaging:-

is not & technique used to identify clandestine. -.

-~ ... —- drug labs because. using “hot spots” as signatures
e ... _for methamphetamine labs is too -unreliab

DEA agents have informed subcommittee staff -

that the use of FLIR imaging to identify an active

r———
supporting afBdavit eontain any information aboat suspected {llegal .

.. = Menz:'ytndnmmcdlaencdhhnnﬂ Robert Tevens to Geoll
Moulton and Lew Merletti, "Chro Jogy and Witacsses Re: M Sup-,
port of AT ; reasury Documents T004589, 004500,

" ane i M §

: e 3
naﬂ?rm T'at 363, :
. -4 Drug Enforcement ‘Administra .

(Jiiie 8, 1995) and telephone interviews with Dnig Enforcement Adi
istration chemisia. - : o o T

“only as “icing on

could receive non-reimburs-
""" able military support if a drug nexus existed, ATF
““Intelligence Research- Specialist Sandy Betterton -
“Pavidians to identify prior drug offenses.327- How- - - lab team from
“viewed by Treasury Agents: during the Post-Waco ™" cials_were at the Command
- review,=-he™ admitted . that. only "one ‘Br’;ﬁrig}_r B

“‘:ance from a DEA Clandestine Certified Laboratory

n Alr 8genis o+ " . quired in the thetic
. z-ed that the.“hot spot” inside the. residence “could ~ O rat Aty
, a , ne °Itis th,is}_,cas'f'met}iﬁr’ﬁbhét;aminé).”" These
unclear, whether .ATF. agents solicited Trevino's’ ~ are referr

personal .interpretation, or if he offered- it on his * ivery

- Regardless of ¢ elmi)etusfor tf@fl;_i_n't}erpfé‘gétiqn;** ’
Lt Col. Pettit and: Lieutenant Justice “maintained-

-cursor contentions.338. -~ -

le334

., . Alisnce.
_* Bpecial Agent Chuck Sarabyn mel with representatives from JTF-8 and
" the Texas National Guard to discuss evidence of a possible drug nexus.

 jprecursor. ches
,'uﬂgwﬁngl.ho_udo:umnb.wurm
b ittoos (J

methamphetamine lab would be a last resort and
the cake” under that cir-

cumstance. .
~ d. The DEA lab team

""" Only when General Pickler of JTF-6 continued

to request additional evidence of a methamphet-
amine lab, did ATF indicate it intended to include
rom the DEA in the operation.3s
Treasury documents indicate' that two DEA offi-
cials wer ‘ "ast at the Texas
State ‘Technical Institute on the day of the raid;
but ATF declined the DEA offer of direct assist-

" Team.338 Such ‘d lab team is specially trained and

certified to “take down” active methamphetamine
labs. These teams also have the specialized equip-
ment and tactical training required for meth-
amphetamine lab operations.

e. The precursor chemicals used to produce
methamphetamine :

There are numerous methods to produce meth-
amphetamine, However, certain chemicals re-
process are themselves in-
corporated into the molecule of the target drug (in

chemicals
rred to ‘as’ precursor chemicals and their
delivery would be evidence that methamphetamine
was being produced. While ATF agénts répeatedly - -

“proffered evidence of deliveries of precursor chemi-

cals to the Branch Davidian residence as proof of
an active methamphetamine lab, the Treasury De-
partment has " since been unable to locate or
produce the documents offered to support its pre-

outlining the series of
meetings between military, Texas National Guard,
and ATF officials, describe a February 4, 1993,
meeting held at the SAC/Houston office regarding

Treasury documents

‘military _ support.. In ‘attendance were Special

nt Lewis;. Special Agent Sarabyn; Lt. Col.

“‘Bertholf; Special Agent Pali, ATF coordinator to

Operation Alliance; William Enney, Texas State
Interagency . Coordinator; and Maj. Lenn
Lannaham, JTF-6 Liaison. During the meeting,
Sarabyn .offered ATF documents including a list of
methamphetamine precursor chemicals, in support

————————— pepm—
. 3%Ceneral Pickler teatified that Lt Col. Berthal was told at the Feb-
ruary 4 and 6, 1993, ‘midéting in Houston that ATF had intended to io-
;I‘,:e a DEA lab team in the Waco operation. Hearings Part 1 at J69-
T4589, c

tice, Drog Eak t Administration pob-

in the Clandestine Production of Drugs at il

(March 1

995).
280n February 2, 1993, ATF Special Agents Pali and Phil Lewis met
with representatives of the JTF-6, Texss National Guard and Operation

y 26, 1996) (responding to the subcommitices’ Te-

"2~ quest for information on November 16,1995, - -

Z 0039110




requests failed to 1nention the existence of a meth-

of the drug nexus.3%® As a result of the meeting,
. amphetamine lab at the planned raid site or sus-

military support of the Branch Davidian investiga-
tion continued. pected illegal narcotics production,

- - According to General Pickler's testimony before A review of the January 5, 1993, briefing paper
“: w0 the subcommittees, Lt. Col. Berthal was told at” gent to ATF's Washington, DC. Headquarters re-
© .7 . the February 4, 1993 meeting in Houston that pre- . veals that.no mention of the subject of drugs or
TR I eursor chemicals were discussed as one of the ele—_. . military irivolvement even though senior ATF offi-
777 ments -of_proof. proffered by ATF-that an active cials at headquarters were signing off on requests
methamphetamme 1ab existed :and those chemicals” ~ for military .assistance under the guise of a
may have been on site at the Branch Davidian res- .counter-narcotics " operation,344 Treasury docu-
idence.2®® General Pickler testified that the ATF " menes indicate that this briefi ing paper was for-
representatwe, while giving a background bneﬁng. _-warded to the Assistant Secret.ary of the Treasury
to why ATE had targeted the Davidians, indi-' “"¢, Enforcement after review by the ATF Director
; - cated that UPS or shipping documents ATF ‘was g0 { }hic” staff345 The forwarding of this type of
- ,”_" : Eﬁfkm ;i‘:&’tﬂed:lge :}t; ede;: :g u;;ze::rs:; cnll‘li?al{ " briefing paper.was the normal procedure the ATF
© ~ . drugs.34! However, General Pickler also testified Dxrectso‘x; used to notify T'reasury of major on-going
'that precursor chemicals were discussed in the €835
context of the possibility of a delivery of those I"ﬁﬁdd’m" to the January 5 b:iﬁ"g pf;per.
kinds of chemicals much earlier than 1993, but he ™0 ey;lstgtusnr eports we:}e: przgar ed by ?{gug dera.
is not exactly certain which precursor chemicals I\e:::vin C}{argeur;?gt.;x;' Ausiin ,Is',;t‘:;.:ce ::’& i;"
were there 342 ~C! ; . 1, ¢ -
General Pickler's testimony raises several ques- p;tl:edAby t?“?ig{“‘é{- ‘hehsi’:h“al f:Agen:dmd(:hh:rie
~-- - - tions: First, what did ATF actually tell the mili- ©of the Austin, 1A ollice who then lorwarde re-
tary about precursor chemicals? Second, General . Ports to the Special Agent in Charge of the Hous-
~Pickler’s testimony implies it was that information-— ‘tori"Office. Although these reports being provided
- about ‘deliveries of _precursor chemicals-that ATF ‘- over a 9 month period and almost daily during the
“offered when the military: requested additional. evi: g.‘. ‘weeks leading"iip to the raid, they never mention -
‘dence. If General Pickler was uncertain when pre: " ‘the case as- a- counter-narcotics investigation or
-cursor __chemicals- were, present’ at_ the Branch - ~any military involvement,
‘Davidian residerice, why. did he:approve .the: ATF;_.__A As ~lateas - February 5 1993 Chanackx re-

i training by an elite. Special Forces. military unit .~
. assigned to do counterdrug missions? Third, did = tion the.-possible existénce of an “active meth-
- General Pickler simply rely on the absence of a de-  amphetamine lab,” even though ATF policy states

" fined drug nexus standard in approving the train- - that drug laboratories or other explosive environ-.
ing mission? Fourth, after he requested additional  ments may be so hazardous as to preclude the use
information before approving the military training,  of flash bangs.347 In fact, the only consistent men-
- why did General Pickler and other military. offi-.. tion of any drug activity by Branch Davidians in
. -+ cials say it is not the position of the military to ... any of the ATF Waco documents on Waco is in re-

e 3:5:‘:::,0;*‘3,:?1“;’:“;‘ 2, g law sforcament. quests for miliary ssistance which reuired drg
aE TN -gince JTF-6's own planning guide States that in ' :":;tcl:l tyto "uSt ]fy m:lxtary mterventxon and assist-

: conjunction with Operation Alliance, the Natlonal_ L S
-.Guard and Regional Logistics Office “ reviews and b ATF afg_’egts were not properly trained and
o _certifie

o : vahdates all -Tequests for support.” 343 , :
e 3 Evzdence refutmg ATF’sclaim of a drug nexus _ .. The second piece of evidence refutmg ATFs
e Aﬂ failed t h claim that a drug nexus actually existed is the fact
- e al ethao °dd‘h ess el;sbs:e of 8n GC-  ¢hat ATF agents -involved -in the raid on the
s "’2 ""lz mphetamine_laboratory into ~ Branch Davidian residence were not trained and/
raid planning ... or certified in methamphetamine operations. Fur-
Undenmmng ATFs claim that a methamphet- thermore, the lack of necessary safety precautions
amine lab existed at the Branch Davidian resi- taken in the planning, training and operation indi-
dence, is the fact that briefing papers which went  (gte that these agents were ill-equipped and un-
,QEQ»ATE:-HQ““.““"“' 3“"“5 reports and other .. prepared for the “suspected” presence of an active
e R S b 'methamphet.armne lab. These failures are in direct

d ' wn"guxdehnes on. clandestme

- “"‘l‘mnm;y Dur:umenu 1’\)08213-100821‘

Id. e - :
""JTF-G Opa'luonnl Sumt P\uming Guide, p -1 'nm , 08603,

48
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c The DEA's offer of assistance
ATF's claim that a drug nexus actually existed

is called into question by ATF's response to DEA's
The Drug Enforcement Agency

isting ATF with "~

DEA had a Sen-
shéri, acting asa”

C for. DEA at Operation Allianice:. On °

. January, 22, 1993,  Deputy Tactical Coordinator’
“William Roshon - offered DEA™ assistance in_ the'

- form - of . on-sight 1aboratory - technicians to’ ATF
;oo Special Agent Pali, Pali placed DEA Agent Roshon

in touch with the SAC/Houston Office. 348 - oo

-~ Post-raid interviews of Pali by the ATF Waco

* Review Team revealed that ATF refused twice -

DEA’s offer of on-sight 1

ab technicians, but did -
have two DEA officials from the Austin DEA office
present at the Comman

d Post the day of the
raid.>+® Two DEA agents from the Waco office:
were on stand-by for the raid.350

On February 2, 1993 ATF Agent Lewis
- s g briefing. to: Operation Alliance members
- -~ *gugpécted ‘methamphetamine
Dayidi_an;_.,[es'idgnce which, ‘according.
ummary of-events, was known At
have received deliveries of chemical precursors for.
the manufacture of ‘methamphetamine.” After ‘the
“ briefing by “Lewis, : Gen.. Pickler, _Commander of
. JTF-6, -stated “that it is not the_position’ of the
military to question the veracity of a law enforces ™
- ment request regarding a drug nexus.”351 DEA
- "Agent Rochon' told Waco Review Team interview-"
ers, after the February 2, 1993, briefing, that he -
had offered the assistance of a DEA Clandestine
Certified Laboratory Team and Pali declined the
- request. However, Agent Rochon did provide Lewis
. T the phoné humber of the
22 Charge. Agent ‘Roshon “‘opined’  that  precursor "=
o “chemicals- for: methamphetamine _could also
" used in the ‘manufacture of explosives.”352 How-
“*ever, senior' DEA chemists-told subcommittee in-
. yestigators when interviewed regarding the use of
R “methamphetamine chemicals to make. explosives,
.. - “that they had never heard that one before” and
2.7 they .were unaware -of any sed |
e produce methamphetamine which could be used to "
. __make- explosives. . Although some methamphet-
- amine chemicals are very volatile in nature, using -
s another matter en-
that ATF has jurisdictions over explo-

“them to make explosives i
tirely. Given
- and DEA has jurisdiction over illegal narcot-

provided
on the

to “the ‘ATF

to blur ction..

this distin

Tmeyg -
‘31 Tyessury Documents TOO4580-TO04504. -
nusjd B . - '

49

- “DEA officials were memb

~=However, - o  documen

" copies of the

lab” at the Branch -

. " amphetamine lab. Sergeant Fi

chemicals used to "

TF‘ agents and DE.A agent R

never informed officially of
the Waco investigation by ATF, two senior DEA of-
ficials were well aware of the facts surrounding
the ATF investigation of the Davidians. Two senior
ers of the Operation Alli-
d law enforcement agen-
ts indicate that at least one
did _offer DEA methamphet-
and ATF. declined that offer.
ts received by the sub-
that these DEA agents ex-
‘ concern .with ATF's apparent plan to
methamphetamine laboratory.
when the subcommittees requeé
as proof of the delivery
that are required for the production of
any other evidence of the de-
livery of these chemicals, the subcommittees were
informed that none could be found.

d. The Special Forces paper and the ATF re-
sponse to it

of evidence undermining ATF's

lab existed is ATF's own reac-

n the meth-

tts testified that he

and- aniother- Special Forces medic where directed

e their Commander, to research

n methamphetamine labs.3%3

\tervi Fitts revealed that the paper

addressed’ the dangers of ‘methamphetamine labs

from both’ tactical ‘and ‘exposure perspectives.34

Sgt. Fitts and the other medic took 3 or 4 days to
complete the projéct.3ss - .

During the February 4-5 Houston meeting, Maj.
Petree presented the paper to ATF agents who
showed no interest in its contents. Sgt. Fitts testi-
fied that ATF agents never expressed any concern
‘that would be presented by a
lab and that it was his impres-
ect of a methamphetamine 1ab
“dropped off the face of the earth after the paper
was presented.” 35 In his opinion, it was obvious
from the reaction of the ATF agents that no meth-
amphetamine lab existed.*s”

Although DEA was

ance board which reviewe
‘cy requests. Documen
of these DEA agents

‘amine lab assistance

committees_indicate .

préssed any
-raid an active
_ In addition,
UPS -receipts

of chemicals ‘
methamphetamine or

The fourth piece
ti
‘by Major Petree,
ind - draft a paper-o
terviews with Sgt.

“about the dangers
methamphetamine
sion. that the. subj

. m3Hearings Part 1 atSGl.Spedd?gmunﬁa-nmdhbe
M‘W» .':V‘j bl - . e s

L -Muﬁ'mu&nmi&epmnﬁmm

be located, I ita production of documents Lo the esb-

. M_Wtﬁbﬂunﬁy.mdm

paper although testimony before the subcommittees indicated that the

pmmmﬂbAﬁmﬁntnmﬂuu?&wl—&lm

Bteve Fitts, in Washington, DC (July 11, 1996).

T 1d. Although i- was very clest from the interview of Baff Sgt. Fitts
Sgt. Fitts answered ‘was
HMMNAWMFW,MW that he had
vecsived it T Ll
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D. POST-PAID MILITARY ASSISTANCE TO THE FEDERAL
.BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION (FEBRUARY 28-APRIL 19)

The standoff between the government and the
Branch Davidians began on February 28, 1993, as

.. .- ing that time personnel and equipment of the U.S;
. Armed Forces were present at or near the Branch

'::Da‘(id]m P.esidenc?,.‘d,,..-,_f T SRR C e
-+ 1 Military équipment and personnel provided -~
U7 @, Active duty personnel and equipment -

- 'the FBI in support of the FBI's activities during
*the standoff. Most of these troops were dressed in
uniforms which indicated their, rank, service, and

- function. ‘A small number of troops present at the

site were assigned to Army Special Forces units,
Because the military occupational specialties of

these troops are classified, they dressed in civilian

clothes while at or near the Branch Davidian resi-

- dence and did not identify themselves as military

B BT .Army officers present at the April 14 meeting with

. Branch Davjdian residence for part of 1 day.. . - -

- "and maintenance on’ sophisticated observation. and

electronics equipment 358 provided by the Defense

.- Department to the FBI. Active duty, enlisted mili-
tary personnel set-up the equipment and per-
formed necessary maintenance on it. There is no

- evidence that military personnel actually operated

" the equipment. Instead, it appears that FBI agents -
operated this equipment. Ini one instance, however, A
—y'%& tents, generators, concertina wire) to the

" operated one piece of sophisticated electronics

" “military personnel performed repair and mainte-

B uring the standoff, ‘4"limited number of active -
~_duty. military- personnel were present. at- the -
~~ Branch Davidian residence providing services to

... . civilian employees of the Department. of Defense --

" ‘equipment.®s® In_addition, active duty, enlisted -
" - personnel were present during the standoff. Most

w7 the cease-fire went into effect following the ATF's - -
7 .- failed raid on the Branch Davidian residence. Dur- .-

of these vehicles which are normally armed were .
removed before they were transported to the
Branch Davidian residence.360 '

During the standoff the Bradleys were used pri-
marily as.armored personnel carriers to transport
FBI officials t6 meetings with the Davidians, to

-transport ‘FBI - agents to their observation posts

‘around the Branch Davidian residence, and by FBI

..agents to- guard “the perimeter of the operation.
- -During the insértion of the CS agent on April 19,

the AttorneyGeneral. also visited . the:Branch -
Davidian residence in order to personally view:the .
tactical situation: This.officer was:present-at the

-/ nance work on the electronics equipment belonging -

" _'to the FBL The accounts given by all personnel fa- . -

" - " miliar with this_aspect of the operation. and.- who::-
' ~ Guard cooks were present to prepare meals for the
‘mechanics). Other-National Guard troops provided

were interviewed by the subcommittees confirm

““operated the equipment during the standoff.
- b. National Guard personnel and equipment

During the standoff, the Texas National Guard
provided a number of military vehicles to the FBI.

. Principal among these were 10 Bradley Fighting -
Vehicles:(Bradleys); 4~ M728 Combat -Engineering:: : o L ‘
... .The. Economy. Act38! requires the Justice De-
105€ . .partment to reimburse the Department of Defense
5 wie. - for the“cost of the equipment and personnel sup-

‘Vehicles (CEV’s),-2-"MIA1' Abrams_tanks,
Me8 tank:retriéver; Th 7

- that, with this one exception, only. FBI personnel -

- ‘8o that the-agentséoul
- tiles:containin

.--the Bradleys were used-by FBI agents to maneu-
- ver close enough to the Branch Davidian residence

d fire Ferret round projec-
' CS:agent into the windows of the

residence. : "
" The CEV's were not used until April 19, At.
tached to each CEV was a long triangular boom-
like arm. Attached to the booms of two of the
CEV's were mounted devices that sprayed CS
agent mixed with carbon dioxide. On April 19,
these CEV’s were used to ram holes into the
Davidians residence. The operators in each CEV
then inserted CS agent into the building using the
devices affixed to the boom. Insertions of CS agent

- occurred in four distinct phases throughout the

personnel. Additionally, one of the :two senior - |
- morning ‘of the :19th.” At one point, one of the

CEV’s became damaged and could no longer spray
CS agent. As the day progressed, the FBI began to

~-use -the  CEV's- to -“deconstruct® the Branch

Davidian .residence, using them to ram into the

-1 ‘The:typé of support provided by the active duty, - 'corners” and. sides of the building, creating large -

'l.tfébps" consisted ‘primarily of performing: repairs - openings in_the building. At one point, part of the

rear roof collapsed after one CEV made multiple

- entries into the side of the building.
- In addition to these vehicles, a number of sup-

port vehicles (e.g., Humvees, used to transport per-
sonnel, and flatbed trucks, used to haul the Brad-
leys and CEV's to Waco) were located at or near

“'the Branch Davidian residence. Additionally, De-

fense " Department provided support equipment

An unknown number.of Texas National Guard

of these personnel performed maintenance on the
military vehicles loaned to the FBI or to provide
support “services for these troops (i.e., National

remedial training to. the FBI's HRT members who
were to operate the Bradleys and CEV’s. Addition-
ally, on April 19, some National Guard troops as-
sisted FBI agents- in refilling the CEV's with the
CS riot control agent. _

it & Reimbirsement

myd at 314, :

. W31 USC. §1538.
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* port provided to it. The subcommittees have been c. April 14, 1993 meeting with Attorney Uen-
informed that this reimbursement has been made. eral Reno
it by e irs ST SRR s S
s - P - 1 -
S @ Request by Texas Governor . - .~ " eral Renoand several Justice Department an
_ " When Texas Governor Ann Richards learned of “officials. -According to the-Justice Department Re-
" the failed ‘ATF raid on February 28, she requested - port, “several military re'presen.tativeg" were _also
to consult. with 8 knowledgeable military officer _ present. 362 The subcommittees’ investigation iden- -
v'iboﬂ,f-"lhé".if,i?iafﬁt- In response to her.request, the _' tified the two senior military officers present at
' commander ‘of the U.S. Army’s 111 Corps at-Fort . the’ f}‘.eetmz-__"_l‘hese_-tylo-ofﬁcers briefed the mem-
i ,:,'Hbéd.;'l‘x;"hsk‘e'd the assistant division commander .. Pe“;"fi;fhe subcommittees in 8 classified briefing
- SE Y Vof the First Cavalry Division of the III Corps, also 2 July of 1995 in conjunction with the subcommit
e e et Hood, to mieet with . Governor Richards. © “tees’ public hearings. Additioraly, 2 Defense De-
e s the Govror on he evenng e, repemiative el S L
"of February 28.. uring the meeting, e officer an-.. . cuoq -
swered the vaemor’s"questig:s co%\;emigg the ::‘:f‘&g:ob::ﬁ:‘n tlhf fgg‘ge“ and Attorney Gen-
- types of military equipment the A had used The officers resent at the April 14 meeting at
during the raid and the types of military equip=  the invitation gf FBI officials were to answergany
ment which Federal law enforcement officials  questions Attorney General Reno might pose about
might use in the future. The Governor also re-  the FBI's plan to end the standoff, The officers un-
quested that the officer meet with the Texas Adju-  derstood they had been gelected to attend the
\ f;"t l(}eneral)_(ﬂ‘\v; ow":“";a“‘::: :]f '{'\ia'rz“ Na- me;t.ing because c:{d t;\leir s;;;zcialﬂté%ﬁcal trainilng '
e - tiONB .Guard), o recently en ap- an experience. itionally, commander -
~.z7 - pointed to his position. ... —. 0 ez * Rogers knew one of the officers personally and had
. Viitto the Branch Davidion resdence faciltated the el ont e e rcors ot
w'"' m‘ﬁ”‘m T ts . wtend the meeting 3 . o
Two semer_vérmy_-eﬂieer?jvﬁmcwaged in"a meet- -7 The e féers informed ‘Attorney General Reno -
_ ing of.Justice, Department and FBI ‘officials with " that‘they could fict comment on specific FBI plans
. ;v the Attorney _General -on “April - 14. “During the* . to énd the- standoff.384 :One of the officers did in:
2.5 meeting, the participants ;_h,gcusse__d,t.hg FBI's plan’ ™ form- Attorney ‘General Reno_ that if the HRT had
to end the standoff. The subcommittees’ investiga:" been - a° military “force .under his command, 1€
- .-‘tion revealed that one of the Army officers visited would récommend pulling it away from the Branch
the Branch Davidian residence on April 13, accom- - _Davidian residence for rest and retraining.36% They
0 BEETT T also explained to- Attorney General Reno that if

panied by HRT commander Rogers.
ili had been called in to end a barricade

“During a briefing of the subcommittees these of- the military 8 D
situation as part of 8 military operation in a for-

T ficers indicated that Rogers had arranged for the 5 : ) ]
e - officers to-be included in the April 14 meeting and .. €87 country, it would focus its efforts on “taking
: - Dad invited one of them to view the “Branch. .- out the leader of the operatiod.
' " Davidian residence to better understand the tac- .- .. '_rhe'qﬁ'lcers_'beheved Attorney General Reno un-
. ‘tical- situation. . Rogers ‘met the: officer at .the. . derstood their comments 8s an illustration of the
- Branch Davidian residence and arranged for a hel- r'tactlcal--ypnmpgl that a group heavily dependent
“ieopter tour of the perimeter of the area. The offi- ~~ona ghansmat.xcleader for direction, such as th'e
 cer informed the subcommittees that he only “ob-- ' Davidians, can best be controlled if the leader is
. wi o arved the FBI's activities there and did not-take- ;_:_gemgved_from-control. The officers believe Attorney
.07 07 partin the ongoing operation, The officer and Rog- -~ We:":‘r:‘ ffnn?at‘;n ?:tsw:iil'g = o"L‘i‘Jﬁfﬂ“L’L’f&‘S
" erg then left Waco to travel to Washington for the . put v \pPTop dire |a 1'- ‘g‘ P the d :
e eting with Attorney Beomeral Reno," ~ 57 ut were »nqt‘ rgcty app icable to the domestic,
- m'el‘ehe 5 er fu rﬂléfyinfonn 1 the . uBcoriir‘r’iiweés - ‘k: eriforcement situation facing Attorney General
that his visit to the Branch Davidian residence MO
was his first visit and that he did not return to the 3. Foreign military personnel :
saT ML e " Branch Davidian _residence after April 14. The Foreign military personnel were present at the
E other gﬁice:g:_:pif.e:sgjgagﬂx_éprﬁl 14 meeting stated Branch Davidian residence during the standoff
that ‘he did not visit-the Branch - Davidian “Fesie - sometimg_ig,qucb._jl’{he__two persons present were
dence. at. nnyhme’l'nembcommmeesmtemews T e
with™ T and ‘other military . petsonnel "
confirmed the

"'Jmueebes: Rséh(!ss. e 3R T

‘38 Hearings Part 3 at 304, 314 (statement of Allen Holmes, Assistant
Sécreétary of Defense for Specis), Operations and Low Intensity Conflict} -
- 384]d at.304.. . SelTe s -

s d, at 304,31 : D SR

(K

h o tb’lzm:- e s gt 3 :
. present at Waco during the 'standoff
=+ statements-of the Army_officers:. ©:5

T | g !



- ‘members of the 22nd Regiment of  the British
Army’s Special Air Service (SAS). This branch pos-
sesses special tactical military skills and has a role
similar to U.S. Army Special Forces troops. Amer-

-7 The-two SAS represeritatives were not
= April 19, the date the standoff ended. ™

present_on

- Accordingly to ‘the Justice Department’s written
response-to questions submitted by the subcommit-
: tees] “the SAS personne]l were present—at. Fort

-Bragg, NC inearly 1993 on other business and re-

. HRT maintains liaison with the military and law
enforcement counter-terrorist units of friendly for-
eign countries, including the United Kingdom,
Germany, Italy, Spain, Australia, and Denmark.
HRT commanders occasionally invite representa.
tives of these units, a well as the U.S. Army Spe-
cial Forces, to observe operations in which the

_HRT is engaged, as each of the organizations-has

similar skills and performs similar functions. This- -

-~ 7 professional .courtesy apparently .is_extended to
= FBI officials a8 well by the U.S. Special-Forces-and
 the counter-terrorist units
- above. The FBI'explained the presence.of the SAS

“~'personnel at the Branch Davidian residence:as an
- . example ‘of this type of information-sharing., " "..:
= i The "subcommittees’ investigation finds no’sup-

port for the assertions made by some that SAS
- personnel, or any. other foreign persons, took part
- in the activities of U.S. Government agencies at

the Branch Davidian residence. Accordingly, the

- subcommittees conclude that the two SAS person-

" "Branch Davidian residence 3¢ and that they took
" 'hio part in the government's activities there.-

. IN THE GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS AT WACO ™~

~w . - 1. The Posse Comitatus Act was not vio-
R .-.‘ & ‘

- " occurred-up to February 28, 1893. The sub-

_committees conclude that no actual violation of the

military support provided to the ATF through Feb-
‘ruary 29, 1993. The subcommittees review of this
question was divided into two parts: the support
provided by active duty military personnel prior to

"~ National Gua

“9993 up -f,o'_'_npd“. on. Febmry 28

LERE

of, th

. ican military personnel present during the stand- .

" . - off informed-the subcommittees that the SAS per- ..
- ... sonnel observed the activities of the FBI and took.

- no part’in the actions of the military or the FBI.-

1. §uested"to observe the FBI's HRT command post .
. ~'and forward tactical positions” at  Waco. FBI offi-
- -cials  have informed ‘the subcommittees that the -

~of the. countries: listed »

=~ nel"were the only foreign persons present at the.

No vio!ations of the i’osseComitatusAct -

"= Posse Comitatus Act occurred as a result of the -

February 28 :‘nd the support provided by Texas..

fi i “°\nolai!°n°fthe_Posse
.of, the support provided

several of 'whom were foreign -

by the active duty military personnel whou facili-.
tated the training of ATF agents at Fort Hood, TX
in late February 1993. The ATF's initial request to
~ Operation Alliance included a request that mili-
tary medical personnel actually participate in the
raid on the Branch Davidian residence. The ATF
" also requested that military personnel participate
_.in the formulation-of: the ATF's overall raid plan.
. against_the Davidians" residence. These requests
___ raised:the concern of military lawyers due to their
Posse Comitatus implications. The subcommittees
--..conclude that these officers were correct to raise .
... these: concerns and-that-their actions helped pre-
. ..vent a violation.of the Posse Comitatus Act.
"~ As a result of the concern by these officers as to
~ ATF's request, less support was provided than ini-
. _tially requested. That support was limited to pro-
“viding and staffing a training area for the ATF at
Fort Hood, teaching basic first aid, and providing
general advice on communications questions. Be-
cause these activities do not rise to the level of di-
rect participation in a law enforcement action,
they did not violate the Posse Comitatus Act.
__ The subcommittees also find no violation of the
_....Posse Comitatus Act as a result of the support pro-
“" 'vided by the Texas National Guard which partici-
pated in the training that the ATF conducted for
.., its.agents.at.Fart Hood, TX in late February 1993
- and . which_ flew: the helicopters on February 28
‘that ‘were’ part of the ATFs raid on the Branch
... Davidianvresidence.. The Texas National Guard

" “troops. who participated in these activities were

' acting in their “state national guard” status under
the command and control of the Governor of
. Texas, even though the costs of the operation were
paid by the Federal Government pursuant to title

.. 32of the U.S. Code. .
The Posse Comitatus Act does not govern the ac-
" tions of the National Guard when it is acting in a
- “non-Federal (i.e., State) status. Because the Texas
. "National Guard troops participating in the ATF's

" . training and the raid itself were acting in this sta-

. E. FINDINGS CONCERNING MILITARY INVOLVEMENT = tu » »
- - ‘them." Accordingly, no ‘violation was possible and

tus, the.Posse Comitatus Act did not apply to

" . none, therefore, occurred.
__b. No.violations of the Posse Comitatus Act
_ occurred after February 28, 1893. The sub-
" committees conclude that no actual violation of the
. “Posse Comitatus Act occurred as a result of the
_military .support provided to the FBI after Feb-
" ruary 28, 1993. The subcommittees review of this
‘question involved two issues: the support provided
by active duty military personnel prior to Feb-
ruary 28 and the support provided by Texas Na-
tional Guard troops: through April 19, 1993,
. 'The_subcommittees.find no violation of the Posse
‘Comitatus.Act as a result of the support provided
. by-the_active :duty- military personnel who were
"__present at the Branch Davidian residence from
. February: 28, .1993:t0: April 19, 1993. The sub-
committees’ investigation indicates, and the testi-
“mony of the witnesses who testified at the hear-
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the Defense Department as otherwise would have

ings confirmed that no active duty military person-
been required under Federal law.

nel actively participated in any actions that can
characterized as the exercise of the law. The ac- The subcommittees also conclude that the com-
.. .= - tions of the enlisted personnel appear to have been  mander of the military personnel providing the
1. - limited to-setting up equipment and performing  training knew or should have known that the
: - ypgintenance on it, or providing support to other - ATF's allegations as to .the. existence of a drug
* ilitary. personnel (e.g;, transportation, food serv-- ~manufacturing operation at the Davidian residence
_~'jee); -All -of the military. personnel interviewed -by - - - were; at best, overstated- and were probably un-
“the..subcommittees confirmed that only- FBI ‘em- """ true. His failure to raise this issue with his superi-
“ployees operated Athe-__tpilithry“equibméht*jdﬁr’ing?" . ors is-troubling. The. subcommittees believe this
:-.the law:.enforcement activities conducted at the failure should be.reviewed by. Defense Department
Branch;_DaVidi%n;g_r_eSidepéeLv_'_I‘he ‘subcommittees - _. authorities, - :p - TR
" found no evidence to the contrary. - L - L 8. No -foreign military. personnel or other
-~ Ag: discussed above, the Posse ;C6:ﬁitétﬁ§“‘Actf“-"r'-foreign'?personatook part in any way in any

.. does not govern-the actions of the National Guard - -of - the -~ government’s. - actions toward the
. . when it is acting in a non- Federal (ice., State) sta- - ‘Branch Davidians. While some foreign military
tus. Accordingly, none of the actions taken by the - personnel were present in Waco during the govern-
.- National Guard during the standoff ‘violated the  ment's operations toward the Davidians, there is
Posse Comitatus Act. The subcommittees note,  no evidence that any of these persons took part in
however, that it appears that the National Guard’s the government’s operations in any way.
role during the standoff was very limited. The Na- 4. Civilian law enforcement’s increasing
tional Guard role generally involved troops trans-  use of militaristic tactics is unacceptable. The
porting to the Branch Davidian residence all of the FBI's and ATF's reliance on military type tactics
. * military vehicles used by the FBI during the greatly concerns the subcommittees, The Waco and
ot e :-standoﬁ';—-and;,perfomigg,rgu_tjne maintenance on - Ruby - Ridge incidents epitomize civilian Jaw en-
C them.on e T TEeE mE o forcement’s growing acceptance and use of military
.2 20n:April 19, National Guard troops assisted the . type'taci)tlics. The subcommittees find this trend un-
acceptable.: - - ’ '

FBI in refilling the CEV's .with the CS: agent used . ::

/i the: unsuccessful effort to induce the Davidians
_to 7leave the. residence. - Because,” the - National

. Guard tfoops are.not, subject, the Prohibitions of:; - the tactical operation. When ATF had to decide be-
:"the .Posse’ Comitatus: Act -when “géting - in- their. - tween- arresting Koresh .away from the Branch
State status, no: violation . occurted. “The ..sub- .- Davidian residence or. 8 -direct confrontation, it
committees note, however, that had the National  chose direct confrontation. -ATF also decided to

.- = rz:Guard troops instead ‘been active duty personnel,  conduct a dynamic entry as opposed to a siege.

or acting in a Federal status, their participation in - . The subcommittees are not recommending that
the execution of the CS gas plan would have vio-  the use of militaristic tactics should always be pre-
- lated the Posse Comitatus Act. cluded. The subcommittees acknowledge that there

v a2, The ATF misled the Defense Department ... are certain circumstances in which military type
=20 ¢ as to the _exigt.l?!§¢¢-°f_ a drug ;nexuaf-.in.érder.;_- _tactics may be necessary. The subcommittees urge
to obtain pon-reimbursable support from the - -all Federal law enforcement agencies to review
.-~ -Defense Department. The subcommittees . con- . - their policies on military training and tactics and
.. - clude .that the A'Iflf‘;.nppqpxonally misled Defense .. "develop appropriate guidelines for when such tac-
.. Department and military personqel as to. whether.....tics are., acceptable. Military training, especially
= . the Davidians were operating an illegal drug man- * .specialized -training in. combat tactics, should be
e T ufacturing-operation at the Davidian residence. It - highly- restricted and the use of military tactics,
TTE e ~-appear"s..,»that,the. ATF agents involved in planning --.suchasa dynamic entry should be approved at the
Comm L &e raicli knew that they CO__u_ld obtain suppfort gom highest agency levels, - - .- -
... ...z..: the.military.at no.cost in ‘preparation for their ... . . o '
" +aid. It also sppears that the ATF kriew: that this:. . = . - =i RECOMMENDATIONS
support would be provided promptly if the pres- - 1. Congress should consider applying the
ence of a drug manufacturing operation was al-- . Posse Comitatus Act to the National Guard
leged. While there had been allegations that a with respect to situations where a Federal
e .. drug manufacturing operation was located at the law enforcement entity serves as the lead
ud s Jee fimoDavidian -Tesidence- at. some point in the mid to. . agency. The subcommittees acknowledge that the
late 1980's before Koresh :t.ookcohtfoli'oﬂthe.gr_oup.‘»;-- Posse Comitatus Act has been and continues to be
idence that the drug operation:con- . a significant p-otection for the rights of the people.

_strong as most citizens

rotections -may n
ssifme, o sl L
- have - “As-discussed:.above, the Posse . Comitatus Act
imbursé” does not-apply to-the National Guard when it is
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:'-i'Whéﬁ_f‘ATE:f'éEéd the optlon of conducting a reg-
*. ulatory. inspection. or ‘tactical operation, it chose .

‘The events. in,;,Wg¢q.£owgyer; suggest that these - -



acting in its State status. As the events at Waco - through the Director of Military Support (DOMS),
illustrate, actions taken by National Guard troops an Army two-star general headquartered at the
can never violate this law, even when those same  Pentagon who heads a staff that is on-call 24
acts would violate the law were they undertaken  hours a day. In some cases, commanders of local
by active duty military personnel. The subcommit-  military bases are authorized to provide support
... .. ... tees question whether this distinction is acceptable " without approval of the DOMS if the requests are
T to the American people, - -- = = - - limited in scope. . c
‘ : .. The purpose: of-the. Posse -Comitatus; Act is_to " 'As of 1993, requests for military support relat-
ng to.counterdrug operations were not required to

...prevent the. government from using ‘the military
‘against-its own-citizens. Yet the National ‘Guard " be
and the Reserve exists in’ part, to augmenit'the ac-" “stead were chanrieled through Operation Alliance,
tive duty. military: in times -of f'.e_?d-'__': ‘National * g group representing agencies such as the ATF,
" Guard troops-receive” military “training.“National °. the Border Patrol,-and other Federal law enforce-
;.. Guard -units - are- equipped ‘with ‘;m{l_’_@%’,_?q‘fl_ _ment. agencies. together with military representa-
..ment, in some ases_the most sophisticated and le-"""tjves. Operation Alliance serves merely as a clear-
t.hal‘.rmhm'y aje?“’f“éf:t in ‘the Defense -Depart. “inghouse for requests, tasking actual military or-
ment s arsen &mc uding tanks, fighter and bomb-’ .. ganizations to provide the support. In this case,
- er aircraft, an armored personnel carriers. These.  QOperation Alliance tasked Joint Task Force-6 and
:H;gésby“dis;g?’; mziy mznn:ir;f Itll:e (Jame capa-’ " the Texas Natiom:ll Guarld, two of the military or-
R o ] ganizations at its disposal. -
one-half of the U.S. Armed Forces is composed of Requests for support involving the use of lethal
National Guard and Reserve forces. When acti-  equipment, such as Bradley Fighting Vehicles and
vated birt t.hg ul:'es"éientvd t:wvb{ﬁhor_\al Guard be-  tanks,367 were to be made through the Office of
co%fil‘e) Fe:leraf ‘l:w"e & “ﬁi ml's}?g.bet th the Secretary of Defense in the Pentagon. Appar-
National in Ite + af-io u?gstamses'y:;ir; dis? quly,. h:}s:r_ever, that requirement was not complied
... National Guard in ite 15 ~statuses, S diS-. . with:in:this case. === :
- {l‘:“’;‘&?\ “ﬂf‘é‘:g:‘;’ﬁ? ;::b?;gﬁ‘;’g;:y Ofngs‘:d!)k‘;b' ..The subcommittees believe that authority for ap-
ic. Ma e{l to- learn thet compor tsu;pth oL 8 roving.military support for domestic law enforce-
:,‘?.'?9@'7'2}‘ o t:;{%ta a °°"¢'lp9."_‘;°'-‘, .0t ¢ ?_l“):s.a.’.‘.‘. . ment-operations should be located within one of-
--S°’°,"'s. Se 'mli e dtg%use. 1n 19p?rgb?ge:"e's'e%“ fice within_the Office of the Secretary of Defense.
Storm, - :.gma a’thanU ,°sé"§"‘-,§.°, 581" “sﬁ - Centrally. locating this responsibility will help en-
ff;’gf:u.zf f}l‘eﬁmess;t:aﬁt?tﬁuﬁfgg—qs t -:}' sufé’jthﬁt},unifom‘f“stmit!érds are applied in evalu-
“category.. Given that many National Guard units* 2ing all requests for military support and that no
: v, ALY " _agencies can successfully “end-run” the approv
gave f°'.'t': ictapa:klhh%smslmxlar to 't.hat. "tf}'l atcuve process. It also will reduce confusion among law
L “?i[ uncl-ti.'t.i makes bo e co?rqo,;dul?seth P Oné enforcement agencies which, under the process as
. g::nistaatusv:\c:swg!i?z anot?l':og:;s :’r'; not.yln :hor‘:;ssief - it existed in 1993, first had to determine without
it is important to prevent military force from bei,hg Defense Department gui dance the purpose for ths
©© 77 used to enforce the civil laws, it should matter lit-" * :}t:pp ort (":" c.:;a.unterdrug orhnot. c?u}:\ teg drug) lmed
TR0 tle the-*status” of the force used against-the citi- i o type of military assets that might be involy
R “genry. . ,-,;.‘.(l.eub;é.letha.]tassetls)e c;r stng:llytm:n-letll;xaltafs;ts& Tthhe
Co T . o eposooao - subcommittees believe that it is best le e
e quein o plving he Posee Comitus i, o ntance o trmine the
" recently by the Congress. Accordingly, the ‘sub- ... ture and-type of support it is able to provide, in
" committees recommend that Congress hold hear- ‘keeping with the Posse Comitatus Act and it own
ings on this. matter to- determine whether the- _ meed to fulfill its primary defense mission.
 Posse Comitatus Act should be broadéned to apply i nre process for civilian law enforcement sgen
to the National Guard and what exceptions to the o, Tarc 6 military assistance must require
" _act's..prohibitions, if.any, are appropriate to 't.h‘é""""fnthat.' a]l ‘Tequests _'and gpp_rovals be in writing,
©77""National Guard in light of its role-and mission.— = specifying in detail -the requested and approved
.2 The.Department of- Defense -should military-assistance. Additionally, the Department
" “etreamline the approval p for military of Defense needs to ‘establish a clear and concise
support so that both Possel omComitatus Act standard for what constitutes a sufficient drug
conflicts and ' nexus controversies are ne;ms.dCongress shouldlspecifﬁcallj{lafltabl‘sl:’cnmli_
. drug A ,» = ° _nal and pecuniary penalties for wi violations of '
.‘,:_nvo,xde.d in the future, The subcommittees’ in- - 4}o 4o nexus standard; . .

As:discussed abire, however, while same of these vehicles are con-

idés used by the FBI during.the standoll had been rendered inoper-

tive ‘prior to the delivery of thé vehides to the Branch Davidian resi-

denca. Hearings Part-3 at:314 (statement of Allen Holmes, Assistant ™
tary of Defenise for Special Operstions and Low Intensity Conflict).

T
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e_submitted to the DOMS for approval but in- - -

rred lethal equi t the ystems in all of the military ve-



The subcommittees acknowledge that in May
1995, the Secretary of Defense directed the Under
Secretary of Defense for Policy to establish a work-

i up “to conduct a comprehensive review of
t system by which Defense Department
and responds to request for assistance

the -

..{s.')

"— TeTRITE Cva‘uates al R
s initiated by outside’ agencies.” As“a result” of the”
. -~." working group’s’ recommendations, the Secretary
- iipecently directed that requests for, military support’
are to'be channeled through the Office of ‘the-As-’
. sistant Secretary of Defense for Special Operatioris’
- and -Low -Intensity. Conflict. The “subcommittees -
--commend this decision_ to centralize the ‘approval -
- process for providing this type of support. This pol-
. icy should be frequently monitored so as to ensure
" that law enforcement agencies,’ -and field com-- -
manders, are coraplying with it. T
3. Congress should review the legal status
of memoranda of agreement for the inter-
state use of National Guard personnel for ci-
vilian law enforcement purposes. The sub-
committees’ investigation revealed that the use of
National Guard personnel across State lines for
.._-law_enforcement_purposes is .8 _common practice.
This practice is ~conducted through simple;” pro=
forma memoranda of agreement which rarely take ...’
nto ‘account: State laws governing the- use:of:the:
National Guard. The subcommittees believe that,":
.in practice, many. ;¢ thése agrééments siipersede.. -
tate constitutions and statutes without ‘legal au-
~thority. . The -

sabcommittees are’ coné
ts do not comply with Federal laws .-
the U.S. Constitution.
- ecommend that Congress, .
" the Department of. Defense, and its National . -
Guard Bureau come to an agreement on the prop-
... ... .er.legal status of these National Guard Memo-
. .. _randa of Agreement. If it is determined these.
RN --..;agreemen;s-reciuife congressional ratification, pro- .
: - ..~ cedures to obtain ‘such gpproval'should be -estab- -
. lished b’y't.heNat.idnal.Guard Bureaw.- -7 T.TTL -
.. Regardless of “whether these memoranda -of .
agreement fequiré"é“o‘ri‘gre‘ss)ibnal ratification, how= -
ever, the National Guard Bureau should establish
a centralized review process for all Memoranda o
" Agreément involving the interstate use of the. Na- -
tional Guard personnel. This review process must - -

"""these agreemen
-and may violate
The .subcommittees T

found, the appropriate le

~yestigate the activities of
“in light
- ‘tees concl
“knew or should have kno
“a ‘sufficient -drug-nexus
- gupport provided to it o
*'ation Alliance board wh
-garding

- cers were present when

_the. drug. nexus_were nowh
“the subcommittees r

grned: that 7=

. been an.ano

General Accounting Office inve
f - ties of Operation Alliance. '

‘determination that “perti- .

or other Federal laws are
gal action should occur,
if permitted under

Anti-Deficiency Act
including criminal prosecution

existing law. - ,
- B.'The General Accounting Office should in-
Operation Alliance
of the.Waco_incident. The subcommit-
uded -that Operation Alliance personnel
wn that ATF did not have
to warrant the military
n a non-reimbursable basis.
re members of the Oper-
ich_approved requests for
‘military assistance, yet_they voicéd no concerns re-
ATF's plan to direct] "assault an alleged
thamphetamine laboratory. Military offi-
ATF was presented a
paper detailing the potential dangers and special
precautions required when dealing with an active
methamphetamine laboratory. The purpose of the
meeting was to determine whether a drug nexus
existed. Even though there was evidence that no
drug existed, those military officers present took
no action. UPS receipts which allegedly detailed
deliveries of. prgcur_gpr__chémica!; to the Branch
Davidian residence and wére used to substantiate
ere_nowhere to-be found when
equested copies.

ly, the subcommittees review of mili-
provided at their request and the
ws with persons involved in this
onstraté that-there was a con
tinuing concern from senior military officers that
JTF-6 was providing support to non-counterdrug
activities, and that the Special Operations Com-
mand was attempting to reinforce resistance to
this recurring misuse of military counterdrug as-
gets and funds, referred to as “cheating.” Given
that- the military - assistance_ to ATF for Waco
under dubious .circumstances appears to not have
maly, and the fact that Operation Alli-
as significantly expanded since
s- recommend that the
stigate the activi-

Senior. DEA agents we

active me

* Additional A
tary documents
results of intervie
matter _clearly dem

ance’s jurisdiction h
Waco, the subcommittee

Ns To END 'ms STANDOFF WITH

V1. NEGOTIATIO
o =7 ¢HE DAVIDIANS

. LEL :”<incl\lde apef:case lggal tetmennmme T mes Lzee
-~ nent State law. is not violated by the agreement.:.. = - Negotiations between ‘the FBI and the Branch
4. The General Accounting Office should - Davidians continued for 51 days during which
audit the military assistance provided to the time the negotiators utilized generally accepted
ATF and to the FBI in connection with their negotiation techniques. The FBI was unwilling to
approach toward the Davidians.

law enforcement activities toward ' the

... .. ..Branch Davidians Given that the subcommit-
~“tees have been unable 1o obtain detailed informa----:
i _value of the military ‘support- -

“ATF and-the FBI, the subcommit-._
nd that the General ‘Accounting .Of:
fice conduct an ‘audit of these ‘agencies.to ascertai
~he value of the military support provided.to, them
=-gnd-to - ensure that’ complete reimbursement has

been made by both- agencies. If viola

i

-engage in a novel

tions of the

ation training, es-
to be the best in
able room for re-
co record, im

While American hostage negoti
pecially.FBI training, js thought
the world, there-rémains consideral
assessment- and, based .on the Waco
provement. ‘The- e
tiators; but the ‘B
outside experts and.too eager to ignore the advice
given by its own experts. The evolving nature of
hostage barricade situations necessitates that in

uréau’ was-unwilling to engage

55
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FBI possesses exceptional nego-- .. = .-



the future the FBI continually strive for the pre-
paredness to confront more emotional and unpre-
dictable barricaded subjects. At Waco, FBI resist-
ance to different negotiation methods may have
—contnbuted to a premature dec:sxon to end. the

LA 'rm-: com-'ucr BETWEEN. TACI'ICAL comnnens '

- AND N‘EGOTIATORS

-F.:The: hproblem with two leams one negouatmg
- teamand a tactical team' "

—-deployed"l‘he Crisis. Management . Team is’ made
“up ‘of ‘@ variety of law enforcement professionals, ..
“among them agénts trained as tactical ‘agents and
> as negotiators. The team was divided into groups -
with separate leadershxp and different respons:bd-
. ities. Each team gave its perspectxve to Jeffrey
-Jamar, the Special Agent in Charge, who deter-
mined which strategy to employ in negotiations.
There often was a conflict between these two ap-
proaches.
Although disposed to the active approach, Jamar
. allowed the proposals of each team to be imple-
... . . mented snmu]baneously, work.mg ngamst each
st E S other 7
a Standani Prooedune in Negotumons .

Noesner, the . eonfhct between tactical -and. nego- -
“tiating teamis is.the one universal element iin-law

" forces are trained to act in stressful, violent situa
tions. Agents are inclined toward t.he *“action im-
. perative,” the sense among agents that motivates
- them to act.38 Negotiators are more inclined to
seek a nonviolent resolution of the standoff simply
by virtue of their training.
- .~ The FBI has a policy in place that favors a nego-
- txated settlement.37® Through-a type of negotiation™
- - .. .called active listening, négotiators attempt to find
~ways to explain to the barricaded subject why it is
. inhis best interest to seek a nonviolent solution,-

R i -4 pohcy and training of negohawrs con- -

ﬂ:ct.s with the “action imperative.”

b quor dtsagreements between the two
~-teams .- .

© RS0 half of its-perspective and adamantly opposed the
e “other’s.3! Dr. Alan A. Stone 372 chromcled the pro-

3% Briefing by Federal Buresu of lmmﬂgndan Sq:em-wy Special
A;::tcuyNoelnew lhewbmmmueu. November 1995.

. "‘U&Dep&d.laﬁeehepwtbthebepulym on

the Events at Waco, TX 75 (1993) {bereinafter Jostice Department Re- .

partl_“The guidn’ prim:iple in: negotistion and tactical employment is -

{7 Gy prinimize the risk to all persons involved—hoitsges,
jocts, and law enforcement officers.” But the Justice Departiment report

SRR euuhtﬂnnﬂﬁngmud‘ﬂn?ﬂomm\yeu'nm
) ok Profoss ychiatry and

E
i
LH
é
_g

At. Waco, the FBI Crisis, Management Team was *

nforcement operations of this type.368-FBI tactical

Each. team adamantly argued to Jamar on be '

_gression in strategy that occurred among the FB;

Commanders at Waco in his Report and Rec-
ommendations. At first, according to Stone, “the
agents on the ground proceeded with a strategy of .
.conciliatory negotiation, which had the approval
-and understanding of the entire chain of com-
. mand. - Pushed - by the tactical leader, the com-
..mander ‘on the ground began to allow tactical pres.

... 'sures to be placed on the residence in addition to
"negotmtxon "373 Stone summarized the feelings of

negot:ators “of 'this “inevitable progression. Stone
.-writes,” *This ‘changing strategy at the residence
" from (1) conciliatory negotiating to (2) negotiation
_and tactical pressure and then to (3) tactical pres-

““gure alone, evolved over the objections of the FBI's
" own experts and without clear understanding up

the chain of command.”374
The d:sagreement was called a “fundamental

strategy disagreement.”37¢ The negotiators sug-

gested that tactical maneuvers worked against the
negotiation process. The tactical team wanted to
employ aggressive tactics. Regarding the conflict
with tactical people, McClure says simply, “Tac-
tical people think in tactical terms and negotiators
think in negotiation terms:”37¢ Byron Sage, a Su-
_pervisory Special Agent and the lead day-to-day
" FBI negotiator at Waco, testified before the sub-

——— commlttees, “[The. confhct between tactical and ne-

'Aecordxng to the FBI's Chief - Negotiator, dary *gotiation” teams] “presented difficulties, for sure,
~ but_that is not unusual. These are not matters

we were not. prepared to attempt to negotiate .
thro gh »317 In the:'end, however, the tactical
team won- the endorsement of Jamar.

“Jamar decided to constrict the perimeter of the
__building by moving vehicles closer to the residence.
On March 9, 1993 the FBI began to use Bradley
Fighting Vehicles to clear debris (including auto-
mobiles and boats) from the front of Mount Car-
mel. On March ‘14, 1993 the FBI focused bright
" lights on the- residence in an effort to disrupt the
sleep of those inside. Four days later, loudspeakers
were set up to communicate messages from the
- FBI to the Davidians inside the residence. Soon
--thereafter, the FBI began playing recordings of Ti-
betan chants, rabbits being slaughtered, and other
_sound effects.?7 ... -

‘While negot.mt,ors were trying to gain the trust

Cof Koresh -and “the:Davidians, the actions of the

_ tactical team gave Davidians reason to distrust
FBI's negotiators. At the hearings, Sage explained,

cuding time constraints, Dr. Stone nnbnnud an individual report apsrt
mw;mwmnzms«wmman

33 Alan A Stone, Report: To Deputy Attorney General Philip
Heymann, Report and Recommendations Concerning the Handling of [n.
cidents Such as the Branch Davidian Standofl in Wla). TX, Punetist,
Alanltswne. M. D » (November 8, }993) (heruuﬂer scone nepur&l

97 Hearings Part.2 at 316. Gary Noesner testificd before the sub-

i, bystanders, sub- ':m’tfeel. “At Waco, there_was-a_fundamental strategy disagreement
. uwhlwnththlanﬂﬂm
. vunud bhnellmvekeyed

tion leam
lppmch d the tactical team'’s Appmnch

: o Py
= Law at- Hnrvolrrd University, originally was asked to” pnrﬁdpc('a in the '.,'. "

Z 0039119



. tle bit more with Koresh and his

St - - say should ‘
. = tion. Notwithstanding Sage's description of the'tac- .~

o+ the  problem:.was “not one of

.,.,-'._.;.charge of
. “like Waco. Noesner describ

- - .. -.intelligence
-~ 77" has to weigh all

.. " has to come to a deci
.. .. ...Noesner emphasized the fact
77 “lem.in Waco was one of leadership. The situation’ .

“It is not uncommon to, as part of the negotiation
process, to actually try to ingratiate yourself a lit-
followers by say-

of our hands, but that is why .

“you need to give us something to work with.”372 It ;
=+ jg -difficult- to_imagine: that-use -of tactical force

" could be a beneficial tool with those whom expérts’
‘betreated with. caution and_concili

‘consequences of aggressive movements

Cof FBI were. not ones it intended. They were pre-.
- dicted, however. Gary Noesner remarked, “I do not "

awake from nightmares or have trouble sléeping at

- night . .- because _everything that I predicted

~ would happen, did happen.”3% S

' ¢. Insufficient communication between the
two teams and their commanders

In testimony before the subcommittees, Jamar
described the strategic decisionmaking process. He
said, “The supervisors of each component would
get together and report and discuss matters. And
we would have various meetings.” 38! Noesner said

the negotiation

He' let ‘each’ strategy

'p‘r’imér'y one, 383 " e

. d. Decisions between the options presented by
T the twoteams [ DT

In early 1993, FBI policy was to place the Spe-
cial Agent in Charge of the FBI's regional office in
making operational decisions in a crisis
) bed the role of th
saying, “He has to take the information and couple
that - with the information
gources, from the

all those

tactical team and he

decision.” 383

someone to make the decision on

tional” group.
tion-oriented agent, one who
tion imperative.” 3%
Stone describes the action jmperative in terms of
.the FBI's “group_;psychology.'_ The options avail-
able to.the FBI, ac f"r&lihg'w'Stpne;"fe)_l -somewhere: -
. between “doing nothing (passivity) and a military
“action 1 jve)." 388 In. “the

a m

Bl

communication, =

he receives froin other
, things, weigh them with his -
' “own_experiences and his own perceptions and he

that the réal prob-—

whelming,” Stone reasons, *the desulto

fact that “the appeal of any tactical initiative to an
entrenched, stress FBI must have been over-
strategy
of simq_lt.anebus,negotiation and tactical pressure
was enacted as a compromise.” 336 Stone concluded

_that tactical maneuvers were initiated as a way to_

%3 “7gjcal maneuvers as_helpful _to,_negotiations, “any " T
2E on the part. - FBI should no;‘})eépushed by. their group

“ogy “into misguided

-try and Biobehavioral Sciences

presence .

relieve agents’ desire to act. It is left to the SAC
to override the group psychology of the agents on

z-the" ground- and make the decisions necessary to

reach” a-“peaceful “conclusion. Stone. writes, “The
psychol-
ad hoc decision making the
next time around.” 387 -t e :
. "e. The effect on negotiations of the decision to
e employ tactical maneuvers
The decision to employ tactical maneuvers had
the exact result negotiators and experts predicted.
The experts advised against antagonizing the
Davidians.?®® In a memorandum coauthored by
Peter Smerick, an FBI Criminal Investigative Ana-
lyst, and Park Dietz, Clinical Professor 3{ Psychia-
at the
School of Medicine, the FBI was advised that “ne-
gotiations coupled with -ever increasing tactical
. could eventually be counter-produc-

“tive-and could result in loss of life.” 328 When tac-

d - 'tical maneuvers. were util

e , ; 9s‘e‘t;-back.aThe;D_avidjgti"s ‘were unable to sleep with
fiators and tactical agents given withi“équal force.:. sounds. of  loud ‘music_and rabbits being slaugh-

go forward as ifit-was the . r
D 0 s s of the armored personnel carriers. They were &0~

e SAC --iiéédifat‘xdn‘s';‘was_ ‘only-one
“ing from that decision.
-playing Toud music _bonde_d_ ghe Davidians closer to-

. tactical pressure “should
" tion we should consider,

57

::""'kbf‘esﬁ"bﬁéﬁ warned Davidians that

ized, negotiations were

-tered. The Davidians, were angered by movements -

gered by the clearing of debris from the
grounds.3%° As Richard DeGuerin, the lawyer rep-
resenting Koresh, says, tactical maneuvers ap-
peared to be scalculated to discourage anyone from
coming out.” 39! .
The_effect that the tactical maneuvers had on
of the problems result-
In fact, some believe that
gether,392
f. Tactical maneuvers may have fed into the .
;. vision anticipated by Koresh
] they would
die in_a’fire brought on by “the Beast.”39% In
Smerick’s March 8 memo, he recommended that
be the absolute last op-
and that the FBI might

»e/d :
- v]d at 24.

284 Memorandum from
and Dr. Park Dietz, Clinical Professor

Criminal Investigative Analyst Peter Smerick

of Paychiatry and Bicbehavioral
sdmnlm UCLA Schoo! of Medicise (March 6, 1993).

22 Hoarings Part LIS
iain McCluré thonght the playiog of chants and rab-

1. at 195. Capiain McClure

Kancing the Volatility.of Marginal Religious Movements, in
n Waco: Critica) Perspectives on the Branch Davidian Conflict 236, 240
: ticipated a government as-
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unintentionally make Koresh's vision of a fiery end
come true.”3% When the FBI began to play loud
- music and inch closer to the residence in armored
vehicles, experts maintained that those were ex-

. actly the wrong tactics.3%6 More than simply bond-..

e ing the Davidians together, experts ‘concluded that ..
) - these actions proved Koresh- nght, in the minds. of

- .‘notes, “Somie.of the expérts felt that the aggressive -
*_ tactical. moves -played “into ‘Koresh’s hands.”39
_ Even Jamar, who made the deCISI n to use these

: I Wﬁy ¢he FBI changed negouators e

h :
Soon after the raid, the FBI was called to take . Davidians.45 -

command of the situation at the Davidian -resi--
dence. Edward Dennis writes that “ATF requested
assistance from the FBI on February 28, 1993
after ATF agents had attempted to serve an arrest
and search warrant on the Branch Davidian
Compound.” 398 Before the FBI took over, negotia-
tions with the Davidians had begun. Lieutenant
. .Larry Lynch, of the McClennan County Sheriffs

L Departmént,” and Branch:Davidian*Wayne Martin

_ .- -talked over the Waco 911 Emergency line.39® Séon

.James’ Cavanaugh ‘and Davidians ‘Steve Schneider
:and Koresh:spoke by telephone.in_ an ‘attempt,to
resolve the initial firefight.400 Fmally, ‘Cavandigh
auccessfully negotiated an end €6 the shooting.
.- Cavanatgh, with the help of the Texas Depart-
.ment of Public Safety, made measurable progress

thereaﬁer, -ATF-Assistant, Special Agent in Charge:

however, the shooting stopped and negotiations
began.

In his statement to the Department of Justice,
Agent Cavanaugh gave a compelling description of
-the_ first moments after the raid.¢°2 The atmos-
phere was frenetic and hostile. Cavanaugh’s tone
was friendly as he sought to gain the trust of those

==-in the residence.

...Cavanaugh gained t.he Davidians' trust by ac- '

knowledgmg ‘the Davidians’ point of view.4%* He
- -granted many of their requests.4%¢ He talked with

them. as..though~they were “equals” trying to

achieve the same goals ‘Cavanaugh assuaged their

T toward release of Davidians. Communication was

extremely difficult between Davidians inside and
ATF agents outside. Nonetheless, Cavanaugh ma-
. . nipulated the dialog from the hysterical screaming
-+ during thé gun battle to productxve conversat:on
lj.iileadmg to a cease fire.”. "~
T a Cauanaughs ‘fapport wzth the Dauzdmns

*“The most difficult: task after the raid failed-was-

. " communicating with those inside Mount Carmel.
~ =2 T 7 0 Communicating--the: agreed upon .cease fire was -
527 made difficult by the size of Mount Carmel and -

o ¢ Memorandum !hm Cnnﬂml lnmugluvn Annlynt Pewr Smenck

N 0‘:‘? & m%‘e);nmn ‘Re, 188, - V
ustice t at - v ”

3¢ Jugtice Department Re:: at 185,

37 Heari m 2 at 317,
4 Fdw G. Dennis, Jr., Evaluation of the Handling of the Branch

Davidian Sundolﬂn Waco, 'rx 5 (1983) (hereinafter Dennis Report)
"’l(dznmn Countys iffs Deptﬂmenl. P11 ‘h-uumpu( elmury

““to establish a reliable, common .sense method for -

the frag'ment.atlon of ATF agents 401 . Eventually,

. l am not going o be good-
- & little while to_negotiate that. He had to go throughout the compoand,
“" which is very large, telling everyone not to shoot. While he was daing

‘concerns- by “promising that they would be ad-
dressed. Most importantly, Cavanaugh established
a routine that’ produced the release of some

Cavanaugh estabhshed a rapport with Koresh
and other Davidians. When Cavanaugh left the ne-
gotiations, Koresh mentioned that he missed
Cavanaugh. He noted that Cavanaugh promised to
be there until the end.4%¢ But on March 4, 1995
Cavanaugh left Waco, only to return briefly in
April. After Cavanaugh’s departure, the negotia-

*tlons were an, FBI operatwn

.-b. Why the FBI was brought in

: —;The ATF-asked for-‘the aid of the FBI and .. .
-agreed ‘that it ‘Wwould be best for the FBI to assume

operaticnal control of the entire siege.407 All of the
official” teports”note that the FBI was asked to

take over the siege.408

“3Department of the Treasury Document, statement of James

Cavanaugh:
“1 called the compound directly-on the phone from the undercover

" house. [ reached 8 man named Steve, later identified as Steve Schoeider.

I told him | was an ATF agent and | wanted to talk to him aboat this
situstion. As should be expected, the activity inside the compound was
very fnnhc. people were screaming and yelling, and there was still

- shooti on both sides. Steve was very excited and very hostile.
=7 wﬁs ':g negotiate a cease fire, and he [Schneider] was agreeable.

on-the time of how long it took, but it took

this, there was still shooting going on both sides. 1 had to get on the

';eomnund net frequency and tell the commanders on the ground there
- ot to ehoot, and they had to relay that (o all 100 sgents, who were

around there, 80 it Look a Jittle time Lo arrange it
*Once | retured to the rear command post 1 called back in an the

telephone to the residence about 2:00 p.m. and | spoke with Steve and
David Koresh about whal was guing oa. We had long conversations
about the warrent and we also had a lot of conversations about Biblical
paseages.and Mr, Koresh's belief that he was the Lamb of God, who
mwmmn:&va&hhmwghl--mhcvumwh
very a

& wng- P::'ty 2 fﬁ”u ATF sgent James Cavanaugh, the initial
‘negotiator during the standofl, Lestified before the subcommitiees, TThe
FBI] established trust with Koresh. /d. Cavanaugh appears to have been
sccomplished at active luumrc The FBI, however, did not choose 1o re-

tain Cavanaugh.
4 A gummary of the Dnv-ldum mquau can be found in the Jostice

Dﬁﬂment Ro.-F:n in the Ap,
Hearings Part 2 at 4. nque Peter Blute, when question-

; ,:.Jnl 8 wilhesses, stated, “We also know-that, afer the raid, when the

siege started; the initial negotistor was getting through to Koresh and

2 they hid a kind of relationship inlellectunlly that allowed numercus peo-
- p!e to be released dunng‘u\nt period. .

sid
'an:npu the Negotiations Be{ween the FB)! and the Davidians

Department Re, 22.
& - par.tn 134, Justice Depnmnmq:mn
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According to the Justice Department Report, the

FBI Hostage Rescue Team was the law enforce- Early in the negotiations, Koresh and the

_ ment organization best equipped to handle the  Davidians told the negotiators they had a cordial
standoff.40® It is because of its expertise that the  relationship with Sheriff Jack Harwell. On March

.. FBI is called in to take control of complex barri-~ 13, Jamar allowe
.. . cade situations ‘throughout "the country and_the .. in,;neg'd;iations; Accor 1
: _.Wbrld._rm:cpxjding_tp:tlje Treasury Department ‘Re-~ .. ‘ment Report, to allbw"én"ﬁntrained negotiator to
. .port on t.h,e’,jl_l@idpﬁt’._‘jAT_P_‘_kﬂ_ew immediately_ after . participate_in stich operations was 8 “departure
_.the raid began that it would need the help.of the.. from - conventional negotiation doctrine.” 412 In
- FBL ._,.Tgé;f'ép"ﬁargﬁ_t"nr_yaniut_p_ity"is expressed in the _preparation_for these negotiations, Noesner and
Department of :'I‘r)eg'gu'_ry"l)epartment, Reﬁort',,!.lpu"f_the_jEBI pegotia’tidhs"put?}larwell through quick

on was made & Or-" " . “and intense training in professional negotiations.

.7 Once the-decision Was. made to turn the operation ... . ntense fraini es
T 7. over to the FBI, the. FBI was in _charge_.of. gher';__;__:fll;rw‘e__ll_;yvas put in this. position only because he
o i - gcene in Waco within a matter of hours. . P " was 8 pefs‘on'whom;both-:-ndes trusted. And al-
. - ..c22 . though -the negotiators were worried about

2. Why the FBI didn’t allow others to participate in  Harwell making the situation worse, negotiators'
_ “the negotiations : worries were soon quelled when they discover
The FBI was disinclined to allow anyone, other  according to Noesner, “Harwell was 8 natural.” 413
than the FBI's own negotiators, to participate in Two days after he began participating in nego-
negotiations with the Davidians. Many were offer- tiations, Harwell participated in 8 face-to-face
i Davidians Martin and

ing their assistance, but few were allowed to par- meeting with Sage and r
Schneider. The meeting produced no substantial

ticipate. McLennan County Sheriff Jack Harwe € meet
.. ‘and the Texas Rangers were suggested and offered change in the situation. Harwell and Sage attest
- their help. ' to the fact that a “rapport was established, par-

Attorneys for ‘Davidians rep eatec.ltl'}y‘t”: - ticularly with Schneider.” 414 Unfortunately, what-

‘asked to. speak_with the Davidians. Tt-was With " "ol " g5ccess may have beén brought about
arwell’s partici ation was hindered by what Sage

alled a’ “distinct ‘change~in negotiation strat-
=418 From that point’ on, Harwell's participa-
e ‘negotiations, consisted of having his
_conversations broadcast into the resi-

Harwell to speak::
: evgh: great.er;-'_w l ‘
torneys into the -residen

TR aiming devices, daytime & mighttime saiper capabilities, explosive and A t.hThe Texaszang;.rsh i ) y
e X ) ' - - Another group for which Lavi ans express
e e sined roede o Pt & m o ol The HRT  their trust was the Texas Rangers. A longstan i
and well respected law enforcement entity, the

. Lo o dangerous and complicated eriminal situations.
ox ~-££“5£‘P!‘°‘:‘:(W':']¥-Tm of the Department of 3;:‘.21';'3--» ‘Texas Rangers were charged with conducting the
Cs .02 Wayne Howell also known as David Koréeh at 113-114 (1983). %:.‘ ﬁ:‘{?gi@‘g?t_‘e‘_’“ into theu" “‘1;‘:0"“9 rg“f"d::“i:
; rigers were never allow participa

L mmm%wz&mhnw#}mﬁmﬂm& whowas ™ S th th d They ofte
- - y e wis~ * pegotiations wi e Davidians. They often
Washington, nd recommended tha Rescue :
. _.}!?am.;:lmh!-bg_'ﬁ,.{!ﬂ_w handle what Qw.ﬂmmm .. concerns about the conduct of the siege and at-
7 At rooghly the same :;-;b‘ FBI Director’ William s.srm sihe  tempted to express these eoncern‘s‘ u:_ Jamar. The
shoot-out, con! irector iggine a con- H

tacted Stephen Higgine an< ; Rangers were frustrated by a lack o communica-

: dolences and hi agency’s assistance. After Hartnett arrived . . . . .
s e mand Sty and was ,““,_bﬁdth“':,@xmz; ~ tion with Jamar. As Captain Byrnes testified be-
R ' .- fore -subcommittees, -. {I}f 1 went over there, the

T T e N, vt ot O AT
LEL T d >fire con . B = door was already closed to where Mr. Jamar was.
of formally requested ance.  Quirg . .
o ‘é‘:-??ﬁ"&m :n'::?dbgi tac .u'ru; Jamar (s.: B@{.,ﬂ_j mS'evert;ll__tlmes 1 waited a half hour, 45 minutes to
T e faformed of the crisis by both AUSA Fhinsy Ty and ai m"""“:é.:"'r“-?i e 'anu“i_ re. We “WT him, and L hone e
o fer oret P oid him the | FRl- - going over there. We cou dn't even get 8 phone
"”,,.‘?,,".5":':.{;, Ak e i provide m the ATF through. It was total lack of communication.” 416
Clark (nfame‘dn‘[Nobk] {hat & request for the HRT bad slready beea ¢. The attorneys for the Davidians

mada by ATF aad that the HRT was on s ¥y © the residencs 0 Another concern of the Rangers was the FBIs
- decision to allow face-to-face meetings between the
s and.their attorneys. While it is common
li -under.investigation or prosecution to

ith - it -is rare for an attorney

"Bnel:in g of Gary Noesner:to the subcommittees.
-~ @14 Justice. Department
as]d. at 134. X
«10Hearings Part 2 8t 150.
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T

_ . opinions on the wisdom of letting the attorneys
* ‘into the residence.418 -+ i e e T

e

" o] was hopeful they coald appeal

to meet with his client while his client is the sub-
ject of a “hostage barricade gituation.” 417 The ne-
gotiators and the tactical agents had different

"~ The negotiators were concerned t.hat any third -

i+ party intermediary was ill equipped to be thrust
- *'into the: fragile negotiations.that consume barri-:
‘- cade ‘situations:  Negotiators .were willing to use -
' ~.the attorneys in"ways that would jumpstart the ™
-~ negotiations.41® The tactical team, along with the
.. - Texas: Rangers, were concerned about the oppor-
.. . tunity -that- DeGuerin ard Jack Zimmerman,:the
‘attorney for Steve Schneider, would-have: to-de- -

stroy evidence.-But even Texas Ranger’ Senior -

N ‘Captain Maurice Cook agreed with the wisdom of

letting the attorneys into the residence by saying,
“Ylou got to do what works.”43° Jamar made the
decision because he was “focused on resolving the

standoff peacefully.” 42! DeGuerin and Zimmerman °

entered the residence on several occasions. The at-

" torneys spent a total of 32 hours with Koresh.422-

(i) Progress was made from the visits.—Nego-

" tiators and Jamar had the sense that the meetings
"~ were “positive.” 433 On April 1, when the attorneys..

""" requested extensions of the pre-approved time lim-
-~ jts, they described. their progress as “terrific.”. In .
¢ that 'meeting, David Koresh promised'to come out:-
ugfrer Passover.”43¢ The actual date of Passover, .
. however, was a matter of controversy, ... s in 1.
. On-April_14;-8- telephone conversation betwee
““DeGuerin and Koresh :produced what. DeGuerin
called a promise to come out.*?s The FBI called -
.this promise “a new precondition for his coming
‘out.” 426 The precondition was the completion” of

" DeGueri

David ‘Koresh’s written interpretation of the

e————
a17/d, gt 23. DeGuerin says its a frequent practice of attorneys to
tmeet with their clients before they are arrested. /d. Texas Ranger Cap-

"7 tain Byrnes testified before the subcommitiees, “We wenl to see Me. -
** Jamir and offered a Ranger to belp with the negotiationa, if that would

be helpful—not cae of the caplains bat one of the Rangers that had been

. trained, most of them, by the FBL He thanked vs far that offer, and we

er heard anything else about it* /d. at 297.

nev.
T esld at 23.

e . ander Jeffrey Jamar tostified before the suboommittees,
to his self-interest. Everything Mr.
Koresh did was (o his self-interest” /d. at 312-313. :

can get too formalized.” Although formal training opposes this.

- McClure says it ciini be oeed as a last resort. /d. at 146. c

G Juatios Department Report at 91. “The proposed face-to-face meet-
ing between Koresh and DeGuerin caused significant controversy within
law enforcemént. SAC Jamar made the decision to-permit the meeting,

- clearing it with U.S.. Attarney Ederer. The AUSA's [Assistant U.S. Attor-

_.:7 =~ a3 Hearings p:gbg PER KRS

ncy]nm!.the‘!‘unﬂman,vho'ouldbempouibbbru\ecvenwd
prosécations, strongly oppased
solving the standolT safely, while the prosecutors and the Texas Rangers
were focused on the integrity of foture court proceedings. The prosecu-
tors and Texas Rangers were afraid that the defense attomey would give

“:_.advice.to. Koresh which could resalt in the destruction of evidence and -
cause a more difficult_prosecition.” The atlorneys” met inside: the rest-

Mrs. THURMAN: H

Y g, Sl e
. '_ .

" €24 Negotia tion Tranacripts (Aprl 14, 1993). ..
4 Hearings Part 2 at 304-308. ol

the meeting. Jamar was focused on ré- -

“Seven Seals,” discussed in the Bible's Book of
Revelation. ‘
A letter attesting to the surrender offer followed
the verbal promise. But the FBI remained skep-
~ (i) Negotiator and lawyers consultation after the
~ first_visit.—After each visit and on occasion when
"there was no visit, the FBI and the lawyers had

__discussions about strategy and about arranging

".more_ visits. with- Davidians. The agents worked
" closely with the attorneys before each visit and at-
. torneys cooperated with the FBL

" Before the trips into the Davidian residence, the
sgents and attorneys arranged time limits and
topics . for discussion while the attorneys were in-
side.428 On only one occasion did the attorneys ask
to remain in the residence longer than the ar-
ranged time, '

C. LACK OF APPRECIATION OF OUTSIDE INFORMATION

1. Why the FBI did not rely more on religious advi-
sors to understand Koresh

. Many argue that the reason negotiations failed

. was that the FBI failed to grasp the nature and

- strength of Branch Davidian beliefs. There exists

a_conflict among those who believe negotiators

‘tage takér” and others who believe the only way to
.negotiate is to understand the subject of the nego-
tiations,s22. The FBI-became frustrated with end-
- less .dissertations of ‘Branch Davidian beliefs and

" jgnored assertions of religious experts that Koresh

could be negotiated with on a theological level.430
" The FBI grew skeptical that Koresh could be con-
vinced that ending the siege was in his best inter-
est. ‘
. .a. The FBI standard in negotiations
Mainstrear negotiation tactics call for the nego-

*“tiator to remain aloof from the subject of the nego-

tiations, to pursue crisis management team goals,

_ and never become embroiled in the message of the

hostage taker,43! The focus of negotiation training

K s Rahger Captain Cook testified before the subcommittees that . . o joar teatified before the subcommd “They wouM boid the

" when, all elee. fafls in negotiations, “you got to do what works, I think

. .[DeGuierin -and Zimmerman) spirits up. | can remember one instance
“when DeGucﬁnmoutnnd.believeme.hepththTmin and
-1 give him all the credit in the warld for the effort he made. He would
build him upnndu:eunthhlqpoutﬁunuudehimlmmmbaooe
instance where he said he was making s point with him and Kovesh

l’dgt;imm'ltl"umd to ue all the time.” Id. at 297-208.

@®Noesner Briefing. Noesner maintains that a negotiator should
mmmuinaMmeworm'nbjeﬂd
the negoliations; never give the barricaded person the benefit of believ-
ing he has control of the conversation. Dr. Phillip Arnold, of the Reunico
Institute in Houston, TX, and Dr. James Tabor, Associate Prolessor of

i Religious Studies st the University of North Carolina at Charlotte, sug-

gest that Kores:. could have been dealt with through a discussion of his
: biblical interpretations. Acoording td” the Harvard Negotia tion Project,
-anegotiating [with' peoplé acting’ out of religious conviction) does not re-
. quire conipromising”yoor principles, More often success is achieved by
- finding : a ‘sclution “that is arguably ‘consistent with each side’s prin-

-ciples.” Roger Fishér ét al., Gelting to Yes (1991).
"ﬂ‘g'-':"luﬁat Dep.ﬂmeu: ﬁwr&u—za The Department of Justice re-

~. : port recounts’ Koreshs attempt to (61 his side of the situation.

31 Noesner Briefing.
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The negotiator is supposed to

is “active listening.”
wants or demands.

find out what the .su.bject.

the social sciences. Time afte
and Davidians Wayne Martin an
der, sought to speak with someone who could un-
derstand the Branch Davidian interpretation -of
the Seven Seals. The FBI resisted the desire to en-
Koresh in such a discussion, saying that it
was sure to be fruitless.+32 McClure testified at
the hearings that he had been involved in a- simi-
lar situation when religious discussions of a barri-
caded group had proved fruitless. He said, “In
1987, 1 was involved in a situation in Atlanta
where 1,400 Cubans were holding 121 hostages.
Their religious belief was very important to them
during that period of time. Those hostages were
held for 12 days. Every time that we gave a nego-
tiations and responded to their religious questions
and got in their head or tried to get into their
head and they tried to get into our about religion,
no progress was made. When we talked about sec-
ular issues, we got people out.” 433 This experience
appears to have led the FBI to avoid religious dis-
cussions with the Davidians. :

b. Experts consulted

When the FBI first arrived in Waco, it had little
information about David Koresh and the
Davidians. Negotiators sought as much informa-
tion as possible about the group. It was left to the
experts hired by the FBI to create a profile of
David Koresh and develop a plan to negotiate with
the Davidians.

Dr. Eugene
Connecticut College, calls Glenn Hillburn,
the Baylor University Department of Religion, “the
expert with a i the
Davidians within the framework of the Seventh
" Day Adventists.”434 According to the Justice De-
partment Report, Glenn Hillburn, Dean of the
Baylor University Department of Religion, “pro-
vided information on the Book of Revelations, the
Seven Seals, and other Biblical matters.”43% The
report makes no mention of special insight
Hillburn provided into the peculiar habits of the
Davidians or David Koresh. Other than Dr.
Hillburn, Dr. Gallagher concludes, the FBI con-
sulted few religious experts with knowledge of
Branch Davidians and what they believed. Indeed,
Stone says in his Report and Recommendations,
“One of my fellow panelists believes—and I am

Gallagher, professor of Religion at
Dean of

convinced—that the FBI never actually consulted
U
:ﬁnﬂnp Part 2at 181,
&4 |aterview of Dr. Eugene Ga byRobeﬂJ.Shu.SpednlM-
gistant 1o the Subcommittee oo Nationa! Security, Internationa) Affairs,
London, CT (October 23, 1996).

and Criminal Justice, in New
a2 Jugtice Department Report st 189.

_Davidians.44° According to the Justice

61

‘rious efforts to help were

with a religious expert familiar with the unconven-
tional beliefs of the Davidians.” 436

¢. The failure to consult outside experts

The FBI relied on experts with whom it was fa-
miliar. But, there were individuals who embraced
the peaceful resolution of the situation in Waco as
their personal crusade. Among those who made se-
Philip Arnold, Associate
Professor of Religious Studies at the University of
North Carolina at Charlotte, and Gene Tabor of
the Reunion Institute in Houston, TX It was dif-
ficult for Arnold and Tabor to intercede. The Jus-
tice Department Report mentions that “(tlhe FBI
refused to permit a live telephone conversation”
between Arnold and Schneider although Schneider

‘requested Arnold by name.*37

d. What communications did they have with
Koresh?

Tabor and Arnold saw a video sent out by
Koresh and thought effective negotiation was pos-
gible if the FBI dealt with Koresh within a frame-
work of the Bible, particularly the Seven Seals.3*
Koresh had heard Arnold giving his interpretation
of the Seven Seals and offering assistance on the
KJBS radio.4>®

Neither Arnold nor Tabor ever spoke with
Koresh. Koresh and Schneider repeatedly asked to
speak with Philip Arnold. Arnold and Tabor were
allowed to send in tapes of their interpretations at
the request of DeGuerin, Zimmerman and Koresh,
himself. But at no time were they allowed to par-
ticipate in the negotiations.

e. Did the FBI take any of this advice?

It goes against standard negotiation policy to
allow outsiders to participate in serious and dan-
gerous “hostage” negotiations. Consistent with the
advice of FBI experts, the negotiators in Waco did
not allow outsiders to participate in negotiations
out of fear that something they said might inflame
David Koresh. Arnold and Tabor were no excep-
tion, they were ignored. ’

From the very beginning,
take seriously the point of

negotiators failed to
view of the
Department
of activity in

Report, - “There were certain areas
help. The FBI

which the FBI did not geek outside

43 St t43, 44,
ne at 43, 4.
“’Juﬁm“wﬂlﬂntwn lu.'OnMnchl'.sehndderlald
tbemlm-thenndwmeofu\euherruidmaummmdd
M.Mdummmﬁmapaﬁuabmtmsdc{nﬂdnﬁmud
mSevenSuln.nndthuuwy-w!edlolpuk-i&himmFBln
fused to permit a live telephone conversation, but offered an exchange
of sudiotapes instead. On March 19, the FBI sent an andictape that Dr.
Amoldhldnudcimothem *id
:auﬁnpl’mzlu&-(.
«ofd at 362. Cavanavgh testifled before the subcommitiees,
Mfdigiau'belieﬁ.lthinknnmemup&
nbo.ldonotmnlnbeumﬁc,bmwreeﬁngm
ugvldenchickmifmeyw-nuo.buuhcyunnuhn
and hand grenades and shoot
un.ldidnotn-ytofwllhemﬁdhm
whlmthmmnnm&wmiulymhdumm

ginning.” Id.

3
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did not request assistance . . . with negotiations, fused to allow a religious expert to engage Davic
- since the FBI's best negotiators were assigned to  Koresh or to consult in negotiations.

Waco throughout the fifty-one day standoff.” 441 Jt Much of the criticism of negotiations centered or

appears that the FBI paid no attention to those ex- ~ the fact that the FBI never engaged Koresh or the

. .__perts who believed Koresh could have been. rea- Davidians in a discussion of theology. Noesner saic
- soned.yith within the prope? religious and biblcal. .. jthere_are bus conslenl Seris el 3% e
Ceontext. ... i com e LnEGEmo0 .. 700 -hear from. every ! (
- Koresh and Davidians talked frequently in reli- - anything about crisis intervention, crisis negotia- ™~
“gious terms;-Iri their book, Tabor’ and Gallagher - tion, and. that’is that you neither embrace some:
- quote“the. rono""n'z"passag'e'--fmm‘ the negotiation. .- ONe’s. belief_system .nor do you discount it." ¢
tapes to-point out frustration with the FBIs Jack™ Some are convinced that a prerequisite to success-
" of familiarity with theology:’ £ S5 ful negotiations with the Davidians is a firm grasp
NN AN L it g . of the ‘religious doctrine on which they base theit
“HENRY: Let's not talk in_ ,f'belieﬁ.ff_“._ jquélae:}:;ing:h before the subcommittee?i
lease, ... cho - o-ns samvior == -Amnold testified that the FBI negotiators were i
" "KORESH: No. Then you don’t_under~... - prepared- for productive discourse with the
stand my doctrine. You don’t want to hear... - ..'Davidians, “[The negotiators] were not able to per-
o .. .ceive the meaning of the religious language the

 the word of my God. . o

““" " HENRY: I have listened to you and lis--- . Davidians were- using. They were not able to un-
tened to you, and I believe in what you - -derstand the actions the Davidians took. Had they
say, as do a lot of other people, but the, had knowledge of the religious faith of the

Davidians, this story could have ended in a much
better and happier way.”44?7 Others simply sug-
gested that negotiators should search out experts
.....to grasp better the subjects of the negotiations. As
Representative Henry:Hyde, chairman of the Com-
mittee on the Judiciary, said, “There is an unwill-
- - ingness . to understand or believe that there are
=~ “people in.the world who are persons of belief and
“they *believe - strange “things by our standards.
Hlad the understanding been these weren't hos-
hese were :willing members of a religious
group, and to.get in there and to dissipate them
A_'_fgohla u;ke f;}éi_-suésigu, argumentatioré f'roulncs t.hzi;
. ineg - ame of reference, not tear gas and tanks.”
HENRY: One of the things, one of the *With ‘at least a good background on the subject of

but the bottom line is everybody now con-
siders you David who is going to either
run away from the giant or is going to
come .out and try to slay the giant. For
- God's sake, you know, give me an answer,..... ...
-David. I need to have an answer, Are you .. .
.going to'come out?: - el
' KORESH: Right now, Tisten. =" .~
.HENRY: Right now you're coming.
o, i KORESH: “He that dasheth in’
; e up before thy face keep the mun
tion.” What's the munition?-"Watch the.

i AWﬂy."- LG

< things {8 | don't understand the scriptures —~ ~ With 3 ou
" like you, I just don’t. : : religion, pal.'t.l.cularly the religious dogma professed
'KORESH: Okay, if you would just lis- ---by the Davidians, the negotiators could have bet-
y ) ter manipulated the conversations.

©+ -%% -ten, then I would show you It says here— = = = “7ETST S
¥ =%+ it gdys here, “The Chariots shall be with™~ "~ "2, Others who contributed information
« > flaming torches,” That's what you've got' ' " It is clear that all of the attention focused on
~"out there [referring to the tanks].442 =" """ "Waco and the standoff at Mount Carmel encour-
.. . _...°. . FBI negotiators maintain that they never dis- aged many people to contribute their ideas to the
' - ...counted Branch Davidian beliefs. However, in one - negotiations. The method for processing this infor-
i " " conversation with Koresh, Byron Sage responds to - ‘mation is central to discerning whether any valu-
. another- long’ dissertation by Koresh, Sage- says,  able advice or data was omitted or, inadvertently
- @That's girbage.” Later in that same ¢onversation, ~ ~Or inténtionally, ignored. In this case, as in others,
" Sage says, “No one-in the FBI has ‘ever scoffed at  the actions taken by the FBI depended largely
Liyour beliefs 443" EmIIs L T T = 2 ;:_gp_gn_,_ﬂ_p_g__g_n_fo:m_,_g;ign .used, and to whom it was |
" 7. In_theéir book about Waco, Tabor_and Gallagher “made _available when key decisions were being
are critical of the negotiations.- They write, made.
“Koresh’s interpretations went completely over the —r———, a8,
headds al:lf the 1’-;3!!’ n&glotiawrs, .dv;vho were under- “sNancy ] A:.':.i:.;... Waco, Federal Law Enforcement and Schol.
" . .standab yput ol is a proa ,® 444 Despite the’ ars of Religion, in Armegeddon in Waco: Crilical Perspectives on the
;. fact :that the- ovgrﬂh.elmxi)ng ;r_najp;ri!‘-if,bt‘g_l)éﬁdw‘:- B DT e R e it enSalyst: beteb

TN gie e e T e L n e v -'A' erman: wiited ) m,,‘_';,_-m}‘ -2 art W .
Koresh's ~communications involved. intense ~and - ehould be taken et they, sere playing the apocalypic bel
engthy dissertations.on. biblical-

! HY, ’
of Christ?’ know that any course of action that did not seem
to'corne fioin the Bible would be unacceptable (o these students of Scrip-
lnte71hﬂe yelU'@ gﬁg&,u',dnﬂc sociologist er religious stodies

1 Justice Department Réport oU 157, scholir who'has thé slighteat doobe that the strategies adopted by the
:.hma__ 'abor and Eugene Gal 3 FBI-were'destinied for tragic fail . - R

s Negotintion tranectipls; b 5;1.1 “THearings Part 2 at 144-145. s Lo _
“‘1‘": . ’ “‘J‘. até —‘8. B v
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a. How much information was coming in?
It is clear that a great deal of unsolicited infor-_
- mation was being sent_to Waco. In addition to peo-_.
2 ple honestly. offering assistance, a variety of people. .
came to Waco to express a variety of sentiments:-to:
officials-onsite.442-This. was in addition to the ex-.
perts retained by-the FBI: As the Justice Depart-.
ment yeport suggests, “The FBI also received unso--.
licited :advice. and ‘offers, of assistance from many
individuals; not ‘surprisingly, this input-was:rarely

- -of -oﬂ'en..canl_gffr_'otq;-igidividuals lacking a firm grip _

- on reality, such:as “people, ¢laiming to-be God or -~ Project, and was

) ~ Jesus -»°§Le ing to ‘order” Koresh to leave the :.‘tié?.eﬁc:‘a't was unde

- =-=-»¢0mP°“n ' - ,.',“-""._' i ’" - . ’ : N " the principles .0
E R agotiator Byron Sage recourited in 8 Jusies e sy, Th

== - Department interview that *an incredible number
of people called the negotiators offering help.45° (I

tried to field these offers early on, but then (I}
farmed it out to the behavioral science people to
weed out the good stuff."461 Others indicate that

' information was indiscriminately delivered to ne-

experts -, .— -allegedly. were ‘congulted .=ian
tock it upon -themselves to_ offer unsolicited - ad-".
vice.”-Stone s:qntin,ilgs.;‘f‘.ﬂ\?"b_re:iailing'pattern‘:in':.
‘the information flow.during the ‘erisis"was:for-each
-geparate ;ex_c'ﬁ’é‘rﬁ.,,to"bﬁ,'gr;’,t.hé: FBI an opinion:” The:
.problem, it seems, ‘was. too much information. 4%
Thé:migthod: to, commi
aiiy people calling to help-- "~ ..,
. . Many people called who were deemed “lacking a
.. 7 firm grip on reality.” When ‘asked about such.con:...
. tacts with agents and officials in Waco, Chief Ne-
" gotiator Gary Noesner said he knew nothing about..
',,':_vt,héiji;,‘_,(‘)ﬁ'evrs; ‘fqi‘,he\p;’however, were--referred to
““the consulting experts. The experts-analyzed -the -

L

i p@"sgc__l_‘it,'aldiig‘»' > the negotiators in the. form ¢
" memoranda.+5# Rarely did these peo le telk to ne- "

ukh:kinznlhmrlpmruli ,wehnpupledliningtobe

wJuuoﬂmeKauhuluntumniOmpaun

uumumhhnywthempmndbnn&mg samurai sword,
t%hﬂ%ﬂ@dhﬁmbﬁvehh&'l‘

Al h_sndcnu. mvaupudby ) 'qu Juhae contain

the botta” M T Iy G ET L o T
 TesU 8. Dept. of Justice, yecord of {nterview with Byron Sage
DeBusk (August 26, 1993). In this intetview, Sage recounted

information from those offering assistance. In that interview, Sage says, -

useful.” The report. continties, “A ‘smaller number .. -

.to his. rolé as religious ¢
~“provided . ... his feeling as
.-bona fides of people
elp.”458 In. one -

- to Jamar incl
.. . as familiar as
gituation insi
potential ‘third p

o = goti 4562 According to Dr. . i resh.” The

gotiators. According to~Dr. Stone, allkmds of " allow “the third
" the offer, whic
cepted before th

or.three days

Negotiation .

School_Lhat atiempta to presen
aTletier from the Harvard

(March 29, 1953).

488 Jugtice Deparimen

. ese]d st 156

outside

~ gotiators, thems
to speak to the Da
__ Sage maintains
“depended the mos
“man of the Baylor.

a package that
letter suggested
to come

kept track of all unsolicited ofiet
» ‘thlluuwdupouﬁleanymiiombk
. ;Wﬁu.mum_epuiu

help. For examp

iundoﬂ. and it did |
sion Lo play loud music and Tibetan Monk chants over

to irritate thase in®

“th

Projéct offere
. though the Jetter is menti
* partmient report, th
- negotiators took ar
. ~Despite a steady flow. o
the FBI did _not make any
'evaluate and- disseminate
came to its-atten
- maintains that it ke
offers of assistance.
S SN ST o desi ‘ ‘ need-or accept help i
.. information Vprov'lded or the gssistance offered.and - - . ficult to understan 4

e-
d on an
rway at the
negotiation
The proposal
uded putting toge
possible wi
de the residence”
arty’ and work urg
would be attra
that the government
to Waco and make
nherently expire if not ac-
ird party leaves Waco in two
457 The"advice that the Ha
d*‘was disregard
oned in the Justice De-
ere is little evidence that the

pt “meticulou
It also conced

1 u hy the offe
- .spected, credible religious experts an

negotiations were rejected.

“Many of the contacts with experts wod
. sdience people rather than through the.
- would get the end resu
.. andVanZandt? 7T
er we]q o ERI TN T
wi:. .eeThe Harvard Negotistion Project
t alternatives to

Negotiation Prject o Jeffrey Jamar

t of their inpy

z

who calle
nce, an
was made. by the Haryard Ne
The -letter sent to Waco wa
* Fisher, _director: of °

informati

1d

from

t1a an en

elves, and never were they allowed
vidians.
that the theolo
t was Glenn Hillbumn,
School of Religion. In
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D. THE FBI'S PAILURE TO FOLLOW ITS OWN EXPERT'S
RECOMMENDATIONS .~ T

1. What the FBI's own experts recommended

According to Stone, “the FBI investigative sup-
~“port 'unit and trained negotiators possessed the
. psychologicalbehavioral  sciénce . expertise. they
. needed: to-deal ‘with David Koresh and.an uncon.:
ventional group like the Davidians.” 4%© Among the .
‘many "expérts; the talent was extraordinary and
_the -amount of information they’ had to use was
“eriormous.- It 'was not difficult for the experts to’
‘come to a consensus; - C ;

-..experts feared“that any provocation could lead .
- Koresh' to initiate the fiery end he predicted. FBI.
- .- experts agreed with this approach.*6! As Stone

FBI behavioral science experts had worked out a
good psychological understanding of Koresh’s psy-
chopathology. They knew it would be a mistake to
deal with him as though he were a con-man pre-
~ tending to religious beliefs so that he could exploit
- his followers." 462 =~ .. UL —
" Stnerick “coauthored "six memoranda on. David .

= -Koresh based on Koresh's past behavior and listen-

randa,” Smerick proposed- that thé” FBI approack
the Davidians with caution and .avoid provocation,
Smirick sajd‘that the cautionary. memoranda were::
and were not
tions to work.”463 In_ his final memorandum,
-="Smerick proposed “other measures’ . .. because
- negotiations had met with only limited suc-
= -. '¢ess.” 64 As the Justice Department Report:main-
~+~-tains, “those other measures included sporadically .-
- terminating and_reinstating of - utilities; moving -
equipment "anid manpower suddenly; downplaying -
““the importance. of Koresh in the daily press con-:
*. - ferences; controlling television and radio-reception
~"“"ingide the cofiipound; and cutting off-negotiations
“with Koresh.”465 Although these suggested meas- -

Smenck jgjuggestg that while the “negotiators were

Pl

- -~ «0Gione Report 'al R [
* eo1t Edward Dennis- summarized the opinions of the experts as follows:
© 7" 'On March 3, 1993 the behavioral :.pemm a joint memo Tec -
~ “ommending a strategy of tiying L6 work within the Davidians. own belief . ..
system to talk them out. They recommended acknowledging the conspir-
acy against the Davidians and their right to defend themaelves, and cre-
ating an illusion that Koresh could win in court and in the press and
would not go L0 jafl. On March 5 behavioral experts wrote a memo advis-
~ ing that the negotiation strategy focus on insuring the safety of the chil-
- .dren. and fadilitating the. pesceful surrender of the Davidians. This
~ ' memb recommended & de-escalation of tactical .pressure becsuse move- -
_ment of tactical personnel would validate Koresh's. prophesy. that-his fol-:-
- lowers must die defending their faith. As an’siteiniative tactic; the memo -
recommends that efforts be made to drive a wedge between Koresh a
i'l[{gllqzﬂ! by, esag;iom them that a battle jg-not inevi :
= Fiaten Depariment
: us n

il

Report at 182

:“The :tlearestconsensus among the  FBI éxperts .
‘and others-was not to provoke the Davidians. The ...

writes in-his separate evaluation, “I believe the - -

ing.to negotiations. In_each :of -the éarly memo-

“ureg are exactly the tactics the FBI used in Waco,

_ building bonds . -, the tactical group was under-
- mining everything.” 468 Smerick continued, “[e}very
time the negotiators were making progress the tac-
tical people would undo it.” 467
During the hearings before the subcommittees,
-"Smerick was questioned about this abrupt change
.in his advice; and whether senior Justice Depart-

- 'ment officials pressured him to change his advice

... to match the course of action preferred by the on.’

d - gcene: commanders; Smerick testified that he felt

.-“no ‘overt” pressure” 458 to alter his memoranda.
was aware that the FBI want-
. Smerick told the subcommit-

tees:: ST .
% “1 "had " received information from FBI
*"“headquarters that FBI officials were not

“happy with the tone of my memos. From
" the standpoint that they felt it was tying

" their hands, meaning they were not going
to be able to increase any type of pressure
within that compound and instead were
going to have to rely on strictly negotia-
tions, 469
- Smerick developed profiles and memoranda that
. corroborated.the opinions of qualified experts both
_in and outside the FBI, Smerick’s opinion on this
_matter is the only expert opinion that changed as

€'crisis continued. ™=
E..THE:DECISION TO DISMISS THE S

URRENDER PL\.N

up; ready to-exit, when Koresh was “told by God

" to “wait.”470 "AS far "as’ the FBI was concerned,

Koresh's credibility was broken. After a trip into
- the " residence, - DeGuerin and Zimmerman told
" Jamar of a new surrender plan based on the writ-

ing of the Seven Seals. The FBI did not believe it.

But there was evidence that pointed to a genuine
‘change in attitude ¢ -<~ - - -~ '
1. °Kids lined up with their jackets on”
.. -.The surrender plan on-March 2 was marked by
-.evidence that everyoné but Koresh was prepared
to exit the residence. After making much of his
_promise to .come out, Koresh maintained that God
told him to wait. In preparation for the surrender,
:.the. FBI and ‘the ‘Davidians worked out a com-
.plicated plan. that involved everything from buses
- that would. carry the Davidians to the order in
_.which everyone-would stand. A proposal to involve

the Texas Rangers in a surrender *wasn’t rejected,

but it wasn't greeted with a lot of enthusiasm.” 472

In connection with the DeGuerin and Zimmer-

‘éveryone in the residence was lined



o only change that t,h.é'ht't;orr‘teys and the Davidians  subject, Tabor quotes surviving Davidians as say-
suggested was that the children come out with  ing, “We were so joyful that weekend because we
out, that finally David had

_their parents, rather than separately.4?? knew we were coming
--:" - -+ = --got his word of how to do-this legally, the lawyers,

- 9 ‘Breahthrough with Koreshs letter . 5 .-~ ~n:gnq theologically in terms of hi .
2 EeNowing one B to g esidence by DeGuerin - Py healogical Mihat the of his system."+2" The
-.and .Ziﬁimeﬁﬁ&!{Q Koresh sent out a letter atteste avidians -'--‘-e‘:‘:*--'rﬁ;fa ‘_?;:vere coming

ing to the, fact that he was workingon the Seven 3. The breakthrough communicated to Jamar
S ‘ pril 13 and sh’sdid- - iir:On"April' 14; DeGuerin. gave Koresh's letter to

uld’ be_out_of ‘the residence soon. According to through.” Upon reading the
DeGuerin, m_“everjrqng;.jvé__s?_.fglieved they did not - .DeGuerin and Zimmerman, Jamar told them “that
have.to die."478 Koresh-had written -letters before. - there was plenty of time.” 484 In his testimony be-
,___:'Movst_-l_i_adpg_eyjjvggmbljpg_biblieal dissertations: The ° =fore r!.he_-f;subcommittzes;..’am'ar recalled, “What I

" "'final letter. was_different, because it mentioned ‘a" - “said-was, if there-is-writing of a manuscript, if
deadline -by _which ‘to determine “'when' -Koresh -~ there is progress, we will take the time.” 485 Jamar
would surrender. That deadline was the writing of ~—~ gave DeGuerin -and Zimmerman the impression
Koresh's interpretation of the Seven Seals. -~ .. that he believed the offer to surrender was serious.

There were other reasons that some saw the let- .DeGuerin and Zimmerman were 80 confident that

ter as a true breakthrough. The April 14 letter Koresh was writing the seals and would soon sur-
was written in a prosaic form different from the render, that they returned to Houston. Jamar,
other letters. Koresh's letter expressed the desire however, never took the surrender offer seriously.
to come out of the residence and to “stand before  He told the subcommittees, “It was serious in
. man to answer any and all 'ggxesﬁbf_tg're‘garding my - -[DeGuerin’s --and ~Zimmerman’s] minds. I think
.. _actions.™476:-More -important to -some :.religious ---they:-were -earnest--and . really hopeful but in
s"chqlgr:':an}(‘! observers thdf:hf‘ Pft‘l’lf_é-‘fs;d‘ ?QSirejw 7 Koresh's-mind, never a chance. I'm sorry.”¢
gurrender,- however, was. e fact that the etter in- S S DI IT A e i .
dicated Koresh had found a basis for surrender in The failure o communiepte this breakthrough
his.own ,re,ligiogs,-,docpkine.i"' Tabor “and Arnold o WP P CAGRT OF e T
‘had been- attempting to-persuade. Koresh that ade-: ':510,,th¢, final days of t.he standoff, no one commu-
quaté -reason; for. surrendering could ‘be found i -icated to.the, Attorney General. or anyone serior
the-Bible: The.major change in the"April 14 letter, ©-= to:Jamar that there might be a genuife attempt to
“according to Tabor, was that “Koresh used the reli- - end the siege by, Koresh. No one put forth the pos-
"7 "gious arguments in this letter for why he had now sibility that a surrender was in the future. When
.- ..seen that the scriptures told him to comée out.”47® ~ asked by the subcommittees whether the Attorney
Arnold and Tabor, among others, found affirmative General had been notified of the surrender plan,
.. evidence that Koresh would surrender in the fact ~ J8mar said, “T doubt it because it was not, from
" ""that “(Koresh] could comé out and preach his mes- - -9uT 'understanding ... . 8 serious plan.”4%7 In an
. "t % - gggem418--Tabor told the subcommittees. that - April. 15 conversation, Sage told Associate Attor-
Lo i e :‘,f‘[t]hat,‘.waa_the_;pd,sit.iv_e. end. And court was nega- - ney .Gene_,ral _W.epster Hubbell that there was little
v tives But- DeGuerin convinced {Korésh) that court "™ - use In negotiating fuﬁhgg,‘“.Sage, Jamar, and
- :would-end positively.”*® Tabor, Amold, DeGuerin *: Ricks_all acted as t._hough_nothmg out of the ordi-
. and Zimmerman-believed that a surrender was - nary had occurred in Waco on April 14. They did
..o . -eminent.. - .. i S T not give the Dmepa,rtment‘of Justice all of the infor-
..« ... .Further evidence of the fact that Koresh's letter . mation they had about the situation in Waco and
T as. e. genuine breakthrough was.the: reaction of ... _misled them about the previous success of some
"-those -in the residence to the news of the surren. - NeEOLators. ........._... .. :
It appears that DeGuerin and Zimmerman were

" _der. Upon discovery that Koresh had given a dead-: - L Lelauer) e
- “line for surrender, there was obvious “ubilation” .. the. only people involved in the negotiations who
- - - gt the prospect of ending the siege.48! In the back-. - took Koresh's promise seriously. SAC Jamar and
%r:gxond t:lil d&f ugﬁﬁ? cheering cgyn“be heard. 4?5 ‘the FBI negotiators saw this as another attempt at
T e ommittees, “You can exactly —————
see the mental state of the people inside. It is -kt
buoyant. They are talking about coming out. They 4as1d. at 306.
-..are_excited. about it. And in interviews on the --<- Id. at32.
1d. e o fisiher pegotiations with he sakjects in the residence would be ey
Rl o D D Dt T ,
" enLetter from David Karesh 1o Dick DeGuerin (Agx
::'.;{‘m Part20L68-80. =i . :o
 emid at 199200, . -
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ission” from God 'and-that he::nd amar. Jamar.testified that he knew of the “break- .
letter and talking with -
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delay by Koresh. As a result, they did not give. this
new surrender offer a chance to work.

5. Evidence that Koresh was writing his interpreta-
=<7 tion of the Seven Seals: e
The.FBI had no concrete evidence. that the Seals_-
were being written, 4@ -Even negotiation . tran---
scripts give conflicting indications as_to. whether..
the work was in. progress..Only. after physical evi-. .
dence. was removed .
did the

FBI find proof: s were |
- written, Surviving-Branch Davidian Ruth Ri
“gaid ‘that-the -Seals ‘written.4®_ Judy
- Schneider wa

“ had the computer disc con

were. being_written

‘t taining that writing.49%
... It ié cleaf that some work was being done .on
Koresh'’s interpretation of the Seven Seals. . .

6. Why the FBI di,sregarded the evidence that the
Seven Seals were being written e
Although Koresh indicated he was writing his
interpretation of the Seven Seals, the FBI was not
willing to give the surrender plan an opportunity
~_to work. The FBI was frustrated and appeared to
" give to-Justice Department officials only one op-
““tion, Of the breakthrough.to write the Seals, Sage
ubcommittees” that “this first
velation to us as far a
From_ early in"the_standoff it
FBI 'had.made up its mind tha
the Davidians weren't coming -ouf of the residence .
of their own free will. Of the possibility of surr:
“der,*Jamar téstified, “From [Koresh's]: ‘eonduct
from February 28th until April 19th, I would have
- every Treason- to believe he would - not [surren-

- -+ END.THE STANDOFF WITH THE DAVIDIANS . . ..

71, The FBLallowed negotiators to rémain in
7. " “position at the Branch. Davidian residence
-+ .. . “-for too~long, resulting in the - physical ‘and
- .. - . emotional fatigue, affecting the course of the -
-negotiations; The negotiators were in place for 51 .

7. days. Negotiations occurred almost constantly 24
... hoursa day. Despite a_steady rotation of nego-
- . --iators, it is cléar from the transcripts that nego- ‘
sz 410UOTE allowed their emotions to influence the dis-

-- - cussions, - o
2, The FBI did-not take appropriate steps.
to understand the mindset of the subjects of
the negotiations. Numerous experts offered their
~advice on the specific beliefs of Koresh and the
-__ Davidians.“Throughout the process, it is clear that

. ‘the>negotiators did" not-éngage. the Davidians-i
tiationis*by-ignoring - the Davidian

The: subcommittees beligve-that th

C ald A308, e T B

from.the déstroyed residence -
that the Seals were bgg;g -off.
dle .

;ranscr[blpg the Seals and Riddle. ... .

- ‘der)”483 The FBI was convinced Koresh would .
never surrender., . o
.- F,FINDINGS CONCERNING THE NEGOTIATIONS TO ..

T,

-"of government action

. out their mi

- course of the negotiations
directed by an increased understan
Davidians’ religious perspective,

3. The FBI leadership failed to mske cru-
--cial_decisions about.which strategy to em-
* ploy. Two separate strategies were enacted simul-
* taneously. The tactical pressure constantly worked
- against the strategy of negotiation. FBI leadership

ding of the

- engaged these two strategies in.a way that bonded
d perpetuated the stand-

an

the Davidians togeth

G, RECOMMENDATIONS - -

redesign negotiation policies and training so
that physical and emotional fatigue will not
influence the course of negotiations. In antici-
pation of future negotiations involving unusually
emotional subjects, such as Koresh, or those which
may involve prolonged periods of time during
which negotiators may become physically or emo-
tionally fatigued, law enforcement agencies should
implement procedures to ensure that these factors
do not influence the recommendations of nego-
 tiators to -senior commanders. Such procedures
. may involve using additiorial negotiators in a team
. approach, limiting the amount of time a particular
‘negotiator. remains on duty,
.interaction’ between’ law.enforcement officials and
the subject of the negotiations until satisfactory
‘behavior: is”elicited’ from the subject, or applying
‘other. “rewards” and -“punishments”

in o

=~ elicit: ‘positive” responses. from the subject during

negotiators.
.»'2..Federal -law enforcement agencies must
take steps to foster greater understanding of
the target under investigation. The subcommit-
tees believe that had the government officials in-
-volved at-Waco taken steps_to understand better
_the.philosophy of the Davidians, they might have
~ been-able to negotiate more- effectively with them,
perhaps accomplishing a peaceful end to the stand-
off. The training, policies and procedures of Fed-
_eral agencies should be revised to emphasize the
importance of - developing™ an understanding of
.. their investigative targets. .~
.. 8. Federal law enforcement agencies should
. fmplement "~ changes in ‘operational proce-
" dures and training to provide better leader-
ship in future negotiations. The subcommittees
believe that senior commanders should be given
additional training in critical decisionmaking and
that operational procedures be modified in accord-
ance with this training. The subcommittees believe
that .the result of these changes should be that
‘commirider: will be better equipped to make nec-
essary. decisions fromlimited options with limited
information” during-cr
of thesé changes will

protect not only the targets
but, by making it more likely

Z 0039129

rder to

could have been'bétt,er .

law ‘enforcement 'ﬁ'één'c'i’«es"phb\ﬂ-d a

limiting the amount of

eritical incidents. The benefits =~

. - that Federal law enforcement officials will carry -
ssion-in the manner most likely to suc-



" ceed, but will ;ﬁe‘p to protélct. the safety of the law . p. THE OPERATION PLAN FOR APRIL 13, 1993
L enforcement officers as well, . o,

. 4, Federal lgwenforcement agencies should L Ol;fgvnij:)vﬂoffhe written operation plan to end the

: takie ateps 10 LTt me advice ingness of its - s carly as March 53, 1993 the FBI began for.

ents LO-C. 0 s smmend- that _Fed..f,j,._wni_ﬁl'aﬁng‘nn operation plan to end the standoff

. e d- - “with the D.a.vidians.‘?‘, On April 12, 1993, the FBI
o i P e i o 2 A S

. Thié could be done through an- "' 'R port, “Over’ the next several days the Attorney

“parts of the agencies in
-4g - performed. Additionally, =
ihanced through more for:
' reputable v'_outgidé_'é'o’risp!t-ﬂ.;,
é3 contain a wealth of
s all fields of
ent should
: for identifying
rts and entering into arrangements
would be available when

" this cap ity could be
* +--mal arrangements with Tepi
' The Nati&ﬁfu"ﬁhive@iti

qualified ex
with them whereby they

called upon. .

5. Federal law enforcement agencies should

~ modify standard negotiation policies to allow
I o e e o 3 w ‘cek

cies in’ which™ ™
“pect

“'was to “s

.compound.”

qutside..',e,xpert _ " phone to'a

Généralfﬁ'ﬂd»Senior.j_Jil%t_.iéé 'Department and FBI

officials- discussed, debated and dissected every as- -
SFtheplan o . o -

" The operations- plan

_ rovided that its mission
gecure the surrender/arrest of all adult oc-
cupants of the residence while providing the maxi-
mum possible security for the children within the
The key component of the plan was

-a chemical riot control agent,.

to the Branch Davidian residence
in order to induce the Davidians to leave. While
the CS agent was being inserted, FBI .officials
planned to use 8 loud speaker system and the tele-
dvise the Davidians that tear gas was
to force them to

the delivery of
known as CS, in

partiqiiaatiop;-:in-;.i ‘pegotiations when . war- — lliemgitr:ser&e;dtmtott\e :ie_sidencet ; b
rdil'téd"’_b -specia ~and e‘xtenuiatin cir- eave, but tha “an-attack was no underway. e
L tancg;md Amei';abgeﬁé;?;:pf .ili‘-hp;f;g,g! ?}g}r};gl;g’pggvi_clgd for-a Qemand that all s:u'bjecs
rise T immense umher ol DS S e e Blldng s sy o ot o
B oirees from s at Waco provided & B, 48 hours or unl &) Subjects had exited the resi
B e people: offering their. sssistarce A L sumendered. The plan provided o7 G
< S have proven useful in ‘the negotiations.-The " first insertion of CS agent, to ‘be made into the -
’ FBI should encourage agents to reifct;\ out fo;' cre- "ﬁoﬁmeﬁ"ﬁoﬂiéﬁ"of the residence. After 8 period of
" “gtive” solutions to barricade situations_in-the fu- time, which was to be dependent oh the Davidians’
: g BTSSR response to the initial delivery o the CS agent and
‘ ure. . o any subsequent negotiations that were possible, an
~- .+ .. . VIl. THE ATTORNEY GENERAL'S DECISION TO END additional tear gas delivery was to be made into
N P ' SR ST the back/right portion of the residence. After a

THE STAND-OFF _
A OVERVIEW OF THE PLAN 7O END THE STANDOFF
.- OnoApril-12,- 1993, the  FBI presented. Attorney .
" ~General Janet Reno with a plan to end the stand-
the Branch .Davidians. On April 17; 1993; - =
-General gave her approval for the
on April 19. The stated
the -pla to “secure the surrender/
T;artegt;pf_guﬁgdnlg occupants of the residence while
ﬂié_}iia’:diﬂﬁ’tﬁ"possible";emrity..-.for-.the, .
thin the compound.” A’ ey € 1
on to use CS, a chemical
t, which would be sprayed into the
. Branch Davidian residence in an attempt to in-
Davidians to leave. The plan was imple-

“April-19, but the Davidi

- third delivery of

. During ,
“was to be ‘delivered into

el CS,in
a'l'!,f._a'_ll""iﬁbs'equen
bé madé into the uppe

t deliveries of CS agent
r and lower windows

the CS agent
by two com-

‘the Pl
were to b
of the residence.488 - -

the first three insertions,
, the residence
bat engineering vehicles (CEV’s), an ed vehi-
cle similar to the Bradley Fighting Vehicle (Brad-
ley), but which ;s unarmed. The CEV's at Waco
‘were moun ith boom-like arms which were ca-

wi
pa»tglg”of __ggnetraﬁng the walls of the structure.

> wuwmwchmadmdwﬁmm

i Dwummu&pwﬁlnq

, testified before the sob-

dthcpnbhn.lthinklht

sometime nesr the
8 o

Z 00391 30
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Mounted on the arms of the CEV’s were mechani-
cal devices designed to spray a stream of CS agent
into the holes made by the booms. After the third

- insertions of CS agent, the operations-plan called -

- for' agénts located in unarmed Bradley- F\ghtmg
- Vehicles to. maneuver close enough to the resi-
" dence so that they could fire Ferret round projec-

tiles through the windows of the. structure, These -
‘gmall - non-exploswe grenade-like. . p 'ectlles con-
tained CS agent which would -tise’
when the projectilé broke.open upon’ xmpact ‘The
~use of Ferret rounds_was. to be in addition to con-
";”f.mumg insertions of CS by sgents in ‘the CEV’s.”

. for the different HRT and SWAT teams involved in
. iowe o= T-the ‘operation. It specified- the maneuvers to be
-~ - 'made by the two CEV’s, the nine Bradley Fighting ' -
ce Vehicles, and the M—88 tank retrieval vehicle, and
provided for miscellaneous administrative and
logistical issues such as types of uniforms to be
used and the appropriate manner for handlmg
" prisoners.

Additionally, the plan provided to the Attorney
_,ngergl on_April _12,. 1993 included - details ‘con--
~“¢erning ‘where the FBIs snipers were to be posi-~
. tioned” ‘and - the . positioning. and . capabilities . of
members,.The.plan contained-a:*med-
ex” providing for a means:to treat “the po- °

Jlarge number of casualties which. cou]d
urrent, medical ecapabilities of any.sin-:
’ ncy resent.' as well as procedures.to be- fol- .
owed to-arrest persons who had been exposed to .
“'CS. The annex also provided for locations where .
the injured were to be treated, provided a list of ..
" local "and “secondary hospitals (mcludmg address,
latitude/longitude location, and estimated air trav-
_ ¢l time). And the medical annex provided instruc- .

"~ mass surrender by the Davidians. -~

* " Finally, the plan provided for the posslbnhty that
“the Davidians mlght not: surrender, The final con. "
" tingency. provision in the.plan stated that “if all
* subjects failed to surrender after 48 hours of tear
..'gas, then a. CEV with a modified blade will com-
“‘mence a systematic opening up/disassembly- of tb
_structure until all sub_;ectsare located.” = |

- <2 Acceleration provisions of the operauons plan

period of 2 days, the plan also contained contin-
gency provisions that allowed for a departure from
the concept of a methodical insertion of CS. One of
these provisions was implemented on_April 19 and -
resulted-ina- rapnd_acceleratwn of the: msemon of
CS agent’™ -~ : e
The first’ ‘of the

sefved”in ‘the téwer during the operations, afte
ha\nng been mformed not:to-be there,:
permitted. to-insert-CS:gas into the tower by firing

7 ZZ.7Z Ferret ‘round projectiles into the tower.-More im- i

‘The plan also provided for specific’ assxgnment'sh_._

“* tions to the agents on.the. pmcedure to handle a-.

;m '::: D.p i at 28!

" While the operations plan called for the govem- 'f~
. ments actions to end the standoff to unfold over a -

-agents were
) 20ylnililloli“dr The device can be used to shoot 13-17 1-second

portantly, however, the second contingency provi-
sion in the plan provided:

If during any tear gas delivery oper-
ations, subjects open fire with a weapon,
~then the FBI rules of engagement will
apply and appropriate deadly force will be.

used. Additionally, .tear gas will imme-

“*diately be'inserted into all windows of the
“compound utlllzmg the four Bradley Vehi-
_cles as 'well as the CEV's 409 .

-C 1'HE WAY THE PLAN ACTUALL'{ UNFOLDED

' 'At approxlmately 555 am,, Dick Rogers, com- .
mander of the FBI's Hostage Rescue Team, or-
. dered the two CEV's; which were to insert the CS-
_riot control agent, deployed to the compound At
5:56-a.m.; the FBI's chief day-to-day negotiator,
Byron Sage, telephoned the residence and asked to
speak with Davidian Steve Schneider. It took ap-
proximately 3 minutes for someone to come to the
phone.59° At 5:59 a.m., Sage informed the person
answering the telephone that “We are in the proc- .
_ess of putting tear gas into the building. This is
_.not_an-assault. We. will not enter the building.”
“The person on the other end of the telephone re-
‘sponded “You are going to spray tear gas into the
bmldmg""‘whereupon :Sage replied, “In the build-

ing'..”. na, we are not entering the bmldmg'”‘ B
Whnle the Jushce Department Report is ambigu- _

Schnelder502 At the conclusnon of this conversa-
- tion, 'someone threw the telephone outside of the

buxldmg 503
From 6 a.m. to approximately noon on April 19,

1993, FBI agents implemented the operations plan
= and: mJecbed ‘a large quantity of CS riot oontrol
--agent into ‘the Branch Davidian residence in four
.-distinct -phases. The’ agenr.s moved close to the
Davidian - residence” in' CEV's equipped with de-
vices 54 which could shoot a horizontal stream of
-.CS agent in short bursts or éontinuously for up to
15 seconds 505 The devu:e uses- carbon dioxide as a

mnentuepa'tat”&

art 3 at 269, .

. rtment Report at 286, -

4 The delivery systems mounted on the CEV’s were Protectojet

Model 5 Tear Cas Delivery Systems manufactured by ISPRA, Ld, an

Istacli company. The systems were sold (o the FB! by Advanced Mate-

rials Laboratories, Inc. of Forrest Hills, NY. The Justice Department Re-

port vefers to the systerms as Mark V systems. See Justice Department
at 287. The subcommittees investigation indicates that while the

MuiVnyltemdoelauaL there is no evidence that it was ueed at Waca.

Thee Jence indicates that only. thé Protecto-jet Model 5 system was

motintéd on_the C5V's furnished to the FBI by the Defense Department.

“The references to the Mark V system in iheluluea Deparumnt Report

pgnrtobainemr e .
The Protecto-jet. Mo !ernmhuoflqbnde-ppvd
inatély 27 inches Jong, 4% inches in diameter, weighing approximately
16 Iba;;*which-is connected o a hose with a noezle. The device uses car
lnndnatidehnwd‘dnmulwl “svch as CS, mixed in & sospen-
sion’ of methylene chioride, into the air. mungeofthedevm-ls-

i --iun

- burets or a continuots burst for up to 15 aecmdo.
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. tiléé fired at the ‘residence actually entered the.

pended in methylene chloride, horizontally into the residence, however, the total quantity of CS agent
~ air. Once the CS stream is fired, the carbon diox- delivered by the Ferret round projectiles would
-=7* ;. “ide quickly evaporates and the methylene chloride  have been 1,480 grams. .- ,
' --'fj'gas__disp'e‘ﬁ'és"the CS evenly-through™a room,until . - _ - N .
' the methylené chloride: itself evaporates. The CS. D. OVERVIEW OF THE USE OF CS CHEMICAL AGENT
:fehg;zwhiﬂll‘ira fine ‘powder'i‘h then slowly f?ll,s't::.-. 1. Introduction - - . ;. : - .
:é.f:“.0‘??.-_!‘_'._',‘_3-‘:""-i"""mai““'* e capacity of each:=" Cliloroben'zylide'r‘\e - “malononitrile, commonly
delivery system on-the CEV's was 30 grams t?f CS-=7zalled CS, is one of a family of approximately 15
. al comp used to control civilian popu-
; s ‘during ‘periods of “disturbance ‘and unrest.
T)j‘efiﬁrét"t'\’vio:ii)hases"érﬁployed two CEV’s. On'one. : ,:._-,—'_f"f,t;'-,."ﬂ!‘@".?_ﬁgeﬂtﬁ:}’““se acute irritation .
" ¥ "CEV. was mounted two CS delivery systems, while: - ¥ theeyes, mouth, nose;"and upper respiratory
7 Tfour @gums-ge}é mounted on the second CEV.:- _tract, d}gt is :elat.way brief and not usually ac-
“ The CEV's were operated in tandem, each insert- - companied by permanent toxic effects. Exposure to
- piot-control agents renders the victim temporarily

" 7 7 ing the'entire contents of the 8ix CS agent delivery | t
systems during ‘the first two phases of the oper- incapacitated, but the symptoms typically persist

systems during 113 again at approcimately 8 am.  for orly

disbursant to propel a stream of CS agent, sus-

. chernical compounds

" irigertion of CS ‘sgent into: the :
B dekice was performed. in-four phases. -

ximately 8 a.m. for only a few minutes after cessation of expo-

In each of the first two phases, a total of 180 sure.507 '

grams of CS was delivered. The third and fourth The first riot control agent was developed in the

phases, also 2 hours apart, involyed only one CEV, early 1900’s.5%¢ In 1928, two chemists, Corson and
s  as the second CEV had experienced mechanical  Stoughton, developed  2-chlorcbenzylidene
ST LTI daﬁicultlesand no 100897—_0991’“9‘1 Four cylinders _malononitrile, code named CS. However, CS was
of CS were delivered in €ach of these two phases, - ot developed.as riot-control agent until the
for a total -120. grams of CS inserted into the resi- .. 1950’s, when the British War Office began to
ence: Thus, We‘fﬂ&? entiré 6_hours.of.the oper- . . gearch for a chemical that was more potent than

erted into:the Branch-Davidian residencel -~ - ' S S :

Led M. 2 s - e ) placed CN as the preferred tear gas among police

urng the standoff. with the -Davidians; FBI- . giythorities © around _the . world, Its popularity
.- stemmed from: the fact that it was shown to be a

gents used unarmed Bradley Fighting Vehicles 3
% ieans of transportation: while_guar ding the,
rimeter. of the residence.”The FBI's overall ope

" cause less long-term injury, particularly to the
~ "to be used in a contingency plan to be imples~ - eye.510 Military forces also saw CS as a potent
_mented in the event the Davidians began to fire on weapon for particular operations. Large quentmes

“the CEV's.If that occurred, agents in Bradleys of CS were used by the United States during the

; Vietnam War. CN is no longer used by the US.

... who.had .maneuvered _close to the building and et . longer \

. -.were- standing ready -were to. insert additional n‘uhtaryf«operatnons, but it is still used by some
~ "quantities of.CS: agent into allpart,s,qf,_l;he;build# _- ¢ivil authorities, and by individuals for self-de-
~ ing. Agents in the Bradleys were to. fire. Fé,—‘,—et""'fghé’e;mﬁbﬁgﬂcivilian]aw enforcement agencies CS
."Qrbund;,‘_'ptojgthilgg _into the -residence,, . Ferret. '._j:i,s;‘bx"fa'r‘. the most widely-used riot control agent.
ST rounds 508 resemble ldfgé“fplastic.;hqllpt ‘and are’ T e

_st2i% - fired from hand-held grenade launchers. Eachpro  , porn Beswick, Chemiol Agents Used in Riot-Control and Worfer,

: jecnlecamgs3_7 | 5Ins°f CS agqnttmlx§d “‘3 ”‘m‘r‘ixc first 8 control agent may have been ethyl bromacetate,
-~-guspension of methylené chloride. 7.~ .. EV’ : -b»d-;:e qu:nl"‘-ﬂr:) mbgouh:ﬂwmwdm‘;:ﬂdﬂﬁn@
: © .77 Onee the Davidians began firing.on the C (s~ gangs. The German indus produced many lethal chem
o bt Rogers: gave.the_order to. implement the “contin:. _;‘:i,';;‘;’:;“;‘?.f";f;.&‘:",,‘{',?’m; frp.;';)&";&m mn':;
L. gency plan. The agents in the Bradleys then ma-. shells and waed during the battle againat the Roasians at Bolimow is
S auvered-close to the Branch Davidian residence --L‘_“wﬁ,‘ﬁ:m Ty e ehemica ﬂ'“mjﬁ‘:f,:

and began to fire the Ferret round projectilés™ " sero temperatarst oo e battlefidd. However, it provided an early indi
uﬁmdmimmnwo(mthcrmdiﬁmh

. through the windows of the building. During the 6-
" hour operation, 400 Ferret round projectiles were e e zﬁﬂ’,’;':; m‘:’, devdoped ¥ America
- which be-

“~fired at the Branch Davidian residence, 8 number  veloped chloroscetophenonc, known by the military code CN,
£ sroiectiles stiuel :.the -gide .of: th‘e;_bui]diné an “ - came the mast effective and widely used tear gas. in the postwar
= T g et . - F LS | emerge in the 1920' in the

s Rounds sre 37, 30 and 40 miltimeter projeilies which exd -~ Ageqts (Sate M.Somani ed., 1992) " -

be fRred wwfhnanMmkum‘s.T . J.CMMJ.NW@AWJWMW. .
grams of rhmndumkmdhlmm#mﬂ\ymdb~, cal Warfare (1969). e :
ride. . su Hu, supre note 508, '

’
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7ams of CS agent was in-__ either CA or CN.5® ‘By the -1960’s;-CS had re- .-

- more. potent.irritant_than CN, and appeared to



eontrol agents in enclosed and indoor spaces where
it is feared that resulting high concentrations may

controlling and subduing riotous crowds. However, have resulted in harmful levels of exposure. Severe
' --injuries from exploding tear gas grenades as well -

2. Concerns over use of CS
CS has gained wide acceptance as a means of

agents. The

$11The mast thorough study of the use of CS agent against humans

is the Himsworth Report, which investigated the use of CS agent in

Northern Ireland in 1969. It luded that exp e to CS did not

produce long-term injury or death in humans. Home Office, report of the

... enquiry into the Medical and -Toxicological.aspects of CS (Ortho-
T chlorobenzylidene malononitrile), Part II: Inquiry into Toxicological As-

- jts widespread use has raised questions about its e .
- -gafoty. Most " published - studies: have :concluded. - -as deaths from the toxicity of riot control agents
“that, if used correctly, the irritant effects of.expo- . .-used_ in confined, indoor spaces have been re-
suré are short-lived and do not.cause permanent ported.:> = ..oy AT

datriage 511 However, there have been isolated re.:; = Critics.of the use of these agents argue that the
ports -of fatalities from the .use of riot control available toxicological data is insufficient to de-
Tits) ‘most common reports involve.deaths- . scribe withany: confidence the potential for long-
“the use of .riot - control agents. by -.term pulmonary, ‘carcinogenic, and reproductive ef-
Ametican filtary personnel in; Vietnam.512. Addi- - fects. One recently. published review of the tox-
tionally: “other reports volve_ injury. and_death .- cological data on riot-control agents concluded that
from the use of CS in Chile, Panama, South Korea,. " _relatively. little has been published in the main-
~'and the Gaza Strip and West Bank of Israel 513 It - stream ‘medical literature and that epidemiologic
ST g been unclear from these reports, however, . studies following tear gas use under actual field
=== “whether the riot control agent used was CS or an-.. conditions are almost. nonexistent. The author of

other, more toxic, agent.51¢ Of particular concern, . l_th;g'r,engy,wrote: .

" however, has been the indiscriminate use of riot There is clearly a great need for openly
conducted research illuminating the full
health consequences of exposure to riot-
"control agents including outcomes such as
tumor formation, reproductive effects, and
pulmonary disease. Consideration must be

. pecta of CS and its use for Civil Purposes (1971) [Wereinafter Himsworth -~ - given-to -the --possible effects of these

- Report]. ‘A recent study of thie usé of CS oa 1,500 persons in & confiried N .
lm};lp‘éﬁ;::e;;h‘:lylm;ﬂndinp."l’io:dﬁon:d'il.."‘;c:'l?tfr:cii'_-‘»-v‘ .--agents-.on. .the young, the elde.rly' and
of the potent locrimatqr o-chloropenzylidene i r.gos, 18 < i . other -persons..who might have increased
' s susceptibility 518 R e

Hum.'u;_i:?eﬁmu*rmhgy_ﬁ;,w(xmr A
13 The :United States used large amounts of CS daring thé Vietnam
trine for ‘the use of CS weapons by U.S. scurces is ssmmarized in. the
following passage taken Fora 1968 Army trainfing circula
- The employment .of riot-control agents (CS.'CR) in, Counter g

srations is ‘most feasible in tactical sitnations ¢harscterized by clase. |
7o combat in which-rapidly responding sy s are essentia] and- perma-

- _nent effects are undesirable. Riot-control munitions can be ‘used -

1C CTS AND TOXICITY OF CS

I..Common effects of exposure 10 CS - .=~
“All. riot control ‘agents, including CS, produce in- -
tense sensory irritation even in the most minute

. -CS was employed for. defensive

. tactically to temporarily disable hostile troops, Lo suppress their fire, or
“to cause them to
can be used to “flush out® nprotectad enemy troops from concealed posi.
tions or to reduce their ability to maneuver ar use their weapons. Defen- -
sively, riot-control munitions can be integrated into defensive perimeters

- to provide rapid CS delivery in case of enemy attack. -

was purpases such as in tb 1
prise atiack from superior enemy forces, and to help“secure-helicoptér

their position. Offensively, riot-control agents

I.b_e‘ev_en_t,_of'l sur- -

concentrations, .For most of these agents, the eye
" is the most sensitive organ, with pain arising rap-
jdly, accompanied by conjunctivitis, excessive tear-
ing, and uncontrolled blinking. The inside of the
mouth and nose experience a stinging or burning
sensation-and there is usually excessive discharge
- of nasal-‘mucus. Chest tightness and burning are

Ci o i eatraclions of combat units or dowred airman. It was used extensively -
L in area-denial operstions (o render terrsin uninhabitable by the ‘enemy.’”
... .CS.was also vsed routinely in direct engagement of-the enemy during -

"1 offénsive combat operations, - . T
- U8 ro::u were issued gas masks to protect themaelves againat use
- of other tear gases by the enemy. According to one U.S. evalua.-- -y - S . .
S o Viciniemeas pad only o fimsied sogely of tear gas, but | lowed by inflammation and redness, and in some
- M;ed it m,ﬁ:i ﬁm'm dw&m:i: Ntseéml service res- * ‘cases, actual burning of the skin occurs. Tear gas
. ;" .pirator. was re| a mask, wi went_through 8 number™ ““aynos ENRIRT S N PRI | .
 Rariher mdifcationa, The protection which it conferred was adequate . CxPo I oAy also irritate the stomach, leading to
= Bt ok complete bocatise detae CS seroscla can have & strong imiant ~VOMiting and possibly diarrhea. In addition to the
pecially in bot and hammid conditions when the skin “physical symptoms, panic and severe agitation are
. those individuals with no prior ex-

.accompanied by coughing, sneezing, and increased
secretions from the_respiratory  passageways. A
‘burning “sensation is felt ‘on the skin, often fol-

;- common among

St generaly, H. Jack Geiger & Robert M, Gook-Desgan, The Role " Lho!
-~ of Physicians in Conflicts and Humanitorien Crises, Case Studies from . perience of exposure to tear gas.51@
the Fleld Missiocs @ Physicians for Human Rights, 1968 (5 1983, 210 Most of the symptoms are felt within 10 to 30
$4]n o 1989 report, the ing OfBce noted that the  Seconds after exposure to the agent. ARter ces-

sation of exposure, however, most symptoms con-
" tinue to persist for a period of minutes before sub-
siding- and-disappearing.5!7 The effects of expose
vary among individuals. Additionally, weather con-
ditions, -such as- temperature and humidity,- can.
heighten the potency of these agents.518 '

Genersl
group Physicians for Human Rights had conducted a fact-finding trip o
investigate allegations of deaths from the use of CS in the occupied terri-
tories but that the members of the group eould not confirm that any of ~

-S18Hu, supro note 508, at 264285,

, Supra note 11, atesl.

death (that] appesred o follow expose to high Gideritrations of lear” " “aies, 8. e
"~ als0 stated (Kat “Amnesty Inlernational potéd that it was in = ln}(;‘;‘%;anu‘s&,z-?i'!‘m R .

0 pudun—t?wﬁfy the exact cavec of death in every case” /d. at 4.::.— - #30)d..at
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2. Toxicity of CS : ~ lation. In fact; the most well-known study of the
A review of the scientific literature concerning effects of CS on humans estimates that the likeli-
o " the use of CS indicates that limited conclusions as hood of death after exposure to 8 dose of CS that
e = g the to;icity"'and'lethality_- of CS are known. It 18 one-tenth the estimated lethal does is less than
w iesssgeens generally accepted by:the. scientific commu- -1 in 100,000.53¢ Accordingly, any analysis of the
nity ‘that the’ ' jon " whichis Jéthality of the CS agent used in the concentra-
¢ by humans :and; which :wi]_l‘_jp‘r‘oydk'e.x tions that resulted on April 19 can only be per-
esponses_in humans is 4 milligrams per formed in- light: of the 50 percent Jethality esti-
or' (4, mg/in?).51° While no studies on hu-~ mates. - T T :
ns; "\i’é_bdén'éonduct.ed'coneenﬁgg the lethality’ .<'* Even ‘when_ the quantities of CS riot control
of. CS,” veral - studies: have projected the  con- “agent used do-not reach lethal toxic levels, there -
centrations at whichCS is ‘Jethal to humans from = are;, nevertheless, - significant physical ~ con-
‘the effects ‘of studies performed on’animals. Those  *“sequences that occur from: exposure to CS, and
" Ustudies estimate that -the - concentration” of “CS - often severe emotional reactions caused by the
... .  agent Ybi‘?h_"""°‘:ﬂd“'l’f°v€"ea‘ﬂl. to 50 percent of - symptoms brought on from exposure to CS. As dis-
-~ ~ =any given human population ranges from as low as * cussed above; one recent study of the use of large
" 25,000520 to as as 150,000 mg-min/m?.52! Re- - quantities ‘of ‘CS against a population unable to
cent estimates by the U.S. military, however, esti- - Jeave the area in which the CS was used indicated
mate that the lethal concentration for humans is  that first, second, and even third degree burns are
61,000 mg:min/m’.f” That study projects that the  possible when skin is exposed to CS.527 Addition-
concentrations vghxch would be injurious to the - ally, some studies have shown that exposure to CS
_ . healthof approximately 50 percent of any human  can_ cause allergic contact dermatitis.528 Other
SRR population range from between 10-20 ,!{*_g-mm/ studies have shown that when CS can cause sé-
S T ever - that there *~ yere gastroenteritis when ingested, whether di-
_ -1t is important. to note, however, that there-are - ~-rectly or-as & result of ingesting mucus secretions
no published studies which find that any human  containing CS from oral inhalation.5%?
_dea}h'bg_s__:b_e,en.__:qa_gsg_d@by'«expogggq-lwécs_..,agent,.} .. Additionally, some studies on animals have sug-
‘While & nuimber of unverified Teports “of ‘human " gested that exposure to CS might cause cancer and -
eath can, be fozmdﬁug,the literature, in. all of.. . genetic abnormalities.53¢ Some studies have stated
hese reports it‘is unclear Pl‘eclselywhetherCSor _:that exposure:to high concentrations of CS for pro-
" gomne other, more f?,’“c.',-..."!??'“ﬂ@."‘?l,853“.‘_‘_""’35'ued:.".:‘-' ‘ong periods ‘could result in inflammatory changes
o ether gome “other ¢ircumstance -could have: jn the respiratory tract that might be conducive to
. _.caused the deaths. The most extensive study,of the  gecondary -respiratory “infection.53! And it is
use of CS agent on humans, by ‘United Kingdom  Jieved that CS may exacerbate existing medical

{%f:i?d?:ﬁ%;gr:laﬁe\;nw%lii;eu:igeg;yxs‘é:\odu;g conditions of persons with bronchitis or asthma,
oo .. from the widespread use of CS agent there.52¢ The :E;:ugh no fepoﬂ.s o "death from these conditions
", only other documented study of the_effects of CS .. - . ‘ o
.. used on a large ‘number of humans confirms this... . F- EFFECT OF THE CS AND METHYLENE CHLORIDE IN"
TeeeIIL T ﬁndiﬂg.“‘_' '“ - =L s LUl nunnov o THE QUANLH;I?S _"J-SED ON APRIL 19TH
e T Some people may find curious the fact that all of - . Lethality of CS as used at Waco
I ‘these studies (and similar studies on the effects of . restimon before the ‘subcommittees resented
R .che mxga_l_ ag.ents)'qnifonn\y give. esti mates. of the, -»:'contradictozy evidence on the effects ot? CS .riot
4;_.....‘9"‘,"]__8;' which CS ;ﬂ@l@ °; 1"" Junougltp 50 per- . ntrol agent: The published literature described
o g:!:" oa\‘:uf-‘»lgi‘t:zg;g : u’:—;?_%& e;;nctax;sf. Ct.sagg e;;s. above, however, is more consistent in the conclu-
© & e pang (and on-other animals) is not.“linear,” i.e., sions’ drawn. While. it cannot be concluded with
R _,_V,;,_;hat.-;propoatlipna_gglx greater .concégt:gﬁéhs;;,d% not :Zl::é“g. t.‘}:e’(s; u‘;:‘t:i‘:ieg ::3 g;\emis Fg;t rzr;hu;}
Tt “have equa y - proportionate increases in_ e ect. . oBsTy . ) -1 ’
' While scientists. can estimate the_levels_which L‘mmﬁ&?:g:&?&ig’éﬁﬁvgseaﬁ gé?‘ne
;;t,}:,l:, ;::o :ritllegi t:: gcimr:n;r:f;:mg;v:}r:ar ,::;} gertion into the enclosed bunker at a time when
of that quantity would kill 25 percent of that pops- e e o e aase e e cause
of or directly resulted in some or all of the deaths
attnbuted ‘tc-asphyxiation in the autopsy reports.

i s

Ballintyne, Riot c@uﬂ‘_mu:wi@‘, and Health Ao: . -
‘Civil Distorbances 27 (1977); Hu;"supre

s He
olential Mili -
LTI =4 Himéworth Repart, sup

. =8 Anderson, lupmmﬁn. ot §64-465.

831 Ballantyne, supra note 519, st 3o.

n

LY Z 0039134



In order to answer the question of whether the

- quantities of CS agent inserted into the residence

might have reached lethal levels, the subcommit-
tees attempted to determine the concentrations .

* The air circulation carried some of the CS agent
out of the building. Adding to the air circulation
inside the Davidians residence that day was the
fact that the FBI began to use the CEV’s to ram

. - .. that- were-present in_the residence. under the . openings into the building, ostensibly to create a
_ -~ “worst-case” circumstances. To, make. this deter- = means of escape for the Davidians and, later, to
_mination; a number of assumptions must be made. = “deconstruct™ portions of the structure in an effort
dny of these assumptions, were overstated solely: . ¢y prevent the Davidians from occupying those
e.:.:aréas of ‘the residence. These actions greatly en-
" hanced the. ¢irculation into the_residence and fur-
 ther depleted the concentration of CS agent inside
eramy (180,000 Tage) of CS was'delivered 57 For ... i fesidence. Additionaly, on ApeL, Toniv fact
“the ‘puirposes “of ‘analysis, the subcommittees as: - T ip iy o i circalation inside the res
e e westrstie casé” acenario, where all 180 . reatly enhanced the air circulation inside the res
" grams were delivered into the building by the two «.~'.en~°°'és ng to ti ‘“’?;m" el‘h ¢ i;ncen :
. .. GEV's at the same instant, and that one-quarter of - £1°7 of CS.agent in the residence. 1hus, the actual
levels of CS inside the Davidian residence were

for.the_ purpose of calculation in order to place
gredtest scrutiny on the government’s actions. :.- -
~.:In~each ‘of-the first two phases of ingertion™ into

the .Branch -Davidian - residence, & -total. of 180

" -~ the Ferret rounds fired at the residence were fired

.. at the precise moment that the CS delivered by

the CEV's entered the residence.533 If so, then dur-
ing the first and second phases of the CS oper-
ation, 550 grams (550,000 mgs) of CS were deliv-
ered to the residence.534 During the first and sec-
ond phases, therefore, the total concentration of
CS delivered into the compound was 108.92 mgs/

third and"

irito the residence.s38 Duting each of the

fourth- phasesthe total_concentration at the (as-:

04 ‘mgs/m3,53

© ing would have been 411.92 mgs/m3.538 This con-

centration is far below the 61,000 mgs/m? amount

less than those calculated above.

Some who have contacted the subcommittees
have suggested that the above analysis is flawed
because it does not allow for the possibility that
some CS agent was concentrated in certain areas

_of the residence rather than being evenly distrib-
_uted throughout' the entire structure. The sub-

.o =2 ~:m3,538 ‘During the third and fourth phases, due to ~ committees believe that it is important to address
 the miechanical failire of the second CEV, only 490. e
grams (490,000 mgs) of | CS ‘agent. was. delivered .

_ that possibility, .. ..o
. Because -the_largest-group of bodies recovered
after the fire was found in' the area of the resi-
‘dence commonly known as the gun room or bunk-
‘er540_consideration ‘was given to the concentra-
§.of CS.in that area.54! The bunker was a solid .

" "concrete-room - inside ‘the Davidian residence. It

had no windows or other access to the outside of
. .the -building, but did-open‘into a hallway inside
the residence. It appears that there was little op-
portunity for CS to have been directly sprayed into

. ulation of humans, Stated in another way, it would . the bunker - likely drifted into that room after it
take a concentration of CS 148 times gréater than .. ‘was sprayed into ‘one or.more of the rooms along -
SRR - the greatest-amount ‘that could have been present . the outsideof ‘thé “structure. The subcommittees
7w -8t -the Branch Davidian residence on"April 19 to ' note, however, that the videstape of the insertion
e '98‘:}?“”.‘8.'; le;thal:lv_evvel. LT e g e oo of CS-on® April 19 indicates that one of the CEV's
- ..; _In:reality; the concentrations of CS inside the - drove-into the structure near the bunker during
Do Branch Davidian 'residence .did not reach even . .the fourth phase of the CS insertion. If the door to
iz these levels; The Branch Davidian residence was 8 " the bunker had been open at that time, it is pos-
. ... poorly construéted structure which allowed for &ir " giple. that CS'might have been injected directly
=. - tomove in and out of the residence continuously. . intg the bunker.~~ - -

Based on this possibility the subcommittees at-
tempted ‘to determine, as a worst case scenario,
the concentration of CS that would have been
present in that room had the CEV emptied the en-
tire contents of one of its CS containers into the
bunker, It appears, -however,.that even in that

projected to be lethal to 50 percent of a given pop-  the bunker and that any CS that was present in

S T T CEV-T emptied ita four 30.gram cylinders while CEV-2 emptied
the contents of its two 30-gram cylinders. The tolal delivered was thus

{4 % 30) « (2 x 30) = 180 grams. . R -
83Fach Ferret round carried 3.7 grams of CS agent. A (otal of 400

Ferret rounds were Bred at the residence. Thua, the total quantity of CS
agent in one quarier of the Ferret rounds ueed was 370 grams (3.7 x

100). L .
.. 840n each of the first two phases, 180 grams of CS agent was deliv. "
_“ered by the CEV's and approximately 370 grams was delivered by Ferret - <<

Mhﬁ%&m.«@.@m c ;oI DT SITIT
5.6 The 'Bnp‘c_h' Davidian” residence contal; spproximately 178,310

AR S

o g pai e

- -89 Tlie" Nations:: Oceanie and Atmospheric

- on"April. 18, 1963. The winds continued"

on April 19, winds were recorded at 25
S ' ocums Appendix for @ disgram of the

aoa?lanoﬂhe'suneh Devidish residence. - - X -
X 7.0 / 11t should be rioted, however, that nooe of the autlopsies ol the per

% The: concentration: ing,” found in the biifiker indicate the cause of death was from exposure -

08.92 mga/m® + 97.04 mga/m® + 97.04 TGS, pEEEe ey o o LT
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event the concentration of CS would not have ene chloride. This suspension was then dispersed
_ reached lethal levels. into the structure by carbon dioxide, which almost
i o -2 The _volume of.the bunker room was approxi- jmmediately evaporated, leaving the suspension of
wn o mately 44.40 cubic meters. Assuming that -an en- CS and methylene chloride. Additionally, each of

:: tire cylinder (30 grams) of CS was injected into the .the Ferret round projectiles contained 33 grams of
' as the dispersant medium for

room, the - concentration at. that “moment would -... methylene chloride
have: been 675.67 mgs/m3.542 As discussed above,. - the CSagent. _ ... . . . .- .
~the’ concentration:;leyel; ‘estimated. to be lethal to ~.. - -The four phases of insertion of CS agent into the
‘humans ;isfﬁl,opgimg‘sj-min/mi Even had the CEV.. .:Branch Davidian residence’ were con ucted ap-
. which was mounted with four containers of CS in- . proximately 2 hours . apart. During the first and
'sgmdu'ne‘;contﬁnt? of all four containers into vt.h’g,;;’jse'cond:'ph‘ases gix cylinders_of CS agent were in-. '
. bunket;:,:ﬂ!ﬁg'resfqltitjg; concentration ~would have .~ serted into the residence, delivering approximately
- been 2,702.70 mgs/ m3.643 Again, this figure is well... 6,420 grams...of . .methylene chloride in each
" below. the concentration ‘level estimated -to be le- . phase.54¢ J_)uring’_thjéjthix‘d ‘and fourth insertions =

. .. -thal to humans, .. .~ RN T only four cylinders of CS agent were inserted, ac-
--- --- . Another worsé case scenario considered by the - .- .counting for approximately 4,280 grams of methyl-
- gubcommittees was the possibility that one of the . ene chloride during each insertion. Assuming a
CEV’s might have delivered the entire contents of = worse case scenario of all of the CS insertions in
one of its cylinders of CS agent into one of the one phase occurring at the same moment and ap-
gmallest rooms of the residence, and that that proximately Y4 of the Ferret round projectiles en-
room was inhabited at the time. It still appears tering the building at that same time, thus adding
. that the concentration of CS would not have an additional 3,300 grams of methylene chloride in
S ;V,reac‘:hedJethal__leyelﬁs_._'l‘he_ smallest rooms in_the each phase547 the total concentration of methyl-
.“structure. were_the women's quarters located on _ ene chloride delivered into the building during the

the second floor of ﬂ\é'résidenoe,w!l'hetsmall_gst of first and second insertions was 1,924.87
~these had a total volume of 16.17 cubic meters. As- " M3 sae e SR e

T that an entire cylinder of © had been in- A review of the scientific literature concerning

jected into this room, the concentration at that mo-""
ent would have been-1855.29 mgs/m?,5! Assum- 3
ing further that. a”nymber of-l‘,jggtt,,“ro;xr!s!,sg._alsb“;* prove harmful or lethal to humans. The only esti-

: R ‘happened to be_fired into ‘the room at the exact  -mates which do exist are with respect to mice an
moment that the CS was injected by the CEV. (as-"" rats;. For- example,. the concentration that would
e e SUME 81 impossible event such as 20 rounds énter- - prove lethal to 50 percent.of a rat population is es-
ing the room at the same instant), the concentra- timated to be 2,640,000 mgs-mi 'm3.549 As can be
tion at that instant would have been 6,431.66 mgs/ ~ geen from the above figures, therefore, the total
m3.546 Again, these figures fall far below the con-  concentrations of methylene chloride at the
.. centrations estimated to be lethal to humans. -~ Davidian residence on that day were less than the
. While concluding that it 18 unlikely that the CS concentrations that would prove lethal to even
" “reached’ toxic levels, the sub_committees note the - rats.550.It appears, therefore, that the methylene
. level of exposure to CS e_xpener}ced by-an:individ- -- chloride. used-with .the CS agent could not have

7 ual Davidian cannot be ‘determined. It is possible . caused the Seath of any of the Davidians.
7 7777 ;that a person near one 9f the CEV's injecting the .. As in the case with CS, the subcommittees con-
RS CS may have been subject to 8 level.qf;CS,ﬁm_t»,._ _gidered the possibility that some methylene chlo-
~.. was high enough to cause death. Additionally, 10 ride was concentrated in certain areas ‘of the resi-
. of the autopsies indicate asphyxiation as the cause  dence rather than being evenly distribu

! of death, but do not indicate whether .CS_or_other . throughout the entire structure. Because the larg-
factors may have lead to this. The subcommittees  est.group of bodies’ recovered after the fire was
sre unable to conclude that CS did not play a part _ found in the area of the residence commonly

“in the deaths of these persons. - '

- pe i — D S ; .
2. Lethality of methylene chloride used with CSat”~ SAEach finder contained 1070 grams of methelyene chiaride. S
Waco inders otaled 0,720 g tained 33 grams of methylcos chlorie, O¥F
_ " During the gassing operation, each cylinder of '&"mf;"" ounda thos inserted 3,300 grama of the chemic (22
o ER e fﬁge-ghsb‘ota dt:ontml_--_t:lgent i‘r:_ﬁrog‘uceg into the ':el;uwt:n_'tz;w phases m‘t%«;;)qua%y of;?»th% chlaride g
_Branch Davidian residence y.the CEV's was . ivered A8 grame (6 x 1,070) + (100 x 33)) or 878050 Fo
* mitxed with spproximately 1,070 grams o ethyle o e oabet gt the iyt ““’::.."S o wes

c8 contained 30 p
= 676.67 mga/m?.

580 ;
. {5,049,7.m?) the distribution of the substance throughoot the baiMing in
_these phases was-1,601.08 mge/m?- -
. B9See i ; u-m.ln-ns-uysmca
from ' “(1988), Dow Chemica), Tic., Material Data Safety Sheet 3 (1968).
) & uchof(heburwdwupm
RRE L . wed only 6,366.74 mgvm?. (2 x 192480 ¢ (2 x 1,501.08) = 5356.74)-

B
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; "fCS:T_E’g‘eﬁE”‘;hhs;‘loc'at,ed';r_;o.r; estimates. of the con-
centration " of - methylene chloride  which “would:

. quantity - -
-z 0f methylen 4 x1070) (100X~ .
- 33)or 7 M'Wﬁi"ﬁﬁbﬂbymﬁmdﬁabﬂbm -



_known as the gun room or bunker, consideration -66,171.93 mg::/m“55 Assummg further that a .
“was given to the concentrations of methylene chlo- number of Ferret rounds also happened to be fired
ride in that area.55! As discussed above, the bunk- - into the room at the exact moment that the CS
er was a solid concrete room with no windows or _was injected by the CEV (assume, for example, an
- other access to the outside of the building, but did. " event as unlikely as 20 rounds entering the room .
n - z”open into a hallway inside the residence. Again, it ~*" at the same instant), the concentration at that in-
appears that there was little ‘opportunity-for the stant would have been 106,988 mgs/m3.556 Again,
methylene chloride. carrying the'CS-agent to have ° “these figures fall far below the concentratwns esti-
‘beén directly sprayed into the bunker and that any " ‘mated to be lethal to rats,
methylene chloride that was present in the bunker " e
“likely drifted into that room after it' was sprayed 3. Other possible effects f methylene chlor ide used . .
‘into.one or more of the rooms along the’ outside of = ... ‘with CS at Waco
" While. the subcommxttees conclude that the lev-

" _the structure, But.the subcommittees ‘again note =
“that the.videotape of the-insertion.of CS on April: els of methylene chloride did not reach lethal toxic
19 indicates that one of the CEV’s drove into the - levels, the subcommittzes also considered whether

““structure near the bunker during the fourth' phase’ *~thé levels of methylene chloride may have affected
© -+ of the CS insertion. If the door to the bunker had - -the Davidians in other ways. At levels over 1,000
"7 777" been open at that time, it is possible that methyl-" parts per million (ppm) anaesthetic effects begin to
ene ch{oride carrying the CS agent might have  occur in humans.557 At levels above 2,300 ppm, ex-
been injected directly into the bunker. posure to methylene chloride may cause dizzi-
Based on this possibility the subcommittees at- pess 558
tempted to determine, as a worst case scenario, Because methylene chloride evaporates rapidly
the concentration of methylene chloride that would  when released into the air, the subcommittees con-
- have been present in that room had the CEV  yidered separately the concentrations of methylene
. .emptied the entire. contents of one of its CS con: " chloride during each of the four phases of the CS
_ tainers into the bunker. It appears, however, that agent insertion. The_levels of methylene chloride
even in that event the- ‘concentration of .CS, would‘

.. The, v°]mg?c:£l cth; ekais::r%?ngwxatazﬁr?r;:';‘” agent/methylene chlonde mxxture dunng the third
of CS (with:1,070 grams of methylené ** ~ang fourthhphfa'se) 4 4 ohi lind
chlond asg. a. dxsbursant) ‘was -injectedinto the uring the first an second phases, six cylinders
room, the concentration at that momerit woul d~:._-~.—:.'-.of CS agent-were inserted into the residence, deliv-
have been 24,099 mgs/m3.552 Even if the CEV that  €fing_approximately 6,420 grams of methylene

S Y] was. mount.ed with. four cylinders. of CSinsérted chlo.rldeinn'each.'phase:5_59 Assuming that all of the
====" "the contents of all four containers into thé bunker, CS inserted by the CEV's during one phase was

the resulting concentration would have been inserted at a single moment, and that approx-

96,396 mgs/m3.553 Both of these figures are well - mMately ¥4 of the Ferret round prOJectlles used dur-

e ' below the concentrations eshmated to°be lethal to - ’ing theentire operation also entering the building
e EE - at that same time (thus adding an additional 3,300

= rats 554 ,__,.-' — e ‘

-~ Another’ worse. case ‘scenario cons:dered by thejfj_"" ‘grams “of ‘methylene chloride in each phase ),
. subcommittees. was the possibility that one of the  and that the Davidian residence was airtight, the
CEV's might have. delivered the entire contents of -~ concentration of methylene chloride during each of

R “one of its cylinders_of. CS agent into ‘one of the = ‘the ﬁrst two, phases would have been 548 ppm.5é!

smallest rooms of the residence, and that that -
-~ .. room was-inhabited ‘at the time. It-still appédrs ~ %sEach qimder ofCS agent coatained 1,070 grams of metbylene
- .-that the coricentration of methylene chloridé would " chleride, or 1,070,000 milligrarns. 1,070,000 mgw/ 16.17 m? = 66,171 mgv
not have reached lethal levels. The smallest rooms ~ f"-, 070 grame of-methylene chloride from & CEV plus 660 grams of
_in the structure were the women’s quarters located  methylene chloride from 20 Ferret rounds is a total of 1,730 grams
““on" the second floor of the residence. The smillest B P . :’i‘é;‘;’ = ””’- or 1,730,000 milligrams. 1,730,000 g/

of these had a total volume of 16.17 cubic meters. %12 G. Clayton & F. cuywn, Patty's Industrial Hygiene and Tox-
Assuming that an entire cylinder of CS had been  cology 3445-3455 (1881} R Stewart et al, Methylene Chloride: Develop-
ment of a Biological Standard for Industrial Workers by Breath Analysis

injected into this room, the concentration of meth-
agre,
ylene chloride at that. moment would have been
o e cytinder contained 1,070 grams of methylene chloride. Six o7k
" {nders totaled 8,720 gramas. - -
.9 Each Ferret round contained 33 grams of methylene ehloride. One -
+ hundred -Ferret mn(h I.hun inserted 3,:!00 grams of the chemical into

the building.
: ""l‘hemolamhrm olmethylmeehlaideguhas One male of

melhyléne chloride gus. is 24.2 liters. 9,720g MC/ 85 = 114 moles. 114
- “‘moles ¥ 24.2 lilers/mole '« "2758 liters of MC. There was 5,049,700 liters
“of ‘volume in the Davidian residence (5.049.7 m? x 1000 lltzrlfm' ]
“5,049,700). Thus 2767.34/ 5,049,700 £ 10° « 548 ppm.

».‘lubouldbenudlwme.lhtmeofu‘enmoflbe
a&lﬁﬂhlbehntab&nutheumidum‘v- ﬁvma
tomthylenechlm'idc. =
_____g_!qhnda of CS_contained: -1,070 grams, or 1,070,000 ‘miTli-.
o8, of methylen d\m lmoooomp/uwnﬂ 214,090 ‘mgw/
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-were greatest during.the first two phases (because - - -
one of the CEV’s was unable to-inject the CS -



tration, studies have shown no-ob-  sault on the residence was attempted. The FBI be-
sa3 lieved that the Davidians had fortified the resi-

. _._In_considering the possibili ‘that some methyl-  dence and were ready to offer resistance equal to
. _ene chloride was concentrate in certain areas of . or _perhaps. even greater than that they
_ ~ “the residence, rather than being evenly distributed-.... showed during the failed February 28 assault on
- throughout the entire structure, the.subcommit- . the residence by the “ATF.‘The FBI was also con-
" ‘tees found that it ‘was possible that. the levels of . .cerned about the possibility of suicide by the
_j'_"zj;x__et'hyl_enév"’c_l__z_ld_'r‘xde‘ “reached concentrations that Davidians in the event of such an assault.564
might _have “caused ™ Jevels “that --produced . 8n _ . ‘Experts_ on tactics’ testified before the sub-.
ia__gfjm,e'sthetiéféﬁ'ei;'tfs in-humans, & cemromon g e B committees” that & frontal assault is one of the

"~ Again, _the ubcom'xi_:itt_c_eg__‘"ﬁnsidere the :

At this concen
servable effects in humans.

beomr . the . pos- : ;; riskiest types of. tactical operations.®®* That risk
. "~ sible. concentrs gidn‘,ixin-théﬂ'buhker,'-'as;-;the»,_latgest - _v‘gg_s.e\'réh"gre_'afg@rj_n this situation given the large.
""" group of bodies recovered aftér the fire ‘was found . size- of. the structure nd the wide-open areas
“there.. The volumé of the bunker- room.-was. ap- . around the. structure with the resulting lack of
- _proximately 44.40 cubic meters. Assuming that an  cover for any approach to the residence.
.. _entire cylinder of CS (with 1,070 grams of methyl- . The FBI's decision to pursue options other than
- " " ene chloride as a disbursant) was injected into the & frontal assault in order to end the standoff was
room, the concentration at that moment would . a wise one. It seems clear that a raid, even one
have been 6,861 ppm.583 This concentration was  better planned than that of the ATF of February
sufficient to induce dizziness and other anaesthetic 28, was of unacceptably high risk. It is likely that
effects in humans. FBI agents would have sustained casualties in
As stated, however, the evidence is not deter- such an assault. Any assault on the Branch .
"'minative as to whether one of the CEV's did, in Davidian residence also risked the lives of the
L fact, insert CS directly into the bunker. Addition- Davidians. Additionally, the FBI appropriately
'gl]y',"itjé'ii{ikhow’ri“if‘the_ bunker door was open or - considered _ the _possibility. of suicide by the
Josed, -~ factor that -would - have significantly af- Davidians in the event of an assault.
cted the c:,ifcéﬁii‘ﬁ_t.iéhiléiiél,s" inside the room. Fi- o
ally, the air circulation snside the building would
ave. affected the “levels of methylene _chloride™”"
“present at ja'_njr;“ohe::timé;-"l‘ﬁe subcommittees ‘con-

. a.;;Z__‘h;eh,s;“gygti._qyl__tng;{g notsoon be resolved

2ozt cludey: however, that it is possible’ that:the levels One of the key. factors influencing the FBT's deci-
-"* of methylene chloride in the bunkéi were such™ <'sion -to recornmend-to, the Attorney General that
... that the chemical impaired the Davidians’ ability  the standoff be ended on day 51 was the belief by
(7T 'to “escape ‘the room:-Additionally, the possibility - - FBI officials that continuing to negotiate with the
oo cannot be dismissed that other Davidians, in other- Davidians would not lead to their peaceful surren-
... . areasof the residence, might have been similarly - der. At the hearings held by the subcommittees,’
.0 L adversely affected if they were directly exposed to FBI chief negotiator Byron Sage testified that he
.. _an insertion of an’_entire ql_i_nder‘ofthe:CS agent/ --believed :that further negotiations would not be

.~ methylene~chloride ‘mixture: Thus, the levels of - fruitful 558 Tactical commander Jeffrey Jamar tes-
~’'methylene ‘chloride " that- were “present -in - the tified . that_ he .was  skeptical that negotiations

... Davidian Tesidence as a result of the use of the .CS - .would end the stand-off, and that he became even

" “iot control agent might have impaired the ability more skeptical after Koresh reneged on & promise
. of some of the Davidians to be able to leave the ° to'come out on March 2.567 Documentary evidence
‘!-g_;iqié:'_@e_}x_ad'_t,béy’otb.e[ rise wished to do so. - reﬁey:ﬁd by the ':}\‘xbcommittees indilcated. h(;::

o L b T U ever,-that some of the FBI's behaviora experts
; ‘G. ANALYSIS OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL'S DECISION . 1o 004 that there were further steps that could be

i : TOENDTHE STANDOFF ON mu' 19,1993 . ‘taken through -negotiations. Additionally, at the
""“"’f}‘ The:dectswn;not_.;.to;sfpm;!be "‘?4,’{‘“. P e subcommittees’ hearings, testimony was receiv
The subcommittees received testimony concerns from the attorneys for the Davidians that they be-
~ ing the FBI's decision not to storm the residence lieved further negotiations could have led to the
in order to end the standoff. Additionally, the Jus- Davidians’ peaceful surrender.
tice Department Report on these events also dis- Sage's view was that Koresh had broken many
__cusses_the factors that went into this decision. Ac- of the promises he had made throughout the
cording ‘to that:report, FBI" tactical -experts be- standoff. After a experiencing 8 number of these
lieved that-there-was-a spbstantial:_.like!ihood .of. ,_broken _promises, Sage and the other FBI com-
-asuslties to FBI agents'if a frontal as:= ——r Sy ~

. -eatJustics Departamen th'pafltw;_ SRR
: - ‘sssHeafings Part 2 at 315, 318 {statement of Donald A. Bassetl)

Lol ocvgrwnhp,dqwd the concepl or the hope that negotiations coald
nccessfully and: peacefully resolve this matter. My statement to Hob-
bell] 8t e earings Par B Byron Bage> Lot

. vaur” Hearings Part 2 at3 tement .
o Hearings P-Jlt!gt 2306-307, - - i

e e a— S W s o R 2 A
s3] 8. Dept. Of Commerce, é‘ﬂl_y_l.’w Toxic Substances and Discase

Rﬂ%m@?ﬂl Profile for Méthylene Chiloride (1998) = v -

... g MC/ 85 = 12.59 moles. 12.69 moles-x-24.2 literw/m

i §04.83 liters of MC. There was 44,400 liters -of volume_in the unker

144.40 m® x 1000 litere/m? = 44,400} Thus 304,63/ 44,400 x 6861
PP ' . Tt LT mITMLom —sﬂm E of this report.
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. manders believed that they could not rely on
Koresh's assurances. :
Another factor that may have affected the FBI
commanders’ view of the situation, but which was
- Report, is mental-and- emotional fatigue affecting
the FBI decisionmakeérs. Sage was one of the first
. FBI agents on ‘the ‘scene on’ February. 28. He
- worked every day, all day, of the 51 day standoff, - -
and.-only _retirned ‘to "his home in-Austin for‘a:
.short - period ‘of :time”on" 1 day to- gather tiore "
lothes. Jamar and the other senior-FBI ¢command- =
.ers. were ‘also-on site  for ‘almost ‘the ‘entire time of
.. the. standoff.-“It’ seems only “natural- then," that
-physical and méntal fatigue would beginto set'in "
and that dealing with Koresh’s rhetoric and dis-
- ingenuousness would lead to emotional fatigue as -
..well. Indeed, the Justice Department Report indi-
cates that the law enforcement personne! present
were tired and that their “tempers were fray-
ing." 560
Nevertheless, FBI commanders to become firmly
convinced that nothing more would come from fur-
ther negotiations with Koresh. :That belief was
-vcommunicated by nge_;q Associate Attorney Gen-
- eral Webster Hubbell during a 2-hour “telephotie”" -
conversation on:April 15,570 This_belief played a
erucial role in‘influéncing Attorney Gerieral Reno’s -

- .

- tees received: testithony from the: Davidians'/attor- -
... neys that ‘Koresh-was hard at work writing his in-
. terpretation of the Seven Sealsdiscussed in the™~
. Book of Revelation in the Bible. They believe that
.. -Koresh was willing to surrender when he finished -
~ his writing. . '
The FBI's commanders knew of Koresh's desire
. - to write this manuscript but did not believe he
- . was ‘actually working on it. It appears that fatigue ..
- --and frustration at the lack of achieving success in -
- obtaining the release of additional Davidians may * -
- .. ‘-have led the negotiators to be less than receptive =
- - to this information. That the negotiators were not
" “ open to this new information, and ‘did not pass’ it
-+~ on to their'superiors, played a part.in the Attorney - -
~General’s decision €9 end_the stand
. and in"the manner chosen to'endit. "
_____b. The Davidians might attempt.a breakout, -~
© 77 possibly using the children as shields"" >
Another factor that went into the FBI's rec-
ommendation to the Attorney General to end the
standoff on day 51 was the fear that the Davidians
might attempt to breakout of the residence using
‘the. children as_human shields. According to the

-+ perts” ‘had suggested this possibility and that to-
.. combat this possibility, the FBI had to be certai
~‘that its best . trained..troops-(the~Hostzage Rescu

i given  little -emphasis 'in’ the Justice Department .-

“te

off on April.19..".

Justice ‘Départment” Report, “some:[unnamed] ex: "

Team members) would be on the scene.572 There
was some doubt as to how much longer the HRT
could remain at the residence.

“There was little evidence to support this fear. At
no time did Koresh or Schneider threaten that the
Davidians might attempt to break out of the resi-

“dence or take any other offensive action. In fact,
“from February 28 to April 19 all of the Davidians’

‘actions could be viewed as defensive in nature—

- defending what they believed to be sacred ground,

their residence.. Given the Davidians’ professed de-
votion to their residence, it is difficult to under-
stand why the FBI thought the Davidians would
try to leave. Given that the FBI also knew that the

“Davidians were very much aware of the perimeter
security around the residence it is difficult to un-

derstand why the FBI thought the Davidians be-
lieved they could escape. In short, there appears to
have been little support for the FBI's concern that
the Davidians would try to break out of the resi-
dence. To the extent it played a part in the FBI's
decision to recommend that the standoff be ended
on April 19, this unfounded fear contributed to the
tragic results of that day. The Attorney General
knew or should have known that the fear of break-
out argument was unfounded.

-¢.. The FBI Hostage Rescue Team needed rest -

<

.+~ and retraining**

-decision to enid the standoff on April 19.67} /..o - 7t o FEE L L P :
During"the’ heafinigs,” however; -the.: subcommit- . > According to'the Justice Department Report, an-

-other importdn
Attorney General’s decision to end the standoff on

- “April-19 was ‘concern over.the continuing readiness

of the Hostage Rescue Team.573 It is unquestioned
that the HRT possesses more skills and skills that
are more highly developed that any other civilian
tactical unit within the Federal Government.
These skills need constant use in order to be re-
tained, much as_a superior athlete must train each
day.to maintain-his or her level of athletic skill.
Without that training, these skills begin to deterio-
rate, - - - oo T

According to the Justice Department Report and
stimony presented to the subcommittees, the
concern -about the possible deterioration in HRT
skills, was raised. at a meeting of Justice Depart-
‘ment_and FBI officials with the Attorney General

_ on April 14, 1993,67¢ By that date, the HRT mem-

bers.had been present at the Branch Davidian cen-
ter for almost 7 weeks without the opportunity for
the type of training that they otherwise would be
pursuing every day. Also present at that meeting
were several military officers. As a Defense De-

il at 261
P tiedid b bm-'mwu iqué {n Feders! ta

gorous ‘screening program. Uniqueé in
HRT trainé S‘ii'-y:‘u’ woek, all year In tactics relat
take coatrol-of and ‘end hostiage and barricade siluations without loss of
life to any innocent persons who may be involved. Unlike the séveral
FBI SWAT teams or ATF SRT tearns, HRT members do not carry an in-
vestigative éase load in addition 1o their tactical duties. Thus, they train _

od of FBI special agents selected throogh
y w enforcement, the
3 1 it emiskic

. sach-working day,” wheress the SWAT and SRT members conduct tac
- -tical training only a few days each month.

874 Justice Department Report at 268,
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t factor that played a part in the .- -

to



" partment witness testified before the subcommit-  Department Report and hearing testimony made
tees, the officers explained that they were present  clear, during the 51 day standoff the HRT was
at the April 14, 1993 meeting at the invitation of used only for perimeter security—keeping the

=~ FBL officials in order to answer any questions that.. Dayidians in and outsiders out. of the residence.
. +orney’ General might pose to them. about - Had the HRT had been relieved by SWAT teams,
" - ending the standoff. The officers had been selected . they “would have been assigned to the same task.

because of their special tactical tral ing'and expe:. In short, while HRT capabilities exceed SWAT ca-
_ _eh“ce.-Dunngfthe meeting, one Of ﬂ\e,nfﬁcer_svad- .p’_abiliti_es.’_thi:'_HRfl‘s additional capabilities are not
=vised:the Attorney General that if the HRT were ", “those éssential to_the task of securing the perim-
- military. troops under.his _:_:gmma_nd‘he,,would,r,eac ( 16 scene.

. s under his commsnd he would rec. . eter of s crime Seenc,
ij'-:ommepd ~pulling. them.avay, f~'-'.°'3"¥':ﬂ‘°--' Branch Gi'veh'f'ﬂiat',‘ﬂ)e‘"thieaf"of a Branch Davidian
Davidian icenter for rgst:,qugretrmnmg,§?5~-' L L e

~Davidiah d retraiming.. - - breakout was minimal at most, it appears that the -
- ~According:-fo the Justice Department report, "~ FBI was :6’\5'§r¢gi1ti6'\i§’in""informing the Attorney
mander Dick. Rogers informed the Attor-  : General that its own SWAT teams were not capa-
‘ney General that the }{R"I__"memt_)e:s. were not t00 * ple of securing the residence perimeter.5 ‘While
fatigued to_perform in top _caps\c_tt.y..m ?‘"y tactical .~ the HRT might best have done the job of securing
operation at that tme b‘:i “.;g t fe s:tand;ﬁ' the residence, nothing in the record suggests that
tor ] period of time - the SWAT teams could not have done that job ade-

wo‘\iﬂd recommend g’ta:l"'h"":b:md.d°w'.‘ hf“ rest  cuately for a short time. Indeed, had the Attorney
and retraiming. e subcommittees’ hearings  General not approved the plan to end the standoff
Mr. Rogers and Floyd Clarke, Deputy Director of ;" mid-April, the FBI was planning to use its
the FBI in early 1993, each testified that they be-  gwAT teams to relieve the HRT. It does not ap-
_lieved the HRT could have remained on site for at ear that the FBI inform d th Attorney General
. least2 additional weeks before he v\;q,nld have rec- gf:hié fact lféweve:'n ormed Ehe ey Lene
4 thi . .77 . - - - s fact, he . :

T omﬁgn_goe?n?:% t_.l;:;yi_t:t_aé\‘g d;:t;:iofaiidn?‘éf HRT .l_‘Rgpresetitati\ies, of the Texas Rangers testified
Ahe. P ills becomes uriacce ptable-is not & fact - _before_ the subcommittees that they believed that
oars t5 e readily quantifiable “bot Fath ‘State police. SWAT teams could have relieved the

tter ‘of informed j oent. Nothinj -FBI HRT and 1 ."ﬂt,;ifn“.édithe perimeter while the

AT o - judgment.. B0t TE. {ad 580 Representatives of the Texas -
ce presenited-to:the subxor mittees leads ed,580. Representatives

clusion “that 'the 'HRT ‘members” ‘skills.

5 ieré tiot deteriorating or that the recommendation’

" . of the military officers and the HRT commander to o e Juatice Depart ,

. semove the HRT members for. rest and retraining mn;‘:’,mm&nt:iﬂ;‘::: D‘;m;:“n:':,ﬁ:fmfﬁﬁf;m
=+ was ‘not wellsinformed.- But this observation ‘does ~Jered 16 the FBI by-the military, implying that the SWAT teams did

_not answer the questions of what weight this fact :9‘111;:9 this uﬂ;.ien& Yei, even the K uﬁeﬂﬂml:-d w idnui'e‘ reme-
- should have play ed in the Attorney Geneml’s deci- l‘t.one ;;no‘l‘r‘:‘t.o:n nn:td vu‘e!::le driv:n ;y m.;lkf “r:m::e- vh: 'i

e eme - gion o end the standoff on day 51. o being retrained drove :r‘er‘nns%ﬂnb\k belorging lo s member of the

= The Justice Department Report states that the - P estroying the vehicle. it woald not have taken moch EF®

| A meral dissased with the FEL the pos- - gt e SWAT pen L P Sy e et

s e gibility “of using FBI .SWAT teams.to Felieve :the: :;embm v coud ot have received safficient training to drive these vehi-
-~ ©. ' . HRT for a time so that the HRT could be: pulled - AT Pethe: In recidence. . he Texas officers

- -~ “from the scene, rested, and retrained but that ‘the .an don't have SWAT &ny:n a:",::' the ‘1':.“.-’g Rangers, but the Sate

7 . FBI discouraged that option and took the position =~ Policedo. donk vt
e T that it should be used only as a last resort. At the - - . Hccou};:': &3&“ &.Smww the loca) officials in the
ol e Eaao _,,:}Cl?:;‘i‘ngsnbefore t&e' BMB;%I‘“&FSB. howeve]r' Fl ’ < atioas thereol that could have
s e, Deputy. Director of the I'in early 1993, - that could have maintained that perimeter for fow da week

b S "-?;?geveﬁ“ e FBI vas %ﬂ&nlating plans to use wo, € necensa Tryr o let. thie that perimete o rocp bad the .

R WAT teams in place e HRT teams if the . "3 “pvezs W something? penerica
Attorney General did not approve the plan to end F::Hy, 1 amx:x;'-':;m::n’:; tat &:‘ hnj:‘m in :;q’a:
i ined unit for what they sre daing in

-HRT was tes

__e_dﬁ___tl;;at_"__ﬂm_e:fjl_‘g’gé;s;‘_‘St,gte'__’_pplice did offer to assist

the standoff in mid—April."" the warld, and [ think to be there.
The FBI testified that the qualification of its Mr. MCCOLLUM: ?d:‘?m telfor s minate. | am not even ques-
several SWAT teams do not equal that of the HRT,  tioning that, | am jost asking becatst 1 know you may pot know all of
e What must be considered, however, is the actual gﬁ::;‘:"'::“‘;:fm“’”‘ it appears that is a factor. We are
»--‘mk;fc;r yvhj?g:_gge_EWAT,tea@gyvoﬂld: have been " nr.vgmﬂm:l never heard atbelore o ion i
b Tt would not have been an attempt to enter."" ,,  reSarine: Wneiher it .o oo, e guastin | w3 7Y T 0
d take control of the-residence. As the Justic jo o you L s 0 Y2l bryy

s [t P i
75 Hearings Part 3 at 304, 314 (stat t-of Allen -Holmes, Assistant
Secretary of Defense for a] Operations 8nd Low Intensity. Conflict). - .with to do that, even though they wouldat have been a8 effective at it
678 Justice rtment SR ' “perhaps as the FBl's HRT team. 1s that right or not?
..M Hesrings Part 2 al ¥ Mr. CooK: | think it could l\.vebammpl'uhd.lmnllhlthjﬂl
t ---..Mc.hwmmtuﬁgﬂcl.Wchnpdbmmindh -

"i'.na(.uiamwnaﬁcum; T Rt i ie s, 8 DASE
#ve Hearings Part 3 at (-uwuealdlﬂoydcluh). dill’mumlluﬁulhnanln.
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Rangers interviewed by subcommittees’ staff stat-



the FBI in maintaining the perimeter during the
standoff but that this offer was rejected. ' '
The FBI's decision to reject outside assistance is

. consistent with the prevailing FBI attitude of re-
_ sisting any involvement . from_-other agencies,
" whether Federal, State,-or local. This attitude is
" counterproductive,.While the subcommittees -can-
" not evaluate the capabilities of the Texas State po-—"
lice,; and-are mindful of the command.and control -
“problems that may be encountered wher bringing’
" together members for -organizations that have ‘had

 no previous experience together, it appears short- -
.- sighted for the FBI to have rejected out of hand -
- the  offer ‘of -assistance . from the- State ‘police “and, "
- gpecifically for not considering using State police”
SWAT teams to help maintain the perimeter

around the Branch Davidian residence.’ Given FBI
concerns with the size of the perimeter to be main-
tained, it would seem that these additional person-’
nel could have been of some assistance to the FBI,
even if they were used in a merely supporting role,
such as at a secondary perimeter established be-
yond that maintained by the FBIL

While using FBI SWAT teams to relieve the
_ HRT might not have been the optimal approach to

> the problem, using them (perhaps augmented by ... .
State -police teams) would have enabled the FBI t
e

st and “retrain ‘the HRT.so that it could have
T an appropriate
Lo the Attor

"néy General that:SWAT-t ‘used to reliev
-the HRT, or o inform_her that the FBI planned to ...
‘use them for this very purpose had she not ap-
_proved the plan to end the standoff, limited the op-
tions and created an unnecessary sense of urgency
about ending the standoff. The Attorney General
~ knew or should have known that the HRT did not
- “need to stand .down.to_rest or retrain for at least
“i" -9 ‘more weeks after April 19, and if and when it
-~ did stand down, FBI :and -local law enforcement . .
" " SWAT teams_could have been brought in to main- -
~ “'tain the perimeter. If she did not know the true .
" facts it is because she did not ask the questions of
.. the. FBI that a. reasonably prudent person faced
* " with the decision would have asked. If the Attor...
" ney General did ask these questions, someone in . -
the FBI lied to her or was grossly negligent in re-
" porting the facts. If the latter was the case, the re-
""" "gponsible party should-have been disciplined long
ago. The absence of such action leads the sub-’
committees to conclude that the Attorney General

was herself negligent. :

d. Conditions inside the residence were dete-
- Another factor that_the Attorney. Ge ays

fayed & part in her decision-to end.the-standoff:

_.ditions inside the residence. There is little support '

"“for this concern and it should not havé played any
significant part of the decision to end the standoff.
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- on April 19 was a concern about deteriorating con:_ -

The concern about deteriorating conditions is
mentioned in only two places in the Justice De-
partment Report.58! The report also States,  how-
ever, that the FBI became convinced that while
Koresh was rationing water to ensure discipline he
‘continuing to replenish the water supply.582

was

" The report further. States that the FBI believed
‘that the Davidians had food to last up to 1 year.

"In short, if the concern about conditions inside
the ‘residence was_a.factor in the Attorney Gen-

eral’s decision, it could only have been about lack

““of electricity or the lack of sanitation inside the

residence.. While electricity to the residence was
cut off for the. final time on March 12,583 the

~ Davidians had kerosene lamps inside the residence
- which they used to.illumine the interior. And

while the Davidians had no way to cook food, they
had ample stores of food that did not need to be
cooked. In short, there is no evidence that the lack
of electricity resulted in any real harm to the
Davidians.

The purported concern over sanitary conditions
inside the residence is also exaggerated. Even be-
fore the February 28 raid, the Davidians had
never had running water or other sanitation inside

" the residerice. Human waste was collected in buck-

ets and other containers each day and taken out-

““side to an designated, dumping site for the waste.

Diring ‘the standoff, waste was dumped into the
half-finished swimming pool next to the residence,
Apart from the odor from the swimming pool, how-
€ Here is no evidence that the materials in the

ever,t

pool’ was leaking or.leeching into the residence. At

the hearings béfore the subcommittees, one of the
surviving Davidians testified that sanitation “was
no worse on the last day than it was throughout
the fifty-one days.”584 The assertion in the Justice
Departinent Report that “sanitary conditions had
deteriorated significantly” is simply incorrect.

In summary, the conditions inside the residence
had changed only slightly from those in which the

- Davidians lived before February 28. The conditions

appear: to ‘not have presented any immediate

- health risk to the adults or children inside the res-

jdence. If concerns about these conditions played a

_role in' the Attorney General's decision to end the

standoff on April 19, they were unfounded and she
knéw or should have known this.
e. There was the possibility of on-going phys-
ical and sexual child abuse -
The Justice Department Report states that dur-
ing the week of April 12, an (unnamed) individual
informed the Attorney General that the FBI had

. learned that the Davidians were physically abus-
. ing.the -children "in the residence and that this

‘after February 28. The report

bus¢’had oecurri

tes, “[Tihe Attorriey General had no doubt that
:-]’2!“ %mm Report at 269, 275,
se31d at 67.

684 Hegrings Part 3 at 185 (statement of Clive Doyle).
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were living in intolerable conditions.”
The report goes on to State that the Attorney Gen-

eral had been told that Koresh had sexually
~ . abused minors in the past and “continued to have

jex while recovering from his wounds.” 585 The re-
por;'does'hot,St.qte on what intelligence these as-
sertions were based. - - te B
In another part of the report, however, the Jus- ~

"* the children

‘evidence of “physical or sexual
ports sgates, .

" [TThere was no

abuse. Asth

:direct evidence: estab- .o

.. Jishing that any" hildren were being ei-: . .-

ther,sexua“yAabused of physically abused -
“the February 28 through April 19 time pe-

- riod.” There were circumstantial indica-
_tions, however, that the children were live -
ing in a deteriorating environment, and
that the prospect of living in a deteriorat
ing environment, and that the prospect of
sexual or physical abuse was likely as the
standoff continued.

There is little circumstantial evidence revealed in

the report as well. e

. Itis clear that Koresh sexually abiised minor fe- -

-“males at the residence, in addition to having con-

sensual ‘sexual relations with a several of the adult <7

homales who lived there. ‘A’ numb® '

~ Davidians. pr dé@:gﬁidﬁ'vits‘fdemjli(ig"ft}!_ese"-'sex-;'

-ual relations uding the ggxual{"alitiéeﬁn?qlvin’g' “a

. minors females. Joycé: Sparks; an employee of th
Texas Children's P_fﬁtéétiVé“’Serviées “agency pro---
vided the FBI with a report of an interview she .
conducted with a child who lived at the residence
detailing an incident of sexual abuse. This child
testified about her experience before the sub-

. _committees at the July hearings. Also, during con-
" versation between the FBI and Steve

" during_the week_ of April 14, Schneider admitted .

" that he knew of Koresh’s gexual abuse of a'minor .

, 587 While all of these incidents occurred -

..~ .prior to .February 28, FBI_beha’vibralf‘e‘xpert Dr.
'/ park Dietz, in an April 17 memoranda’ to the FBI, .

- opined that “Koresh may continue to make sexual

. use of any minor female children who remain in- *.
side™888 T 7 ' RIS

It also appears certain

j-Vere,-physiéalApgni"s_htn_enl;sj

~ing the children. p

o

that Koresh em{;loyed se-
as a means of disciplin- - -

_ he ct A March 26 report of Dr: Bruce

."Perry, a child psychiatrist i

children who had been released during the stand-
off, confirmed that Koresh physically abused chil-
dren who had misbehaved.5%

- .On.April 19, the Attorney General made several

television statements during which she stated that -

=~ed her to

. While the At-

decide to end the standoft-

S ————— . 3., e et

"~ oes Juatice Department Report st 275. - Tt BT R
oes]d at 226. B A A
w1]d at 222-223.
s ]d. at 223.

- sesjd st 223-224.

79

- ruary raid or

.. Additionally,

In anc ~“‘makes clear,’

¢e Department -admits that:.the FBI had no direct . _the potential for extreme
e re-

* " ney General's awareness of the
- assault; including

. ney General's decision
. on concerns

) D?ar_tmgqt report
difference whether’ the children

‘A - numbér: of former -~ guons w692 This- statermien

“thie fact, that the

Schneider - .

" phone and told

_gault. We will not enter. the buil
- der’ ‘vesponded
the ‘residénce.

- - - We are in

J—
: ! a gurnng ! ‘ { { 5 .; 390 The - Atlorney.
“ her concern of on-going child abuse was factor that ...

;+_uale carrying
children being held Bp

7

at

fering greater harms th
“as the Justice ' Department report
the ‘Attorney .
, 1tie danger
ursuing the FBI's assault plan 5%
- Given the lack-of evidence that the children in-
‘sidé’ the ‘compound faced:immediate life-threaten-
ing harm from the ongoing standoff and the Attor-
extreme risks of an
the potential for gerious or even
to the children, the Attor-
to approve the raid based
for the children’s welfare was flawed.
Justice Department Report tries to
downplay this factor by asserting that the Attor-
ney General was more influenced by other fac-
tors,5e1 the Attorney General’s public statements
on and after April 19 indicate otherwise. Particu-
larly troublesome is the statement in the Justice
that “[ulltimately, it made no
were undergoing
contemporaneous abuse, because the environment
inside the:_residence - was-:.intolerable in any
t is an attempt to mask
act Attorney. General either was mis-
ormed of misu_ndéx‘swod-.-what was happening
third week of Apri

life-threatening injury

While the

1

de”the residence as:of the

the plan she knew
greater risk.
3. The decision as to how t0 implement the plan

" @. The FBI's mindset—"This is not an as-
" i .- vi': sault” RTINS
* At 5:59 a.m. on " April
Byron Sage spoke with
him, “[Wle're in
into the building.

19, FBI chief negotiator
Steve Schneider by tele-
the process of put-
This is not an as
ding.” 593 Schnei-
telephone out of
to broadcast the
pointed to-

ting tear gas

by throwing the

_ Sage then began

following message OVer loudspeakers

ward the residences’ ~ =~

in the process of placing tear
gas into the building. This is not an as-
gault. We are not entering the building.

. This is not an assault. Do not fire your

e ,genmlmld_wtipmﬂucnltbelunddfw
weckend of April 17 becates of her concern about the availability
> addition; during pre-raid approval meetings

2 ihe potential threst of individ.
weapont, and to the possibility of
threatened to be

ing the wee
of emérgency Tooms.:in
questioned the FBI's planned resp
children while firing.
windows and being

shot. Id st

QTQTR oo DT T
e d. at 216. e T

esld at217.

2 /d. at 286,
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_or intentionally ‘exaggerated the conditions to pro-
vide an excuse for approving
"~ could likely _er)d in violence and put the children at



LisaTTIf you co

- ‘Immediately after Sage spoke with Schneider, two |
- CEV’s approached:the residence.:Both CEV's were _
““fitted” with a long_ triangular boom-like ‘arm on-
-..which_.was fitted ‘a ‘device that would spray CS "

agent mixed with carbon dioxide. The CEV's were

_.weapons. If you fire, fire will be returned.
Do not shoot. This is not an assault. The
gas you smell is a non-lethal tear gas.
This gas will temporarily render the

" building uninhabitable. Exit the residence

" now and follow instructions,® ~ % oo T

= - " You are. not.to have ;anyotie' .i-xi';f‘ft,}xe":,:":" _Fol-implemented
7% gower, T tower is off limits. No one is to- "~ - stand-off the Branch Davidians were confronted

N in the tower. Anyone observed to be in"~ -

“:"the_ tower will be_considered to be.an act
-of “aggression and will be.dealt with ac. -
“cordingly. ' Sstads e EE T a

" with your hainds up. Carry nothing. Come - - -
out of the building and walk up the drive-

- way toward the Double-E Ranch Road. - -

Walk toward the large Red Cross flag.

Follow all instructions of the FBI agents
in the Bradleys. Follow all instructions.

You are under arrest. This standoff is
over, .

We do not want to hurt anyone. Follow
all instructions. This is not an assault. Do
not fire any weapons. We do not want

_anyone hurt. R T
" Gas will continue to be delivered until

+ veyeryoneig;out of the building.584:¢ <. b= 1o w7

maneuvered close enough to the residence so that

"~ the boomn could be rammmed into and through the

wall of the building. The operator then inserted CS
agent into the building using the device affixed to

the boom of the CEV, Insertions of CS agent by .

‘the. CEV's._occurred _in" four distinct -phases’

- _“throughout.the morning of the April 19.7- " =
""" During this phase of the plan, FBI agents in the-
Bradleys also maneuvered close to the residence.
The agents used hand-held grenade launchers to
. fire CS agent in projectiles knows as Ferret rounds

. thorough a firing port in the Bradleys and into the

~ windows of the residence. This activity also went

i on throughout the morning of the 19th.

As Sage testified at the subcommittees’ -heax:-

. . " ings, the FBI did not consider these actions to be -
- an assault against the residence. To Sage, the fact

that the FBI did not plan to enter the residence at
any time, and did not enter the residence, was de-

_ terminative as to whether the operation was an

assault. While this distinction may have made

,«axrd especially HRT -members, °

“If you corme. ot now, youwill not ‘be-
- harmed. Follow all instructions. Come out” = -

. would be perceived by those who were the targets
‘of their actions—the Davidians inside the resi-
dence. This failure was a significant error.

b. The FBI’s failure to consider the ‘Reason-

; "~ able-Branch Davidian”

- As the FBI implemented its plan to end the

. with the sound of military vehicles approaching
‘their home, the vibrations from holes being

; “‘ramimed into_the sides of their home, and by the -

“effects of o’ gas-like’ substance being sprayed into
*-their home. Most people would consider this to be

" ‘an attack on them—an “assault” in the simplest

“terms. If they then saw other military vehicles ap-
‘proaching, from which . projectiles were fired
through the windows of their home, most people
are even more likely to believe that they were
-under an assault. If those vehicles then began to
tear down their home there would be little doubt
that they were being attacked. These events are
what the Davidians inside the residence experi-
enced on April 19, yet the FBI did not consider
their actions an assault. L
Compounding this situation is the fact that the
Davidians were not “most people.” They were a
close-knit group with ties to their home stronger

""”-t.han-'tlgo;_e;of._mbst..vpeop_le.;_::'lhe Davidians consid-

“ered their residence to be sacred ground. Their re-
ligious'leader led them to believe that one day a

-2 group’ of ‘outsiders, fion-believers, most likely in

“the  form’ of -government agents, would come for
them. Indeed, they believed that this destiny had
_been predicted 2,000 years before in Biblical

- prophecy. Given this mindset, it can hardly be dis-

- puted that the Davidians thought they were under

assault at 6 a.m, on April 19. n
The FBPIs failure to consider how the Davidians

might respond to their actions was important. The
- FBI's operations plan called for a systematic inser-

.- _tion of the CS riot control agent at different inter-

vals throughout the day. But the plan also called
for a back-up operation if the armored vehicles
used in the operation came under fire. This contin-
gency plan involved rapid insertion of CS agent
-and the eventual “deconstruction” or tearing down
‘of the residence itself. The vehicles came under
fire almost immediately after the gas insertion
began. The FBI resorted to their fall-back plan as

e

- of 6:07 a.m.595 _..

As the Justice Department Report makes clear,
the majority of the FBI's briefing to the Attorney
General involved the main FBI plan involving the

- deliberate, slow insertion of CS agent. Little dis-
- cussion apparently took place about the contin-

~7:gency provision in the plan calling for the rapid in-

-gertion of CS ‘agent and the deconstruction of the
residence. . : oot

“i-.- Curiously; the FBI seemed to know that their

- principal ‘plan~would not govern the way that

80
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events would actually unfold on April 19. The
FBI's overall commander, Jeffrey Jamar, testified
at the subcommittees’ hearings that he had a be-
lief to a 99 percent certainty that the contingency
plan would be implemented, 88 he believed the
Davidians would open fire on the CEV's. As he tes-
tified before the gubcommittees, ] believed it was
99 percent when we approached with the tank
they would fire. I believe that. Not all people agree
with me on that, but I believed that at the time,
 yes.” 69 Although the Justice Department Report

does not mention that Jamar informed his superi-
ors of his belief, it is clear the Attorney General
also believed the Davidians would open fire on the
FBL. In referenced to firing on the FBI, the Attor-
ney General testified that she “knew what these
men would do.” 577 -

It cannot be known whether the Attorney Gen-
eral would have decided differently had she known
that the FBI expected the contingency provisions

of the operations plan to be implemented. What is

clear is that she never had the opportunity to con-
sider this fact because the FBI believed that their
actions did not constitute an attack, based on an
incomplete understanding of the Davidians. Had
the FBI considered how the Davidians would per-
ceive their actions they might have been able to
predict that the fall back plan would be used. If
this fact had been communicated to the Attorney
General she might have decided things differently.

H. PRESIDENTIAL INVOLVEMENT IN THE EVENTS AT
WACO, TX

The involvement of the White House occurred in
several ways. According to White House Chief of
Staff Mack McLarty, two parallel lines of commu-
nication existed—one from Acting Assistant Attor-
ney General Stuart Gerson to McLarty, and the
other from Gerson to White House Counsel Ber-
nard Nussbaum. Senior advisor Bruce Lindsey
also kept jnformed on developments in Waco.598

- No White House officials objected to the plan to
end the standoff at an April 13, 1993 meeting be-
tween White House and Justice Department offi-
cials, including Hubbell, Nussbaum, Lindsey and
Deputy White House Counsel Vince Foster. On
Sunday, Ap.ril 18, 1993, Reno called the President

ple, *1 was aware (of the plan to insert CS into the
residence.] I think the Attorney General made the

em———
"'H-n'ngohﬂzouu.
- i Maltm.mAmeycmduﬁﬁe&

ts out there exposed when [ knew
when they started bﬁnuW?B!M-leqhnu.ddedl.
-JuthWui&.
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decision. I knew it was

decisions were entirely

going to be done, but the
theirs.”

1. FINDINGS CONCERNING THE PLAN TO END THE

STANDOFF

1. The Attorney Gene
the standoff on day
wrong, and highly irre
by Attorney General Jane
FBI's plan to end the standoff
mature, wrong, and highly i
thorizing the CS assault to proc
eral Reno was seriously neglige
General knew or-should have know
to end the stand-off. would endange

the Davidians inside the residence,

children. The Attorney
have known that there was
agents, society as 8 whole, or to
from continuing this standoff
ity ofa peaceful resolution con
a. The “benefits” of avoiding problems were
not properly evaluated.
the standoff was likely to con
too pessimistic given the advice
f the Davidian

_ terpretation of the meaning 0
they believed that no resolution was possible

through further negotiations,
the At

to going

cluded and convinced

there was no alternative
plan to end the standoff. The on
ing. There was also no n
April 19, but having lost p
tiating process and facing an ini
torney General, FBI officials m

The FBI'

grossly exaggerated arguments for urg

There was never any overt act
ment made by Koresh to suppo
serted fear that the Davidians might try 8 break-
out. Using the threat of a breakout as a reason to
t plan sooner rather
wrong. The
neral knew or sh
no remotely imminent
there was no rea-
ut of concern that
d and needed to step down
the HRT's own com-
ned on duty at

go forward with the CS assaul
than continue the negotia
FBI and the Attorney
have known there was
threat of such a breakout. Also,
son to go forward on April 19 0
the HRT was exhauste
for retraining. According to
mander, the HRT could have remai
the residence for at least 2 more weeks. In addi-
tion, FBI and local law enforcement SWAT teams
could have been brought in intai i
eter if the HRT had to step down
The FBI and the Attorn

have known this.

The Attormey General wrongly based her deci-
sion to act in part on concerns
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ral’s decision to end
51 was premature,
sponsible. The decision
t Reno to approve
on April 19 was pre-
rresponsible. In au-
eed Attorney Gen-
nt. The Attorney
n that the plan
r the lives of
including the
General knew or sho
little risk to the FB
the Davidians
and that the possibil-
tinued to exist.

s belief that
tinue indefinitely was
of behaviorist Dr.

the FBI wrongly con-
torney General that
forward with the
ly issue was tim-
eed to rush into action on
atience with the nego-
tially reluctant At-

anufactured

or eve
rt the FBI's as-

that the conditions



" inside the residence were deteriorating and that

U " children. were being abused. There was no evi-

dence that sanitary and other living conditions in- -

gside the residence, stark at the beginning of the
standoff, had deteriorated appreciably during the

.~ .to. February 28 and- may have continued -theré-
" after, there is no évidence that:mirors were being
subjected to.any greater risk of physical”or’ sexual
*'abuse. during the -stand-off than-prior to' February
The Attorney_General knew-or::should have

‘kno

_from

om a forced end-to the stand-off, and the remain-
ing possibility-of a peaceful resolution, it was inap-
“propriate for the ‘Attorney General to-have-been
" occupied with apprehending Koresh-for violations

“""of State law which: were outside her jurisdiction to

enforce.

" b. The risks of ending the standoff ' were not

fully appreciated. In deciding to end the standoff
on April 19, the FBI and the Attorney General
failed to properly evaluate the risks to the
Davidians of the FBI's operational plan. The FBI's

plan was based on an assumption that most rea-’

sonable people would flee the residence when CS
_.agent_was. introduced.:The FBI failed to fully ap-
preciate the-fact that the Davidians could not be
relied. upon :to:-act : 8s- other-reasonable’ people
.might. The FBI failed:to properly -account’for the

Davidians’-resolve, group cohesiveness; -&nd loy alty
‘what they believed to.be sacred ground;:iz= *
e <FBI “co

More. troubling -is: the:fact ‘that:'the “FB]
“manders -either. knew-or should have-kaown~tha
the contingency provisions of the plan presented to
- :the::Attorney General would - likely - be: imple-
““."mented. While the plan-as des¢ribed to-the Attor-

ney General called for a slow and deliberate inser-
... tion of CS agent in an effort to deny the Davidians
. ... access to_some areas of the residence and encour-
age them to exit the residence in specific locations;
the_-contingency ~provision. in the plan’ called for

CEV's. The :result. of the contingency-provision
would 'be much .larger quantities~of ‘CS :being

that the. all-out. assault.would .
‘people inside the residence. . . :

" Jeffrey Jamar, the FBI's overall commander Qt‘

the residence testified before the subcommittees -

_that he believed there was 99 percent chance that
the contingency provision would :be ‘implemented
because the Davidians would open-fire‘on-the FBI
against., Clearly;-given:the Davidians" actions- i
response to the-ATE .raid. on February28; ‘it was
almost:certain: th

to the. FBI's attions-withgunfire.:Yet, Jamar nevi

e g s vy

.. standoff. Further, while there is no question- that -
_.physical_and sexual-abuse of minors occurred prior"

“this..In:light: ofthe :risk”to - the-‘children

_much larger: quantities of CS to be insérted all at,
once, -and .in-all- areas: of the.residence, “if -the"
Davidians -opened fire-on the agents inside the-"

present inside the -residence with the.attendant
- _greater. likelihood that' harmful - concentrations”
““might_be.reached, ‘and also the-strong-likelihood -
cause panic-in ‘the - ‘éfal’n
e Thighly irresponsible, - oo

~*==-g-"The FBI's réfusal to ask for or accept the

t;the Davidians:would ‘respond

.. communicsted his opinion’to the*Attorney Gefieral;

AT T e T A LT ST g v, 8 e . -

or apparently to anyone else for that :natter. .
- Other senior FBI officials, however, should have
" realized that the Davidians would respond with
gunfire and that the contingency provision of the
plan would be quickly implemented. Given this,
they should have more fully briefed the Attorney
~:Géneral on this aspect of the plan. :
++.'More importaritly,” owever, the Attorney Gen-
- eral hersélf ‘admitted during her testimony before
** the. subcommittees that she _expected the -
- Davidians to fire on_the tanks, and that she under-
- gtood that if they did the rapid acceleration of con-
“tingency plan would be implemented. It is ‘evident
" .the Attorney General knew or should have known
““that the contingency provision of the plan would
‘be implemented once the operation began on April

“2:19; that the Davidians would not react by leaving

the ‘residence as_suggested by the FBI, and that
there was a possibility that a violent and perhaps
suicidal réaction would occur within the residence.
At no time has the Attorney General indicated
that she reflected on the consequences of the possi-
bility. At the very least this demonstrates gross
negligence on the part of the Attorney General in
authorizing the plan to proceed.

3. FBI commanders in Waco prematurely
ruled-out the possibility of a negotiated end

“ ' to the stand-off. After Koresh and the Davidians

broke ‘a: promise to.come out on March 2, FBI tac-
tical commander Jeffrey ‘Jamar viewed all state.
“of Karesh . with. extreme skepticism and
hances for.a negotiated surrender re-
egotiator Byron Sage may have
. FB] officials on the ground

held ou Torger

> had ‘éffectively ruled out a negotiated end long be-

. ~fore April 19 and had. closed minds when pre-

“ivgeritéd with evidence of a possible negotiated end

_involving Koresh’s work on interpreting the Seven
Seals ‘described in the Bible's Book of Revelation.
.. 4, FBI tactical commander Jeffrey Jamar
"* - and senior FBI and Justice Department offi-
“cials ‘acted irresponsibly in advising the At.
“torney ‘Genéral to go forward with the plan
to ‘end the stand-off on April 19. Jamar and
*“senior FBI and Justice Department officials advis-

““ijng’ the Attorney General knew or should have
> “ known that of the reasons given to end negotia-

tions “and go forward with the plan to end the
“‘gtand-off on April 19 lacked merit. To urge these
_as an excuse to act at the time the Attorney Gen-
" “¢ral made the decision to do so was wrong and

assistance of other law enforcement agencies
~ during the stand-off demonstrated an institu-
: . tional bias at the FBI against accepting and
== utilizing " such assistance. Throughout the 51
‘day stand-off the FBI refused to ask for the assist-
nce-of other law

T enforcement agencies and even
sfiised’ offert ‘of ‘such_assistance. The subcommit-
és"find that there “is an_institutional bias inside-

‘the-FBI against allowing other agencies to partici-
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T ~,page"‘in"‘li‘B_I‘"oper}at,:i_\)ms»_. Such bias is short-sighted - -persons whose job it was to be fully informed
and, in this case, proved to be counter-productive . . about the use of CS, it appears that the Attorney
in that the failure to seek or accept assistance General failed to fully consider the flawed assump-
added to the pressure to end the stand-off on April tion in the FBI's plan once it should have become
R AT el g . obvious to her. . e :
as101v that the CS riot-control- = 7.-There is mo evidence that the FBI dis-
I reached toxic levels, - .. charged firearms on April18. . - .
r in- -+2:, 8. Following the FBI's April 19 assault on
. _the Branch ,.,Davidiah"‘.;_,oompound.-Attorney
ung- children, . .General-: Reno _offered her resignation. In -

omen, the elderly, and those with -::light ‘of; her ultimate responsibility for the

respirato! __egﬁg.l;_t;ioqé;f'_CS"*;ﬁot,"c’oiitfol‘-‘agent: is dxsastrousas.saultand its res
capable of causing immediate, acute and severe . :the President should have accepted it
physical distress to individiials, especially L J;.;BEOOM@A‘I_‘JI_QQ'S—T'

young children, prégnant: women, the ‘elderly, and. == - e T
.- ~those with _,rejspitat;bry‘conditions.-' In' Some cases, - - 1 Federal law ‘enforcement agencies should
T ‘severe or extended “exposure-can lead to incapaci- : - take steps to foster greater understanding of
.7 tation, “Evidence. presented to the subcommittees : the target under investigation. The subcommit-
- ghow that in enclosed spaces, such as the bunker,  tees feel strongly that government officials failed
the ‘use of CS riot control agent significantly in- to fully appreciate the philosophy or mindset of
creases the possibility that Jethal levels will be the Davidians. If they had, those officials might
reached, and the possibility of harm significantly have been better able to predict how the Davidians
increases. In view of the risks posed by insertion would react to the plans to raid the residence on
’ of CS into enclosed spaces, particularly the bunk- February 28 and the plan to end the standoff on
er, the FBI failed to demonstrate gufficient concern April 19, If so, perhaps many of the errors made
or the presenice “of “young “hildren, --pregnant. :.<on February 28 and during the standoff could have
‘women, ;t.he"‘_élderly‘;,"énd those “with ‘respiratory. .. been avoided.:. . " - T :
nditions. While it cannot be con¢luded.- with .cer: ..-The. subc _tigl_»it.t.'ees'foﬁﬂd"tmublesome the fact
e it 1inlikely that the'CS fiot control agent;: that.many of the ATF and FBI officials involved in
ed by the- FBI,:reached lethal : ..: this mgﬁt,t_eg};séqmed'unimjéfe‘sted in understanding _
sented evidence does:indicate . the Davidians’ goals and belief system. The views
vof these officials ranged from assumptions that the

nsertion rito ’t}i’é”enclt{sie‘d=~‘bunker,e' at a i > ofl d from
hen’ women " an children were-'sssembled- -Branch Davidian ‘were rational people likely to re-
"’e_ticlé"*séd"ﬁ’i)'a'c"e’--‘(i'.e., during the fourth = _ spond to authorities as ‘would most citizens to &
77CS, riot control agent insertion), could have been & belief that the Davidians were 2 “cult” which could
.proximate cause of of directly resulted in some or: ~~not be dealt with in any way other than by force.
all of the deaths attributed to asphyxiation in the ... Seldom did these officials seem interested in actu-

: T T T e ows - ally trying to understand this group of people and

their motivations. This attitude was shortsigh

U aufopsy véports. T . -
o7 It is_clear from the testimony at the ‘hearings -: :.
. that the FBI  expected the -adult, members of the. --and contributed to several of the mistakes that the
community to, care for the” children . by-removing - ---government officials made at different points from
. .. them from exposure to the CS agent by coming out ° = February 28 through April19. =
... of the residence ;wiphjt@netﬂr_i.‘-’l‘his'bfeéumption was - .. This change .in organizational culture can only
flawed. As the Defense Department’s witness testi- result if senior-officials in the Federal law enforce-
“fied before the subcommittees, one-of thie two sen: .- -ment agencies implement changes in training and
"jor. military officers who gt_,ténded_;hg’thee_ting with ©-operational- procedures. "The benefits of these
.the Attorney. General on_ April 14, told ‘the-Attor- ~--changes: will not only protect the targets of govern-
“ney General that ‘during’ the use of CS mothers ment - action-but, by making it more likely that
... mig] ff and leave t! ir childre " Yet the :.Federal -.:law;_enforcem,en;_,._oﬁ'ncials will carry out .
A;A@jﬁ?ﬁ}_Géh@}!&!_f_:&i!é‘&_.ﬁﬁpptgcjpt@:ﬂie'ﬁi_ct that - - their mission. in the manner most likely to suc-
.t .~ ~this possibility _w as in_direct contravention to a - ceed, will help to protect the safety of the law en-
B/ assumption of the plan’s provision for the use "~ forcement officers as well..- ,
" of the CS agent—that the adult members of the - 2. Federal law enforcement agencies should
commiunity would care for the children, - -~ revise policies and training to encourage the
_The FBI failed to properly inform the Attorney - acceptance of assistance from other law en-
Gene | of the rigks of using CS'_g_ge"nt,'éh ‘children =~ forcement: agencies, where possible. The sub-
B " by not appftéé_iatiﬁg’jthe'fmilitmy“"oﬁiéél’sf"f warning ¥ ‘committees . recommend -that FBI officials take
“o 7 zg- that parents might abandon their children and by steps.to change the prevailing FBI .culture that

"*1 not fully apprising the Attorney General that t
.. was :little_ scientific information=-ori_the effects of

" best vljdw'fé"ﬁiﬁdle“a"' situation. While agency pride
a'appifbpr_iatc.*and-dwerving in the case of the

*. CS on_children. While:thé Attorney ‘General cannot

‘ ae e Y lted for Telying on ‘the advice given her by~ FBI, this pride appears to have caused the agents
z 83
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ulting deaths = :

‘Jeads ‘agents to believe: that only the FBI knows . .



to have been foreclosed to other possibilities of
_ ... dealing with the situation at hand, such as by al-
lowing other persons whom the Davidians trusted
to become more involved in negotiations or using
other law enforcement agency forces to maintain

"lieve pressure.on the HRT. The FBI could have

_to take steps now.to ensure that this'close
ess does not_occur in the future. : - i _
."The  government should- further study

:agént ‘on ‘¢hildren, . persons .with-respiratory
‘conditions, pregnant women, and the elderly.

: ‘Department of Defense investigate further the ef-

: = o~fects of exposure to CS on children, pregnant -

" women, the elderly, and persons with respiratory
‘problems. Until such time as more is learned
about the actual effects of exposure to this agent,
the subcommittees recommend that CS not be
used when children, persons with respiratory con-
ditions, pregnant women, and the elderly are

- - present,.

led the FBI to recommend to the Attorney General
that ‘the standoff:be -ended on April 19_was_the.
need to rest and retrain the HRT. There were no
sufficient numbers. of HRT members to both
§ pertineter of the residence and to-relicvé
the line_periodially. Given this limitation,

~e g a Federal law.enforcement agency while; the,
standoff with the Davidians was continuing, the
-~ FBI would have been faced with the choice of not
- * " responding to that situation or pulling the HRT
- .- out of Waco and moving them to the new location.
_Both of these scenarios suggest the need to en-
"large-the size of the HRT. While the subcommit-
- tees are aware that the FBI has increaseéd the size

of the HRT from ‘the 48 “operator”-agents on the
- team as of early 1993 to 78 operators as of July
'..1996,- the subcommittees Tecommend that further
.: consideration™begiven to-this issue."As the ‘sub-
".committees have-concluded-that the-government
_ghould have-waited beyond April 19-and continued.
.to..negotiate ‘with the  Davidians, inherent in that

"“tactical force should have remained at the resi-

dence. The FBI shoiild ensure that the-HRT is

. large enough to.maintain a long standoff in the fu-
_ _ture, should the need arise, while also having the
‘capacity. to respond to-another hostage or, barri
cade situation elsewhere in the country during th

1o At 12:07 p.m., Central Standard. T4 e, more
“*" "than 6 hours after the FBI began to implement

© +*"the Branch. Davidian center perimeter and thus re-.

ind analyze-the effects of CS' riot ‘control’

" /The subcommittees recommend that the FBI-and-

“:"’4, The FBI should expand the sizé of the .
Hostage Rescue Team. One of the pressures that .

the subcommiittees_also note that if another:hos-
tage or barricade situation had developed involv- -

._recommendation. was-that the HRT-or some other.

. plan to end the standoff, fire was detected inside
.-~ the Branch Davidian residence. Within a period of
" 2 minates; two ‘additional fires were detected in
two other parts of the structure. In less than 8
-minutes the fire had spread throughout the struc-
:_ture. By the end of the afternoon, the structure
.. -was completely destroyed. '

:.leader-of a team of fire experts called together by
- .the Texas Rangers to investigate the origins of the
fire,501 : a: fire expert retained by the Justice De-

~ subcomimittees also reviewed videotape recordings
" of the development and spread of the fire. Included
“in this review was a videotape using “forward

looking infrared” (FLIR) technology, which was
- taken from an FBI observation plane circling the
Branch Davidian residence throughout the morn-

ing and afternoon of April 19. The FLIR type of .

video, also called a Thermal Imaging System, is a
type of video photography which images thermal
. heat sources. Because of its sensitivity to changes
. in the quantity of heat given off by an object the
" FLIR .videotape 'showed the beginning of the fires
within the Branch Davidian residence prior to the

“dicators on:the video tape recordings were used by

h guard; . dics
eyé meém-  the witnesses to establish the times at which each

mthm_g\el_?_oranch Davidian residence began.

..SUMMARY ‘OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE FIRE

....-.During the hearings, James Quintiere, professor
“"of Fire Protectioni Enginéering at the University of
Maryland and one of two fire experts retained by

" the Justice. Department to join the fire review
_team assembled by.the Texas Rangers, used the
- FLIR video.tape to-demonstrate the development
* of the fire on April 19. Dr. Quintiere’s responsibil-
" 'ities as a part of the Review. Team were to analyze
“the development of the-fire-and draw interpreta-

“= "~ tions ‘and conclusions from that analysis.®®3 In ad-

- dition to réviewing the FLIR video, the fire inves-
" “tigation team reviewed television coverage of the
"’ firé by the Canadian Broadcasting Corp., which
_“was also time-dated, and television coverage of the
= fire by a local Waco television station. The team
= "also‘reviewed aerial photographs and other mate-
" ‘rials. During his testimony to. the subcommittees,
~-Dr., Quintiere played a video tape that simulta-
neously played each of the three video tapes of the
fire synchronized to the same time,

The videotape -demonstration showed that the
first fire begun’at 12:07:42 p.m. As part of his tes-
_ T@iUS. Dept. of Justice, Report 1o the Deputy Atlomey Ceneral on
. the Events at- Wato, (1993)_(hereinafter Justice Department

T boas Indivd ied Uy scenc of. the fire on April 22-24, 1989
H:ilr?m 3:at 110 (statement of James Quintiere).
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"been open to these possibilities while maintaining. "-:..The subcommittees received t,estimon} from the
its ultimaté control of the situation. The FBI needs.

partment.to join with the team assembled by the ~
Texas Rangers,®2 and an independent arson in- =~

stimony_ of these witnesses, the -

point.at.which was the flames were visible to per-.
sons-on the-outside of the structure. Time lapse in-’



* ““timony to the gubcommittees,
rated the videotape demonstrati

dgveloped, Dr. Quintiere testified,
. you look at this point here, you will

mination which-It
rise,- and im:my.
moke~being ~transpo

started -at-one end 0 '
- other end of the room. v The room was
.a second ﬂ.oQi’;‘fb_dm“gfgprﬁ'ﬁmat.elyf 16 x11:
-"in_dimensions -and ab
- which is presumed to ‘have been 8

. yoom. One minute later the second fire be- -

gins on the first floor at the rear of the
dining room.5*

Quintiere then desc

rted
£

Dr. ribed the development

‘the second fire.

We are looking
at bedroom
wer.. What--we

at the development of

" the fire in'th area, the second

.. floor. xight to

:09:42, we will see
ople:-who :investigate . and
“event-is called flashiover;
] sint ‘'when’ we have a’ tran-
';ﬁd_s’;ﬁré’-iﬂ’fwhich e. fire-goe
i-a discreté bject that you could"di
" .¢ern-very readily burning in o roghi ' suich
as this to-a point ‘where
the room, and that transition

----- t0 " Do
v fire. Thd

is & Po

oo

=t seconds. Tt 18 kno
that time the room might be survivable.
~ After that time it is definitely not, and
" now._the, fire. is.a threat
Quintie
which occurre
2,608 He also no
erged hot gases at 8 point 45
nt where

wn

;2 Finally, Dr- v¢ déscribed the inception
.. the third fire, red on the first
_‘the chapel are
later there eme
away from the poi

pr. Q.uintiéré"nér-'f- -
on. As the first fire "~~~

to turn slightly .-

from': the - fire:*
the room~to: the ... = Ti.

16 x @inu:TMegnnhi
about 8 feet ‘high, -

are going to '
an event

flames now fill
ition can occur in- -
“as flashover.. Bef:ore :

to spreading to -

floor_
ted that 38 seconds:
feet’
the third fire began.

the debris .area because of the wind has
now propagated significantly over that de-
bris area. These are three distinct fires.
From this information I can conclude
. that these three fires that occurred nearly
1. minute .apart’ were ' intentionally set
. from within the compound. Also, you have
_ the ‘time périédé"ianlVed and the very
. dis§fepe;;,diﬁ'erent*loéaﬁons, None of these
_three. fires ‘could have caused any of the
others because: their ‘growth rates would
QQE_;fprpyide 'suﬁ'xcié‘riti"heat.in'g to “cause
“such remote ignitions.608 - SRR
rts testified that. they believed the fires
_-.. were-intentionally set’ by Branch Davidian mem-
bers in order-to destroy the gtructure.8c® Support-
.. ing this conclusion is that fact that the fire review
.- team found that a ‘number of accelerants were
present in the structure and on the clothing of
some of the surviving Davidians, including gaso-
" line, kerosene, Coleman fuel, an other
accelerants.610 As Dr. Quintiere testified,

Although normal furnishings and inte-

rior construction characteristics would

— 4. provide .8 means for fire propagation, the

i-..mp):e;;_t.haiij‘__ti'.éi;h]' rapid spread of these
ﬁtgs',..,f_{es'pécjal! 7in‘the dining room an

the chapel’, areas, indicates to me that

some_ formi of atcelerant was us "to en-

i o rapid spread of these

of

 B-OTHER THEORIES CONCERNING THE
T DEVELOPMENT OF THE FIRE
1, ‘Vikether ihe Fiéthylene chloride in the CS riot
o ;_7__cqr‘uro_'l agent used by the FBI caused the fire
" One of the theories forwarded to the subcommit-
.. tees.concerning the origin of the fire is that meth-
of ylene_chloride, 2 chemical used as a dispersant to
‘i’ " carry the: CS .¥iot. control injected into the

rry :the:. agent 1nje
.- Branch Davidian residence, m
. " started the fire.

testified that it.wa
...chloride in. the ‘CS age

s his opinion that

nt neither caused nor con-

- r He testified that this could have been a separately . kR A o
- get; fourth fire; but ‘that the development of this = '-mb-‘-’-t-‘?-dm?? the spread of the fire. hlorid
e i eonsistent with someone placing 8 il of = iccor(ing o Dr. Quintiere, methylene CoRCCy
" gasoline or other -liquid -fuel betweeii those two _when a vapor In Bl is' flammable at ambient 8%
B s and allowing the third fire 10.51 read over “levels. of 12 percent or greater.®% This conclusion
f;mt*mﬁ g O s pre -':.—-A;-;}a;;suppoé_ fbyt;‘ngorma%?n %rovige,l‘}hby f-hbz manu-
- trail. 807 - ot e e P - .. facturers of methy ene chloride.6!? The su ommit-
As Dr. Qumtie::e summanzedrhx.s con.ch_mo ) _tees review of the -evidence presented. indicates
If we can just pause at this point, you. that the levels of methylene chloride present in

the first fire. A
in the dining.

see_the fire here,

has not: burned

e e .4" ' " . -
- .'H-dngvms.nas. o '
wsjd st 136

weld S
@1]d at 196-137.

P A p—
T o e o oo

after that a.fire.”

he roof yeb, but ‘the jgnition 4n 7.

ﬂdm!ﬁmlmlthehummmdlsﬂe
). (statement of Rick Sherrow)
asgggggm of Paul Grey)

from Peter Voytek, executive director, Halogensted Solvents
lﬁwmln@wcknnks:bﬁu.mdwmw
. .. _onCrime (July 25, Mallinckrodt, Inc., Material
= i e Pata Safety Sheet fee,
Sheet 1 (1968)

1005). See olso generally
1 (1989); Dow Chemical,
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. the residence on_April 19 was far below this @h;:‘,‘ h:srewev;of the literature, Dr. Quintiere testified
centration.14 ‘Additionally, a spark;” flame,” or° that it was his opinion that the CS powder that is
an active irritant in the riot control agent did not

other source of heat is necessary for methylene .
“chloride to ignite and a fireball-like event__wo_q!d' enhance_the'spread of the fire, 620

S , have 'es_“lged'._“ Dr Quintiere ustlﬁed v .. i - 3. Whether the combat engineering vehicles used by
.- In other wogds, anything above ‘12" per- - .. - .. the FBI'on April 19 started :ﬁ fire ‘
cent to-approximately 20 percent, it would Some theories concerning the origin of the fire
"+ involve -an explanation that one of the combat en-

< gineering vehicles-used by the FBI to inject CS
.chemical-agent--and to demolish portions of the
Branch::Davidian - residence  may have actually - -
_c?lused'th_‘e-ﬁre,reither intentionally or unintention-

y. :‘,—A: FERIER R

ropagating =~th
much’ like d" il
vation like that made for this fire.5! S
=_-.- ..-The only-fireball which did occur took “place well . ‘At onépoint in the video record of the operation
.-~ after the fires had engulfed the building, and was™_on_April 19, a combat engineering vehicle is seen
.-~ most likely- due to the explosion of a“canister of . driving into a portion of the residence, The first
_ propane gas.8!8 Accordingly, because there was no fire begins in that same location shortly thereafter.
- explosion ‘prib"r'to the beginning of the ﬁre, there Some have suggested that the CEV might have
is no evidence that methylene chloride vapor overturned a lighted kerosene lantern inside the
present in the air caused the outbreak of the fire.  residence, causing the fire to begin. The fire that
Dr. Quintiere also noted that methylene chloride  begins in that area, however, is not discernable in
is generally in a liquid state and that as the meth-  the FLIR video until 162 During the hearings, Dr.
. ylene chloride vapor condensed and fell in droplets  Quintiere was questioned on the significance of
ER R to ghs f:;or of _ttl}lielstmct.;:;e A:lﬁ.er_the Cﬁ was in&" _this fact. .. T
serted- the “methylene chloride - generally *would® " "3 aii e woon s
evaporated. Tn sorme instances, hdszer,'iﬂlé’ I 'Mr.»St?!j:iIFil-f‘:VWell‘,j xtc'! tht_erﬁ were lanterns
sve sollected in-a puddle. He testj. - - in-use and if you had, either through vi-
= 916 would have been. difficult; brations of tanks hitting walls or through
51 the presence of chlorine in the. :.: ;number.of people, panicking inside at
ifizd that “in some_sense [methyl-- what, they might have perceived was an
srié-chlorid Tike an inhibitor.”617 He further- assgult,.notwithstanding the FBI broad-
tified~"that- he ~conducted expéhxﬁ??ité, - using ; s_t;gpmg.@o::_t_hem,_couldn t either or both
‘méethyléne chloride as a “wetting” agent by depos- 9f t:hose factors:easﬂg' overturned lanterns
- i - -iting-it on wood, paper, and other flammable ob- _ - - _m'sxdg the compot.md. . '
jects that might have been found in the structure- -~ ' Dr. QUINTIERE: Well, the only evidence
. in an effort to determine whether the methylene_ of a tank being in the vicinity of one of
chloride might have bumed along with these ~ the fires is the first fire, and that tank
- jteis. -As“a result ‘of these experiments, he con- . h”..."-?—f left 1¥2 minutes after the fire has
- cluded-*that 'the “methylene chloride had no en.. " begun. If that tank knocked over a lan.
hancemient effect on the fires spread over the room . #m and the lantern were lit, we would
-~ furnishings “and ‘other things that burned in the ~ -have'seenitin that FLIR video because it
Bl Py bttt A ettt Mo PR would have been’ sensitive enough to see
“that. If the tank had spilled a lantern and

woocompound TO8 L LT LT
e 7.2, Whether the irritant chemical in_the.CS riotoon " “‘there~was no_flame there to ignite it,
IR o gyggg?;;;e"sed ;’;ehfﬁl caused or contrib-...... “that's possible, but somebody would have
. _e "P" > of-1he. u'e fesmenns i 2 to'come in.and put a flame in that.622
...~ -~ At .the hearings  Dr. Quintiere testified that he - --Some citizens have-contacted the subcommittees
".....had reviewed the literature concerning the ignition - - to suggest that the combat engineering vehicles
=7 - . - peint of the -chemicalirritant in CS_agent-and -~used by the FBI at. Waco carried flame throwing
e i e noted that the temperature at which that chemical’ " devices which were used .to intentionally set the
' . - would ignite.- was comparable ~“t°.- what we would ' fires inside the Branch Davidian residence. During
. find from most fuels around us."®!® Based upon  the hearings, the fire experts were questioned
— S - ... . .about this theory.
T e Pu 3 st 14D T : R _Mr, SCHUMER:. Another theory we have
P et ot e ot oty oard mentioned . tht  flame thrower
an 5. piopaie cylinder.... .., Thers. % a Bandred pownd ~from the tanks started:the fire. Now as
e L G nt s v ok bt e 526 a0 nderstand.iit,>we ‘would have to have
seen on the FLIR a hot streak going from

#e-=t eeyd, ‘
e wur, BV1d; at 135 (statement of James Quintiere),
T el ld gt 143,
86
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= the tank to ‘the building for that to hap- “* - and autopsies indicates that the cause of death of
pen. ST T ~ . several of the bodies at exit points were self-in-
Dr. QUINTIERE: Absolutely. " flicted gunshot wounds or gunshots from very close
~ Mr. SCHUMER: And we did not; is that range. :
e R LTI et e "" At the hearings before the subcommittees, Dr.
: Absolutely. " Quintierée testified as to his opinion as to whether
~¢heé Davidians could have left the structure. He
' testiﬁed, Drllamnnoaloim. 7 _..‘
“Tve. imated 27 that. the occupants
would have had sufficient -warning in no
doubt [sic] that ‘the ‘fire-occurred, and this
_would have ‘enabled them to' escape for up
to five minutes from the start of that first -
" fire or perhaps a8 many as 20 minutes in

81 Y W e L8
o such ﬂ\ing:as.a;_glggﬁé-ﬂ\roﬁer on_those™’ -
~vehicles. 45 15 ox AL
- "~ On another day of gig*lt;‘eadnﬁs,'faihl)efenﬁefbepah
77 ment witness testifiec at all of the military vehi- = " some protected areas of the building.

o ccles loaned by the Defense Department to the De-" - .. S0 between and interval of five minutes
_partment of Justice and used at Waco were un-- . ofter the fire started and maybe 8s much
armed.* Additionally, the. subcomrmittess inter-  as 20 minutes, a person ‘could have es-
views with other persons present at the Branch . . caped from some parts of the building.628

Davidian residence on April 19 confirms that none S P : .

of these vehicles was armed. Paul Gray, Assistant Chief of the Houston Fire

Department and leader of the fire review team as-

C. WHETHER THE DAVIDIANS COULD HAVE LEFT gembled by the Texas Rangers, agreed with this

B THEIR RESIDENCE AFTER THE FIRE BEGAN opinion, “T would take an educated guess of about
<> -Throughout the morning of April 19, none of the 20 to 22 minutes from the inception of the fire,
‘Davidians left their residence. After the fire bmkef._.«,.-.f'l‘?!n___f_-‘}? first ignition that there may ‘have been
-out; ~however,_nine- persons left the building.625 . Some viable. conditions. inside the building.” 622 As
‘Thié‘f-indicates::gtb'%ii;ag.‘ljn‘"' ~gsome OpPd " _the report of the team led by Gray summarized,

some °p.p°n“mi»tyi' ex-. .;; { NS

Ty leave ithe strucs =~ “(AY g‘feif::iﬁiﬁyi-’of{ the: occupants could

‘ 5 One of these who. .o b¥e (SEHPTG, o the outside M ding

3ca ire jelt; ; most:2]1 .min:, T even:ias v the uildin

tes after.the outbreak of the first fire.628:Clearly é]bnsideﬁng the observa‘blg

-~~some'imeans,;gf{és&{fi’e“ﬁox_ﬁ{_,‘_'ﬂ'é residence.existed. ans. of exit available;-we must assume . .

e ,_;:‘:‘:t"a signiﬁcgn‘_‘l;iper;gd gf;ym’ei"gﬁerf the fire-broke __?gt"-?gﬁfbf %é’{:&u&mm wera;;g,e,
o o O L EE R St jed “escape  from withi to

... . . . An important “question; however, js whether the . . 1:5&‘6:%%2:&5§$§:?notl-;n°:p‘;§on.:”
‘Davidians might -have been overcome by smoke Py iy .

-and prevented from leaving the residence. The au-" " In light of this evidence, the subcommittees o

psies of the Davidians indicate that deaths from ... clude that there was & period of time after the

smoke;‘inhal“gﬁ_tiﬁ*di' *asphyxiation from carbon ;-A;-ﬁres began within :\_\(hlch,t,hg,_Davxdxans could have

g

S "< de poisoni o the  escaped the residence. The_ evidence presen
e S Ty e el (0 Ll e
T “were - The:OMeT . :: 454 not. attempt .to Jeave. the building during the

T e trauma, Thus, ev A fire.  Davidians’ religious beliefs that
cther treuma. Thus, éven sfter the B0 began to 27 13 play @ part in the end of their worldly
lives,-thevsubcommitbees conclude that most of the

Lz Davidians W §¢ cted joke and ™ : .
: Davidians were 0t 52 affected by the STOL and. Davidians:either .did _not attempt to leave their

“from the fire that they were: ically un. | 28ve !
Tom e ;m}‘? ,‘-‘“ma-,,-.;;,,‘?'- werephysma}yun residence diring the_fire or were prevented from
“the ion of the. bodies of the escaping by other Davidians. Had they made
.- _. Da : )avidians: ac- ’;n attempt- ax(ll:i.nqt:be_enhhind‘e‘reg in f!.he zti%etppt.
~~*ually attempted fw‘esape-me.bunding.__;mmi of - however, con itions were such that for § cient
the bodies were huddled together in locations in " ~period of time after the fires broke out many of the -
___ the center of the building.62? Few of the bodies Davidians could have survived. :
... were located at points of exit from the building, D. THE FBI'S PLANNING FOR THE FIRE
131 T4 ot appen’ (n;mr b “Aomd: m" }'; eming wsh sty © .,Accd}a"i:,{g';@;%@'”ﬁlgs}%icé"Deg:}r‘t;ment Reporrat
e : 7) (statement of Uk B e ..g meeting in early April, one of the government at-
gt porrm i 2O e s Socsa 0% 1 gomeya: Yaised the _BOR jbility of fire at the

et e, This, & gunshot wounds; BUrmS. &%, . fire; In light of the

consume.-the. “gtructure, "8t least ~half of. “the

mr«spddommmu-lnumwg@nm AN cad e POS
S foatice Department Report at 298 Two of, these pérsons, Clive: eompound_al‘ld guggesteﬂ'to the FBI that “fire

Deoyle and David Thibodean testified before the sobcommittees 8l $he- e oL
e hearifgy ings Part 3 at 139 (statement of Jams Gantier) e Part 330130,
: @), ‘chart indicating the location of the bodies foand after:the fire in ;‘.'.'.M‘;a'l&‘“""——'-'-*: -
the remains of residence is contained in the Appendix. 7. ga8 Justice Department Report at 335,
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fighting equipment .be placed on standby on the

* * scene.” 831 "Additionally, the Medical Annex to the

operations plan for April 19, which listed the loca-

tions of “primary” and “secondary” hospitals in the

_ a manner that indicates an intention to spread the' -

fire, . . o
2. The methylene chloride in the CS riot

control agent used by the FBI did not cause
the fire, There is no evidence that methylene

" area noted that local hospitals should not be used - the fire, The; ) e !
2 to treat major burns but that one of the secondary :_a_l-_chlonc_l_fe‘ .vapor in-the air in tl}e residence, present
-~ hospitals was “primary for major burng.™ <27~ -""* as the result of its use as a disbursant for the CS
“According to the Justice:Department Report; the = ~Tiot control agent, caused the outbreak of the fire.
not have fire fighting equipment at - The evidence presented to the subcommittees indi-
_that they:would’ bé’ fired “upon "’a*;atv_esl_,_(,!.t,hg_;{pr_‘ :.ﬂ]m(g,- .-r_neﬂaglene °h"°f‘:§ to g‘avle
followetz." 832 Yot shortly after - burmed some spark must have ignited the methyl-
followers, &% Yet shortly after ene chloride vapor and that a fireball would have
resulted. Because no fireball was observed until
well after the fire had become established, the sub-
committees conclude that methylene chloride did

““the "reports. of - fire,.the FBI:commarid - post “re-
+7%: quested fire fighting assistance be requested. The
. first fire fighting vehicles arrived in the vicinity 20

minutes later and, at 12:41 p.m., approached the
structure. In total, the fire crews did not reach the
structure until 31 minutes after the fire had first
been reported.®33 The report also asserts that Jef-
frey Jamar, the FBI's on-scene commander at
Waco, stated to Justice Department officials dur-
ing the their internal investigation of the incident
that “even if the fire fighters had arrived at the
compound earlier he would not have permitted
them to enter due to the great risk to their
lives."” 634

The subcommittees do not dispute the Justice
Department's position that at the outbreak of the
fire it would have been dangerous for fire fighters
" to approach the structure. Yet, the subcommittees
find it troubling that even though the government
clearly believed there existed a strong possibility
of fire, no provision ‘was made for fire fighting
units to be on hand, even as a precaution. If, as
the Justice Department’s Report implies, the gov-
ernment had decided in advance that it would not
attempt to fight any fire that occurred (and thus
did not make provision for fire fighting units to be
present at the compound), it is difficult to under-
stand why the FBI placed a call for fire fighting
units to be summoned to the scene immediately
upon the commencement of the fire,

E. FINDINGS CONCERNING THE FIRE

1. The evidence indicates that some of the

Davidians intentionally set the fires inside
the Davidian residence. While the evidence is
not dispositive, the evidence presented to the sub-
committees suggests that some of the Davidians
set the fires that destroyed their residence. The
evidence demonstrated that three distinct fires
began in three separate parts of the Branch
Davidian residence within a 2 minute period on
April 19. Additionally, the fire review team found
that a number of accelerants were present in the
structure, including gasoline, kerosene, and ‘Cole-
man fuel, and that in at least one instance these
accelerants contributed to the spread of the fire in

®@1ld, at 302.
«as/d

a4,
®)d,

L T R ML RN

not cause the fire.

3. The subcommittees conclude that Fed-
eral law enforcement agents did not inten-
tionally set the fire. The evidence before the
subcommittees clearly demonstrates that no fire
began at or near the time when any of the combat
engineering vehicles used by the FBI came into
contact with the structure. Had a flamethrower or

‘similar device been installed on one of the CEV’s

and used to start the fire its use would have been
observable in the infrared videotape of the fire. No
such use is recorded on the that videotape. Accord-
ingly, the subcommittees conclude that the FBI

~ did not use any of the CEV’s intentionally to cause

the fire, . R
4. The subcommittees conclude that Fed-

eral law enforcement agents did not uninten-
tionally cause the fire. The evidence presented --
to the subcommittees suggests that it is highly un-
likely that Federal law enforcement officials unin-
tentionally caused the fires to occur. The evidence
demonstrates that the fires broke out at points in
time when no vehicle used by the FBI was in con-
tact with the structure or had been in contact with
the structure immediately prior to those points.
Because this would have been the case had these
vehicles inadvertently caused the fires to break
out by disturbing flammable materials inside the
Davidian residence, the subcommittees conclude
that it is highly unlikely that the vehicles inad-
vertently caused the fires to occur.

6. The FBI should have made better prep-
arations to fight the fire. While it may have
been too dangerous to fight the fire when it ini-
tially erupted, it remains unknown as to whether
it might have been safe for fire fighters to ap-
proach the building at some point earlier than the
half hour later when they were allowed access.
While fire fighting efforts might not have extin-
guished the fire, they could have delayed the
spread of the fire or provided additional safe
means of escape for some of the Davidians.. It also
does not appear as though the FBI considered ob-
taining armored fire-fighting vehicles. from the .
military. In any event, given the government’s
strong belief that a fire might take place, and its
action in summoning fire fighting units to the

[EES IR I Z 0039151
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" one person left the structure

the subcommittees conclude that the FBI
should have made better provision for the presence
of fire fighting equipment as part of its overall
plan to end the standoff.

6. The Davidians could have escaped the
residence even after the fire began. r the
fire broke out on April 19, nine persons left the
Davidian residence. This indicates that at least
. gome opportunity existed for the Davidians to safe-

1y leave the structure had they wanted to do so. As

gcene,

__ou@rggk of the first fire, some means.

b T T AT ¢ S PR AT T e S 1 o e

existed for a significent period
of time after the fire broke out. The autopsies of
the Davidians indicate that many of the Davidians
were not so affected by the smoke and fumes from
the fire that they were physically unable to leave
the structure. Additionally, the location of the bod-
jes of the Davidians indicates that few of the

from the residence

- Davidians actually attempted to escape the build-

21 minutes after the
of escape

89

ing. In light of this evidence, the subcommittees
conclude that there was a period of time after the
fires began within which the Davidians could have

~escaped the residence.
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ANA ROS-LEHTINEN . -~

'ADDITIONAL VIEWS OF HON. IL

For the record, while.l agree with the Waco-spe-. . Ms.-Reno is-widely respected as a woman of in-
cific conclusions in the report, 1 want to'nete that -~ tegrity and-a selfless public. servant. Indicative of
Janet Reno has had a distinguished career in pub- - her ‘sincerity, she: took complete responsibility and
lic service beginning in 1971_with the Judiciary - - offered her resignation for the actions of Federal
Committee ‘of the Florida House of Representa-" agencies toward the Branch Davidians near Waco,
tives. Her record of service and history of public - TX in 1993, after gerving only a month as Attor-
integrity is long_and worthy of additional com-  ney General. Ms. Reno has endeavored to improve
ment. From the Florida House, she held positions the U.S. Justice System as shown by her recent
with a St,at&Sffnat,e commnttee,l{)ade Cguntg gtate and complementary handling of the Montana Siege
ﬁ::gmey’ sf Dc?i' ‘é” evenm; { e;gg";“fh tate  which ended in a peaceful resolution. Her leader-
Attarney for Do aive forms clected to the Bosl  ghip in the Department of T 3 has, in my view,
-present position as Attorn ey General of the United _ since \213::0 Begn gfsc&nmderable benefit to the citi-
States. SO AR T T ‘zen_s' of ti e mt.e~__t.es .
" HoN. ILEANA Ros-LEHTINEN.
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Véetead

.-In response to- ¢oncerns raised by-two members
of the minority at the committe¢ mark-up, I want
to_set the record straight regarding:the extensive

“throughout the entire investigative process. =~ ™

" First, the subcommittces made an unprece-

dented attempt at genuine accommodation in hold-

ing 10 days of investigative hearings. In a conces-

sion that had no apparent precedent during prior

Congresses, the majority accepted 90% of the wit-

nesses suggested by the Democrats.

“Second, minority members were invited on key
fact-finding trips, such as to Waco itself.

___Third, the majority shared all available docu-

ments, set up a document room accessible to all

" gtaff, and shared all indexes received to those doc-

- -~ uments; by contrast -the majority ‘subsequently

“learned that the minority staff.received ‘and inten-

a...Treasu

3

cuments. This-minority tactie~led 'to “thie unnec-
essary expenditure-of tens of hoursTof indexing by
"the ‘majority -prior: to: being able-to ‘use”the docu:

ments they received. As another indication of the
- .- difficulties the majority facted, two Democrat staff-

ers and told them that they should not or did not

_need to honor subpoenas issued by the majority;

" these kinds of obfuscatory.tactics during and prior
-minority

" to the hearings:did-not enhance majority
" . cooperation, T e
.. Fourth, “the "append sists
* largely of documents that are in the public domain

.. from the hearings; or are otherwise available to
the minority; we have never had ‘a request to see

.. these documents,. and we know that most were

separately sent to the minority staff by the depart-
--not seeing-the appendix ring hollow. = === .77 o

Fifth, the 10 footnotes missing from' the distrib-
_uted-draft are either in documents the minority al-
ready have or are merely ids or ibids to documents
already once cited elsewhere in the report’s other
600 footnotes. I

. Sixth, the post-hearing .investigation. consisted:
largely of asking for_documents that the majority .

i
eceived . from . theé -departments; “int

; ropatorie
that_pertained to-unanswered heating_ questiom

gjority. efforts” to_ cooperate” with - the: minority

tionally withheld.-from: majority-*staff the” key
ry Department index toctens’of thousands of

" ers apparently met secretly with the Texas Rang-"~

ix"to this report ‘consists "

" . ments themselves; - accordingly, complaints about

ad alréady ‘asked for on June 5, 1995; drid never

" ADDITIONAL VIEWS OF HON. WILLIAM H. ZELIFF, JR.

'and “issues first raised at the hearings or inter-
views. There were no surprises in these requests.
- Seventh; the press_conference held on the day
the ‘report was distributed to Members simply
made available the .recommendations of the two
‘subcommittee chairmen to the respective sub-
committees and committees, and the summary—
~ well within the House Rules—was made available
to the minority at the same time. Ironically, the
week prior to the business meeting, one of my
staffers received a call from the Justice Depart-
ment in which the Department indicated that they
had received—presumably from a minority staff
member or member—a copy of the whole Waco re--
_ port. For the record, that is a clear and unequivo-
“-cal violation of Rule 4, if any majority member had
- wished raise it—and when asked for a chance to
“earréct facts. that might be unclear or wrong, the
* department made no such proffer. In fact, they
“ ‘never gent any corrections whatsoever, despite five
follow-up telephone calls to get fact corrections.
_Eighth, cooperation with the departments was,
frankly, an exercise in extreme patience; the ma-
jority even had to suffer having the Secretary of
- - Treasury calling Democrats and telling them not .
to ask any embarrassing questions at the hear-
ings. Surely, that is not the proper reaction to con-
gressional oversight, and it is not consistent with
- _President Clinton’s promises of full cooperation. In
a further example of ‘unjustifiable manipulation,
" the Treasury. Department also flew the Texas
=" Rangers who were going:to testify to Washington
ahead of time and at taxpayer expense—to brief
them for 2.days on what they should say. In my
view, there can be little question that that action
- was patently offensive to both the word and spirit
. of cooperation.
.. ._Ninth, the majori

, ty has actually allowed the mi-
" nority four times the amount of time normally al-
“"“lowed—and under House rules required—to review
a report prior to a business meeting. On balance,
I believe the record will show clearly that the en-
tire investigative process was conducted not only
patiently, inclusively, exhaustively and with an ex-
- - traordinary emphasis on cooperation, but with an
“incontrovertible premium. on fairness. In fact, I
kiiow of no_set of investigative hearings or report
1as ever been conducted with this level of in-
pgration—,for-faimess.
=~ 'HON, WILLIAM H. ZELIFF, JR.
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.. THE SUBMISSION BY HON. STEVEN SCHIFF, OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON NATIONAL
I

-~ __SECURITY, INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS, AND CR
“TEE ON GO’ REFORM AND OVERSIGHT, OF EXTRANEOUS MATERIAL

PROVIDED TO HIM BY HON "ROB BARR, OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON CRIME OF
THE COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY. . SRR R

- - The ‘hearings into the 1993 Waco tra *what they can do.in fulfilling their specific respon- -
-ducted - jointly fri*June 1995. by: the Crime St ‘gibilities. #7n T -
< commi of the House Committee on the Judic =:However; with the phenomenal growth in the
“ary and. theé "Subeommiuee-pn-National Security; = “power -of. the- Federal . Government, touching vir-
International Affairs, and Criminal Justice, of the  tually eve facet of our lives—,—personal, business,
House Committee on Government Reform and educational, government, religious, recreational,

Oversight, was 8 painful expose of perhaps the etc.—there has developed a mentality on the part
greatest law enforcement tragedy in American his-  of law enforcement that they can do anything and

tory. Yet, it was 8 necessary exercise, because it not be held accountable for it. Along with this we
ve those of us on the subcommittees, and all have witnessed the development of & militaristic
Americans, the opportunity to examine why it hap- approach to domestic law -enforcement, in every-
‘pened and to at least begin to implement steps to thing from dress (black military uniforms and hel-

‘avoid a recurrence of the tragedy. It would not be  mets), to equipment (armored vehicles and mili-
_' - - g -gignificant overstatement to describe the Waco  tary surplus helicopters), to outlook, to execution.
. =@ operation -from e -Government's standpoint, as- - . " Qur armed forces, in carrying out their mission
z:-one:An _which if something could go wrong, it did. to protect and ~ project our national interests
. The true tragedy. istgyi_xtga‘lly;gll of those mistakes abroad, are. not bound by the constitutional re-
: -:"could:hﬁave,_b,een_.gyoide& BV T havm ho alowes straints ,plg_q,qe?__dn‘dn(dqmesti‘c law enforcement. This
. After. nearly 2 weeks of hearings; : the: sub- reflects the significant’ differences between con-
Seirnimitiees closeds: down the proceedings, ; an ,d;,i:ﬁh’g-,d?!!iéf)tic‘iawfehforcemgnt operations, and
ot ss. Now; .over..a.yea ;ébridiictirig'_‘wk&i{aigi‘bv“erseas. fn a war situation,

. moved. on, to other business , ng re
" later, we have a report. While the report-contains .,:-,,pui._g_i‘rne'd “forces do not and should not ‘have to
give g before shooting the

that I believe are accurate and . give “Miranda® ‘warnings -

important rec-  enemy; they need not have “probable cause” before

_ommendations, it fails to address several ex- =~ an attack- Domestically, our law enforcement offi-
tremely important matters that came to light dur-  cers must do these things.

Do ing the hearings and which deserve far more scru- . Unfortunately, we saw in the Waco tragedy one

~ ... 7 . - tiny than accorded heretofore. L logical result of the blurring of lines between do-

A R L. 1 would hope that in the next Congress, followup - . mestic Jaw enforcement: and . military operations:

.. ‘hearings are held, “and legislative measures intro--. an op’éfhtidﬁ“carried out pursuant to a strategy de-

T duced and passed. -Avoiding - tragedies” such as * signed todemiolish an “enemy,” utilizing tactics de-

S . ‘Waco ought to be a top priority for the ‘Congress™ “‘gigned to cut off avenues of escape, drive an enemy

... and the administration. s e ouby and run roughshod over the “niceties” of car-

e e e _ Rather than repeat all the conclusions and re¢- ing for the rights of those involved. The protesta-

et e ommendations “of the ‘report, many of - which: I - tions of the Attorney General to the contrary, that

e agree with “(especially those ‘concerning ‘the-ATF; - _she authorized the injection of debilitating CS gas

P " the Treasury Department failure .to monitor, and- -~ into-closed. interior.. quarters with no ventilation

'.-the-decisiohmak_ipg_ at the FBI and the top-levels - where dozens of women _and children were con-

- " of the Justice Department), 1 will noté those with - -.centrated, -out of concern for the children do not

which I have serious disagreement, from my per- ‘ ynatch -the ‘Covernment's actions. While the report

gpective as a Crime Subcommittee member, as a  reflects this view to some extent, 1 believe very

~ former U.S. attomney, and as a citizen deeply con- firm steps must be taken to *demilitarize” Federal

~ cerned with the militarization of domestic law en- domestic law enforcement, through substantive

‘cetient and the-lack of :acpguntal_gility by Fed- Jegislation and funding restrictions.

_many conclusions
‘appropriate, along with several

w enforcemen SS85 COMITA'
E G o wed pn_ i COMITATUS .AND‘MIL“ARY INVOLVEMENT
MILITARIZATION: OF LAW ENFOR While the report touches on the issue of military

&enft?nt%ﬂ'ncxals have:long - been :re= ‘this operation, focusing primarily
de by the Bill of Rights, enshrined in..... on disingenuous steps taken by the civilian law en-
jes.in_order to obtain military as-

involvement _in

- w7t our: Constitution. These princigles’ underlie .vir- . forcement agens der to ol
" tuall evefyﬂﬁh‘g“ﬁx’ey"db' in‘their capacity-as, offi-. gistance without’ paying - for it, my concerns g0

cers sworn to protect our citizens; and they limit deeper. .
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